





Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY			
1	INTE	ODUCTION AND BACKGROUND	5
	1.1	BRIEF HISTORY OF THE INSTITUTE	5
	1.2	MISSION, SCIENTIFIC IDENTITY AND DISTINCTIVE CHARACTER OF THE INSTITUTE	6
	1.3	SCIENTIFIC ORIENTATION OF THE INSTITUTE	8
	а.	Current scientific directions and thematic priorities	8
	b.	Support schemes for the reported directions and priorities	17
	1.4	SELF-ASSESSMENT AND FUTURE PLANNING	19
	а.	Assessment of current strengths and weaknesses (SWOT analysis)	19
	b.	Summary of the actions to maintain and augment the scientific excellence of the Institute	26
	С.	Needs and assumptions for carrying out the envisioned plan	32
2 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE			
	2.1	INSTITUTE ORGANOGRAM	41
	2.2	Research Groups	42
	2.3	RESEARCH FACILITIES AND SUPPORT UNITS	43
	2.4	SCIENTIFIC COUNCIL	62
	2.5	Personnel	65
3 ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES			68
	3.1	POLICIES AND PRACTICES FOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND ACCESS POLICIES TO FACILITIES.	68
	3.2	MANAGEMENT OF THE HUMAN POTENTIAL	71
	3.3	MEASURES FOR PROMOTING EQUALITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION	72
	3.4	POLICY AND REGULATIONS ENFORCING ETHICS IN RESEARCH AND SCIENTIFIC INTEGRITY	73
	3.5	PARTNERSHIPS, STRATEGIC ALLIANCES	75
	3.6	SCIENTIFIC EXCHANGES AND COLLABORATIONS	79
4	FINANCIAL SITUATION OF THE INSTITUTE		
	TABLES F	ROM THE RIVIEW PLATFORM	96
5	RESI	JLTS & ACHIEVEMENTS	99
	5.1	BIBLIOMETRIC OUTPUT	99
	5.2	TRAINING AND EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES	99
	5.3	INNOVATION AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	116
	а.	New IP, patents generated during the period:	116
	b.	Creation of new spin-off and start-up companies during the period:	116
	с.	Participation in Greek or foreign companies	120
	d.	Income from Royalties or exploitation of IP during the period	121
	е.	Description of TTO office and practices to promote generation and exploitation of new IP	121
	f.	Other commercial activities	121
	5.4	Awards and Distinctions	124
	5.5	Societal Impact	127
6	ADD	ITIONAL INFORMATION – DIRECTOR'S CV	136
7	ANN	EX I – IMBBC BIBLIOGRAPHY (MB&B AND AQUA)	138
	Jour	nal articles	138
	Bool	chapters	167
	Bool	ks - Monograms	170
	Inter	national Conference Proceedings	171
Other Conferences		er Conferences	192





Executive Summary

The Institute of Marine Biology, Biotechnology and Aquaculture (**IMBBC**), is one of the three institutes of the Hellenic Centre for Marine Research (**HCMR**). It was established in 2012 with the merging of two of the initial institutes of HCMR, the Institute of Marine Biology and Genetics (IMBG) and the Institute of Aquaculture (IA). IMBBC has two Research Groups, the Marine Biology & Biotechnology (**MB&B**) and the Aquaculture (**AQUA**). The headquarters of IMBBC and its main facilities are in Crete, while some of its important **AQUA** laboratories are in Anavyssos (Attica), the headquarters of HCMR. The IMBBC facilities in Crete include (a) laboratories and offices in the main building of the "*Thalassokosmos*" complex, (b) the aquaculture rearing and research facilities "*Aqualabs*", (c) an underwater biotechnological park located right off the coast in front of *Thalassokosmos* and (d) a pilot net pen marine aquaculture facility in Souda Bay, Chania. Until the summer of 2019, IMBBC also had aquaculture rearing facilities at Agios Kosmas (Athens), but these premises have been reclaimed and sold by the State.

The **MB&B** Research Group carries out work in the fields of genetics/genomics, bioinformatics, bioanalysis and biotechnology, marine biodiversity, and marine ecology and ecosystem management. Modern approaches are employed to assess biodiversity and ecosystem functioning in the marine realm, integrating field observation, documentation and collection, taxonomy, experimental setups, genetics/genomics and modeling. **AQUA** carries out research in the fields of fish biology, reproduction, ethology, nutrition, and pathology of all developmental stages (larvae to harvestable size), and in final product quality improvement and production technologies. Beyond the widely farmed species in the region, emphasis is also given in species diversification, in order to develop a profitable and sustainable aquaculture industry. **AQUA and MB&B collaborate** in various research areas, the most important being genetics/genomics of cultured fishes, and the use of genetics and epigenetics to develop improved strains and broodstock management methods.

In the last year of the reporting period, IMBBC had **25 permanent researchers**; 19 Postdocs; 20 PhD, 21 MSc and 35 undergraduate students; and 78 technicians, administrative and other personnel (Total of 186). More than **70% of the technicians were on contract**, paid by competitive research grants and private funding. Four new permanentrResearchers joined IMBBC and one took a leave of absence (CEO of the EU Research Infrastructure LifeWatch ERIC). Annual funding during the reporting period ranged between \notin **3.3 and** \notin **4.2 million**, with 52% coming from competitive Greek grants and 28% from EU grants, and **18% from private funds**. This means that for every 1 \notin provided by the State in Permanent Staff salaries, competitive grants and private funding provided another 2 \notin .

IMBBC has shown a steady increase in publishing high-quality articles, reaching **90 articles** in **2021** with **67% published in Q1 journals**. Although HCMR is not an educational institution, IMBBC researchers were involved greatly in teaching courses or seminars in Greek and European universities, and in training students through research projects or practical-training internships. A total of **31 PhD Dissertations** (1.25 per researcher), **45 MSc Theses** (1.8 per researcher) and **120 undergraduate and graduate internships** were supervised by IMBBC researchers in collaboration with 15 Greek universities and organizations and 45 from Europe and the world. Also, **three spin-off companies** were established recently, being the first ever in HCMR.

In order to maintain and increase further the scientific excellence of IMBBC, some critical issues must be addressed. Firstly, due to the significant increase in its research activities,



equipment and personnel since the initial creation of HCMR, **the institute needs new infrastructures**. In addition, because of the loss of the entire Agios Kosmas complex, some of IMMBC's research activities have been compromised and funding reduced, and our researchers now based in Anavyssos have been struggling to find alternatives to accommodate the experimental trials included in research programs and private service contracts. Also, there is significant need for the creation of new laboratory and office space for Crete as well, not only maintain our existing research directions and activities, but also to expand into new ones. In addition, we **lack maintenance and upgrade of our existing facilities and equipment**. The facilities of HCMR were built in the early 2000s and very little (if any) maintenance or upgrading has been done over the years, as there is no provision in the State budget for maintenance and upgrading. More urgently, there is a need to upgrade the sea water supply of IMBBC, as the quality of the water has been degrading continuously, with detrimental effects in the health and welfare of our experimental stocks.

Some aspects of the above two issues will be addressed by the **funding acquired** for the construction of new 800-m² aquaculture rearing facilities (\in 1.8 million) and a new 3,000-m² office and laboratory building (\in 5,67 million) in Anavyssos. Also, a new 2,500 m² office and laboratory building (\in 6,35 million) will be constructed in Crete that will include also a dedicated "Culture collections" facility. Finally, \in 1,67 million will be used for drilling new wells, and the construction of a filtration system for the treatment of sea water.

The second problem is that currently **the institute cannot recruit new permanent researchers or technicians**, either for existing or new research directions, and depends on the State to allocate new positions. Also, a significant number of the permanent researchers and technicians will retire within the next ten years, but many of their positions will not be replaced, because they do not hold an "organizational" position that allows the institute to recruit a new person once someone has retired. Therefore, the status of all permanent staff must be converted to "organizational" by the State, so that the positions will not be lost upon retirement. New positions must also be created by the State, so that we can hire staff for new research directions and also to overlap with existing personnel, since a period of training of the new staff is needed before the more experienced member has retired.

The third problem is the **need to improve the administration and financial policies of the State** and center for the management of research funds. The new Law for Research obliges all public research institutes to abide by the financial management rules of the central government. Unfortunately, these rules provide no flexibility and are inappropriate for research activities. Trying to abide by every financial and administrative rule and regulation is often an impossible task, and results in the loss of valuable time and effort, and the creation of widespread disappointment and frustration among researchers. Therefore, **we propose a new model for the management of research funding**, that should become more similar to a loose subcontract, where a price for the research is estimated by an indicative cost analysis at the proposal stage, so that the reviewers can decide if the requested budget is justified. Once approved, the rules should be limited to those necessary to avoid fraud and illegal activities. All other aspects should be allowed full flexibility, as long as the research goals are achieved, since for any public organization, such as HCMR, systems are already in place to assure that fraud and illegal activities are extremely difficult to occur.

The **future looks positive for the research activities and the role of IMBBC** in studying marine biodiversity and expanding our knowledge, so that we can exploit effectively and sustainably the biological resources of our Seas, and to further strengthen the aquaculture industry and its role in providing healthy seafood to our increasing population.





1 Introduction and Background

1.1 Brief History of the Institute

The Hellenic Centre for Marine Research (HCMR) was established in 2001 (Law 2919/2001) by joining the Institute of Marine Biology of Crete (IMBC, a **private institute** established in 1985 in Heraklion, Crete) and the National Centre of Marine Research (NCMR, a



public institute established in 1985 in Athens). Initially, HCMR consisted of five institutes and in 2012 (Law 4051/2012) four of the initial institutes merged and formed two new ones. The Institute of Marine Biology and Genetics (IMBG) and the Institute of Aquaculture (IA) merged to form the Institute of Marine Biology, Biotechnology and Aquaculture (IMBBC), which is now one of the three institutes of HCMR. Dr. Antonios Magoulas was elected as its first director in 2013 and his term ended in December 2018. In 2019, a 7-member committee consisting of five external researchers and professors, and two researchers from IMBBC selected Dr. Constantinos (Dinos) C. Mylonas as the new director, who was then ratified on 24 January 2020 (Φ EK 43 YO $\Delta\Delta$, 24/1/2020).

IMBBC has its headquarters and its main facilities (offices, labs, aquaculture facilities, etc.) in the premises of HCMR in Crete, named "Thalassokosmos" (see picture below). The "Thalassokosmos" complex is located 15 km east of the city of Heraklion and includes the "Main building", the aquaculture facilities "Aqualabs" and the public aquarium "Cretaquarium". IMBBC operates also a pilot net pen marine aquaculture facility (30 mT of production) in the western part of Crete in Souda Bay, Chania, and the Underwater Biotechnological Park (50,000 m²) about 1 km off the coast of "Thalassokosmos". Until the summer of 2019, IMBBC also had laboratories and aquaculture facilities at Agios Kosmas (Athens), but these premises have been reclaimed by the State. As a result, all the laboratories moved to the existing HCMR headquarters in Anavyssos (Attica), but all the fish rearing facilities have been lost! Plans are currently been made and funding has been acquired for the construction of a new 3,000-m³ building for laboratories and offices for the whole HCMR in Anavyssos, and a new aquaculture facility for IMBBC (to be completed by 2026). IMBBC has grown considerably over the past decade, with more personnel, equipment and competitive funding. Unfortunately, this growth was not associated with new facilities, while the majority of new personnel (>70%) is on contract. In addition, only four new tenure-track researcher positions have been created by the State in the last 15 years, and no new permanent technical or administrative staff have been hired.

IMBBC has two Research Sectors (equivalent to the "**Research Groups**" for this evaluation), the Marine Biology & Biotechnology (**MB&B**) and Aquaculture (**AQUA**).

The Hellenic Centre for Marine Research (HCMR) facilities in Crete, named



"*Thalassocosmos*", with the main building (left), the *Aqualabs* (far right) and *Cretaquarium* (right).



1.2 Mission, Scientific Identity and Distinctive Character of the Institute

The mission of IMBBC can be considered to be what is described for its two predecessor institutes (Presidential decree 164/2003). For the former **IMBG**, which now corresponds to the **MB&B** Research Group, it is "the research and technological developments in the fields of biodiversity, structure, dynamics and management of ecosystems, genetics of marine organisms, the search for new products and organisms, as well as the authentication and origin identification of organisms and their products". For the former **IA**, corresponding to the **AQUA** Research Group, it is "to conduct research, develop technology and knowhow, and train scientists in the aquaculture sector and related fields, such as physiology, pathology, ethology, metabolism and genetics, improvement of production and quality, interaction of aquaculture and environment, broodstock enhancement, production technology of aquafeed, selection and cultivation of new species, development of production systems for all developmental stages of cultivated organisms, as well as methodologies for the management of aquaria."

IMBBC has a distinct character among European marine institutes. It is one of the few institutes combining research fields promoting directly economic activities, *i.e.* fish farming and the economic exploitation of the marine biodiversity through biotechnological approaches, together with activities targeting the identification, conservation and management of biodiversity, from microbes to mammals. In **the area of Aquaculture**, we carry out research activities that cover the whole production cycle of marine fish farming, starting from reproduction, through larval rearing and fry production, to grow-out to harvestable size. We work on all aspects of aquaculture, including rearing methodologies and equipment, nutrition and feeding, fish health and welfare, final product quality and breeding selection. It is worthwhile to mention that IMBBC is the only EU marine institute that **operates a <u>pilot scale commercial net pen facility</u></u>, which allows research under real industry conditions, with rapid transfer capacity to the industry.**

Beginning with a narrow scope of population genetics and coastal ecosystem structure and dynamics, the **MB&B activities evolved rapidly and greatly** to functional, comparative and environmental genomics. Together with the multiplied activities in marine biodiversity and ecology, **MB&B** has entered the area of bioinformatics and data science. Our state-of-the art genetics, genomics, DNA sequencing and bioanalysis facilities allowed an amazing diversification of activities. IMBBC is also unique in Europe in operating an <u>Underwater Biotechnological Park</u> near its premises. This is an open-sea underwater research facility supporting multi-disciplinary research and technology demonstration. The fusion of the two original institutes resulted in ever-increasing synergies, allowing the use of advanced analytical methods and approaches in **AQUA** research, while enabling **MB&B** researchers to combine research in marine biology and biotechnology, with aquaculture environments, methods and products, such as the implementation of Integrated Multi Trophic Aquaculture with marine organisms at lower trophic levels (*e.g.* sponges, macrophytes or bivalves).

Finally, IMBBC operates one of the National Research Infrastructures (RI), the "Center for the Study and Sustainable Exploration of Marine Biological Resources" (CMBR), and participates in four European or National RIs. These are the European Marine Biological Resource Center (EMBRC), the LifeWatch ERIC, ELIXIR-Gr and Bioimaging-Gr. IMBBC has been a founding member of EMBRC and currently the CEO of LifeWatch ERIC is a permanent researcher of IMBBC. In addition, we have been partners in Trans National Access programs, such as ASSEMBLE+, AQUAEXCEL and AQUAEXCEL2020.







Participation of IMBBC in National and European Research Infrastructures.



Collaboration of IMBBC with various countries, through research projects, training of undergraduate/post-graduate students and consulting services.





1.3 Scientific Orientation of the Institute

a. Current scientific directions and thematic priorities



Snap shot of the current scientific directions of IMBBC as outlined in the website of the institute (<u>https://imbbc.hcmr.gr/research-directions/</u>). The left column presents the directions of the **AQUA** Research Group, and the right column those of the **MB&B** one.



Control of reproductive function in captivity is essential for the sustainability of commercial aquaculture production, and in many fish species it can be achieved by manipulating photoperiod and water temperature. However, while gametogenesis may be concluded in captivity in most fishes, oocyte maturation and ovulation in females, and spermiation in males may require exogenous hormonal therapies.



Our research activities are summarized in (a) the study of fish reproductive biology and endocrinology, (b) the identification of the dysfunctions exhibited by female and male broodstocks in captive conditions, and (c) the development of pharmacological methods for the control of reproduction, induction of spawning and improvement of sperm production in fish of interest for the aquaculture industry. In this framework, we carry out applied research aiming at the optimization of broodstock management methods, focusing on marine fishes. Where needed, hormonal manipulations of reproductive function are employed, while we monitor any consequences on gamete quality (eggs and spermatozoa).



Fish nutrition and feeding

Aquafeeds constitute the one most expensive component of aquaculture production, and contributes up to 60% of production costs. Fish feeds should meet the nutritional needs of the fish during the whole growth cycle and under the specific conditions of production, which vary from site to side and over the year. Research on feed formulation and development is, therefore, a combination of satisfying the specific nutritional needs of farmed fish, the aquaculture production technology used, and the cost and sustainability of aquafeed ingredients and feeds.

Fish nutrition and feeding researchers at IMBBC focus in the investigation of the nutritional needs of a number of Mediterranean aquaculture fish through their different life stages, with particular reference in the requirements of minerals, vitamins, essential amino and fatty acids under the evolving scientific, technological and business environment. We also work on the development and testing of novel sustainable aqua feeds, promoting the substitution of the ever more scarce and expensive marine resources with novel and processed conventional ingredients, as well as functional micro-ingredients and dietary supplements. The improvement of the nutritional value of sustainable ingredient sources through biotechnological processes and feed production methods is also one of our interests.

The nutrition team is currently developing new advanced approaches for the evaluation of nutrients, ingredients and feeds using omics technologies. Omics technologies provide a new tool to study the metabolism of living organisms at the level of genes, transcripts, proteins and metabolites. These techniques provide new tools to understand the role and effects of nutrition in the aquaculture species. Finally, we work on the development of feeds for new species in aquaculture, the evaluation of commercial feeds and consultations with the aquaculture and aquafeed industry.



Production technologies

Appropriate husbandry methods are of particular importance for the aquaculture industry. We study the feeding and specific environmental requirements of European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) and gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*) during larval rearing and ongrowing. We are also involved in the species diversification of aquaculture production, by developing methods for larval rearing and grow out for greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) and meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*). The species-specific thermal preferences of some species are also studied, in order to understand climate change implications for the Mediterranean aquaculture.





The need for a better farm management in the frame of precision farming, applying principles of circular economy, represent an important research priority. New tools towards human-free operational schemes are developed for cage farming such as (a) an Autonomous Underwater Vehicle (AUV) for frequent monitoring of cages, (b) systems for biomass estimation using stereoscopic imaging and (c) image systems for monitoring fish behavior, aiming to improve feeding and husbandry practices.



<u>Fish health</u>

One of the biggest challenges of aquaculture is to produce healthy and robust fish in a sustainable way. Description of novel diseases and pathogens, development of health management solutions, prevention and treatment methods are the main research priorities of the Institute in this field. We have state-of-the-art research facilities in Anavyssos and Crete with fully equipped laboratories that can provide advanced diagnostic services ranging from basic microbiology to next generation -omics technologies.

Our focus is on disease prevention using innovative and alternative methods aiming to limit the use of antibiotics and chemicals in aquaculture. We develop vaccines, phage therapy products, as well as feed additives of natural origin to enhance the immune system of cultured fish. Our activities are summarized in the following the (a) identification and characterization of fish pathogenic microorganisms, (b) alternative treatments and disease prevention, (c) pharmacokinetics and (d) study and enhancement of fish immune system.

The Aquaculture Microbiology Lab curates a large biobank of fully characterized bacterial pathogens from the Greek aquaculture industry. Moreover, it has established a strong and

long-term collaboration with Greek and foreign aquaculture and aquafeed companies. A spin-off company (<u>Aquatic Biologicals S.A.</u>) was established in 2020 and after acquiring private and national funding, it is currently constructing its production facility for autovaccines.





Fish behavior

Monitoring fish behavior during the whole rearing process is fundamental for optimizing rearing parameters according to each species' biological and behavioral requirements. We study the effect of environmental, biotic and abiotic factors on the behavioral parameters, such as feeding behavior, learning ability, habitat preferences, swimming and social behavior, to improve fish welfare during culture. We also focus on the development and differentiation of the fish's sensory and functional biological systems, such as the vision and digestive system, which offers the necessary scientific knowledge for developing each reared species' specific larval rearing protocols.

Our activities are summarized in:

- The monitoring and evaluation of fish behavioral indices for optimizing rearing management and increasing production indices.
- The evaluation and optimization of biotic and abiotic rearing parameters (oxygen, light etc.), according to the specific behavioral characteristics of each reared fish.
- The evaluation and optimization of larval rearing protocols based on the development of the biological systems related to feeding behavior (*e.g.* digestive and vision systems).





Bio

Biomarkers and bioassays

As aquaculture makes its transition to a major food-producing sector, proper assessment and control of environmental impacts and food safety awareness are becoming increasingly important. Development and understanding of practical and validated tools are needed for assessing nutritional status, metabolic functions and health condition of farmed fish. Biomarkers and bioassays are tools that can provide an early sign of a change in physiology and health condition of an organism. Of particular importance are biomarkers and bioassays that can precede the onset of metabolic disturbance or predict the capacity of an organism to cope with dietary, rearing or disease treatments, or changes in environmental conditions.

In this framework, we identify suitable biomarkers and develop bioassays to evaluate the bioactive properties of feed ingredients and feeds, as well as their effects on nutritional status, metabolic functions and health condition in farmed species.

Our activities are summarized in:

- Evaluating the bioactive properties of feed ingredients and feeds, including antioxidant capacity, toxicity and estrogenic/androgenic activity.
- Identifying suitable biomarkers indicative of antioxidant defense, detoxifying digestive and lipogenic systems in farmed species to optimize dietary manipulations, growth performance, disease treatment and health conditions.
- Developing cost effective bioassays to assess and minimize environmental impacts of farming operations and facilities.
- Providing diagnostic services based on well-established biomarkers and bioassays to the aquaculture sector, regulatory authorities and environmental agencies.

Fish quality and safety

Since the vast majority of aquaculture production is oriented towards human consumption, the quality and safety of products is of capital importance. Quality of seafood can be outlined as the fulfilment of 4 pillars: Safety, Healthiness, Satisfaction and Serviceability. Especially for fish, a 5th term can be introduced, namely Freshness. IMBBC has developed activities which focus on certain capital aspects of fish and seafood quality with emphasis on Mediterranean aquaculture and cover all these pillars.

These include the following:

- Impacts of feeding and aquaculture management in end-product quality (nutritional, sensory quality, safety and traceability).
- Sensory, physicochemical and microbiological freshness and preservation optimization.
- Developing tools/methods for rapid non-destructive seafood freshness detection.
- Solving technical issues in produced quality & processing.
- Optimizing quality of farmed fish and product development.
- Detection, monitoring and hazard analysis of seafood safety (zoonotic parasites, pathogenic bacteria, veterinary drug residues, biological toxins, and heavy metals).





A spin-off company (<u>FresQo</u>) is the outcome of a project under the same name, and is based on a rapid non-destructive methodology for assessing seafood freshness. This tool uses a

hyper-phasmatic camera that takes photos of a fish or other seafood and based on artificial intelligence and a real-time comparison with a database of photos can read changes in appearance related to freshness alteration and conclude on the current freshness of the seafood.





Aquaculture genetics

Research activities focus on basic and applied research aiming towards the provision of specialized services in the aquaculture industry field. The team has a long-standing experience in the transformation of modern genetic approaches to applicable technologies essential for the private sector through the development of molecular markers and genetic tools for parentage assignment, the production of genetic maps, and Quantitative Trait Loci (QTL) identification for breeding programs in the aquaculture industry.

In past and ongoing projects, we have coordinated efforts towards defining the genetic architecture of body growth, morphological traits, disease resistance, stress response and sex determination using QTL mapping and genome-wide association studies (GWAS) in European seabass, the gilthead seabream and more recently in meagre and the greater amberjack. Our activities are summarized in:

- Enhancement of production efficiency and iimprovement of product quality through the incorporation and use of genetic approaches into aquaculture selective breeding programs (genetic improvement) for robustness, morphology and growth rate.
- Selection for disease and stress resistance, since infectious diseases constitute a major obstacle for the aquaculture industry both in terms of profitability and sustainability, especially in situations where effective therapeutic agents are lacking and are coupled with the moderate to large estimated heritability for many commonly encountered diseases.
- Incorporation of feed efficiency and nutrient retention traits in selective breeding, by studying the genetic potential to select for fish that perform better with alternative feed sources: adaptation of fish to alternative feed and estimation of genotype by diet interactions for these animals adapted to alternative, easily accessible and more environmentally friendly-diets are expected to exert a lower pressure on marine fish meal and oil resources.
- Identification of biomarkers at transcriptional and post-transcriptional level.
- Expression profiling as potential monitoring tool in Aquaculture.



<u>Functional and comparative genomics</u>

Recent and rapid advances in sequencing technologies have radically increased the amount of publicly available sequence information of numerous forms and species of life, with complete genomes and transcriptomes, providing the molecular background of fundamental biology. Nevertheless, genome and transcriptome sequencing are just the first phase towards a better understanding of organisms at the molecular level. The second phase is covered by functional and comparative genomics, which aim to unravel the function and the



regulation of genes and other parts of the genome, as well as offer new insights into evolutionary, biochemical, genetic, metabolic and physiological pathways. In this light, we investigate a broad range of different physiological states (*e.g.* reproduction, development, growth, immune and stress response) in a broad range of marine organisms (from bacteria, microalgae and fungi to teleost) and aim to characterize gene function, evolution and structure.

Our activities are summarized in:

- Mining the genomic information of non-model species.
- Gene evolution through comparative genomics.
- Regulatory networks in reproduction.
- Genome evolution of marine organisms.
- Molecular background in fish development.
- Adaptations of marine taxa to their environment.
- Dynamics in gene activation and regulation following exposure to biotic (*e.g.* bacteria, viruses) and abiotic stressors.
- Roles of RNA regulation and silencing in the maintenance of genome integrity



Population genetics and phylogeography

Population genetics and phylogeography were one of the first disciplines of the Institute, with emphasis on the genetic stock structure analysis of commercially important marine species, such as anchovy, sardine, swordfish, blue-fin tuna and mullets. The aim was to elucidate the evolutionary history of the populations as well as to provide genetic evidence to fisheries' managers for delineating fish stocks. With the advancement of high-throughput DNA sequencing technologies, we shifted to population genomics and phylogenomics, getting beyond the limitations imposed by the small number --until recently-- of molecular markers used. By studying now large amounts of genetic data, we expand our research to address old questions in a novel way shedding light on processes such as biological invasions, adaptation, genomic responses to climate change and speciation.

Our current research activities in the field include:

- Population genomic studies in commercial fish species such as the greater amberjack, swordfish, sardine and anchovy to assess their stock structure.
- Invasive genomics studies in different groups of organisms, from Lessepsian migrant fishes, such as the toxic pufferfish, to seagrasses. The aim is to understand how invasive species respond and adapt to novel environments, which is important for predicting the success of establishment and range expansion, and for developing effective management and conservation strategies.
- Seascape genomic studies of various marine organisms (*e.g.* sardines and anchovies), as well as invertebrates of the coastal ecosystems of Crete, in an attempt to shed more light on adaptation, on how resilient are marine ecosystems and how their current functioning will be modified in the face of human-mediated change.
- Phylogenomics, to explore the evolutionary trajectories of species and try to understand how their shared history explains their unique phenotype. Special focus is given on the positioning of fish species within the tree of life.



• Conservation genetic studies of marine (*e.g.* dolphins, the critically endangered fan mussel and the Mediterranean monk seal) and terrestrial species (*e.g.* roe deer, Eleonora's falcon and the European hare).



Environmental genomics

We study biological diversity at population, species and community level, from microbes to vertebrates, using high-throughput DNA sequencing within their environmental context. Our research brings on a wide range of marine environments including coastal, deep-sea, and extreme habitats, such as volcanically active areas. The aim is to assess marine biodiversity and monitor its changes over space and time, but also to explore its biological potential. We also isolate extremophilic microbes to further explore their prospective use in the field of biotechnology.

We are working on the standardization of DNA metabarcoding methods in the marine ecosystems of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea, for different taxonomic groups, from microbial plankton to fish. We are also using DNA metabarcoding and eDNA to study different ecological questions. We have a very active role in the international Network of Genomics Observatories and the coordination of Ocean Sampling Day (OSD) activities.

Our Research activities are summarized in:

- Microbial genomics and metagenomics in marine extreme environments.
- Marine biodiversity assessment using DNA metabarcoding and eDNA approaches.
- Implementation of Genomics Observatories for biomonitoring, in coordination with international initiatives *i.e.* EMO BON, OSD, ARMS BON (Network of Autonomous Reef Monitoring Structures).



Bioinformatics, biodiversity informatics and data science

Amidst the biodiversity and climate crisis, all types of data such as sequencing, ecological, morphological, literature and environmental are produced in tremendous speeds, leading to what is known as the era of "big data". Data science, bioinformatics and biodiversity informatics provide the means to extract information, find hidden dependencies, identify patterns, infer causal relationships and ultimately understand biological systems in a way that was previously unforeseen. We use bioinformatic methods to study biological molecules, organisms, populations, species and whole systems. We use and develop tools to tackle the challenges that modern biology is facing, working mostly on unexplored ecosystems and organisms, the so-called non-model species. These analyses are mainly performed on our HPC cluster of IMBBC "Zorbas" (https://hpc.hcmr.gr).

Our main activities include:

- Data analysis
- Pipeline development, containerization and deployment
- Evolutionary genomics
- Biodiversity information systems
- Literature mining and data integration
- eDNA metabarcoding, omics and systems biology





- Data curation and mobilization
- Data archaeology and rescue

Bioanalysis and biotechnology

Biomolecules are the fundamental building blocks of all living organisms and play indispensable roles in almost every aspect of marine life. At the same time, marine biomass and biomolecules present increasing interest for biotechnological and biomedical applications. In this context, we employ advanced techniques, such as tandem mass spectrometry, ultra- liquid chromatography and microplate-based spectrophotometric methods, to perform qualitative/quantitative analysis of numerous biomolecules in various biological matrices and assess some of their basic bioactivities. By using bioanalysis as a main tool, we conduct research towards the valorization of marine biological resources. Our laboratory is equipped with the knowledge, technical expertise and instrumentation required for the detection of marine biomolecules and the exploration of their potential biotechnological applications.

Our research activities include:

- Investigation of bioactive metabolites of marine organisms/microorganisms.
- Study of the bioremediation and bioproduction potential of marine sponges.
- Biotoxin detection in marine species for seafood safety and valorization of toxic biomass.
- Determination of steroid hormones and biomarkers of health status and physical fitness in farmed fish.
- Targeted proteomic analysis for evaluating specific biological processes and functions in marine organisms.
- Analysis of photosynthetic pigments (chlorophylls/carotenoids) for investigating antioxidant production in microalgae and assessing the trophic status of marine ecosystems.



Marine Biodiversity

We employ current approaches to assess biodiversity and ecosystem functioning in the marine realm, integrating field observation, documentation and collection, taxonomy, experimental setups, genetics/genomics and modelling. All levels of biological diversity are addressed, at local and global scales of observation. Our aim is to advance scientific knowledge and develop novel scientific and technological methods and products.

Our main activities include the following:

- Coastal marine biodiversity and ecosystem functioning: establishment of baseline knowledge of marine biodiversity, addressing the effects of the major drivers, such as climate change, biological invasions and anthropogenic pressures.
- Microbial ecology: assessment of the diversity of microbial communities as important functional components of marine ecosystems, both as free-living and as associates to complex holobionts.



- Biodiversity hot-spots & extreme habitats: research in key marine habitats such as marine caves, coralligenous formations and the deep sea, which are characterized by increased biodiversity and endemism, and high potential for bioprospecting.
- Population connectivity and local adaptation: examination of how environmental gradients and geography affect population structuring and gene dispersal, to expand knowledge concerning the distribution and dispersal pathways of marine species.
- Response to global climate change: effect of sea warming and ocean acidification on the growth, morphology, physiology, reproduction and behavior of marine organisms, through controlled experimental approaches, traditional and 3D micro Computerized Tomography (micro-CT) imaging and genetic analyses.



Ecology and ecosystem management

Our mission is to address current environmental challenges in close collaboration with stakeholders and scientific experts. Research focuses on a holistic approach to the sustainable management of natural resources, including evaluation and monitoring of fundamental biotic and abiotic factors controlling marine ecosystem processes, biodiversity dynamics, climate change, pollution, conservation and sustainable management of coastal resources and habitats. We also develop innovative environmental technologies. Our main research activities include:

- Assessment of the Good Environmental Status (GES) and estimation of the impact of a range of human and large-scale pressures on marine ecosystems.
- Deployment of a seafloor observatory at a depth of 20 m for long-term monitoring of the coastal environment.
- We have designed and applied improved innovative sampling gears to evaluate the role of the understudied hyperbenthic communities (Benthic Boundary Layer, BBL) to nutrient regeneration, carbon cycling and energy transfer to higher trophic levels.
- Assessment of the vulnerability and conservation status of marine taxa and habitats in order to propose guidelines for their protection.
- Assessment of the present status of distribution of non-indigenous species (NIS) and evaluation of future trajectories.

A spin-off company (<u>Artificial Reef Innovative Applications, ARIA</u>) was established in 2021, targeting Recreational Diving with the development of Oases with Artificial Reefs. We have developed a new type of artificial reefs that provide an enhanced availability and heterogeneity of microhabitats and larger structural refugia while fully retaining the form



and the aesthetics of the natural rocky reefs. This innovative technology is proposed for the development of recreational diving parks (diving oases). The application of this new concept is proposed as a coastal management tool in order to avert the modern trend of establishing recreational diving parks in

environmentally sensitive areas of outstanding ecological and conservation importance. We are also involved in recent years in Ocean literacy networks and consortia. We participate in Working Groups on Ocean Literacy of the European Marine Science Educators Association (EMSEA) and of the European Global Ocean Observing System (EuroGOOS). We are also founding members of the EU4Ocean Platform representing



stakeholders from all over Europe and a diverse spectrum of marine - maritime (science, policy, industry, civil society, outreach) and wider ocean literacy, education, youth, media representatives. Within this framework we assess the content knowledge, the attitudes and behavior of elementary and middle school students as well as the general public in regards to ocean sciences issues. We also develop principles, concepts, policy-oriented documents and citizens' science projects as a good understanding of the role and function of the ocean, which is of paramount importance, constituting the basic tool for the promotion of a healthy and sustainable marine environment, and a target area of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

b. Support schemes for the reported directions and priorities

It is important to mention that, unfortunately, we do not obtain any research funding from the State -even though we are a public research institute. State funding is limited to the permanent staff of the institute -which is < 30% of the total staff- and this amount accounts for 36% of the total annual expenditure by IMBBC (see Section 4, Table 4-4). This means that for every $1 \notin$ provided by the State, competitive grants and private funding provide another $2 \notin$.

Financial support for the research undertaken at IMBBC comes from three main sources (see doughnut graph below). The **majority of funding comes from competitive grants from National Funding Agencies**, such as the General Secretariat for Research and Innovation, the various "Operational Programs for Fisheries and the Sea" of the Ministry of Rural Development and Food, the Hellenic Foundation for Research and Innovation, the Regional Operational Programs for research from various Regions in Greece, etc. In the reported period, funding from Greek Programs constituted 52% of the total funding obtained by IMBBC. European Union (EU) funds from competitive grants via the Framework Programs, INTERREG, LIFE and other funding schemes constitute the second most important source, accounting for 28%. Finally, a significant amount (18%) comes from the sale of products and services by various researchers, and by private contracts with companies, municipalities and utility companies.



Even though National projects are competitive, they are relatively "easy" to obtain by IMBBC researchers for a number of reasons. Firstly, the grants are smaller and require smaller consortia than the EU projects. Then, due to the excellent quality of our researchers and facilities, and the multitude of research directions covered by IMBBC and the other institutes of the center, our proposals are highly competitive. As a result, we have a very high success rate in these Calls. Unfortunately, National projects allow much less overheads than EU projects, usually < 10% of the total grant for overheads, compared to 25% of EU



projects. Therefore, **the average overhead percentage from all research and service grants for HCMR is only 10%**! This puts significant restrictions on HCMR operations and the ability of the center to create financial reserves. Another problem with the Greek programs is that very often there are significant delays in payments from the funding organizations, causing cash flow problems that are difficult to absorb, when the cash reserves of the center are not adequate. A more appropriate funding of the center's operating costs by the State would have allowed us to create such cash reserves.

The amount of funding that comes from National sources is significantly different between the two Research Directions (see doughnut graphs below). **MB&B** obtains more of its funding from Greek programs (68%), while **AQUA** gets relatively equal amounts of funding from the three main sources (Greek, EU and Private funding).



The percentage of private funding differs significantly between **MB&B** and **AQUA**. **AQUA** obtains **5x more funding from private sources**, being a research direction that relates to the dynamic and continuously expanding aquaculture industry, which is especially strong in Greece among European countries. Funding comes from sales of products (eggs, juveniles and autogenous vaccines), analyses (plasma hormone levels, histological evaluations, nutrient analysis of feeds and ingredients, microbiological analysis in relation to fish pathologies of final product quality) and services (broodstock management and reproduction control, evaluation of larval rearing protocols and feeds for larvae/juveniles, health management and evaluation of final product quality).

For **MB&B**, funding comes mainly from analyses and services relating to sequencing, microsatellite genotyping and breeding services of aquaculture companies; micro-CT scans and 3D analysis of a variety of samples for companies and research centers; ecosystem monitoring of marine areas near wastewater treatment plants of different cities in Crete; and assess the suitability of marine areas for the establishment of diving parks.

As mentioned later in the report, private funds from these sources are used by researchers to maintain our facilities and service our equipment, but also to carry out preliminary experiments in existing or new research areas, thus supporting the evolution of our activities and the examination of new priorities.



1.4 Self-assessment and Future Planning

a. Assessment of current strengths and weaknesses (SWOT analysis)



Strengths:

1. State-of-the-art infrastructures: Diverse purpose-built facilities and state-of-the-art equipment, which include extensive aquaculture rearing facilities on land and in sea net pens for the rearing of all life stages of marine fish, aquafeed production capacities, vaccine bio-reactors, modern analytical labs and instruments, a High-Performance Computer (HPC) cluster for big data analyses and an underwater biotechnological park. These facilities address the needs of many scientists and stakeholders interested in the Eastern Mediterranean marine biota and aquaculture, and are available to the Institute of Marine Biological Resources and Internal Waters (**IMBRIW-HCMR**) and Institute of Oceanography (**IO-HCMR**) of HCMR, as well as to outside users as components of national and European Research Infrastructures (RI).

2. Excellence: We have demonstrated excellence in many research fields, most notably in aquaculture, aquaculture genomics and biodiversity. Moreover, IMBBC has been a pioneer, among other research fields, in introducing Next Generation Sequencing technologies in Greece and the use of micro-CT in both aquaculture and biodiversity research. These fields of excellence were recognized in the two latest evaluations by international committees.

3. Networking and collaboration: IMBBC is a reference center for marine research in Greece and has a strong collaborative profile. We participate in many Greek and international consortia within the framework of research projects, academic activities and



Research Infrastructure networks. Through teaching in various undergraduate and graduate programs, we have strong links with several universities in Greece and Europe, and as a public center responsible for providing advice to the government, we are also well connected with the various Ministries involved with research, innovation, education, conservation, agriculture, defense and energy. This allows us to exercise some influence on government strategy in a variety of areas related to the marine environment, research in aquaculture, coastal zone management, water pollution and beyond. Finally, our links to the private sector in the area of aquaculture are historical and impact directly on the industry via the provision of products, services and consultancies.

4. Interdisciplinarity: A high level of interdisciplinarity characterizes the work of IMBBC researchers at different levels: a) among the different research directions of the institute; b) with the other two HCMR institutes; and c) with research centers and universities, in basic and applied research carried out at all levels of the biological organization from molecules to ecosystems, an approach which brings about a multiplier effect on research outcomes.

5. Strong fund-raising capacity: Stemming from its acknowledged excellence in research, its extensive network of collaborators and its interdisciplinary approach, IMBBC has a proven capacity for obtaining competitive research funding, both at the national and European levels. Furthermore, long-term strong links both to the Greek and European aquaculture industry through research collaborations have resulted in significant revenues from contracted research, sales of products and consulting services.

6. Strategic geographical position: IMBBC benefits from its strategic geographical position for marine science and aquaculture, at the center of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea, which is a unique ultra-oligotrophic marine ecosystem and a hotspot for biodiversity, biological invasions and climate change. Moreover, in the area of warm-water marine fish farming, Greece is the largest producer in the EU and the second largest in the Mediterranean, making the IMBBC an essential partner for relevant research consortia and creating opportunities for the provision of products and services to the private sector. Finally, with its excellent climate, landscape and culture, Crete is a very popular destination not only for students, but also as a venue for scientific workshops and conferences.

7. Positive working environment: The modern facilities of IMBBC, its friendly and responsive administration, the good and supportive relations among colleagues, its devotion to excellence and to equality create an attractive work and research environment. This has been recognized, valued and advertised by distinguished researchers, post-docs and students who have had an opportunity to spend time in our institute.

8. Excellent reputation: All the above characteristics have forged an excellent reputation for IMBBC at both the national and international levels, evinced by its high visibility in the European Research Area. IMBBC has an active media profile, including both press and social media profile, and has made several appearances on European and national TV channels. Its publication record is on an ascending trend over the last 5 years, with the institute's publications appearing more and more frequently in high-impact journals.

Weaknesses

1. Inadequate management structure and administrative support: Until recently, IMBBC has lacked a well-defined governance structure, which created certain difficulties in implementing decisions, assigning responsibilities and providing accountability. However, a more solid organizational structure has been implemented since 2020: two new



Departments have been established (MB&B and AQUA) and their Heads elected; the facility units have been clearly defined and their scientific and technical supervisors duly appointed. In terms of administrative support –which operates at the level of HCMR, there are several shortcomings: a lack of adequate personnel; hindrances in setting out and implementing clear procedures; and insufficient support of the researchers in the preparation of proposals, procurements and financial management. This puts a good deal of pressure on the researchers who are, therefore, obliged to deal with issues about which they have little knowledge and less expertise. Unsurprisingly, this results in a considerable waste of scientific time and effort and creates needless friction between researchers and the overarching HCMR administration.

2. Fluctuations in funding: In common with the majority of Greek research institutes, IMBBC receives very limited funding from the State, covering mainly the salaries of the permanent personnel -who comprise <30% of the total personnel of the institute! Moreover, there is a poor tradition in research investment by the Greek private sector, 90% of which consists of small and medium enterprises (SMEs). The high temporal fluctuations existing in national research funding has meant that for some years it has been very difficult to maintain our highly skilled personnel and continue to carry out our research. This leads to a focusing on relatively opportunistic research and a consequent impossibility of establishing a long-term research and technology plan for the institute. Nevertheless, it should be noted that the trend has shown signs of change in recent years, with the State launching more frequent calls for proposals that are relevant to all infrastructures and research directions.

3. Lack of long-term core projects: Though IMBBC has many core activities, it does not have a formal long-term core project within which a number of other grants obtained could be integrated and which would then have a multiplying effect. This would allow us to provide a measure of job security to our on-contract personnel. For example, the other two HCMR institutes enjoy very significant steady annual funding from national grants in order to (a) monitor the ecological and biochemical quality of the marine waters, rivers and lakes (IMBRIW and IO) and (b) to assess the condition of the fisheries and by-catches (IMBRIW). In sharp contrast, future plans for research development and innovation by IMBBC are of high risk, as grant funding depends on the various competitive calls that can vary in their objectives.

4. Maintenance of installations: Unfortunately, State funding does not cover the maintenance and upgrading of our facilities and equipment. It has, therefore, always been a struggle to keep them operational and carry out the necessary services and upgrades for installations such as the land-based and net pet aquaculture facilities, the underwater biotechnological park, the micro-CT scanner, the high-throughput sequencers and the HPC infrastructure. Since the creation of HCMR, the researchers who are the main users of each facility or piece of equipment have met the costs for much-needed maintenance and upgrades, mainly from product sales and service grants (when available) and to a much lesser degree with money from research grants (when eligible). As much as we want to maintain and even to increase product sales and service grants, we are held back by the limitation imposed by the State, which decrees that in order to maintain our "Research Institution" status, we are not allowed to have more than 20% of our income from "commercial activities".

5. Lack of technology transfer plans for research findings: While some regulation of Intellectual Property (IP) does occur, it is largely neglected, thus causing a lack of long-term IP protection and a corresponding lack of Technology Transfer plans. In general, there is



no culture in Greece for patent application, and therefore there is no financial and legal assistance by the State. In addition, there is not much incentive for the commercialization of research findings, and so far, our interactions with the industry have been limited to aquaculture and genetic services.

6. Weak promotion to society: Although IMBBC has an excellent reputation among the scientific community in Greece and abroad, and in spite of its up-beat and positive media presence, until recently it did not have a well-organized communication and dissemination strategy. This has changed over the last 2 years, with strenuous efforts to disseminate the knowledge acquired through the research activities to the wider public, through regular posts in our new website and mainstream media, monthly scheduled interviews of its researchers in a local newspaper, thematic articles published in the national media and press releases of major activities (new grants, significant events, personal accomplishments, etc.).

7. Insufficient office and laboratory space for expansion: Since the creation of HCMR and the move to the new buildings in Crete (2003), IMBBC (and its two predecessor institutes), researchers and technical staff have tripled! In addition, in 2018 we were forced to move out of our extensive facilities in Agios Kosmas, Attica. Our offices and laboratories moved to spaces originally occupied by the administration in Anavyssos, while the research activities of our Agios Kosmas staff were temporarily moved to Crete. Therefore, not only is there an urgent need for new office and laboratory space for existing activities, but the development of promising new research directions necessitates new facilities and the construction of an aquaculture research facility in Anavyssos, towards which, fortunately, some funds were allocated recently. In addition, in 2021 and 2022, funding was acquired as a contribution from the Greek Recovery and Resilience budget for the construction of new office and laboratory buildings both in Crete and in Anavyssos.

8. Lack of a Data Management Plan: A Data Management Plan (DMP) describes the data management life cycle for the data to be collected, processed and/or generated by each project. As part of making research data Findable, Accessible, Interoperable and Re-usable (FAIR), a DMP should include information on (a) the handling of research data during and after the end of each project; (b) what data will be collected, processed and/or generated; (c) which methodology and standards will be applied; and (d) whether data will be shared/made open access and how data will be curated and preserved during and after the end of the project. A DMP is a key element of good data management and is something required both by the evolving practices of contemporary multidisciplinary and highly collaborative research, as well as by increasingly more funding agencies.

9. Limited influence in the EU planning for research and innovation: While Greece is a minor player in the EU 27 state research ecosystem, without a strong EU lobby presence or power, nonetheless Greek researchers have a very good track record in successful bids for EU grants. IMBBC in particular has coordinated or been a partner in almost all of the major EU research projects relating to marine aquaculture, genomics and genetics. Unfortunately, Greece has not yet developed the necessary network and procedures that would allow its scientists to provide guidance to its National Representatives, in order to influence decision-making at the EU level.

Threats

1. Bureaucracy and inefficient administration: The recent law on public procurement and the inclusion of the research centers under the Public Accounting system of the central government has created an extremely lengthy and bureaucratically rigid system regarding



the implementation of research projects. This, in combination with the admittedly less than efficient HCMR administrative system, has led to the following detrimental results: (a) difficulties in carrying out the contracted scientific part of the projects; (b) the loss of welldeserved and hard-won project funding for the institute due to exacting bureaucratic auditing procedures; (c) wasted time and effort on the part of the researchers who are obliged to deal with bureaucratic procedures far from their expertise, rather than the scientific issues of their research domains. It is not surprising that disappointment and frustration are now widespread among the research personnel.

2. Ageing of facilities and equipment: While IMBBC does possess large state-of-the-art facilities and technological platforms, the condition of the buildings and facilities, now more than 20 years old, is steadily deteriorating; many of our expensive core instruments (*e.g.* chromatographs, sequencers, micro-CT scanner, etc.), are old and need to be replaced in the near future. As previously mentioned, funds for maintenance and upgrading have not been made available by the State; therefore, adequate funding must be found soon, otherwise important facilities of the institute may become dis- or non-functional in the very near future. In addition, over the last few years we have experienced significant problems with our seawater supply (from boreholes), due to the ageing of the wells after 15 years of continuous operation. We are currently in the process of drilling two new boreholes (a very costly process), by using money from our service contracts and the IMBBC Overheads account (see Section 3.1 Policies and Practices for Financial Management). The recently acquired funds from the State will be used to fund the construction of a new filtration system for the seawater supply, which we hope will solve or ease the problem, in combination with the drilling of these new boreholes.

3. Ageing of personnel and few new permanent positions: A significant number of the permanent researchers and technicians will retire within the next ten years (See Section 2.5 Personnel). Unfortunately, many of them will not be replaced when they retire, because they do not hold what is considered to be an "organizational" position (as accounted in the Presidential decree establishing the HCMR) that allows the institute to recruit a new researcher/technician once someone has retired. This means that once these staff members retire, their positions will simply cease to exist, with no possibility of new recruitments. It is important that the status of all permanent researchers and technicians is converted to "organizational" by the State, so that they will not be lost upon retirement. Then, new positions must be created so that we can hire staff to be involved in new research directions and also to overlap with existing personnel is, since a period of training for the new staff is needed before the more experienced member has retired. Currently, the institute cannot recruit new permanent researchers or technicians either for existing or new research directions and depends on the State to allocate new position(s), something that so far has been done erratically. All in all, four new positions for researchers were allocated to the institute during the last 15 years (in 2018-19), and seven new positions for technicians to be filled during 2022.

4. Low morale: Increasing bureaucracy and the very strict financial management rules for project management imposed by the new Greek law, combined with the chronic administrative inefficiencies of HCMR, consumes much of the productive time of researchers, and has a negative impact on their morale and their productivity.

5. Difficulties in recruiting researchers from abroad: The low salaries and the existing recruitment process, which requires applicants to first have their academic degrees recognized by the Hellenic National Academic Recognition and Information Centre (HNARIC, $\Delta OATA\Pi$ in Greek), discourages people from considering the recruitment of



foreign or Greek scientists who have obtained their education and training abroad. The procedures of HNARIC validation are both lengthy and complex, and in addition certain titles/degrees cannot be recognized if an equivalent field of study does not exist in a Greek University. Furthermore, there is a strong tendency in Greek research organizations to open positions for post-docs who are already working for them, so that scientists applying from abroad have very little chance of being selected.

Opportunities

1. Becoming an essential partner for marine aquaculture research: Aquaculture is an ever-expanding industry, of steadily increasing importance for the supply of healthy and sustainable food. Greece is a pioneer in marine aquaculture and is currently the No. 1 marine fish producer in the EU. Therefore, there is a strong opportunity to further enhance synergies not only with the aquaculture industry in Greece, but also with Europe and the Middle East. Furthermore, due to the well-established expertise and international reputation of IMBBC researchers in this discipline, encompassing the entire production process from reproduction to final product quality, IMBBC is a much sought-after partner for many consortia that target research proposals relevant to fish farming, especially marine-based.

2. Development of novel research directions for the Blue Economy: The Blue Economy has triggered an increased tendency towards the development of innovative technological advancements that can support the intensified exploration of marine resources. In addition, the implementation of the Marine Spatial Planning EU Directive taken in conjunction with the newly established UN strategy on the "Decade of Ocean Science for Sustainable Development (2021-2030)", which calls for adaptation strategies and science-informed policy responses to global change, facilitate this "seascape" of IMBBC activities and bring new opportunities for research and know-how, and goods and services either developed or under development by the institute. Integrative approaches for biodiversity and environmental health assessment, the diving tourism industry, offshore multi-use platforms, bio-prospecting for natural products from marine organisms, as well as the design of new marine integrated observatories give IMBBC an advantageous position from which to thrive in the future.

3. Establishment of a fully operational Research Infrastructure (RI) node: By leading the National Research Infrastructure (RI) "Centre for Marine Biological Research, CMBR" and participating in several other EU and national RIs (see Section 3.5 Partnerships and Strategic Alliances), IMBBC is currently organizing the access of users to its facilities and services. It will soon become a fully operational RI node with an approved access policy and governance plan, and services and products tailored to the needs of the users, accessible through a single web portal. In this way, IMBBC is expected to increase its contribution to the scientific community and attract revenues, which will be directed to the sustainability of its infrastructure and the enhancement of its research activities. Furthermore, the institute has the advantage to be integrating the development of infrastructures needed for the four EU and national RIs in which it participates, in its single core facility. This will produce a multiplier effect by the use of the same human resources and infrastructure to addresses the needs of multiple users.

4. Development of more integrative and collaborative research: At the global scale, activities on marine biodiversity and ecosystem research are moving at pace towards more integrative approaches combining the conventional (*e.g.* taxonomy, ecology and biogeography) with cutting-edge (*i.e.* -omics) disciplines. This places the research and



innovation activities of the institute at the forefront of novel approaches, such as ecosystems biology. Moreover, IMBBC operates in the Eastern Mediterranean, an ecoregion of high ecological importance due to its susceptibility to environmental change resulting from the ongoing global climate change, as well as being a hot spot of biodiversity with the largest part of its species remaining unexplored. Alterations to coastal and deeper marine ecosystems, biodiversity shift and the introduction of non-indigenous species are ongoing phenomena that render the specific geographic location a testbed for current processes and future scenarios. With an operational range extending to all Greek seas (Aegean, Ionian and the Cretan Sea) and access to significant infrastructure (crewed and smaller research vessels, remotely operated underwater vehicles and a scientific diving unit), IMBBC can extend its role as a leader of and partner to international research initiatives towards the assessment of change in the global oceans, as well as in the area of marine biodiscovery-bioprospecting-biotechnology in Greece, and help to accelerate the valorization of marine biological resources in the Eastern Mediterranean.

5. Influencing the regional and national science policy: IMBBC has an opportunity to influence national science policy due to its active participation in the national and local committees and councils in charge of strategy development for science and innovation. Existing connections of HCMR both at the regional and central government level are also excellent, and these can certainly be used to support the growth of all three institutes.

6. Stronger interactions with HCMR's two other institutes: Recent initiatives have created a more conducive environment for collaborative work among all three HCMR institutes. The existence of complementary expertise and facilities, and the recent use of genomic tools in a variety of research disciplines make collaboration among the HCMR institutes a win-win proposition and will expand the research activities and scope of our researchers further, promoting in this way the reputation of all three institutes.

7. Increased public awareness of the role of IMBBC: The increasing public awareness of the importance of climate change on our lives and future prosperity along with the recent prominence of the Blue Economy has created a great deal of interest in the marine environment and biodiversity. The proclamation by the United Nations of the "Decade of Ocean Science for Sustainable Development for 2021-2030" envisages considerable advances and increased awareness of Ocean Literacy in all sectors of society, from education and school curricula, the public at large and informed decision-makers. We shall continue our outreach efforts to bring our research activities closer to the wider public, by means of our website and social media posts and publications in the mainstream media. The institute's participation in an EU Blue school project enables us to continue to promote our educational activities for primary and secondary students, in order to familiarize the public with our role in studying our marine environment and producing knowledge that helps in the sustainable exploitation of the plentiful marine re-sources of our seas. This will enhance our reputation and encourage the support of the institute by the local and national government.



b. Summary of the actions to maintain and augment the scientific excellence of the Institute

In order not only to maintain but also to augment the scientific excellence of the IMBBC, a wide range of actions need to be taken. Those are organized under existing, as well as novel areas that we define them as eight pillars of excellence as follows:

Strategic Plan

The formulation of a strategic plan is of pivotal importance to guide the development of the institute. Each researcher is setting his/her own plan of developing his/her activities in a horizon of 3-5 years, and this drives the collective effort to maintain and augment the scientific excellence of the institute. Then, through interactions between the researchers within and between Research Groups, discussions within the Scientific Council of the Institute (SCI, see later in Section 2.4) and between the SCI and the director, the necessary directions that the institute needs to take and the bottlenecks that need to be overcome are identified. It is very important to always consider and be prepared for the diversification of the institute's research (always within the framework of institute's mission and scope of activities) with new directions to address the new global research challenges. Also, our strategic plan should include not only research field considerations, but also research practices (data management and availability) and actions for the improvement of personnel performance.

Then the steps that need to be taken should be described and implemented as best as possible, given the realities of our specific environment (country-wise and public sectorwise). The institute's evaluation and recommendations provided by the current evaluation committee will assist us in assessing IMBBC's current goals, and guide our plan based on our success stories and expected needs of the future. Furthermore, the diversification of research (within the framework of the scope of the institute) with new directions to address the new global research challenges is also of importance.

Collaborations

There is no doubt, that the current research environment and funding policies encourage collaborative work among research centers throughout Europe and the world. Therefore, a very significant action to maintain our scientific excellence is to continue and expand our network of collaborators. Starting from within HCMR, we need to **promote collaborations between the Research Groups of IMBBC**, in order to take full advantages of the available expertise, equipment and facilities. It is essential to build and sustain a highly collaborative environment with continual communication among researchers. Such collaborative efforts, could better address national and EU proposal calls. A step to this direction could be the establishment of shared research or working facilities that bring together researchers from the two groups (*e.g.* open labs and offices) to promote scientific interactions in an informal way. Then, **joining forces with the other two institutes of HCMR in proposal preparation**, will allow us to carry out the interdisciplinary research required by the larger consortia, especially in the EU level, in domains such as climate change, blue growth, marine biodiversity and sustainable seafood production.



The maintenance of existing collaborations and the **creation of new collaborations with top ranking national and international research centers** is of pivotal importance, enhancing further our ability to carry our interdisciplinary research. Such collaborations could be achieved by establishing even stronger interactions with the local scientific community, the University of Crete (UoC) and the Institute of Molecular Biology and Biotechnology (IMBB) of the Foundation for Research and Technology – Hellas (FORTH) in Crete, through networking activities such as joint meetings, conferences, collaboration and proposal submissions, teaching at both undergraduate and graduate courses and hosting more students at IMBBC's laboratories to address common scientific questions with in a multifaceted approach.

There is an increased effort to carry out more genomic work in the Fish Health laboratories. This has been approached with internal and external collaborations with groups with expertise in the field and with the participation of staff members in online training programs (bioinformatics). Also, active collaboration exists between IMBBC and the Industrial Biotechnology Lab, Chemical Engineering School of the National Technological University of Athens (NTUA) that has provided new research directions and funding (Dr. A. Gioti). Another example is the long-term collaborations of the Environmental Microbiology Lab of IMBBC with Prof. P. Nomikou (Department of Geology and Geoenvironment, National Kapodistrian University of Athens) for the exploration and monitoring of the extreme environments of the Hellenic Volcanic Arc and the Group of Dr. N. Kyrpides (Joint Genome Institute, Department of Energy, USA) regarding the metagenomic exploration of the Hellenic Volcanic Arc. Also, through participating in the first long-term marine biodiversity observation network created by EMBRC-ERIC (European Marine Biological Resource Centre), the IMMBC is pioneering in marine biological observation. Similarly, with the European Marine Omic Biodiversity Observation Network (EMO BON) we are collaborating in the study of coastal ecosystem biodiversity based on a network of 16 marine stations. This activity is also supported by our involvement in several RIs such as BIOIMAGING-GR, LifeWatchGreece and Elixir-GR. These collaborations are essential in maintaining and augmenting our scientific excellence.

Of great importance is the continuous collaboration with the aquaculture industry, through the provision of services and goods (eggs, fry, disease diagnosis, broodstock management and fish health consulting, vaccine development programs, etc.), in order to maintain relevance on applied research directions. Furthermore, active collaboration with the aquaculture industry has been established through common research projects. To this direction Aquatic Biologicals SA, the first spin-off company of IMBBC (and HCMR as a whole) has been established. The company develops and produces fish vaccines and maintains an R&D agreement with IMBBC. Through this agreement, but also through the participation of IMBBC in the shareholders of the company, the research group opens paths to new research agreements with the aquaculture industry and strengthens its scientific excellence. Also, the laboratory of Fish Nutrition and Omics Technologies of our Nutrition and Biochemistry facilities, has a significant analytical infrastructure for the detection of chemical substances (UPLCs- ESI MS/MS -QTOF and MALDI-TOF) and operates according to the ISO/IEC 17025:2005 standard (ESYD -No. 1064). Through targeted national and international cooperation in competitive RTD projects, the scientific excellence is focusing in enhancing the links between applied research and industrial applications. This is achieved with testing and evaluation of the nutritional quality and effects of novel dietary ingredients, supplements and bioactive compounds on growth performance, quality and health in fish larvae, juveniles and adults. The research excellence involves investigation of the molecular and physiological mechanisms that underlie, control and regulate fish



appetite, growth, fat deposition and disease resistance using novel techniques from the field of proteomics and metabolomics.

Finally, a Memorandum of Understanding was recently signed with the <u>Hellenic</u> <u>Aquaculture Producers Organization (HAPO)</u> to provide support in (a) promoting of sustainable and viable aquaculture activities, in particular with regard to environmental protection and the reduction of environmental impacts, b) optimizing the quality of aquaculture products, c) strengthening of consumer confidence in Greek aquaculture products and the support of businesses in the development of mechanisms and actions to inform consumers, d) improving the competitiveness of Greek aquaculture businesses, and e) strengthening synergies between scientific research and business action. In the same framework, we have also established a long-term collaboration with AB Vassilopoulos SA – a major Greek supermarket chain- concerning the evaluation of quality & safety of aquatic products.

Cutting edge research and state-of-the-art methodology

IMBBC strives to conduct cutting-edge research, and employ as well as develop state-ofthe-art methodologies. To this aim the advancement of existing research directions is needed, along with the development of new research directions with interdisciplinarity playing a pivotal role.

For the **AQUA Research Group**, and in order for IMBBC to maintain its scientific excellence, a continuous effort is needed to undertake the most relevant research for the Greek and Mediterranean aquaculture industry. Development of new rearing methods and technologies for the industry (automations, smart monitoring devices, etc.), use of the most modern scientific methods to answer questions relevant to growth, reproduction and health (omics technologies, epigenetics, etc.) and investigations for new fish species domestication are some of the areas than we need to focus for the future. Furthermore, new research directions could also include modeling, precision farming and automatic monitoring; the development and evaluation of novel chronic stress indicators in fish, as well as use of novel equipment for the determination of metabolic rate in fish, the set-up of cell-based bioassays, and the combination of established and new methodologies and equipment, that could give better opportunities to maintain scientific excellence and competitiveness, as well as additional opportunities for new services/products.

Given the recent lack of infrastructure to perform *in vivo* trials caused by the loss of our Agios Kosmas aquaculture rearing facilities, but also due to the increasingly stricter requirements for animal research, we focused recently into processes that can be implemented *in vitro*. For this purpose, the development of fish immune cell lines is envisaged to provide the scientific community with new research tools facilitating the implementation the 3Rs goals and the large-scale screening for new antimicrobials and immunostimulating compounds.

For the **MB&B Research Group**, the integration of existing expertise under a multidisciplinary framework in addressing various scientific questions has become common practice, where traditional approaches are combined with state-of-the-art methodologies to decipher biological aspects of various organisms. For example, we investigate the biology of various marine sponges (*Spongia officinalis*) through the combination of traditional taxonomy (*e.g.* morphology) and genetics, also integrating transcriptomics, metabolomics and manipulative experiments. We also expand further not only in the sponge Phylum, but also in the study of the adaptations of various marine species to abrupt changes -such as



climate crisis and human mediated pressure/change- under the integrated framework of seascape genomics involving the interaction of geneticists, ecologists, oceanographers and GIS experts.

Also promising novel research directions are in the field of genomics and marine biodiversity of marine fungi, mycoremediation and microbial epigenetics. This is a poorly studied field in Greece, and certainly one worth expanding. Furthermore, new expertise on microbial bioinformatics (comparative genomics and molecular evolution), analysis of methylation patterns from Oxford Nanopore data, fungal microbiology and genetics will be extremely important for supporting our research directions. We have also initiated the creation of the first microbial strain collection from the extreme environments of the Greek Seas for research into their value for biotechnological applications. To this effect, our research has expanded to the deep subsurface in order to unlock the past and future of one of the most active volcanoes in the Eastern Mediterranean, the Santorini Volcano Complex. Dr. P. Polymenakou is responsible of the microbiology of the ECORD-IODP mission 398, whose objective is to acquire a better understanding on how marine ecosystems respond to volcanic eruptions. The mission that will be carried out between December 2022 – February 2023 on the JOIDES Resolution research vessel (the acronym is short for Joint Oceanographic Institutions for Deep Earth Sampling) is part of the International Ocean Discovery Program (IODP). Having been studying our oceans for the past 50 years, the IODP is one of the biggest programs of its kind in the world.

A recent area of interest worldwide, and one that IMBBC will develop further as a research direction is Ocean Literacy, which is now largely accepted worldwide for use in both formal (schools, research institutes and universities) and informal (aquaria, museums, environmental centers, etc.) education settings. To this direction, IMBBC is co-chairing the Ocean Literacy Working Group of the European Global Ocean Observing System (EuroGOOS), is a founding member of the Mediterranean Working Group of the European Marine Science Educators Association (EMSEA), and also a founding member organization of EU4Ocean Coalition and Platform, in collaboration with the Department of Primary Education, Democritus University of Thrace, and a member of EMBRC Communication Panel.

Finally, although applied research is a prime focus of IMBBC, especially of its AQUA Research Group, we also believe that IMBBC will benefit from giving a stronger emphasis on fundamental research, which will allow us to broaden our options of funding calls *e.g.* from Pillar 1 "Excellent Science" of Horizon Europe (ERC grant, MSCA actions and Infrastructure).

Institute visibility

An important action to maintain and augment the scientific excellence of the institute is to increase its visibility through scientific publications in Q1 scientific journals with a high impact factor, research dissemination in workshops and conferences, education and teaching, and increasing public awareness.

To this effect, a large number of IMBBC's personnel teaches in both undergraduate and postgraduate university courses and supervises students of all levels (BSc, MSc and PhD) from Greece, Europe and the world, who undertake their Thesis or Dissertation research, or practical training internships in our facilities. Also, IMBBC personnel participates in the most important international conferences, while dissemination and public awareness is conducted through specialized actions and citizen science projects.





Infrastructure maintenance and upgrade

IMBBC possesses valuable infrastructures and equipment that put it at the forefront of marine research. In order to maintain and improve its position, the maintenance and upgrade of its existing equipment along with the purchase of new equipment when deemed necessary is of great importance. Therefore, several proposals are being submitted in order to increase the funding of our research activities and to maintain and purchase equipment. This is necessary because, unfortunately, there is no provision in the State-provided budget for maintenance and upgrading of our facilities and equipment, so this responsibility is born by the researchers themselves. More details as to this important restriction in our research capacity is provided later in **Section 1.4c**, under **Infrastructure**.

IMBBC has built a High-Performance Computer (HPC) named "**Zorbas**". Up to date, IMBBC and "**Zorbas**" focus mostly on non-model organism Next Generation Sequencing data analysis, environmental -omics and large-scale ecology and biodiversity data analysis. Funding for establishing the IMBBC HPC has been received by the MARBIGEN (EU REGPOT) project, LifeWatchGreece and CMBR (Centre for the study and sustainable exploitation of Marine Biological Resources) and some Research Infrastructures (ESFRIs). Hardware upgrade and maintenance (**see HPC related explanation in Section 1.4c,** under **Infrastructures**) is an extremely important factor for maintaining and also augmenting IMBBC's bioinformatics capacity and potential to expand its activities.

With regard to Marine Biotechnology and Bioanalysis, the acquisition of a cutting-edge High-Resolution Mass Spectrometry (HRMS) system would offer tremendous potential to augment scientific excellence of IMBBC not only in the exploration/understanding of marine life, but also in the discovery/exploitation of value-added marine-derived products. An HRMS platform dedicated to metabolomics analysis will complement our already established research capabilities in marine genomics. More importantly, it will help to establish a core of excellence focused on metabolomic phenotyping and bioprospecting of marine biological resources.

Increase space availability and allocation

An important aspect for a fruitful and collaborative environment is space availability, *i.e.* having enough office and laboratory space, so that new staff and new equipment can be hosted and have enough space for laboratory work especially in delicate and contamination sensitive/prone cases. Due to the significant expansion of IMBBC, but also the loss of lab and office space after moving from our Agios Kosmas facilities, the construction of new buildings and aquaculture rearing facilities is critical. Fortunately, we have acquired funding for new buildings both in Crete and Anavyssos, and once these are put in operation, they will enhance our research capacity and enable us to continue develop and maintain our scientific excellence (See more in Section 1.4c, under Infrastructure).

Improve administration and financial management

The improvement of the administration and financial management of HCMR is of crucial importance for the center's continuity and existence, as well as its interactions with foreign bodies, such as national and international universities and research centers, and finally for the center's research potential. Although not fully dependent on HCMR itself, but mainly





on the State's laws and the supervising ministry's administration, there are things than could and should be changed by the administration of HCMR, in order to improve the working environment and effectiveness/efficiency of our research staff and reduce bureaucratic obstacles. You can see more on that aspect in **Section 3.a Policies and practices for financial management**.

Personnel recruitment, competency and improvement

Personnel recruitment in the form of researchers, post-docs and permanent staff of particular expertise in accordance to the institute's strategic plan is extremely important given the current personnel's age and in order to support novel directions and attract funding. Some of the expertise that is currently missing from the IMBCC and we feel it is fundamental for accomplishing its mission include quantitative genetics and genomics, phytoplankton physiology and biomass production, and stress physiology of fish.

Besides the recruitment of new personnel, an action of great importance is the state-of-theart training for all personnel. Continuous training in new techniques and modern methodologies (*e.g.* participation in conferences, workshops and training of new techniques) will enable the maintenance of high profile of the existing research and technical personnel by continuous knowledge updating.





c. Needs and assumptions for carrying out the envisioned plan

IMBBC has produced significant new knowledge in the area of marine biology, genetics, genomics, biodiversity and aquaculture. Some have direct relevance to practical applications, such as fisheries management, conservation policies and of course the aquaculture industry. The institute has embraced the new tools and opportunities that come with Next Generation Sequencing technologies, and has developed the bioinformatics expertise and hardware capacity necessary to undertake, manage, analyze and interpret the massive data quantities that result. The ever-decreasing sequencing cost together with the ever-broadening application spectrum, such as environmental DNA biodiversity monitoring, ensure the ongoing data avalanche is not only here to stay, but also to increase further. Therefore, an important need is that of finding a way of infrastructure maintenance and upgrade, as well as purchase of new equipment, when necessary, along with the recruitment of new researchers and support personnel. Unfortunately, public funding for facility maintenance and equipment purchase is scarce (if at all), and we need to find other ways to ensure the sustainability of our research activities, beyond competitive grands. This will allow IMBBC to function in a more independent way and progress in accordance with a strategic plan/framework.

- Infrastructures

Maintenance and upgrade of facilities

The institute is facing two major problems in terms of infrastructures. The first one is the **loss in 2019 of the entire laboratory and office building, and the aquaculture facilities** we had in the area of Agios Kosmas (Athens), due to the reclaiming of the area by the State, in order to develop it commercially. These facilities served seven permanent researchers working in the areas of nutrition, fish health and welfare, biomarkers and final product quality (**AQUA**), and included fish rearing facilities -also containing a challenge facility-for their experiments, a feed production facility with a twin-screw extruder and state-of-the art analytical laboratories. As a result, all the labs moved to the existing HCMR headquarters in Anavyssos (Attica), but **all the fish rearing facilities have been lost**! As a consequence of this loss, a significant part of IMMBC's research activities has been almost 3 years without any fish rearing facilities and are struggling to find alternatives to accommodate the experimental trials included in National and EU research programs.

Fortunately, plans are currently being made and funding has been acquired for the construction of a **new Aquaculture building** with Recirculating Aquaculture Systems (RAS)-based rearing facilities (**Master Plan 1**). This facility will be used for research in the area of nutrition, health and welfare, biomarkers and final product quality. So, the continued operation of the **AQUA** laboratories based in our Anavyssos campus depend on the **timely construction of this facility**. The many bureaucratic obstacles in obtaining the building permit for the planned facilities in Anavyssos need to be overcome -at times with a political intervention- so that the building construction phase can at last begin. Such facilities are indispensable in order to attract funding towards the applied research fields important for the new building in a space similar to the initial would facilitate its flawless operation. Also, the re-establishment of challenge facilities for parasitic infections is also



extremely important for our research and it is going to be an integral part of IMBBC's new facilities.

The second problem relates to maintenance and upgrade of our existing facilities in Heraklion, Crete. IMBBC has significant fish rearing facilities there, enabling it to carry out research at all developmental stages, and provide results that are relevant and can be quickly adapted to the Mediterranean aquaculture industry. In the AOUALABS facilities of IMBBC in Crete, fish of different species and life stages are reared for all the experiments relating to reproduction, larval rearing, nursery, behavior, physiology, reproduction, nutrition and fish health work carried out by the AOUA Research Group. The facilities were built in the mid 2000s and there is now a need to carry out an extensive maintenance (pipe cleaning, repair, plasters, frames, painting, insulation). More urgently, there is a need to upgrade the sea water supply and treatment system of IMBBC, as the original structure is now more than 15 years old, with almost no upgrading since. The sea water borehole supply system presents problems both with water quantity and quality, and we are now in the process of drilling new boreholes (wells) to supply the AQUALABS, that are having more and more experiments planned in the recent years, due to the loss of the rearing facilities of Agios Kosmas, Attica in 2019. Also, there is a need to convert the broodstock rearing facility and the weaning area to RAS, in order to enhance the rearing conditions of the fish, enhance biosecurity of progressively more valuable, selected breeders, and to develop new rearing procedures for commercial rearing facilities.

Some of the above issues regarding the necessary infrastructure for IMBBC will be addressed with the **funding we have acquired through the Recovery and Resilience Fund** (**RRF**) of the EU. Under the government plan for the CREATION, EXPANSION & UPGRADE OF INFRASTRUCTURES OF RESEARCH CENTRES (General Secretariat for Research and Development), an amount of \notin 22,151,000 (plus VAT) has been committed for projects concerning RIs of HCMR. Of these funds, \notin 5,670,000 (plus VAT) will be used for the construction of a new 3000-m³ office and laboratory building in Anavyssos (Master Plan 1) in order for HCMR to continue fulfilling its research objectives, because of its removal from the facilities it had been granted in Agios Kosmas, Attica, and because of its continuous development course.

Also, the sum of \notin 1,667,000 (plus VAT), will be used for the construction of a building and equipment needed for the treatment of sea water (Master Plan 1) from the existing and new pumping wells at the HCMR facilities in Crete. This will significantly upgrade the biosecurity and quality of the water used for the rearing of the marine organisms that are bred and studied there. In addition, the money will be used for the procurement of RAS for broodstock maintenance, which will ensure absolute biosecurity in the management of genetically selected breeders to avoid their loss from pathogenic organisms.

Finally, another \notin 6,350,000 (plus VAT), will be used for the construction of a new 2,500 m² office-laboratory building in Crete (Master Plan 2) that will serve the whole HCMR, but it will also include a "Culture collections" facility, mainly of microscopic organisms for advanced biotechnology applications for the exploitation of marine biodiversity. The procurement of equipment for the culture collections facilities, cryopreservation, data center and laboratory equipment, has also been included. All the above buildings and facilities are expected to be completed by 2026, but for the time being -and since 2019- the institute is **operating under severely limiting conditions**.







Master Plan 1. Additions to the Anavyssos, Attica HCMR facilities with the inclusion of a new Aquaculture rearing facility (800 m²) and a new office/laboratory building (3,000 m²).





Master Plan 2. Additions to the Thalasssokosmos, Crete HCMR facilities with the inclusion of a new Sea water treatment and pumping station (200 m³/h) and a new office/laboratory building (2,500 m²), that will include a "Culture Collection" facility.





Significant maintenance needs to be done also at the <u>Pilot-scale net pen aquaculture</u> <u>facilities</u> that IMBBC operates in Souda, in the western part of Crete. For example, the anchoring system, boat engines, warehouse and cages need maintenance/update/replacement due to aging while, feeding system needs improvements. There is a need for network maintenance and improvements

IMBBC has gone the extra mile for more than a decade now and established an HPC facility to support its tens of projects requiring data computation and data production. Beyond the hardware, a dedicated team of scientists and system administrators (https://hpc.hcmr.gr/people/) guarantee the smooth function of the system and provide user support and training. The HPC accommodates more than 200 state-of-the-art pieces of software. Supported types of analysis include: non-model organism next-generation sequencing data, environmental -omics, and up-to global scale biodiversity and ecology data crunching. While building such a facility takes an incrementally significant effort, doubledigit longevity cannot be foreseen unless maintenance actions take place. "Maintenance" includes technical hardware (e.g. super computer components) renewal, as well as continuous software upgrade, and long-term contracts with expert personnel, as well as lifelong training.

The <u>Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete</u>, our open-sea experimental infrastructure in adjacency to IMBBC is an important testbed for field experiments, monitoring and studies. This facility hosts a seafloor observatory monitoring environmental parameters and some long-term experimental cultivations of invertebrates. It constitutes a facility with tremendous potential in basic and applied research, development and transfer of technology as well as education and training. In order to maintain this facility and the experimental settings it hosts besides the maintenance and upgrade of its equipment, both scientific and technical personnel is needed on a permanent basis. Related to that, but also involved in a multitude of projects, our <u>Scientific diving unit</u> is essential for direct access to natural marine habitats and biodiversity. Keeping this infrastructure maintained and updated to cover and expand our operational range, while at the same time ensuring safety procedures are followed, is of pivotal importance.

A new promising research direction at its onset in IMBBC is that concerned with the **exploration and exploitation of the diverse marine organisms** available in the Mediterranean. From these organisms, it may be possible to develop new products, and marine microorganisms are viewed as a promising and sustainable source of bioactive molecules. Upgrading the already existing facility for the culture of microorganisms at small (culture room/chambers, inverted microscope, turbidostats) and medium scale (photobioreactors, apparatus for collecting biomass) is a necessity.

Office & Laboratory Space

Additional office and laboratory space, needs to be secured for the permanent researchers and the hired technical staff, but also to be able to host visiting researchers and students, that spend time at IMBBC, from a few months to a few years, when they undertake their internships, postgraduate research, or collaborations with joint research projects.

One of our facilities that faces an overcrowding problem is the Genetics and Molecular Biotechnology Laboratory. The problem is particularly evident during the periods that students are hosted. Then it becomes extremely difficult for anyone working in the lab, to have adequate bench space for undisturbed and high-quality work. Moreover, such an


overloaded workspace involves the risk of contamination. Furthermore, new laboratories dedicated for eDNA analysis will support this relatively new research direction of IMBBC.

Maintenance and upgrade of equipment and purchase of new ones

Provisioning for the regular maintenance and upgrading of highly specialized and expensive laboratory equipment, needs to be secured and regularly funded, a cost which is usually not covered by the research programs, in order to avoid losing already implemented investments in infrastructures and facilities. There is also a need to purchase new analytical instruments, in situations where the old ones have reached the end of their life, *e.g.* Protein Analysis Instruments, Western Blot Imagers, Cell Counters & Viability Analysis Systems. Also, special systems equipped with new tanks and recording systems to study the behavior of marine organisms is important.

The HPC hardware maintenance and upgrade on a 5-year-cycle plan is needed since the equipment's default warranty usually lasts for up to three years, it could be extended to 5 or, in some cases, to 7 years; however, after 7 years most pieces of equipment receive no further support and are considered as having reached the end of their lifetime.

There is a need for upgrading the microscopy equipment at the Aquaculture Microbiology Laboratory, since all microscopes are good for basic routine work but are outdated when it comes to obtaining high quality pictures needed for publication purposes. This could be centrally organized for the Institute (e.g. designated microscopy unit).

Equipment of strategic importance is needed in order to further enhance the research capacity of HCMR (Novel RAS systems for fish rearing, TOF upgrade, extruder support through appropriate building infrastructure, etc.).

Upgrading the existing Environmental Microbiology Laboratory equipment (*i.e.* Class II Biological Safety Cabinets, incubators, microscopes and stereoscopes), purchasing and installing Sterilizable Bioreactors and Fermenters of different volumes for valuing the IMBBC microbial strain collection in industrial application is necessary.

Current advances in underwater technology such as small and affordable remotely operated vehicles and diver propulsion vehicles can allow the expansion of our research in the field of invertebrate marine biology to the mesophotic zone, an environment that remains understudied worldwide and particularly in the Eastern Mediterranean and is proven rich to new biodiversity, often with significant ecological or biotechnological interest.

- New Researchers and Support personnel

At IMBBC, the vast majority of the scientific and technical staff consists of temporary, on-contract personnel (>70%, see Section 2.5 Personnel) hired from monies from competitive grants, contract services and the small economic activity of the institute (*i.e.* Souda net pen aquaculture facility). Research funding in Greece does not have a steady flow as Calls for Proposals follow cycles and the response of the funding agencies in evaluating the scientific and financial reports of the projects is very slow. As an example, the mid-term report and financial statement of the project MAGIATIKO-KOTIGIAMA (GSRT-EPANeK) was submitted in March 2021, and as of today (28/3/2022) the evaluation process has not been completed, and we do not know when the second budget installment will be given to us, while the project finishes in June 2022! Meanwhile, work must be done,



deliverables submitted, personnel paid and consumables purchased. These problems of the Greek research funding system, result in severe cash flow problems for the institute and center, and **it is very difficult to maintain our contracted personnel, even though significant effort and money have been invested to train them.** For example, all the technical work in the Bioanalysis and Biotechnology Lab is carried out by non-permanent staff. Such technicians receive extensive training in order to acquire all necessary knowledge/skills and become capable of applying delicate lab protocols for the analysis of various biomolecules in complex biological extracts. This expertise may be lost every time the contract of the technician is over, if a new research project is not acquired. The specific laboratory requires at least one technician (Biologist or Chemist) on permanent contract to support current needs and help extending the turnover of provided services within and outside IMBBC.

Therefore, it is imperative that we convince the State to (a) provide more permanent positions for scientific and technical staff for the research institutes and center, according to their performance over the years in attracting competitive grants and/or (b) **provide some long term funding projects (5-7 year)**, which will be renewed again based on the performance and excellence of the institute, and will cover some of the permanent research activities that take place, such as regular marine sampling campaigns, maintenance of fish broodstocks of different species to provide eggs and juveniles for our aquaculture research, maintenance and upgrading of our HPC (**Zorba**), as well as the DNA sequencing facility and the analytical instruments for feed and nutrient evaluations.

There is a need for new researchers to be recruited, both in existing research directions (e.g. nutrition, larval rearing, reproduction, etc.), but also for new directions that are becoming important in recent years (RAS technologies, smart aquaculture, microalgae production, etc.). Unfortunately, the institute has no ability to recruit new researchers and depends on the Ministry of Development & Investment to allocate new position(s). Moreover, the current group of researchers is aging, and unfortunately most of them will not be substituted when retired. Of the 25 permanent researchers of IMBBC, only 10 hold what is considered an "organizational" position (outlined and accounted in the Presidential decree establishing the HCMR), which allows the institute to recruit a new researcher once someone is retired. This means that once the other 15 researchers retire, their positions will cease to exist and no new researchers will be recruited. Thus, any further delay of the ministry to announce new positions will greatly compromise the future of IMBBC's research and vision, as described in Threats. Furthermore, some research directions have no permanent technical and scientific support personnel, operating only with post-doctoral staff under contracts for the period of project implementation. These personnel (trained to perform specific tasks) often change jobs creating delays and additional cost for the institute. For the work carried out in the Production Technologies research direction, four research positions are needed, a researcher for precision farming (image processing, welfare assessment), a researcher for modeling (physiological modeling tools development), a specialized research scientist for algorithm building, data management etc. and a specialized research scientist or research technician for hatchery management. Also, there is a need for new research position at the in the rapidly growing field of Fungal Biology and Biotechnology and new personnel to support the microbial strains collection and metagenomic analysis of the extreme environments.

As mentioned above, we need to acquire more support personnel, since of the ~70 staff scientists and technicians of IMBBC, 53 are under temporary contracts and, therefore, depend on the research funding acquired by our researchers. In addition, most of the



permanent staff do not hold "organizational" positions, and -as the situation was described earlier for researchers- their positions will cease to exist once they retire. So, an adequate number of permanent support personnel is necessary for the efficient function of the research structure. Furthermore, there is a significant number of very experienced young researchers with highly recognized expertise which are being employed for several years (>10-15 years) under non-permanent contracts and insecure employment terms. In order to avoid losing these well-trained personnel, it is necessary to replace each position that is lost due to retirement of older personnel, as well as to create new positions in existing and new scientific fields, which are continuously and dynamically evolving. Such actions will ensure future competitiveness in the world-wide research field and the long-term viability of the Institute. Similarly, the Fish quality and safety direction lacks a permanent technician to oversee the taste panel activities. Given the fact that very specific knowledge and operational procedures are required and that its use has strong time-schedule fluctuations it is difficult to keep it operational. Its operation is based on a contract-person that at times is inadequate to cover the whole work load and sometimes has workload that cannot cover its contract.

Also, **permanent positions are needed for operating the DNA sequencing platform** and specifically to unclog next generation sequencing pipeline. The research direction of bioinformatics supports a great number of research projects and needs, **but lacks permanent technical staff**. This leads to higher risk of not completing successfully the relevant projects rendering the recruitment of bioinformaticians to conduct analysis of accumulating NGS/omics data highly desired. A **new permanent researcher position in Quantitative Genetics/Genomics** is needed to assist the broader Greek industrial needs and modern trends in the fields of selective breeding and genomic selection. Today, there are only two professors with this profile in Greece (at Patras and Thessaloniki). Biodiversity research at IMBBC needs to be strengthen by opening positions for new researchers, and facilitating collaboration with collaborative university faculty members (the administrative/ bureaucratic procedure is still unclear and time-consuming).

Establish employment conditions to attract highly qualified personnel. For example, in order to keep the HPC system administration and the information technology and communication team, and given the private sector competition, offers must be made as attractive as possible, e.g. with long-lasting contracts and career development working conditions. Researchers would preferably have an interdisciplinary background as to drive cross institute research themes (e.g. oceanography and molecular biodiversity). Some desired expertise includes data scientists, data analysts capable of handling and carrying out statistics analysis on large scale data. Furthermore, data stewards and data curators to assist (a) properly-metadata-annotation data sharing (e.g. via deposition with public databases), (b) promote open data practices (c.) enrich, mobilize and share existing IMBBC datasets. Of great importance is the recruitment of a number of Project Administrators with a scientific-background to support a small number of projects each *e.g.* the hiring of personnel aware of scientific practices (e.g. laboratory work) and with administrative/management skills could help bridging communication gaps between administration and scientists, and among administration departments (especially on specific project needs such as contract duration, salary level and renewals).

Increasing our personnel focused on Ocean Literacy activities and relevant research will allow improved monitoring of impact and expansion in reach. Promotion of Ocean Literacy will further help to empower citizens of diverse societies and cultures to use their acquired knowledge of the ocean and awareness of ocean-related issues to communicate



about the ocean in a meaningful way and make informed decisions for their lives that will impact on their future wellbeing.

The Aquaculture Microbiology laboratory is supported by two permanent staff members (one researcher and one technician). Most of research and technical work is also supported by students at both graduate and postgraduate level. Some of the students have gained significant experience and have become essential members of the team. There should be a **provision that in exceptional cases, students following the completion of their studies can remain at the Institute with a fixed contract** even when resources are not available at the laboratory. These positions can be financially supported by the Institute following expression of interest by the scientific responsible of each lab and thorough evaluation of the application by a designated committee of the Institute considering the overall research strategy.

- Other

Recently, a new law obliges all public research institutes to abide by the financial management rules of the central government of the State. Unfortunately, these rules provide no flexibility and are not suited for the type of work done by research institutes, that have variable activities, unforeseeable changes during the course of just a few months in implementing a research project. Research, by definition, cannot be performed under restricting regulations and strict scheduling, and a high degree of flexibility must be ensured. Deviations from the "initially approved plan" are the rule in research, since the nature of our work is to search and test new methods and technical solutions. So, it is extremely important that the State realizes this and make some amendments to these laws, so that some activities of the research institutes will be excepted from the strict central government bureaucracy.

There should be plans for continuous training of personnel and young researchers to stateof-the-art methodologies and new policies and procedures. One area that must be set as a priority is data management practices. Also, more effort must be made in promoting communication actions with the public, but also the scientific community and funding agencies, as we believe this would increase our exposure and improve our reputation, making it easier for us to attract future funding or support.





2 Organizational Structure

2.1 Institute Organogram



According to the Presidential Decree for the establishment of the ICMR, the "Director" is the head of each Institute. The Director of an Institute is appointed by decision of the Minister of Development and Investment. The selection procedure and his/her qualifications are provided for in Articles 14 and 16 of Law No. 4310/14, and is done by a seven-member independent committee. The position of the Director of the Institute is fulltime with a four-year term (and a maximum of two terms after going through the same selection process again), although he/she may perform research tasks in the same research center.

The Director of the Institute has the following duties, which are specified in the Internal Regulations of HCMR:

 α) Supervision of the services and staff of the institute,

b) Responsibility for the operation of the institute, preparation and submission of the Institute's research and development program to the HCMR Board of Directors, preparation of the annual budget, and convening of the Institute's Assembly,

c) Participation in the Board of Directors of HCMR, the decision-making body of the center.

The Scientific Council of the Institute (SCI, see later section) is an advisory body to the Director on all issues relevant to the Institute and supports the Director in his duties. AS mentioned previously, IMBBC has two Research Groups (referred to as Sectors, or "Toµείç" in Greek): the **MB&B** and **AQUA** Research Groups. Each Research Group is then separated into a number of <u>Research Directions</u> that operate a number of <u>Facilities</u>, which in turn may have a number of different laboratories.





2.2 Research Groups

Marine Biodiversity and Biotechnology, MB&B

The **MB&B** Research Group carries out research in the fields of genetics/genomics, bioinformatics, bioanalysis and biotechnology, marine biodiversity, and marine ecology and ecosystem management. More specifically, our research focuses on a) population genetic and genomic studies to assess stock structure of commercial fish species, genetic diversity and connectivity of species of interest, and to study the genetic basis of adaptation in new environments, b) aquaculture genomics for the development of molecular markers and genetic tools for genetic maps, and Quantitative Trait Loci (QTL) analyses and parentage analyses for breeding programs in the industry c) functional and comparative genomics and d) development of bioinformatic pipelines. We also employ current approaches to assess biodiversity and ecosystem functioning in the marine realm, integrating field observation,

documentation and collection, taxonomy, experimental setups, genetics/genomics and modeling.

During this period, **MB&B** had **12 permanent** researchers, **33 staff scientists and technicians**, **15 postdoctoral researchers**, **3 PhD students on contract out of a** total of **14 PhD that carried their Dissertation research** at IMBBC, **26 MSc students** carrying their Thesis research at IMBBC and had a total of **81 undergraduate students**



doing their Thesis or BSc/MSc students doing their practical training at our laboratories.

Aquaculture, AQUA

The Aquaculture (**AQUA**) Research Group carries out research in the fields of fish biology, reproduction, ethology, nutrition and metabolism, and pathology of all developmental stages (larvae to harvestable size), and final product quality improvement and evaluation. Beyond the widely farmed species in the region (European sea bass and gilthead sea bream), we have always put great emphasis on species diversification (*e.g.* red porgy, common dentex, sharpsnout seabream, shi drum, meagre, greater amberjack, Atlantic bluefin tuna and wreckfish), in order to develop a profitable and sustainable aquaculture industry. In collaboration with **MB&B** we also work on the genetics of already cultured or potentially cultivable aquatic organisms and the use of genetics and epigenetics to develop improved strains and broodstock management methods. Work also focuses on the improvement of production methods and the development of smart farming systems.

During this period, AQUA had 13 permanent researchers, 35 staff scientists technicians. 4 and post-doctoral researchers. 4 PhD students on contract out of a total of 16 PhD that carried their Dissertation research at IMBBC, 19 MSc students carrying their Thesis research at IMBBC and had а total of 39 undergraduate students doing their Thesis



or BSc/MSc students doing their practical training at our laboratories.



2.3 Research Facilities and Support Units



Snap shot of the Research Facilities and Support Units of IMBBC as outlined in the website of the institute (<u>https://imbbc.hcmr.gr/infrastructures/facilitiesimbbc/</u>). The left column presents the facilities that support mainly the **AQUA** Research Group, and the right column those that support mainly the **MB&B** Research Group.

IMBBC operates a wide range of state-of-the-art facilities for Aquaculture, Genomics, Marine Ecology and Biodiversity, which form part of European and national RIs. These are available not only to internal (both IMBBC Research Groups and the other two HCMR Institutes) but also to third parties from academia and industry. Below is a general description of the facilities with links to the respective web sites of the infrastructure, services and personnel.





Broodstock management - HERAKLION (Dr Constantinos C. Mylonas)

The facilities include tanks of various volumes $(3 \times 35 \text{ m}^3, 7 \times 15 \text{ m}^3, 2 \times 10 \text{ m}^3, 8 \times 5 \text{ m}^3$ and $14 \times 2 \text{ m}^3$) for the maintenance of breeders of different species. All but the smallest tanks can operate either in flow through or recirculation mode, and are equipped with temperature and photoperiod control using LED lights. The species maintained include European sea bass, gilthead sea bream, shi drum (*Umbrina cirrosa*), meagre and greater amberjack. Eggs are maintained in temperature-controlled egg incubators, and larvae can be maintained until the end of yolk absorption.

A wet lab is used for the sampling (blood, gonadal biopsies and tissue extraction) and the initial evaluation of gamete and egg quality obtained from various experimental and production broodstocks. Light compound and stereo microscopes are used to evaluate the quality of oocytes, in order to monitor the stage of oogenesis and select females for hormonal spawning induction. A computer assisted sperm analysis (CASA) system is available for the evaluation of sperm quality, looking at sperm motility characteristics.

Supporting the facility is an analytical laboratory equipped with a variety of equipment for the study of reproductive biology and endocrinology. Hormonal analyses are done using ELISAs, and include the sex steroid hormones, gonadotropins and gonadotropin releasing hormone agonists (GnRHa). Histological evaluations are done using methacrylate resin and various stains. Controlled temperature incubators are used for the evaluation of egg and larval quality using the micro-titre plate method. A spectrophotometer is used to monitor water quality in the broodstock tanks. The lab is also equipped for the production of polymer-based, controlled-release devices for GnRHa, used for the induction of spawning and enhancement of sperm production (EVAc implants and PLGA microspheres).

Very limited research is undertaken by other institutes or universities, since maintaining breeding populations requires many years of rearing, and it is not easy to accommodate requests for research from outside users, unless they are partners in our own projects.





Pilot scale hatchery - HERAKLION (Dr. Nikos Papandroulakis)

A pilot scale facility for larval rearing is operated at the institute, including a plankton production unit. A Mesocosm hatchery, applying semi-intensive methods, with $6x40 \text{ m}^3$ tanks, together with an intensive hatchery with closed water systems, 8 of $2\times0.5 \text{ m}^3$ tanks and 3 of $3\times2.0 \text{ m}^3$ tanks, are available. Feeding is performed using an automated system developed at the lab. A pre-growing zone with $18x10 \text{ m}^3$ tanks is included.



The facility serves for the definition of species-specific hatchery methodologies, the feeding requirements, and the optimal environmental parameters (light, temperature, tank hydrodynamics, etc.) for the larvae. The effect of the larval rearing conditions on the subsequent performance of the fish represent a major objective of the activity.

The facility is used for experimental larval rearing by the Biology Department of the (UoC), for training students and Thesis implementation. It is also part of the European Research Infrastructure AquaExcel (https://www.aquaexcel2020.eu).





Phyto- and zooplankton production - HERAKLION (Drs. Nikos Papandroulakis & Frédéric Verret)

This is a dedicated live food chain production laboratory producing microalgae, rotifers, and *Artemia* spp., mainly for the larval rearing experiments and operations of the AQUA Group. More recently, research is also taking place in the area of diatoms, a prominent group of unicellular eukaryotic microalgae producing a wide range of natural compounds including various pigments (*e.g.* fucoxanthin and carotene) and lipids (*e.g.* polyunsaturated fatty acids) with increasing demand in the cosmetic, nutraceutical and aquaculture industry. Different diatom species are cultivated including well established species with high potential in compounds production, but also local species isolated during sampling expeditions in various Greek seas and coast with the aim to mine and exploit the local diatom natural diversity.

Microalgae for the larval rearing experiments are produced, starting from pre-cultures, in

classical plastic sacks or in photobioreactors at high density cultures (200-300 million cells ml⁻ ¹). Vertical-tubular and flatbed reactors are used. Currently there are 1 flatbed reactor of 1200-L and 1 Vertical-tubular of 1800-L (dark phase included). The photobioreactors use natural light, taking advantage of the conditions in Crete. A local strain of marine Chlorella spp. is mostly used although Tetraselmis spp. or T-Iso are also cultured.



Zooplankton, both rotifers (*Brachionus* spp.) and *Artemia* spp. are produced at an industrial scale with standard techniques. Two rooms, with controlled water temperature, are used,



with 12 tanks for the rotifers (8x1.6 m³ for culture and 4x0.8 m³ for enrichment) and 10 for the *Artemia* (3x0.5 m³ for the hatching of cysts and 7x0.8 m³ for culture).

Diatom cultivation is undertaken at two levels. At the first level, diatoms are cultured in a recently build and dedicated culture room under controlled light intensity and photoperiod, controlled temperature, and in near-axenic condition. In this environment, small volume cultures (*i.e.* 30 mL) of all the available strains are replicated every month and constitute the diatom culture collection. In addition, large active cultures (300 mL - 10 L) are undertaken to conduct molecular and biochemical analyses aiming to determine their qualitative and quantitative potential in compounds production and characterize the evolution and activity of their biosynthetic genes and pathways. In the future, strains presenting high potential in compounds production will be selected for cultivation in large photobioreactors as described above for *Chlorella* and *Tetraselmis*. In photobioreactors, diatoms are cultivated in non-axenic condition under natural light and relaxed temperature control in order to facilitate and optimize the cost-efficiency of their production.

The facility makes available biomass and samples of different species cultured at the Biology Department of the UoC, the Pharmacy Department of the National and Kapodistrian University of Athens and laboratories at the Agricultural University of Athens.

The first level of diatom cultivation is open to external users presenting a minimum expertise in microalgae cultivation or for those aiming to gain such expertise. Its operation has led to the following services and uses:



- Provide diatom strains (*e.g.* to IMBBC researchers to assist their research projects such as sponge feeding and antifouling experiments),
- Conduct environmental perturbation of diatom populations (*e.g.* for visiting researchers from Stazione Zoologica Anton Dohrn, Italia, within the frame of EMBRC-A+ visit),
- Provide diatom biomass to researchers aiming to assess the potential of using purified diatom silica frustule as mesoporous particles for enzyme immobilization and activation.

Nutrition and biochemistry - ANAVYSSOS & HERAKLION & (Drs. Eleni Fountoulaki & Stavros Chatzifotis)

Extensive fish rearing facilities and analytical laboratories are maintained at IMBBC, currently only in Crete (AQUALABS), with plans and funding available for a new facility



in Anavyssos, supporting the nutrition work undertaken by five permanent staff researchers. At the AQUALABS, the rearing facilities include:

- 44 indoor tanks (0.05, 0.2, 0.5 and 17 m³) some connected with Recirculating Aquaculture Systems (RAS), in which the abiotic conditions are controlled,
- 6 outdoor tanks of 5 m^3 ,
- Self-feeders connected with sensors which record the fish feeding activity,
- Digestibility tanks for the determination of nutrient digestibility coefficients for aquafeeds and feed ingredients.

Currently, IMBBC is in the process of licensing a new indoor facility of 700 m^2 in Anavyssos, where modern Recirculating Aquaculture Systems (RAS) will be built to further support its expanding research activities.

To support the nutrition and growth trials the analytical laboratories in Crete are equipped with analytical



equipment such as nitrogen analyser, Bomb calorimeter, Spectrophotometer, Speedvac, Fibertec, Centrifuge, Biochemical analyser, Lyophilizer, HPLC, HPTLC, Leco protein analyser, Spectrophotometer, Speedvac, Fibertec, Centrifuge, Biochemical analyser, Lyophilizer.

The IMBBC analytical facilities in Anavyssos are fully equipped with the most advanced scientific instruments for the determination of a large number of measurements in feeds, raw materials, food additives and fish tissues. These include Spectrophotometers, Digestion and Distillation Units (Kjeldahl method), Soxhlet, Hydrolysis system, Centrifuges, Nitrogen analyser, Bomb calorimeter, Biochemical analyser, Fibertec, are the main instruments used and enable us to determine the gross nutrients and various physiological responses in fish. In addition to that, we operate modern analytical instruments such as GC-MS, GC-FID, HPLC-MS, HPLC, HPTLC coupled with various types of detectors according to different specific analytical needs.

Nutrient requirements such as vitamins, essential amino acids, $\omega 3$ and $\omega 6$ fatty acids, fish quality and freshness of various fresh and processed forms (fish and seafood added value products), as well as detection of veterinary drug residues, and evaluation of fish welfare indicators, can be performed by our specialized personnel to cover specific needs of our collaborations with EU, national and international research projects, as well as providing services for the aquaculture industry.









Feed production unit - ANAVYSSOS (Dr. Ioannis Nengas)

In order to be fully independent in carrying out research in nutritional requirements, feed ingredient evaluation, feed formulation and sustainable aquafeeds, we operate a feed production unit. This consists of modern laboratory scale equipment for the production of

small batches of experimental feeds under controlled processing conditions. The feed line consists of a twin-screw extruder coupled with a pre-conditioner. The system includes a grinder, mixer and a dryer with controlled temperature. Finally, the produced feeds can be fat coated in a vacuum coater for efficient and homogeneous lipid absorption. Utilising the vacuum coater, is possible to coat any liquid dietary supplement of interest. The capacity of the system can reach about 30 kg per day of crumbles or pellets of all



commercial sizes from 1 to 5 mm. Our feed production unit also runs a press pellet system for applications where the temperature during production has to be low, when using thermo sensitive ingredients

This facility allows our researchers -as well as industrial stakeholders- to produce and test experimental aquafeeds using different formulations, feed ingredients and processing parameters. By using this facility, IMBBC collaborates closely with the aquafeed and aquaculture industry either, under the framework of International and national research programs, or through direct contracted work.



Fish Behavior – HERAKLION (Dr. Ioannis Papadakis)

In this facility we carry out research on the ontogeny and plasticity of the organs, the optimization of rearing protocols and the study of different behavioral patterns. The facilities in include some of the tanks used for the nutrition studies, and are equipped with:

- 12 indoor tanks (0.5 and 17 m³) connected with RAS,
- 6 outdoor tanks 5 m³,
- Self-feeders connected with sensors which record the fish feeding activity,
- Cameras and video recording system which are placed above the rearing tanks and/or in the water column, recording fish activity,
- Oxygen monitoring and automatic adjustment,
- Two dry labs equipped with microscopes and PCs for video and image analysis.







Fish Health –ANAVYSSOS & HERAKLION (Drs. George Rigos, Morgane Henry & Pantelis Katharios)

These facilities are spread in both Crete and Anavyssos, and are suitable for a full range of bacteriological, parasitological and viral detection procedures for fish diagnosis. Pathogen identification using a wide range of detection tools complemented by other labs of the institute (*e.g.* the micro-CT) or other collaborating labs (Electron Microscopy Lab of the UoC). The capacity of the Fish Health group includes also the assessment of the *in vitro* efficacy of antibacterial agents, but also in vivo avaluation of herbel extracts and network products.



but also in vivo evaluation of herbal extracts and natural products.

The Aquaculture Microbiology lab curates a large collection of bacterial pathogens from the Greek Aquaculture industry. Fully characterized pathogens from the lab collection are being shared with researchers in Greece (University of Patras, Aegean University) and abroad (University of Copenhagen, DTU, Czech Academy of Sciences) upon request for experimental work. It is fully equipped with BSLII cabinets, cooling incubators, genetic analyst, bioreactor Eppendorf BIOFLO 320, PCR, centrifuges, etc.

A separate histology lab with stereoscopy and digital microscopy is also included, supported by Image Analysis processing. Histology equipment include a rotary tissue processor multistation (histokinette), embedding stations, rotary microtomes, water baths, slide warmer plates, portable bench top fume hoods and staining systems.



The facilities also include an intra-discipline Chromatography lab for the detection of veterinary drug residues and the conduction of pharmacological studies for determining drug kinetics. Consumer safety is assessed here with the establishment of drug withdrawal times coupled with other intra-lab methodologies such as bacterial measurements, detection of zoonotic parasites and so on.

Also, a fully equipped Fish Immunology Lab operates Laminar flow hood, cooling incubators, microplate

spectro-photo-lumino-fluoro-meter, microplate washer, inverted microscope, centrifuge, cell counter) and studies the effects of nutritional, environmental and therapeutic stimulants on the non-specific immune system. Innate and adaptive immune parameters can be assessed in fish sera and tissues ex vivo. Primary cell culture and cell lines can also be used to assess the effects of chemicals *in vitro*.



The Autogenous Vaccine Unit, is dedicated to the development of prevention tools for bacterial diseases in aquaculture. The unit has a compartmentalized area operating using HEPA filters and is fully equipped for the experimental production of inactivated bacterial





vaccines. The equipment includes BSL-II laminar flow cabinet, cooling refrigerator, high

shear mixer and a bioreactor Eppendorf BIOFLO 320. Vaccine development process is ISO9001 certified since 2019. The Unit conducts also R&D for phage therapy products. Bacteriophages or phages are highly host-specific viruses of bacteria that can be used as a biocontrol method for pathogenic bacteria.

The commercialization of the activities of the Fish Vaccine Unit is made through the newly established spin-off company, **Aquatic Biologicals SA** (<u>www.aquatic-biologicals.com</u>).





Toxicology and biomarkers – ANAVYSSOS (Dr. Efthimia (Efi) Cotou)

This laboratory is dedicated to the identification of suitable biomarkers and development of cost- effective bioassays & micro biotests for the evaluation of bioactive properties and toxicity levels of feed ingredients and feeds as well as effects on nutritional status, growth

performance, metabolic functions and health status of farmed species and their environment.

Diagnostic services based on well-established biomarkers and bioassays are provided to other researchers, aquaculture sector, regulatory authorities and environmental agencies. Its facilities include: (a) a cell culture & bioassay room of biohazard level II, where transfected mammalian cells or fish cell lines are cultured for cytotoxicity, toxicity and estrogenicity assays. It is mainly equipped with a biosafety cabinet, a humid CO_2 incubator, an incubator, an orbital incubator, a water bath, a bench centrifuge, a refrigerator, a freezer (-20°C), a deep freezer (-80°C), a cell counter, an inverted microscope, a liquid N₂ container, a sterilizer, (b) two biomarker assays rooms,



where biochemical biomarker responses (enzymes activities), gene expression & protein analysis are performed. They are mainly equipped with a chemical hood, a laminar flow hood, tissue extraction homogenizers (polytron & glass Teflon), a multi cell microplate spectro-fluo-photometer, a luminometer, two bench top refrigerated centrifuges, a peristaltic pump, a refrigerator, a freezer (-20°C), a deep freezer (-80°C), a benchtop pH meter, electrophoresis apparatus for RNA/DNA & proteins (1D & 2D), DGGE & Western plotting, a thermo-cycler (PCR), a gel documentation imager system, a genetic analyzer etc.



<u>Sensory laboratory – ANAVYSSOS (Dr. Kriton Grigorakis)</u>

A fully equipped sensory lab with preparation room and taste panel room with booths for 8 panelists is available for supporting the fish quality and safety research direction. The preparation room is equipped with ovens, steam cookers and a thermal chamber. Additionally, controlled refrigeration (achieving required refrigeration temperatures), for





seafood freshness/ post-harvest experimentations, is obtained by a professional refrigeration chamber.

The tested fish food is prepared according to standard protocols and stored until tested. A wide variety of methodologies is employed depending on the aim of the study. For example, different analytical methods are used to detect differences or describe sensory properties of fish / seafood, such as Similarity/Difference Tests (paired comparison, duo-trio, triangle test), Rating or Ranking techniques, Fast-track descriptive methods (CATA, RATA) and Descriptive Analysis.

Also, hedonic methods are used to explore consumer likes and preferences. Analytical techniques are also part of the laboratory routines for examining the biochemical basis of sensory quality. Thus, volatile aroma compounds analysis is conducted with GC-



MS to determine the compounds characterizing the aroma of seafood. Physico-chemical and microbial freshness is examined in respective infrastructures (available within Nutrition and Biochemistry, and Fish health facilities) to make correlations with sensory freshness.



Pilot net pen aquaculture farm – CHANIA (Dr. Nikos Papandroulakis)

IMBBC is the only research institute in the European Union that operates a fully functional a pilot aquaculture net pen cage farm, operating since 2000. Currently the unit consists of 16 rectangular cages 6x6 m and 4 circular cages of 12 m diameter. Part of the energy requirements are covered by photovoltaic cells and a wind turbine. The operation of the unit is served by two boats, a floating platform and a storage hut. The farm is certified as an aquaculture facility from the national veterinary authority (code GR94FISH0001) and is part of the European Research Infrastructure AquaExcel.

Over the years, a variety of fish species have been reared there, including European sea bass, gilthead sea bream, meagre, red porgy and greater amberjack. The farm serves the implementation of research projects aiming at understanding the effect of different

husbandry parameters on fish performance and development of appropriate practices. Feed performance as well as behavior studies are carried out in collaboration with IMBBC researchers, other institutions or private companies. More recently aspects of multitrophic integrated aquaculture are also tested, using sponges as both a potential product and as purifying organisms.

The study of fish motion during standard



rearing conditions and during stress, using video captures and hydro acoustics, targets to develop methods – indicators for monitoring and management of farmed populations during the production process. Specific algorithms developed at the Production Technologies laboratory of IMBBC are used for behavior tracking and welfare prediction systems. Furthermore, tools are developed and tested for better management, such as remotely



operated vehicles (ROV) for safety monitoring and fish size estimation cameras using stereoscopy.

The facility is used for experimental work, for testing equipment while is making available samples of different species reared for different institutions including the Biology Department of the UoC, the School of Electrical and Computer Engineering and the Department of Environmental Engineering from the Technical University of Crete, the School of Engineering of the Hellenic Mediterranean University, the Department of Marine Science of the University of Aegean and the Food Science and Human Nutrition Department of the Agricultural University of Athens.



<u>Genetics & Molecular Biotechnology Laboratory – HERAKLION (Dr.</u> <u>Costas Tsigenopoulos)</u>

This is a state-of-the-art laboratory, which supports the genetic and genomic research conducted in HCMR. In addition to the research going on by IMBBC researchers, the lab also supports research of other academic institutions of Greece and abroad, accommodating PhD and MSc students, as well as users of Transnational Access (TA) projects. The lab is coupled with the DNA Sequencing facility of IMBBC and participates in the national and European RIs CMBR, EMBRC-ERIC, and AQUAEXCEL.

The main equipment includes series of basic thermal cyclers (Biorad PCR machines), Real Time thermal cyclers (Mic & Biorad), Robotic workstation (QIAcube for automated purification of DNA, RNA, or proteins), Photometers (QuantiFluorTM-ST, Nanodrop 1000, and other), an Agilent 2100 Bioanalyzer, TissueLyser, Laminar flow cabinet (Telstar Bio-IIa), a Gel electrophoresis and gel documentation system.

This laboratory is currently the primary contact-point and driving power-supply for several research directions at IMBBC through its well-trained personnel and well-equipped technological level, such as

- Population genetics and phylogeography: genetic data are generated and used to address processes related to genetic stock structure, biological invasions, adaptation, genomic responses to climate change and speciation,
- Aquaculture Genetics: we employ molecular markers and genetic tools for parentage assignment, the production of genetic maps, and Quantitative Trait Loci (QTL)



identification for breeding programs in the aquaculture industry

- Environmental genomics: using markers from high-throughput DNA sequencing, we assess marine biodiversity and monitor its changes in space and time, and explore its biotechnological potential,
- Functional & Comparative Genomics: we aim to unravel the function and the regulation of genes and other parts of the genome, as well as to gain insight into evolutionary, biochemical, genetic, metabolic, and physiological pathways.

These enabled us to address scientific challenges, collaborate and publish with the other two HCMR institutes (IO and IMBRIW) and Greek universities in the areas of biodiversity, systematics and fisheries management as well as to develop new research directions under



the interdisciplinary framework of seascape genomics that couples ecology, oceanography and geography with genetic tools.



<u>Environmental Microbiology Lab – HERAKLION (Dr. Paraskevi</u> nakou)

<u>Polymenakou)</u>

The Environmental Microbiology Laboratory of IMBBC is designed to investigate microorganisms including Bacteria, Archaea and Fungi from a wide range of marine environments in the context of their diversity, ecology and biotechnology potential. We focus mostly on the exploration of the unique Mediterranean Sea, which is one of the most diverse environments on Earth. We follow a multidisciplinary approach, using state-of-the-art technologies, molecular-based methods, traditional culture-based methods and computational biology to study the full spectrum of microbial diversity and corresponding key processes.

Our activities include the following:

- Life in Extreme Environments: Exploring Volcanologically Active Marine Environments and Submarine Caves and Lakes
- Hypersaline Microbial Mats
- Marine Fungi
- Coastal Lagoons
- Water Microbiology

Finally, through European and national research projects, we have initiated the



HCMR-IMBBC microbial strain collection from extreme and highly oligotrophic environments. Our strain collection is continuously being enriched with isolates from various marine environments from the E. Mediterranean Sea including the extreme environments of the Hellenic Volcanic Arc for further exploitation into different biotechnological sections. In addition, the Microbiology Lab is used for studying Fungi either as marine taxa symbionts (*e.g.* of sponges) or as free-living organisms. Expertise in culturing and genetically manipulating Fungi is combined with access to global sampling isolates through collaborations and computational mining of multi-omic data.

Marine Ecology & Biodiversity Laboratories – HERAKLION (Dr. Panayota (Yolanda) Koulouri & Dr. Thanos Dailianis)

These two laboratories are involved in the assessment of biodiversity and ecosystem functioning in the marine realm, collection of biological samples, analysis and modelling at all levels of biological diversity -from prokaryotes to megafauna, from the individual to habitats and ecosystems, and from local to global scale of observation. They are also involved in the integration of the latest methods on marine biodiversity data management, analysis and dissemination by proper work flows and virtual research environments, advanced scientific knowledge and development of novel scientific and technological





approaches and products. Habitat mapping is studied with Side Scan Sonar, underwater Drone (BlueROV2), underwater photography and video equipment.



They are also involved in the ecology and ecosystem management and the sustainable management of natural resources including evaluation and monitoring of fundamental biotic and abiotic factors controlling marine ecosystem processes, biodiversity dynamics, climate change, pollution, conservation and sustainable management of coastal resources and habitats and the development of innovative environmental technology. They use bioinformatics and biodiversity informatic, dealing with the analysis of genetic, genomic

and other structural data, the management and analysis of biodiversity data, the support of holistic approaches to ecosystem biology and the data-mining from scientific literature.

Apart from the use of common microscopes and stereoscopes for sorting benthic/environmental samples and identifying organisms, the labs are also equipped with still and video facilities and image analysis software. The labs also work together with the **micro-CT scanner** facility (see Bioimaging facility), in order to create virtual models without destroying the original organism. The micro-CT scanner can be used to scan both hard- and soft-



bodied organisms, but also fossils, materials and other small-sized structures.

The laboratories also operate a wet lab with experimental aquaria, which consists of 12 units of different sizes ranging from 216 to 810 l of water. The system is designed for ex situ



I of water. The system is designed for ex situ experimentation with marine invertebrates using automated subsystems that can regulate temperature, salinity and pH. A main challenge is the establishment of specific techniques for efficient small to medium culture of marine invertebrates with biotechnological potential. Furthermore, some of the aquaria can be used as holding tanks and/or quarantine tanks for marine organisms of scientific interest prior to experimentation or deployment at the Underwater Biotechnological Park.



The Environmental Chemistry labs are fully equipped to carry out in-house a wide spectrum of integrated research activities, for the benefit of all HCMR institutes and departments





located in the Crete Centre. They also provide a full range of services for the different needs of local authorities and the tourist industry.

This Support Unit carries out measurements and analyses of organic carbon, chloroplastic pigments (chlorophyll a and phaeopigments) and nutrients in the water column, using up-to-date instrumentation such as fluorometer, spectrophotometer, centrifuge, centrifugal ball mill laboratory drying over CHNS 2400 alemental analyzer and

mill, laboratory drying oven, CHNS 2400 elemental analyzer and a 5-Channel nutrients analyzer.

In addition, it is involved in the investigation of marine pollutants with the sensitive equipment needed for the accurate measurement of organic compounds (*e.g.* pesticides, aliphatic and aromatic hydrocarbons, algal pigments, amino acids) using Gas Chromatography-Mass Spectrometry and High-Pressure Liquid Chromatography systems. One of the labs is also equipped with a mechanical sieve shaker, a large water bath for pipette analysis, incinerators and ovens for processing of sedimentological material (grain sediment analysis).





DNA Sequencing platform – HERAKLION (Dr. Elena Sarropoulou)

The DNA Sequencing facility of IMBBC includes the following DNA sequencing equipment:

The Illumina SBS (Sequencing By Synthesis) technology produces short reads with low error rates, typically around 1%. The MiSeq system has a maximum output of 15Gb when paired-end 2 x300 bp sequencing is performed. It is suitable for amplicon and other targeted sequencing, genome DNA sequencing (de novo & resequencing) for small to medium-sized genomes, metagenomic studies with few samples, smallRNA/microRNA



sequencing; transcriptome sequencing with few samples and quality control of libraries before larger-scale sequencing.

Oxford Nanopore MinION is a powerful, portable sequencing device that delivers costeffective and real-time access to up to 30 gigabases of long-read sequencing data. The current (early 2020) sequencing error rate is around 10 % and the record longest read is 2.27 Mbases, but the technology is evolving rapidly, and yield and accuracy are continuously improving.

The ABI 3730 sequencer has 48 capillaries, 36 cm long, and it is suitable for Sanger sequencing and fragment analysis (microsatellites).

The DNA Sequencing facility is coupled with the Genetics and Molecular Biotechnology lab of IMBBC is part of the following national and European RIs CMBR, EMBRC-ERIC, and AQUAEXCEL.









Bioanalysis and Biotechnology Laboratory - HERAKLION (Dr. Emmanouil Mandalakis)

Biomolecules are the fundamental building blocks of all living organisms and play indispensable roles in almost every aspect of marine life. At the same time, marine biomolecules and biomass present increasing interest for biotechnological and biomedical applications. In this context, the Bioanalysis and Biotechnology Lab employs advanced techniques, such as tandem mass spectrometry, Ultra-High-Performance Liquid Lhromatography and microplate-based spectrophotometric methods, to perform qualitative/quantitative analysis of numerous biomolecules in various biological matrices and assess some of their basic bioactivities. By using bioanalysis as a main tool, research is conducted towards the valorization of marine biological resources. The laboratory is equipped with the knowledge, technical expertise and instrumentation required for the detection of marine biomolecules and the exploration of their potential biotechnological applications. Some indicative research activities are:

• Investigation of bioactive metabolites of marine organisms/microorganisms

• Study of the bioremediation and bioproduction potential of marine sponges

• Biotoxins detection in marine species for seafood safety and valorization of toxic biomass

• Determination of steroid hormones and other biomarkers of health status and physical fitness in farmed fish



• Targeted proteomic analysis for evaluating specific biological processes and functions in marine organisms

• Analysis of photosynthetic pigments (chlorophylls/carotenoids) for investigating antioxidants production in microalgae and for assessing the trophic status of marine ecosystems

The Lab is equipped with miscellaneous instruments and laboratory equipment that are necessary for sample processing and the analysis of biomolecules. These include:

- A triple quadrupole mass spectrometer hyphenated with an Ultra High-Performance Liquid Chromatography system (Agilent 6460 QQQ Triple Quad LCMS with Agilent 1290 Infinity II UHPLC)
- A High-Performance Liquid Chromatography system (Agilent 1260 Infinity HPLC)
- A gas-chromatography mass-spectrometry system (HP 6890 Series GC with HP 5972 A MS)
- A gas chromatograph with ECD/TCD detectors (Hewlett–Packard HP 5890 II Series GC)
- An Absorbance/Fluorescence microplate reader (Tecan, Infinite 200 PRO)
- A cuvette-based fluorometer (Hitachi, F-2000)
- A modern centrifugal vacuum evaporator (Genevac, EZ-2 Plus Evaporator)
- A robotic liquid handling workstation (Beckman Coulter Biomek 2000)







Bioimaging – micro-CT scanner – HERAKLION (Dr. Thanos Dailianis)

Micro-computed tomography (micro-CT) is a non-destructive imaging technique, which uses x-rays for the rapid digitisation of specimens in three dimensions. The ability of micro-



CT to visualise the internal and external features of an object makes this technique a useful tool for a variety of biological research fields such as taxonomy and systematics, developmental research and functional morphology. IMBBC has a Skyscan 1172 micro-CT scanner (Bruker, Belgium), which can be used to scan both hard- and soft-bodied organisms, but also fossils, materials and other small-sized structures.

The scanner uses a tungsten X-ray source

with an anode voltage ranging from 20 to 100 kV, 11 MP CCD camera (4000×2672 pixel) and a maximal resolution of $< 0.8 \mu$ m/pixel. The maximum object size that can be scanned is 50mm in diameter. The scanning duration depends on the sample size and the selected scanning parameters (resolution, averaging frames, etc).

This Micro-CT is offered as a service to researchers from outside organizations, including including the UoC (Biology Department, School of Mineral Resources Engineering, Greece), the National and Kapodistrian University of Athens (Faculty of Biology, Greece)

and the Aristotle University of Thessaloniki (School of Dentistry, School of Medicine, Greece), Museum and Art Gallery of the Northern Territory (Darwin. Australia). Plymouth Marine Laboratory, University of Maine, Natural History Museum of Crete, Zoological Museum of the University of Athens, the Institute of Molecular Biology and Biotechnology (IMBB) of the Foundation for Research and Technology – Hellas (FORTH), University of Minho (Portugal), University of Tel Aviv, and the Agricultural University of Athens.





High-Performance Computing – HERAKLION (Dr. Evangelos Pafilis)

"Zorbas" is the IMBBC's High-Performance Computing (HPC) cluster, dedicated to bioinformatics applications for non-model species and ecological data analyses. Equipped with ~400 cores, >5TB RAM, 1,5TB of which available on a single node, "Zorbas" hosts more than 200 state-of-the-art software suites. Among others supported types of analysis





include: non-model organism next-generation sequencing data, environmental -omics, and up-to global scale biodiversity and ecology data crunching. Web-based interfaces like the RvLab (https://rvlab.portal.lifewatchgreece.eu) provide user-friendly and seamless access to the HPC system. Upon request, command-line access is also possible (https://hpc.hcmr.gr/docs/getting-started/).

Ongoing efforts translate a more-than-a-decade long of bioinformatics data processing in containerized pieces of software (Singularity and Docker based) as well as reusable pipelines (in snakemake). The dedicated IMBBC HPC portal <u>https://hpc.hcmr.gr/</u> contains the most up-to-date information about the IMBBC HPC system on how to make the best use out of it for your research purposes. A detailed documentation covering basic to advanced topics of working in an HPC is available (<u>https://hpc.hcmr.gr/docs/</u>). Logistics for gaining access to the IMBBC HPC is described at: <u>https://hpc.hcmr.gr/docs/getting-started/</u>.

Analyses at IMBBC HPC cover most of the -omics levels from DNA (like genomics and

metabarcoding) and RNA (transcriptomics) to phenomics and community ecology. In addition, a dedicated helpdesk service is available to address software and hardware requests as well as maintenance operations.

The IMBBC HPC ("Zorbas") in numbers:

- 19 worker nodes/4 computing partitions
- 420 Intel Xeon cores
- 5TB total RAM
- 1.5TB RAM on a single node
- 40Gbps Infiniband interconnection
- 12.5 Tflops peak performance

Applications/Analyses include Read prepreprocessing, De novo assembly, Gene annotation, Variant discovery, Mapping, Differential Expression, Orthology analysis, Phylogenomics, Population genomics, Metabarcoding, Biodiversity index calculation, Ecological data analysis.

Usage/Services so far include more than 80 users (Greece, Italy, Spain etc), with 2 HPC



system administrators specialized on bioinformatics applications and ~20000 submitted jobs in 2019.

By ensuring that hardware and software (and subsequent data analysis) perform uninterruptedly and in an orchestrated resource-sharing manner, the IMBBC HPC facility supports project from both the MB&B and AQUA Research Groups of IMBBC, but also from the other two institutes of HCMR, the (IO and IMBRIW).

Beyond HCMR, the HPC unit has been offering support to a number of outside collaborators from organizations such as the IMBB of FORTH (Crete), Department of Biology, UoC, the National Technical University of Athens, Oran University Algeria, University of Padova, IRTA Sant Carles de la Ràpita (Catalunya, Spain), and University of Göteborg, Sweden.





(Yolanda) Koulouri & Dr. Athanasios (Thanos) Dailianis)

The Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete (UBPC) is an applied research infrastructure established in 2015. It occupies a seafloor area of 2.5 hectares at depths between 18 and 22 m in the Gulf of Heraklion, Crete, one nautical mile from the coast. Its main objectives are:

- the continuous monitoring of coastal environmental parameters,
- the experimental cultivation and study of marine biological resources,
- the development and testing of methods in fisheries management and marine ecotourism.

The underwater experimental facility is fully supported by the scientific diving unit operated by



IMBBC. At the core of the experimental area, an underwater observatory is continuously monitoring environmental parameters, comprising three autonomous oceanographic instruments (ADCP, CTD, fluorometer) deployed on the seafloor and an array of temperature loggers deployed along the water column.

Equipment on the seafloor observatory operating at the core of the underwater experimental facility include:

- SonTek Acoustic Doppler Profiler (water velocity; 24 cells, 1 m cell size; wave height)
- SAIV SD208 CTD (conductivity, temperature, dissolved oxygen)
- Turner Designs C3 Fluorometer (in-vivo chlorophyll sensor, turbidity sensor, fluorescein sensor)
- Onset HOBO Pro v2 U-22 temperature loggers (temperature along the water column, array of 6)



sponge farm, as well as the evaluation and demonstration of innovative artificial reefs, as part of the technological concept 'Recreational diving oasis with artificial reefs' developed in IMBBC. Both projects are consistently monitored and upgraded since 2015. Moreover, UBPC supports hosted research projects and collaborations that are benefitted from the easy access to the facility and the existence of environmental data time-series.









Cretaquarium experimental aquaria – HERAKLION (Dr. Aspasia Sterioti)

The Cretaquarium is a public aquarium that belongs to the HCMR. The head of aquariology (Dr. A. Sterioti) and the coordinator of animal health (Dr. P. Katharios) are permanent researchers of IMBBC, and as of March 2022 the overall Director of the aquarium is also an IMBBC researcher (Dr. I. Papadakis). The focus of the Cretaquarium on Mediterranean biodiversity offers the ideal infrastructure for conducting marine research concerning living The aquarium's facilities include tanks in varying sizes with controlled organisms. conditions for observing the life cycle and behavior of the hosted species along the visitors' route as well as the quarantine areas. A very large part of this infrastructure is dedicated to the quarantine areas placed at the basement of the building. It is divided into cold (8-19°C) and warm water (19-25°C) areas, with autonomous tanks of 1501 and 3001 capacity (forage water) and controlled lighting conditions. These tanks, additionally to their main purpose in supporting the aquarium exhibition (animal adaptation and de-parasitization, production and maintenance of living feeds, the development of stocks of fish to an appropriate size, reproduction of animals, etc.) are often used for experimental research on organisms with economical and/or ecological interest.

Significant part of the research activities concerns the allochthonous species introduced to the Mediterranean Sea, with emphasis on those whose arrival is linked to climate change and those which have an impact on local food chains. Special efforts are also made to take care of and study endangered and protected species such as invertebrates (marine snails, sea urchins, sea cucumbers, etc.), fish and sea turtles.

A set of experimental tanks hosted in Cretaquarium have been set up for the implementation of indoor controlled ecological



experiments, mainly focused on climate change experiments ensuring the accurate control of seawater temperature and pH. The experimental system is semi-closed and supplied with seawater pumped from the sea at 2 m depth and left to settle in a sedimentation tank. The supernatant seawater is UV filtered (AstraPool Heliox UV LP) before being supplied in the experimental tanks. Temperature and pH are controlled using an Aquarium Computer Complete Set GHL controller Profilux 4 equipped with individual temperature and pH electrodes for each experimental tank.



Diving provides direct access to shallow marine ecosystems, allowing for census and sampling of marine biodiversity, measurements of environmental parameters, and the conduction of experiments. A highly skilled team of diving scientists operates at IMBBC, supported by a dedicated facility with a tank-filling station, small vessels, diver propulsion





vehicles (DPVs), portable remotely-operated vehicles (ROVs), and underwater photographic equipment. The facility currently supports approximately 150 person-dives per year and a multitude of research projects and initiatives requiring diving-supported research. It commonly hosts visiting diving scientists who collaborate in joint expeditions, as part of trans-national access networks (*e.g.* Assemble+) or personal scientific collaborations. As part of HCMR, IMBBC participates in the European Scientific Diving Panel (ESDP), an operational platform to advance underwater scientific excellence and to promote and implement a practical support framework for scientific diving related activities.





2.4 Scientific Council

List the Institute's Scientific Council members active during the period and report on its regular processes (frequency and topic coverage of the meetings)

The Scientific Council of the Institute (SCI) is an advisory body to the Director, supporting the Director in his/her duties. In IMBBC, the SCI consists of five (5) members (a number which depends on the number of permanent researchers and research assistants of the institute), and its members can be the institute's Permanent Researchers of A' (Research Director) or B' (Principal Researchers) degree, as well as collaborating university professors. The members of SCI are elected by secret ballot by all the researchers for a term of office of two years. After its formation in a body, the members of the SCI elect by secret ballot its president. In the SCI, an elected representative of the scientific, technical and administrative staff is also participating, but without the right to vote, whereas the director of the institute participates in its meetings, but also does not vote. If the director suggests a topic for discussion, this must be included in the agenda. If the director of the institute disagrees with the opinion of the members of the SCI, which gathers a simple majority of all its members, the director is obliged to submit the matter to the HCMR's Board of Directors for the resolution of the dispute, in the presence of one of the dissenting members of the SCI.

- The SCI exercises the following powers, as well as any other powers provided by Law 4386/16:
- Assists the Director of the Institute in the exercise of his/her responsibilities.
- Monitors the research and development programme of the Institute and submits its opinion and criticism to the Director of the Institute and to the Board of Directors of the Centre.
- Contributes to the formulation of the strategy, organization chart and human resources policy.
- Assists the Director of the Institute in the preparation of opinions on specific questions submitted by the Board of Directors of HCMR.
- Gives its agreement on the calls for new researcher positions.
- Appoints the evaluation and advisory committees for the filling of new researcher positions and the promotion of researchers

During the review period of 2018-2021, there were three different SCIs, with the following composition:

2016 - 2018	Position	Research Group
Dr. C.C. Mylonas	President, Researcher A	Aqua
Dr. G. Rigos	member, Researcher A	Aqua
Dr. C. Dounas	member, Researcher A	MB&B
Dr. G. Kotoulas	member, Researcher A	MB&B
Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos	member, Researcher A	MB&B
2018 - 2020		
Dr. C.C. Mylonas	President, Researcher A	Aqua
Dr. K. Grigorakis	member, Researcher A	Aqua
Dr. C. Dounas	member, Researcher A	MB&B
Dr. G. Kotoulas	member, Researcher A	MB&B





Dr. P. Kasapidis	member, Researcher B			MB&B			
Ms V. Terzoglou	delegate	of	the	scientific,	technical	and	administrative
personnel							

2020 - 2022

Dr. C.C. Tsigenopoulos	President, Researcher A	MB&B
Dr. I. Nengas	member, Researcher A	AQUA
Dr. P. Kasapidis	member, Researcher B	MB&B
Dr. P. Koulouri	member, Researcher B	MB&B
Dr. P. Katharios	member, Researcher B	AQUA
Ms W. Plaiti	delegate of the technical an	d administrative personnel

Dr. I. Nengas replaced Dr. A. Magoulas in March 2021 when the latter was elected Director and President of the Board of Directors of HCMR.

The SCI meetings are convened on a monthly basis. In exceptional cases when serious issues arise, these meetings may be convened more frequently. The agenda of each meeting is formed based on the suggestions of the SCI members but also following requests from the Permanent Researchers and staff of the institute.

During the review period of 2018-2021, the SCI defined the following scientific fields for four new Permanent Researchers (Level C, tenure track).

- Bioinformatics with emphasis on data analysis of applied marine biology and biodiversity (2018)
 Candidates: Dr. T. Manousaki, Dr. E. Pafilis, Dr. A. Meziti Selected: Dr. E. Pafilis
- Biology & ecology of marine invertebrates with emphasis on species of biotechnological interest (2019)
 Candidates: Dr. A. Dailiania Dr. E. Chatzinikalaou
 - Candidates: Dr. A. Dailianis, Dr. E. Chatzinikolaou
 - Selected: **Dr. A. Dailianis**
- Bioanalysis and Biotechnology (2019) Candidates: Dr. E. Mandalakis, Dr. D. Toubanaki (candidacy withdrawn). Selected: Dr. E. Mandalakis
- Evolutionary Genomics of fish, with emphasis on bioinformatic analysis (2019) Candidates: Dr. T. Manousaki
 Selected: Dr. T. Manousaki

During the review period, the SCI defined also the following scientific fields and proposed to the Board of the HCMR Directors, the Committee Members that would evaluate the applications for promotion or appointment to a Permanent Researchers.

From Level B' to A' Researcher (promotion)

- Aquatic Pathobiology (2021)
 Promoted candidate: Dr. P. Katharios (AQUA)
- Aquatic Nutrition & Physiology (2021)
 Promoted candidate: Dr. I. Kotzamanis (AQUA)
- Functional and comparative genomics of cultured fishes with emphasis on growth and development (2021)

Promoted candidate: **Dr. E. A. Sarropoulou** (MB&B)

From Level C' to B' Researcher (open procedure, promotion or selection of new researcher)

• Fish immunology and effects of nutrition, stress, pollution and diseases (2021) Candidates: Dr. H. Morgane, Mrs I. Ali Oglou





Selected: Dr. H. Morgane (AQUA)
Developmental biology and behavior of farmed fish (2021) Candidates: Dr. I. Papadakis, Mrs I. Ali Oglou Selected: Dr. I. Papadakis (AQUA)
Environmental Microbiology with specialization in extreme ecosystems (2021) Candidates: Dr. K. Chatzikyriakidou, Dr. P. Polymenakou, Mrs I. Ali Oglou Selected: Dr. P. Polymenakou (MB&B)

During this period, the SCI applied to the Board of Director to award the title of Emeritus Researcher to **Dr. Pascal Divanach**, who was the head of the Department of Aquaculture of the IMBC from 1994 to 2003 and was the Director of the Institute of Aquaculture of HCMR (2003-2012). He was also the scientific director of the Cretaquarium of HCMR and his contribution to the design, implementation and scientific and operational support of the project was fundamental. Unfortunately, Dr. P. Divanach passed on in April 2021, after a year-long battle with cancer.

The SCI organized for the first time in IMBBC, two General Assemblies. In the first one on June 24th 2021, the Director Dr. C.C. Mylonas presented last year's developments, the future plans for the research projects, the effort for increased dissemination to the public and the strategic goals of IMBBC. Then, the SCI president (Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos) referred to the main issues that occupied the SCI before getting into the update and the discussion on various issues of the institute and the research center based on an agenda formed after an open call to all personnel. The second General Assemblies took place on December 13th and 14th 2021, and included 55 short (5 min) talks from almost all PhD holders in IMBBC, and was attended by the majority of the IMBBC staff; this permitted all personnel to have a clear idea of all the researchers' profiles and the research being carried out currently at IMBBC.



2.5 Personnel

Fill in the following tables with the corresponding information.

	Researcher Name	Position ¹	Year joining the Institute	Year departing from the Institute	Year(s) of promotion ²
1	Mylonas, Constantinos (Dinos) C.	А	1999 (C)	2031	2003 (B) 2007 (A)
2	Magoulas, Antonios	А	1994 (B)	2024	2003 (A)
3	Chatzifotis, Stavros	А	2006 (C)	2033	2012 (B) 2016 (A)
4	Fountoulaki, Eleni	А	2007 (C)	2026	2012 (B) 2017 (A)
5	Tsiggenopoulos, Constantinos (Costas)	А	2006 (C)	2038	2012 (B) 2016 (A)
6	Grigorakis, Kriton	А	2006 (C)	2038	2012 (B) 2018 (A)
7	Papandroulakis, Nikolaos (Nikos)	А	2000 (<i>ЕАЕ</i> С)	2032	2006 (R B) 2012 (A)
8	Kotzamanis, Ioannis	А	2006 (C)	2031	2012 (B) 2021 (A)
9	Katharios, Pantelis	А	2007 (C)	2040	2016 (B) 2021 (A)
10	Rigos, Georgios	А	2007 (C)	2033	2012 (B) 2016 (A)
11	Kotoulas, Georgios	А	2001 (ЕЛЕ В)	2026	2006 (R A)
12	Negas, Ioannis	А	1994 (D)	2031	1994 (D) 2009 (A)
13	Sarropoulou, Elena	В	2012 (C)	2039	2012 (C) 2016 (B) 2021 (A)
14	Ntounas, Constantinos (Costas), retired	А	1994 (B)	31/12/2021	1994 (B) 2003 (A)
15	Arvanitidis, Christos, leave of absence	A	2006 (B)	30/04/2019	2006 (B) 2016 (A)
16	Kasapidis, Panayotis	В	2007 (D)	2039	2007 (D) 2012 (C) 2016 (B)
17	Cotou, Efthimia (Efi)	В	2006 (C)	2029	2006 (C)

Table 2-1: Permanent Researchers





					2014 (B)
18	18 Papadakis Joannis	в	2016(C)	2020	2016 (C)
10	I apadakis, Ioaiiiis	D	2010 (C)	2039	2021 (B)
10	Polymenakou,	R	2016(C)	2042	2016 (C)
1)	Paraskevi (Voula)	D	2010 (C)	2042	2021 (B)
	Koulouri Panavota				2006 (D)
20	(Violanta)	В	2006 (D)	2039	2011 (C)
	(Tiolalita)				2016 (B)
21 Hanry Morgana	Henry Morgane	R	2016 (C)	2038	2016 (C)
21	riemy, worgane	U			2021 (B)
22	Sterioti Aspasia	B	2006 (C)	2034	2006 (C)
	Sterioti, Aspasia	D	2000 (C)	2034	2018 (B)
23	Pafilis, Evaggelos	C	2018	2045	
23	(Vaggelis)	C	2010	2045	
24	Dailianis, Athanasios	C	2010	2041	
24	(Thanos)	C	2019	2041	
25	Mandalakis,	C_{2010}	2019	2042	
23	Emmanouil (Manolis)	C	2017	2042	
26	Manousaki, Tereza	С	2019	2050	

¹ This is the promotion grade as follows: D does not exist anymore, and there is no equivalent name; C is Assistant (Designated) Researcher; B is Senior (Major) Researcher and A is Director of Research. The same levels exist for Specialist Operational Researchers (*Eιδικός Λειτουργικός Επιστήμονας, ΕΛΕ* in Greek), which is a lower grade researcher classification that exists in Greek public research centers (PhD not required).

² In parentheses the promotion grade. The notation "R" is used to indicate a transition from EAE to Researcher.

Although not indicated in the above Table, the **Permanent Researchers are separated** as (a) having "**organizational**" positions (outlined and accounted in the Presidential decree establishing the HCMR), or (b) having «**Private Law Indefinite Employment** ($I\delta\iota\omega\tau\iota\kappao\dot{}\Delta\iota\kappa\alpha\iotaov$ $Ao\rhoi\sigma\tauov$ $X\rho\dot{}ovov$, $I\Delta AX$ in Greek)». At IMBBC, we have 10 "organizational" positions and 16 $I\Delta AX$. The significant difference is that once a researcher with an $I\Delta AX$ status is retired, its position is abolished and no new recruitment is possible. This is a significant limitation to the future recruitment of new researchers and something that IMBBC will face around the end of this decade, when eight permanent researchers will retire (shaded in yellow in Table 2-1 above).

Some further explanations need to be made in the classification of our staff in the various categories to clarify some peculiarities of the Greek system, but also because the categories of Table 2-2 in the RIview platform do not describe all different types of staff in IMBBC (and HCMR in general). Therefore, here we have modified Table 2-2 (next page), by splitting some rows in two and creating new categories (green shaded rows). As a result, the total numbers shown here, are slightly different from the numbers in Table 2-2 of the RIview platform.



Demonral Totals	2	018	18 2019		2020		2021	
Personnel Totals	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female	Male	Female
Researchers	16	7	17	8	17	8	17	8
Collaborating University Faculty	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0
Adjunct, part-time, visiting Researchers	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Staff Scientists and Technicians permanent	5	13	5	12	5	11	5	11
Staff Scientists and Technicians on contract	23	32	27	34	26	34	21	31
Post-doctoral Researchers (on contract)	8	7	8	8	9	8	10	9
PhD Students on contract	2	1	3	1	0	2	3	4
PhD Students not on contract	0	2	0	0	0	0	6	7
Administrative Personnel (permanent or on contract)	1	5	1	5	2	5	2	5
Master Students	5	5	4	3	3	4	8	13
Undergraduate Students	12	19	10	18	9	17	21	14
Other Personnel	2	1	2	1	2	1	2	1
Total	74	90	77	90	73	90	90	96

Table 2-2: All Personnel (modified by IMBBC) Image: Comparison of the second secon

Firstly, we need to point out that in Table 2-2 in the RIview platform, for the **Staff Scientists and Technicians** there is no discrimination between permanent and on contract personnel.

Since the percentage of on-contract personnel is quite significant for IMBBC (see Figure on the right), as it is also for HCMR as a whole, we modified the Table 2-2 (above) and we separated the staff in this category to **permanent** or **on contract**.

Secondly, we have split the category "Master and Undergraduate Students", into Master students and Undergraduate students in order to show better the number



of students we train in these two categories. These numbers refer to **different students** every year, contrary to the data in all other non-student categories of personnel, where the numbers represent the personnel present in IMBBC during the specific year.

Finally, as Table 2-2 in the RIview platform included only a category of "PhD Students (**on Contract**)" we did not have another category to account for PhD students that were not on contract, but spent time at IMBBC. These students usually have contracts with their universities and spend only part of their time (months to years) to carry out either part or all of their Doctoral research. Therefore, the number of PhD students that were trained at IMBBC during the period of 2018-2021 is somewhat underestimated when looking at the RIview platform table. A better account is shown in the modified table here, where we included a row with "PhD Students (**not on Contract**)", and these students are presented individually in the appropriate section later in the report. As for Master and Undergraduate Students, the numbers for PhD Students refer to **different students every year**.





3 Administration and Management Policies and Practices

3.1 Policies and practices for financial management and Access policies to Facilities.

As HCMR is a public research center, its financial management is separated into two main modules. The Greek State is funding the salaries of permanent staff and a small fraction of the operating costs (e.g. electricity, water, telephony, etc.). Then, the so called "Special Account for Research Grants (SARG, known as EAKE)" is an autonomous financial department, with responsibility to manage all other income and expenses of the center (research grants, studies and private funding, and sales of products and services), so the institutes are not involved in the financial management of these funds. The SARG is staffed with specialized personnel (permanent and on contract), and its expenses and all other operating costs of the center not covered by the Greek State, are paid through the overheads on the research and service grants of HCMR. The maximum allowable overheads rate allowed by law (N4485, art. 59) is 25% of the total budget of a grant, but the actual amount varies for different funding organizations and schemes. National projects from Greece, unfortunately allow less than 10% of the grants for overheads, so the average overhead percentage from all research and service grants for HCMR is only 10%! This puts significant restrictions on our operations and our ability to create financial reserves to absorb cash flow problems created very often, by delays in payment from the funding organizations, especially from Greece. Another important issue that the State must address, if the research centers are to survive, improve and contribute to the national economy, is that although typical public organizations (e.g. ministries, schools, hospitals, etc.) are fully funded from the government for their operational costs, maintenance and upgrading, in the case of public research centers –such as HCMR- we are constantly forced to fund our own operations with ever decreasing support from the State. Instead of covering the total of our operating costs, unfortunately the State only pays for the salaries of the permanent staff -which for HCMR is only about 1/3 of the total personnel. For all the rest of the expenses, we must compete for and win a very high number of projects, to have the necessary overheads to fund all the operational needs of a growing center.

Regarding the institutes of HCMR, a small portion of overheads (around 2%) is allocated for operating and development expenses of each institute, and is credited to the **IMBBC Overheads account**. The distribution of the IMBBC common expenses (not including salary costs) paid by this account together with the operational costs paid from the HCMR overheads (**Table 4-3** in the RIview platform) is shown below for the period 2018-2021.

	2018	2019	2020	2021
Operational costs				
(electricity, water etc.) ¹	€ 88.799	€ 110.602	€ 91.893	€ 99.413
Buildings & maintenance	0	0	0	0
Instruments & maintenance	€ 2.143	€ 7.797	€ 5.251	€ 12.923
Educational	€ 4.377	€ 3.854	€ 1.334	€ 5.073
Travel	€ 14.531	€ 9.222	€ 987	€ 1.523
Other	€ 14.120	€ 14.678	€ 10.996	€ 27.395
TOTAL	€ 123.971	€ 146.153	€ 110.461	€ 146.327

¹These costs are paid by the HCMR overheads.



As one can see, very little is paid by the **IMBBC overheads budget** for common expenses, mainly because this account was created only in the last 5 years and it has only recently accumulated enough funds. This year (2022) we are going to hire for the first time a **professional using this budget**, to fill the position of an IT Support service of the institute. Also, we started using this IMBBC overheads budget for important maintenance of facilities and common equipment (freezers, air conditioners, water pumps for our sea water supply, etc.), since **no funding is available from the State to cover these expenses**. Facility and equipment maintenance and upgrades have been funded so far -and from the beginning of the creation of HCMR- by money from research grants (when eligible) and mainly service grants (when available) of the researchers who are the main users of each facility or equipment. **Had the State provided money for facility and equipment maintenance**, this money could be better used by the researchers to carry out research that is not yet funded and that can open up new directions for the institute, hiring new personnel, providing

scholarships to MSc and PhD students, acquiring new equipment that cannot be purchased solely from one project and carrying out preliminary research to improve the chances of submitting a competitive proposal.



The expenditure of IMBBC during the reporting period ranged between \notin 3,6 and \notin 4,9 million (**Table 4-4** in the RIview platform), including also the salaries of the permanent staff, showing an increasing trend over the years. It is apparent that the highest cost regards personnel, with the cost of the permanent staff being 36% of the total expenditure and the cost of the non-permanent personnel being almost equal (but for a much larger number of persons) at 34% (see also Doughnut chart in next page).

	2018	2019	2020	2021
Salary cost from				
Central Budget	€ 1.484.225,00	€ 1.567.155,00	€ 1.586.026,00	€ 1.599.531,00
Salary cost of non-				
permanent staff	€ 1.193.723,69	€ 1.360.929,42	€ 1.643.815,80	€ 1.693.490,68
Instruments &				
maintenance	€ 64.512,55	€ 169.650,96	€ 292.950,28	€ 407.758,55
Consumables	€ 361.088,22	€ 382.114,95	€ 438.530,22	€ 538.417,95
Other	€ 546.153,59	€ 641.026,21	€ 500.127,72	€ 740.763,79
TOTAL	€ 3.649.703,05	€ 4.120.876,54	€ 4.461.450,02	€ 4.979.961,97

The new law for research activities (N4485) obliges all public research institutes to abide by the financial management rules of the central government. Unfortunately, these rules provide no flexibility and **are not suited for the type of work done by research institutes**, that have variable activities, and unforeseeable changes during the course of just a few months in implementing a research project. Research, by definition, cannot be performed



under restrictive regulations and scheduling, and a high degree of flexibility must be allowed by the funding agencies and the national financial management laws.

Deviations from the "initially approved plan" are customary in implementing research projects, since the ability to improvise is imperative during searching and testing new methods and technical solutions. However, government bureaucracy



tends to oblige all things to be pre-planned, when the needs of a successful innovation are to be flexible, and able to act fast and improvise. Trying to abide by every financial and administrative rule and regulation is often an impossible task, while **it always takes valuable time and energy from the researchers**, whose expertise and role is to carry out research, teach new scientists, and publish and implement their findings. Instead, **valuable time and effort is wasted**, **disappointment and frustration are widespread among the research personnel**, and loss of well-deserved and worked-for moneys for the institute result from strict auditing procedures that should have been better created and planned for the financial management of research projects. So, it is important that new auditing procedures are put in place, which will be better in line with the nature of research and its peculiarities. **Auditing should focus more on the work outcome and deliverables** vis-àvis the approved proposal and be more similar to financial management in the private economy than the central government.

We propose that funding of research should become more similar to a model of loose subcontracting, where at the proposal stage a price for the research is determined by an indicative cost analysis, in order for the reviewers to evaluate and determine if the requested budget is justified. Once approved, the rules should only be limited to avoid fraud and illegal activities. All other aspects should be allowed full flexibility, as long as the research goals are achieved, since for any public organization, such as HCMR, systems are already in place to assure that fraud and illegal activities are extremely difficult to occur.

Access fees to the IMBBC facilities do not apply for internal users, while for external users these apply mainly in the context of the EU Transnational Access projects to RIs. In recent years, with the participation of several facilities of IMBBC in national and European RIs, a new financial management scheme and access policy is under preparation. This scheme includes fees for the use of the facilities and services (calculated with the assistance of an auditor), and different fee categories for internal, academic external and private sector external users. Each facility will have its own financial account where the fees will be collected and used for its operation. An Access Policy, in the framework of the national RI "CMBR" is under preparation. This Policy envisions a single-entry point to the research facilities through a web portal (under preparation). An Access Officer will receive the requests and direct them to the person in charge of the respective facility. This access policy scheme has been already applied in IMBBC in the framework of EU projects that support Transnational Access, such as the projects EMBRIC and ASSEMBLE PLUS, which are based on the European RI EMBRC-ERIC and the EU projects AQUAEXCEL, AQUAEXCEL2020 and AQUAEXCEL 3.0 for aquaculture research.



3.2 Management of the Human Potential

There is no separate IMBBC policy in this aspect, and we follow what is established for the HCMR as a whole. The HCMR implements Greek and European legislation and respects principles of transparency and equality treatment. We can separate personnel recruitment between Permanent Researchers (tenure track) and Other contracted personnel -which includes Post-doctoral Researchers and technicians. For Permanent Researchers the subject area to be advertised is decided by the Scientific Board of the Institute after consultation with the director. The position is approved by the Board of Directors of the HCMR, it is announced on the center's website and in at least two national newspapers, and then an **Evaluation Committee** is appointed, consisting of five Permanent Researchers including the director of the institute evaluates the candidates and recommends the most appropriate candidate. Then the Evaluation Committee meets, may interview the candidates if necessary and makes their decision.

For **Other contracted personnel** recruitment --which includes Post-doctoral Researchers and technicians-- specific criteria are decided for the evaluation, based on the requirements of the research project that will be paying the personnel. It is important to note here, that when it comes to this category of personnel, there have been no permanent staff positions opened in the last 15 years, and only in 2021, **seven new permanent Technical Staff positions** have been allocated to IMBBC and we expect to have the evaluation for these positions within 2021. Therefore, new staff has been hired exclusively from competitive research grants, and also from on-going contract research activities and the production and sale of juveniles and edible fish.

The selection of **Technical Staff** is carried out following an open call/announcement, which is posted on the HCMR website and in DIAVGEIA, ensuring the principle of transparency. The eligibility criteria of the candidates correspond exclusively to criteria of academic, professional and scientific evaluation. Regarding the grading of the qualifications of the candidates, the Supreme Council for Personnel Selection ($A\Sigma E\Pi$ in Greek) standard is followed. Also, an interview is provided as a selection criterion, only where it is absolutely necessary. Elements that will be evaluated are determined in an objective and transparent way, based on the requirements of each research program. Nominations are evaluated by a three-member Evaluation Committee and each candidate has the right to submit an appeal, which is examined by a separate, annually appointed Appeals Committee.

Regarding a policy for **newly recruited Permanent Researchers**, unfortunately there is no start-up funding, or other types of financial support, since the institute until only recently did not have any separate budget, and all overheads went to Special Account for Research Grants (EAKE), which took care of all the financial management of the research activities and services of HCMR's institutes. Therefore, new researchers could only expect to be given office space and the ability to work in a lab, and have to immediately become active in proposal writing and solicitation of funds, in order to start their own line of research. We believe it is essential that such support policy is put in place now that the institute has its own budget, in order to enable the new researchers to start working and accumulating data in preparation for submission of proposals.



3.3 Measures for promoting Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

There is no separate institute policy for these aspects, and we follow what is established for the HCMR as a whole. The HCMR aims to provide equal opportunities for new staff and equality in the workplace. For this purpose, a <u>Gender Equality Plan (GEP)</u> has been recently established (2022), in order to ensure fair access and equality for all staff categories (research, managerial, technical, administrative and support staff). The GEP is in accordance to Greek and European laws and does not only limit equality to gender bias, but also considers other inequality grounds such as disability, age, sexual orientation, religion or ethnicity, etc.

The HCMR GEP legitimizes and protects every strategy aiming to achieve gender equality within the Center and implements the following actions:

- i. Encouraging balanced gender representation in job applications through genderneutral vacancy descriptions.
- ii. Ensuring gender balance in decision-making processes and bodies, by inclusivity in decision-making by not allowing gender discrimination enabling women to participate in the process.
- iii. Integrating the gender dimension in research and innovation content.

As shown on the right, HCMR has managed to achieve a balanced gender representation in its personnel (Source: HCMR's GEP)



Also, as shown below, IMBBC had more female than male personnel during every year of the reporting period.



Regarding the remuneration/pay, for the Researchers the law 4472/2017 is applied. For the rest of the staff (special scientific and technical staff, administrative staff and other support staff) whether employed on a permanent contract or on a fixed-term contract, the amount of remuneration is set by the Law 4354/2015, so as to avoid any discrimination.


3.4 Policy and Regulations enforcing Ethics in Research and Scientific Integrity

For these aspects, there is no separate institute policy, and we follow what is established for the HCMR as a whole.

Ethics Committee

The HCMR's Ethics Committee was established just recently (2021) in accordance with Law 4521/2018 (articles 21-27) in order to provide, at an ethical level, a guarantee of the reliability of the research projects carried out at the HCMR. The Ethics Committee checks whether a research project is carried out with respect for fundamental human rights, the autonomy of the persons involved, their privacy and personal data, and the care of the natural and cultural environment. It also monitors compliance with generally accepted principles of research integrity and the criteria of good scientific practice. In addition, the mission of the Ethics Committee is to assist in the harmonization of HCMR's research practices with the legislation, rules and regulations of the European Union and international law.

Personal Data Protection Policy (GDPR)

The HCMR has complied fully with the current legislation (European Data Protection Regulation and Law 4624/2019 on Personal Data) and implements a comprehensive program for the Protection of Personal Data, in order to fully ensure the protection of employees, associates and all stakeholders. HCMR cooperates with a private company that advises and trains the person in charge of personal data protection in matters of data protection and information security, in order to more effectively inform and comply with the Organization. Two meetings are already scheduled (distance learning) for training at 05/04/2022 and 07/04/2022.

It is also worth mentioning that during the Ocean Sampling Days (OSD) campaigns, which are supported by the European Marine Biological Resource Centre (EMBRC-ERIC) Research Infrastructure, through the ASSEMBLE Plus project, and are operated by IMBBC, special attention is paid to GDPR policy. The GDPR compliance is ensured at every stage of data processing, through the ASSEMBLE Plus Privacy Policy presented at http://www.assembleplus.eu/about/privacy-policy.

Scientific Data Management Plan

We do not have an HCMR-wide plan so far, but as per the requirements of the EU funding agencies, we have initiated a process of storing our data in repositories that are usually created by the program coordinating organizations. However, it should be mentioned that IMBBC hosts the LifeWatchGreece Research Infrastructure (RI), which is open to all potential users, from researchers and students to entrepreneurs and policy makers, and stores biodiversity data and information from all biology-related disciplines. The purpose of the RI is to be compliant with European Commission's policy for OPEN and FAIR scientific The "Background Information Document on LifeWatchGreece Research data. Infrastructure Data Policy and Data Sharing Agreement" is available at: https://www.lifewatchgreece.eu/sites/default/files//documents/D1.2%20Policy%20Backgr ound%20Doc_En.pdf



This document provides information on datasets, metadata, data sharing, licenses and copyright issues concerning biodiversity data. This document declares that LifeWatchGreece RI uses Creative Commons as a legal instrument to define the usage rights of the data. Creative Commons are legally binding, simple to use, globally accepted and its licenses are both human-readable and machine-readable, the latter being especially important in the digital age. Furthermore, the submission of data to the LifeWatchGreece Research Infrastructure database has as a prerequisite the agreement with the rights and obligations of the Data Provider, as well as with the terms of operation of LifeWatchGreece RI, as presented at:

https://www.lifewatchgreece.eu/sites/default/files//documents/D1.2%20Data%20Sharing %20Agreement_En.pdf.

Finally, in the framework of the project "Centre for the study and sustainable exploitation of Marine Biological Resources (CMBR), which is a research project of IMBBC for the period 2018-2021, a data management plan has been created, and the experience gained could be used to develop such a plan for the whole HCMR. The Data Management Plan (DMP) can be considered as a "living' document", although it was created at the beginning of the research project, and it was updated as the project progressed. The DMP contains information on the suggested policies, standards, and sustainability activities related to the created data, to ensure the management of knowledge in the project is maintained following the FAIR principles. The DMP describes the data and metadata standards, data availability and licenses, data curation and preservation methods, as well as the rights and duties of data providers and data holders.

Experiments with Animals

Animal experimentation is taking place at the aquaculture facilities of IMBBC (AQUALABS) in Heraklion, Crete and during part of the reporting period at the facilities of Agios Kosmas (**no longer in operation since the summer of 2019**). The AQUALABS are registered facilities at the National Veterinary Authority under the registration number EL91-BIObr-03 for experimental animal production and EL91-BIOexp-04 for experimentation with animals. Designated personnel involved in animal experimentation hold a degree accredited by the Federation of European Laboratory Animal Science Associations (FELASA) on the "Care and use of laboratory animals" for persons carrying out procedures in animals, designing procedures and projects, taking care of animals and killing animals. The number of animals used for experiments in the IMBBC facilities is submitted annually to the Directory of Animal Protection and Veterinary Drugs of the Ministry of Rural Development and Food, and experimental fish by-products are collected by a waste management company and discarded by incineration.

Experiments conducted at the AQUALABS comply with the Presidential Decree 56/2013, which is the Greek national law governing animal experimentation, in accordance with the EU Directive 2010/63. A biologist with a FELASA degree has been appointed as the person responsible for the application of the directive, whereas a designated veterinarian has been appointed in charge of the welfare and treatment of animals. A committee, which involves a senior researcher, a veterinarian, a fish pathologist, a statistician, and a representative of the Veterinary Office of the Region of Crete has been assigned for the evaluation and approval of all experimental protocols conducted at IMBBC. After approval of the protocols, their non-technical project summaries (NTS) are submitted to the ALURES NTS EU database.



3.5 Partnerships, strategic alliances

- Describe Partnerships or Strategic Alliances of the Institute with other Greek or foreign Research Centers, Universities, Companies, and the content of collaboration (add also links to corresponding web sites).

The Reproduction and Physiology laboratory (**AQUA**, Dr. Mylonas, C.C. and Fish Behavior Laboratory, AQUA, Dr. Papadakis, I.) has established a collaboration with the <u>New</u> **Zealand Institute for Plant and Food Research** (Nelson, NZ) in the area of fish reproduction and larval rearing ontogeny, in 2019. The collaboration began with exchange visits of the IMBBC researchers and of Dr. Matthew Wiley, a joint publication of a review article, and more recently with a signing of a subcontracting agreement in the area of larval rearing and early ontogeny. The next visit to NZ will take place in October-November 2022. This partnership has created an opportunity for IMBBC to disseminate its expertise to an important institute abroad, but one with a limited expertise in the area of aquaculture. Also, post-docs trained at HCMR, had the opportunity to compete for opening positions in the NZ institute, further establishing important links for IMBBC. A collaboration has also been established with the **Institute of International Marine Centre (Sardinia, Italy)** on evaluating larval rearing protocols in emerging aquaculture species.

A recent strategic alliance was initiated in 2021, with the preparation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the <u>Hellenic Aquaculture Producers Organization (HAPO)</u>. The objective of the MOU is (a) the promotion of sustainable aquaculture activities, particularly with regard to environmental protection; b) the optimization of the quality of aquaculture products; c) the strengthening of consumer confidence in Greek aquaculture products and the support of businesses in the development of mechanisms and actions to inform consumers; and d) the improvement of the conditions for the placing on the market of Greek aquaculture products and the improvement of the quality of these products. Through this alliance, IMBBC can influence the aquaculture producers in Greece, provide expert opinions on production processes, and ensure the collaboration of these companies in research proposals and projects of interest to IMBBC researchers.

After an initiative from the director of IMBBC, an MOU has also been signed in 2021 with the Natural History Museum of Crete (NHMC, University of Crete), where HCMR samples will be deposited to the NHMC collections. This will allow appropriate sample's storage and archiving as well as access and acquisition of time-series data by the scientific community. The NHMC, a member of the Consortium of European Taxonomic Facilities (CETAF, https://cetaf.org/), due to the richness of its collections, has been appointed as the national representative in the European Distributed System of Scientific Collections (DiSSCo) consortium and leads the Greek consortium. At the same time, the HCMR is the country's representative in the European research infrastructure LifeWatch ERIC, also a member of ESFRI, which collaborates with DiSSCo and which develops tools and services for the management and communication of multi-level biodiversity monitoring data, while providing access to our HPC. As regards the mainstream biodiversity approaches in modern biology, HCMR participates in the Biodiversity Focus Group of ELIXIR EU (ESFRI), and coordinates in its Greek node the support of marine biodiversity needs. The coordination between these key infrastructures, in which NHMC and HCMR participate, places the country at the European forefront of biodiversity recording, mapping and monitoring. These are necessary conditions for national policy planning, decision-making and sustainable development of the country, while supporting and implementing of European policies.





As a strategy for the development of IMBBC, it was sought, among others, to operate the Institute as a research infrastructure open to other research centers and universities. This is the reason for the creation of the CMBR RI. Recent integration into European infrastructures and programs (AQUAEXCEL, EMBRC, EMBRIC, ASSEMBLE PLUS) ensures a continuous flow of researchers from abroad, hosting research, attracting collaborations, and projecting the Institute into an international environment. The IMBBC has now strong relationships with LifeWatch ERIC from the time Dr. C. Arvanitidis (a Permanent Researcher of IMBBC) was elected as the CEO of the ERIC. Through this connection, IMBBC has a great number of options to participate in organizations, projects and initiatives as either an independent partner or Third Lead Partner (TLP). Participation in Genomic Observatory projects such as EOSC Future would have been unthinkable for IMBBC without its collaboration with ERICs such as LifeWatch and European Marine Biological Resource Centre (EMBRC). The EMBRC RI, https://www.embrc.eu/) and ASSEMBLE Plus (http://www.assembleplus.eu/) projects constitute two of the most strategic alliances of the institute. Through these collaborations, IMBBC has been as a well-known and respected marine research institutes in Europe. Also, these collaborations are promoting the involvement of IMBBC in research proposals. More specifically, the einfrastructure group of EMBRC hosts monthly meetings where new ways to promote and further enhance this collaboration are being discussed. In addition, the LifeWatch ERIC RI, acts as an interlink between EMBRC and other European RIs, and in many cases this strengthens the role of IMBBC. Furthermore, through the collaboration with EMBRC-ERIC, IMBBC implements and manages the EMBRC genomic observatory, the European Marine Omic Biodiversity Observation Network (EMO BON). The EMO BON is a core project of the EMBRC that focuses on studying coastal biodiversity in the long term.

Our institute is also a partner node of **BioImaging-GR**, which is a distributed research infrastructure for open-access, high-end biological imaging providing a range of imaging methods to many scientists in research institutes in Greece and neighboring countries (https://bioimaging.gr/index.php/en/partners-en).





Another successful and long-term collaboration is with the **Flanders Marine Institute** (**VLIZ**), in the framework of Data Management practices (curation and submission). As an example, IMBBC along with VLIZ and the Istituto Nazionale di Oceanografia e di Geofisica Sperimentale (OGS) have organized a hands-on workshop in 2020 on data formatting, quality control (QC) & publishing as part of the EMODnet Biology project (phase 3), with the intention to provide training to current and future data providers on how to format and submit their data to the project (https://www.emodnet-biology.eu/news?p=show&id=8425).

Drs. D. Tsaparis, Dr. P. Kasapidis and G. Kotoulas of IMBBC collaborate with the Molecular Ecology & Conservation Genetics Lab of the **University of Ioannina** (Assoc. Prof. Sotiropoulos K., Department of Biological Applications & Technology), promoting genetic research and conservation of several threatened species or populations of the Greek fauna. Training of BSc and PhD students in IMBBC facilities was also achieved in the context of this collaboration, resulting in publication of the results in peer-reviewed journals. Furthermore, Dr. Tsaparis collaborates with Prof. Stelios Katsanevakis (**University of the Aegean, Department of Marine Sciences**) for the study of marine invasive species and their impact on Mediterranean marine ecosystems, resulting so far, in one common publication. Dr. A. Antoniou collaboration with the **Molecular Systematics Laboratory of NHMC, UoC** (Prof. Nikos Poulakakis) permits expertise exchange in the fields of phylogenomics, population genomics, adaptation and hybridization addressing interesting evolutionary questions inspired by a wide range of natural systems. This collaboration has produced many publications, five of them from 2018 up to date.

Members of the Functional Genomics research direction (A. Gioti, A. Magoulas & G. Kotoulas) have established a collaboration for the omic study of mycoremediation with the IndBioCat team (Prof. Evangelos Topakas) of the Chemical Engineering School at NTUA since 2019. Dr. A. Gioti has been co-supervising the NTUA PhD candidate Romanos Siaperas in bioinformatics, and G. Kotoulas is a member of his PhD committee. The collaboration has provided so far two publications and one oral presentation by R. Siaperas in an international event.

Dr. T. Dailianis and Prof. Vasilis Gerovasileiou participate in international panels of experts on the conservation and management of sensitive marine species. In particular, the **ongoing preparation of the IUCN Red List of sponges in the Mediterranean** is an important initiative launched in 2018 and is the first time that members of the Phylum Porifera are assessed for their vulnerability. IMBBC **hosted the 1st IUCN Red List Assessment Review Workshop: Mediterranean Porifera** (25-28/11/2019, Heraklion, Greece),

Link: <u>https://www.iucn.org/news/mediterraneo/201911/marine-conservation-experts-meet-prepare-1st-red-list-assessment-sponges-mediterranean</u>.

Moreover, Drs. T. Dailianis and V. Gerovasileiou participate in **the panel of experts of the FAO GFCM Regional Research Programme** on the coordination of research regarding the endangered Mediterranean red coral *Corallium rubrum*, launched in 2020.

The HCMR participates in the **European Scientific Diving Panel** (ESDP, <u>http://ssd.imbe.fr</u>), an operational platform to advance underwater scientific excellence and to promote and implement a practical support framework for scientific diving related activities. The ESDP currently operates under the European Network of Marine Research Institutes and Stations (MARS). From IMBBC, Dr. T. Dailianis and Mrs. W. Plaiti participate to the regular meetings of the panel representing Greece.

IMBBC is an active member and co-chair of the Ocean Literacy Working Group of the European Global Ocean Observing System (EuroGOOS), which has launched a long-



term UN Ocean Science Decade Action Program not only to support, but also to promote Ocean Literacy (OL) and thus to bring considerable added value to achieving the seven societal outcomes for sustainability in society, reaching out specifically to policy-decisionmakers, NGOs, scientists, interested stakeholders and more generally to the public at large. Collaboration with the **European Marine Science Educators Association (EMSEA) and the Department of Primary Education, Democritus University of Thrace** brings considerable expertise in Ocean Literacy, while we have been heavily involved both in activities and publications regarding the development of the adaptation of OL principles and concepts to the specificities of the Mediterranean Sea. The Mediterranean Sea, an important global biodiversity hotspot, has been described as being under siege due to multiple human pressures. Ocean Literacy should be established across all Mediterranean countries in order to prepare the future generations of Mediterranean Sea-literate citizens.

IMBBC has been involved from its creation in teaching at both undergraduate and postgraduate levels in collaboration with various Greek and European Universities. Cooperation with the **Biology Department (UoC)** has been especially developed, both in their undergraduate and post-graduate programs. This is in the form of support of teaching offered by IMBBC researchers in the (a) **ERASMUS Mundus (ERASMUS +) Joint Master Degree "AquaCulture, Environment and Society**", (b) postgraduate interinstitutional program "Environmental Biology - Management of Terrestrial and Marine Biological Resources", (c) postgraduate program in "Bioinformatics". Regarding the ERASMUS Mundus Joint Master Degree ACES, this collaboration is supported by the involvement of Dr. P. Katharios in the academic and administrative activities of these programs including teaching, module organization, hosting and supervising of students in the lab. The majority of Permanent Researchers in the Research Group AQUA provide lectures in their specialty in this program, and accept students for their internship and some for the Thesis research.

Also, Dr. Aglaia Antoniou is co-lecturing undergraduates of the Biology Department of the UoC in the course on <u>Computational Methods</u>. Furthermore, recent contacts with French Engineering schools have directed many high level and motivated students to turn to HCMR to perform their 5-month, end of studies training period. IMBBC has also been hosting quarterly research projects (Rotations) of postgraduate programs of the Department of Biology, providing scholarships to doctoral candidates, hosting the annual workshop on the progress of postgraduate students and doctoral candidates, etc. In addition, we participate in the organization of talks at the '**Darwinian Mondays**', which is open to the general public and is hosted by the Museum of Natural History of Crete (MNHC).

Finally, IMBBC organizes and lectures in a **European Molecular Biology Organization** (EMBO) advanced course in training postgraduate students, Post-Docs and faculty on computational molecular evolution since 2010 (<u>CoME course</u>). A long term collaboration has also been achieved on delivering the same course under both Wellcome Trust and the European Bioinformatics Institute (EBI) since 2011 (CoME, https://coursesandconferences.wellcomeconnectingscience.org/event/computational-molecular-evolution-20190513/,

https://coursesandconferences.wellcomeconnectingscience.org/event/computationalmolecular-evolution-20220718/).

The involvement of IMBBC in these series of advanced courses provides early-career stage researchers training and with the theoretical knowledge and practical skills to carry out molecular evolutionary analyses on sequence data, offering a unique opportunity for direct interaction with some of the world-leading scientists and authors of famous analysis tools



in Evolutionary Bioinformatics. This series of courses cover the demand for such training, which is growing as the sequence databases and researchers' awareness of the important insights that can be gained from phylogenetic and molecular evolutionary techniques and provides a stable hub on computational molecular evolution training in Greece and the Eastern Mediterranean, increasing its visibility and research potential.

3.6 Scientific exchanges and collaborations

- Describe the regular scientific exchange activities within the Institute during the period (i.e. Internal Seminars, Horizontal Thematic Seminars, Retreats, Invited Speaker Lectures, others). Provide a list of Invited Speakers (or web site link to the Invited talks).

A series of lectures have been launched since 2018 that include either presentations of the activities and research interests of the local researchers or invited talks from visiting scientists (see Table below for a complete list). This activity has led to a total of 7 talks for 2018 (October to the end of the year) and 19 for 2019. The COVID 19 pandemic has dramatically impacted this activity of the institute slowing down this effort. Especially in 2020 out of the 5 talks in total, 4 took place until early March when the first lock-down of the country was initiated. In 2021, 9 talks were given all within the summer months (June-September) which were again stopped in the autumn/winter months following the rise of the country's cases and restriction measures.

Although the pandemic has impacted remarkably this important activity of the institute, at the same time it pushed towards using web tools for scientific interactions (*e.g.* Zoom, Microsoft Teams, etc.) enabling the interaction with researchers from the Greek Diaspora. This has led to the invitation of talented young researchers from the Greek Diaspora (*e.g.* **Dr. Constantina Theofanopoulou from Rockefeller University, NY**) that were attended not only from IMBBC but also from other research centers and universities across Greece.

Date	Speaker	Title	Category
16/12/21	Ivana Buselic	Transcriptomic approach to environmentally friendly farming of European sea bass in the Adriatic Sea, using alternative protein sources	Visiting researcher
29/9/21	Valeria Di Dato	Fundamental pathways in metazoans: unexplored pathways in diatoms. New frontiers in genomics of marine micro-organisms	Visiting researcher
16/9/21	Xavier Buñuel	Assessing herbivory in a global change era: Linking behavioral interactions to ecosystem function in the Mediterranean Sea	Visiting researcher
27/7/21	Chiara Conte	The investigation of seagrass holobiont across different seagrass species and environmental conditions	Visiting researcher
15/7/21	Vassia Koutsouveli	Physiological and evolutionary questions in sponges	Visiting researcher





14/7/21	Costas Billis	Using transcriptomics data in Ensembl	Visiting researcher
13/7/21	Constantina Theofanopoulo u	Universal nomenclature for oxytocin-vasotocin ligands and receptors: insights on whole genome duplication scenarios	Visiting researcher
30/6/21	Liron Goren	Macrofauna Inhabiting Massive Demosponges from Shallow and Mesophotic Habitats Along the Israeli Mediterranean Coast	Visiting researcher
4/6/21	Giorgio Mancinelli	Stable isotope analysis in trophic ecology	Visiting researcher
1/6/21	Giorgio Mancinelli	Caught in the middle: the invasive portunids <i>Callinectes sapidus</i> and <i>Portunus segnis</i> in the Mediterranean Sea	Visiting researcher
28/7/20	Miguel Desmarais	The emerging role of bioinformatics in environmental engineering	Visiting researcher
5/3/20	Jorune Sakalauskaite	Shell Palaeoproteomics - from biomineralization to characterization of fossil proteins in archaeological shells	Visiting researcher
19/2/20	Vasilis Papadogiannis	Looking for the origin of vertebrate senses	Visiting researcher
14/2/20	Dimitra Mavraki	Introduction to the concept of 'Data FAIRness	Visiting researcher
6/2/20	Fotis Tsetsos	Utilizing human genomic data to gain insights on medical traits and population history	Visiting researcher
13/12/19	Vasilis Gerovasileiou	Shedding light on the "Dark Habitats" of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea	Visiting researcher
6/12/19	Sandra Ramos	Control of reproduction in the grey mullet (<i>Mugil cephalus</i>) based on the use of recombinant gonadotropin hormones	Visiting researcher
5/12/19	Elisavet Kaitetzidou	Molecular characterization and annotation of paralogous and orthologous genes in teleost early developmental stages	Visiting researcher
29/11/19	Evangelos Pafilis & Haris Zafeiropoulos	PREGO (Process–environment–organism): building a knowledge base associating the different types of ecosystems with the microorganisms they contain the biological/environmental processes the latter are involved with	Visiting researcher





22/11/19	Potirakis/Ninid akis/Pafilis	Zorbas: the HPC cluster for biological analysis in IMBBC, HCMR	Visiting researcher	
6/11/19	Simona Georgieva	Biodiversity and population connectivity of sparid fish parasites in the Mediterranean Sea	Visiting researcher	
25/10/19	Francisco Sedano	Comparing benthic communities between artificial structures and natural hard habitats. Crete and Algeciras Bay (Spain) as case studies.	Visiting researcher	
18/10/19	Federica Montesanto	Ascidians hunters: integrated taxonomy unveils invasive and cryptic ascidians (Ascidiacea, Tunicata) within the Mediterranean Sea and beyond	Visiting researcher	
16/10/19	Jonathan (Yoni) Belmaker	Do Lessepsian invasives impact indigenous fish communities?	Visiting researcher	
9/10/19	Chiara Conte	Investigating the seagrass microbiome of monospecific and mixed meadows: a study of the potential seagrass holobiont responsiveness to the ecological competition	Visiting researcher	
27/9/19	Ilias Lagkouvardos	Integration of global amplicon sequence data, a step towards estimation of global microbial diversity	Visiting researcher	
19/9/19	Annekatrin Enge	Distribution and ecology of (alien) benthic foraminifera in shallow-water habitats of Crete	Visiting researcher	
13/9/19	Fred Verret	RNA silencing in diatoms (RADIO-HFRI)	IMBBC researcher	
1/8/19	Cibele de Sotero Caio	Local adaptation in habitats under anthropogenic stress	Visiting researcher	
26/7/19	Enrico Daniso	Detection of Novel ingredients in aquafeed	Visiting researcher	
12/7/19	Panagiotis Kasapidis	Invasion genomics of two Lessepsian fish migrants, Siganus rivulatus and S. luridus	IMBBC researcher	
21/6/19	Matej Medvecky	Demonstration of a bioinformatics pipeline for bioprocess-oriented targeted proteomics	Visiting researcher	
15/6/19	Sébastien Villéger	Exotic herbivorous fish in Mediterranean ecosystems: biological causes and ecological consequences of an ongoing invasion	Visiting researcher	





31/5/19	Anna Maitz & Kimani Kitson- Walter	Impact of <i>Halophila stipulacea</i> on the availability of benthic diatoms, an important food source for benthic feeders	Visiting researcher
10/9/19	Bonaldo Alessio	Fish Nutrition work for the improvement of Mediterranean Aquaculture	Visiting researcher
20/11/18	Valeria Di Dato	Animal-like prostaglandins in marine microalgae (Eicosanoid metabolites in <i>Skeletonema marinoi</i>)	Visiting researcher
30/10/18	Laura Núnez Pons	"Unus pro omnibus, omnes pro uno": Marine Symbiosis for health, stress and disease	Visiting researcher
26/10/18	James Morris	Offshore mollusc aquaculture: its potential ecosystem services and environmental impacts	Visiting researcher
17/10/18	Imants (Monty) G. Priede	Deep-Sea Fishes - Discovery, Evolution and Exploitation	Visiting researcher
16/10/18	Christian Galasso	Sustainable and high-efficient production of <i>Tetraselmis suecica</i> as innovative product with high biological value for cosmeceutical market	Visiting researcher
12/10/18	Isabel Cunha	Cement protein genes in stalked barnacles offer insights into the comparative analysis of barnacles' adhesion mechanisms	Visiting researcher
4/10/18	Gloriana Cardinaletti	Identification of Gilthead seabream chitinase genes and effect of insect meal diet on fish welfare status	Visiting researcher



- Describe the means of promoting collaborations between the Research Groups within the Institute. Provide a list of publications resulting from collaborations within the Institute.

A number of actions have been initiated in the last two years, to enhance the understanding of the work done by all researchers and to foster interactions and collaborations between researchers in the different Research Groups, Laboratories and Institutes of HCMR. A General Assembly is organized once a year, with brief presentations of all researchers (permanent, collaborating, postdocs and PhD candidates). The objective is to let all the staff know of the capabilities of the different laboratories in terms of facilities, equipment and analytical techniques.

Secondly, when a new article is published by a researcher from IMBBC, an announcement is sent by email to all staff (researchers and technicians) together with the pdf file, in order to (a) acknowledge the achievement of the authors and (b) make known to the whole institute of the type of work undertaken, technique used and equipment available. This helps in making researchers think about ways that they can take advantage of the expertise and equipment used by their colleagues and fosters the creation of collaborative work.

Also, when a researcher is planning to prepare or participate in a proposal, there is a requirement to submit to the director a brief description of the proposal (A0 form, below)

with basic information about the scope and partners of the proposal. The purpose of this A0 form submission is mainly to give the opportunity to the director to suggest potential partners from within the institute (but also among the other two institutes), that would enhance the collaboration between our researchers and may enhance the competitiveness of the proposal. Due to his position and his involvement in the Board of Directors of HCMR and his interactions with the other institute directors, the IMBBC director has a "bird's eye view" of the different expertise and activities that occur both in the institute and the center.

In the following page, there are some examples of collaborations **between the two Research Groups of IMBBC**, the Marine Biology & Biotechnology (MB&B) and the Aquaculture (AQUA) Research Groups.

dTU+: (очввак		hcmr		
0 For	m				
Ielleni ntentio	c Center for Marine Research on for Proposal submission				
			Date:14-02-2022		
Tenta	ative title of Proposal:	Environme	ental friendly functional Coatings		
		for Marine	applications: effCoat-M		
Deres		HODIZON			
Prop	osal Call (or URL):	HORIZON	N-CL4-2022-1 WIN-1RANS111ON		
		01-02: Pro	oducts with complex functional		
		surfaces			
Name	e of Principal Investigator from	Ελενα Σας	οροπούλου		
IMBI	BC:				
C		D.I. I.			
Coor	dinator (Organization / Person):	Polyscale	Polyscale GmbH & Co. KG, Dr. Christoph		
		Baum			
Subm	ission deadline:	30-03-2022			
combi combi substa	imption and environmental footp ine drag reduction and anti-fouling ances in the composition of the coat facturing process will be developed at to ensure maximum market potenti	print. The b properties ing. For the that consider	pioinspired surfaces of the coatin with a drastic reduction of critic new coating technology an efficient rs current value chains in the marin een and ustainable coating solution		
marke IMBI Ident quadr	BC participates to approach the acquinitication of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequence)	uisition of the the species c ring) – species	e environmental footprint by 1 . solonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species		
marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv	BC participates to approach the acquinities of the acquinities of the acquinities of the acquinities of the acquinities and barcoding (amplicon sequences and barcoding (amplicon sequences and barcoding of metabolic functions under the acquinities of the acquin	uisition of th the species c zing) – specia ising RNAse	e environmental footprint by 1 . solonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species 2q .		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv	BC participates to approach the acquification of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequence restigation of metabolic functions u cam from IMBBC	uisition of th the species c cing) – specia ising RNAse	e environmental footprint by 1. olonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq.		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv Vork to	BC participates to approach the acquification of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequencestigation of metabolic functions under the form the sequence of th	uisition of th the species c cing) – specia (sing RNAse	e environmental footprint by 1. olonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq.		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv Vork to A/A	BC participates to approach the acquisition of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequencestigation of metabolic functions used from IMBBC Name Ελενα Σαρροπούλου	uisition of the the species c cing) – specia ising RNAse	e environmental footprint by 1. solonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq. Name		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv Vork to A/A 1 2	BC participates to approach the acquisition of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequencestigation of metabolic functions used from IMBBC Name Ελενα Σαρροπούλου Χρήστος Αρβανιτήδης	A/A 5 6	e environmental footprint by 1. solonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq. Name		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv Vork to A/A 1 2 3	BC participates to approach the acquification of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequencestigation of metabolic functions u eam from IMBBC Name Ελενα Σαρροπούλου Χρήστος Αρβανιτήδης Ευα Χατζινικολάου	A/A 5 6 7	e environmental footprint by 1. olonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq. Nam e		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv Vork to A/A 1 2 3 4	BC participates to approach the acquification of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequencestigation of metabolic functions u east from IMBBC Name Ελενα Σαρροπούλου Χρήστος Αρβανιτήδης Ευα Χατζινικολάου Κλεονίκη Κεκλικογλου	A/A A/A A/A A/A A/A A/A A/A A/A A/A A/A A	e environmental footprint by 1. colonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq. Name		
manu marke IMBI Ident quadr 2. Inv Vork to A/A 1 2 3 4	BC participates to approach the acquification of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequence exstigation of metabolic functions u eam from IMBBC Name Ελενα Σαρροπούλου Χρήστος Αρβανιτήδης Ευα Χατζυτκολάου Κλεονίκη Κεκλικογλου s from other institutes or organiza	A/A A/A A/A A/A A A/A A A/A A A/A A A/A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	e environmental footprint by 1. colonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq. Nam e		
Manu marke IMBI Ident Z. Inv Vork to A/A 1 2 3 4 Partner A/A	BC participates to approach the acquification of taxonomic diversity of ats and barcoding (amplicon sequence estigation of metabolic functions u eam from IMBBC Name Ελενα Σαρροπούλου Χρήστος Αρβανιτήδης Ευα Χατζινικολάου Κλεονίκη Κεκλικογλου strong the institutes or organiza Name	A/A 5 6 7 8 tions Specialty	e environmental footpanto y 1. colonized the plates using photo al emphasis to invasive species eq. Name Institute/organization		



IMBBC's HPC facility (<u>http://hpc.hcmr.gr/</u>) is a unit that supports research across the broad spectrum of marine biology, with a focus on non-model, marine organism sequence analysis and biodiversity studies. By ensuring hardware and software (and subsequent data analysis) performs uninterruptedly and in an orchestrated resource-sharing-manner, **the HPC facility supports projects within both the MB&B and AQUA Research Groups**. The HPC impact is evident from the fact that 21 out of the 92 IMBBC projects of the 2018 – 2021 period (*i.e.* 23%), received computational analysis support by the HPC facility, resulting so far to 12 out of the 90 IMBBC publications, or 13,3%. A detailed listing of all IMBBC HPC supported publications is available at: <u>https://hpc.hcmr.gr/publications</u>.

The Reproduction and Physiology laboratory (AQUA, Dr. C.C. Mylonas) has initiated a new area of research with the Functional and Comparative Genomics team (MB&B, Dr. E. Sarropoulou), in the area of epigenetics in fish reproduction. This collaboration began in 2018 in the framework of an EU H2020-funded program (MedAID). Another collaboration was with the laboratory of Bioanalysis and Biotechnology (MB&B, Dr. E. Mandalakis), that resulted in the development of a new LC, MS-MS method for the analysis of a suite of steroid hormones related to stress and reproductive physiology in fish (H2020-funded programme, NEWTECHAQUA).

The laboratory of Fish Behavior (**AQUA**, Dr. I. Papadakis) has initiated a new area of research with the Functional and Comparative Genomics team (**MB&B**, Dr. E. Sarropoulou), in the area of study of fish vision. Another collaboration is with the laboratory of Bioimaging (**MB&B**, Keklikloglou, N.), which resulted in the improvement of the method that had been developed for the analysis of the digestive system in fish larvae.

The Laboratory of Nutrition and Biochemistry (**AQUA**, Dr. E. Fountoulaki and Dr. I. Nengas) is involved in three research programs with **MB&B**. The collaboration is within the framework of one EU H2020-funded program (FutureEUAqua) with the Genetics & Molecular Biotechnology Laboratory (**MB&B**, Dr. C. Tsiggenopoulos) and two ESPA, EPALTH program with the Functional and Comparative Genomics team (**MB&B**, Dr. E. Sarropoulou) and Bioanalysis and Biotechnology laboratory (**MB&B**, Dr. M. Mandalakis).

Dr. J.B. Kristoffersen (MB&B) is working with the PhD student Miss M.C. Cascarano of the Fish Health laboratory laboratory (AQUA, Dr. P. Katharios) on the genomic characterization of *Epitheliocystis*. This collaboration began in 2018 where Miss Cascarano was trained in the construction and sequencing of genome libraries as part of her PhD thesis on "*Epitheliocystis* disease in fish, epidemiology, pathology and genomic characterization of the causative agents".

The Fish Health laboratory (AQUA, Dr. P. Katharios) has initiated a new area of research with the Bioanalysis and Biotechnology laboratory (MB&B, Dr. E. Mandalakis) that has resulted in the development of new methods of *in vitro* analysis of antibacterial effects of various substances/organisms including bacteriophages and essential oils of aromatic plants. Another collaboration is with the Functional and Comparative Genomics team (MB&B, Dr. E. Sarropoulou) and has resulted in the genomic sequencing of microorganisms of interest including pathogenic bacteria and bacteriophages. Finally, there is an active collaboration with the Bioimaging Unit (MB&B, Mrs. N. Keklikoglou), which has resulted in the development of new methods for the imaging of parasites and fish disease lesions using the micro-CT equipment together with other bioimaging and microscopy tools. This collaboration began in 2018 in the framework of the project MOUNT (MIS 5002470), through the Operational Programme "Competitiveness, Entrepreneurship and Innovation" (NSRF 2014-2020) and co-financed by Greece and the European Union (European Regional



Development Fund). A collaboration between Dr. Christina Pavloudi (**MB&B**) and Dr. P. Katharios (**AQUA**) started in August 2018 and had as a research goal the investigation of the mass mortality event of *Pinna nobilis* populations, while in 2020 they collaborated regarding the investigation of Systemic Granulomatosis in cultured meagre, using clinical metagenomics.

The Fish Health laboratory (AQUA, Dr. M. Henry) has initiated a new area of research with the Functional and Comparative Genomics team ((MB&B, Dr. E. Sarropoulou), in the area of the regulation of immune gene expression through the use of miRNAs. This collaboration began in 2021 with the design of a Post-Doctoral project submitted to the Hellenic Foundation for Research & Innovation (HFRI or EAI Δ EK in Greek) (FishCellBoost). Dr. M. Henry also collaborated with Dr. E. Mandalakis, E. & Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos (MB&B) to perform immunological analyses on fresh samples collected from experiments run in the fish rearing facilities of the AQUALABS in Crete.

The Production Technology team (**AQUA** Dr. N. Papandroulakis) has initiated in 2019 a collaboration with Dr. T. Dalianis and Dr. E. Mandalakis (**MB&B**) for the use of sponges as a secondary species of culture in an IMTA concept. This resulted in a collaboration within the HFRI-funded projects SPINAQUA and MACCIMO, with the first targeting the evaluation of integrated aquaculture with sponges for bioremediation and bioproduction, and a recent publication provided in the list of articles below. The collaboration has resulted in the deployment of an experimental sponge cultivation within IMBBC's Pilot net pen aquaculture facility and its monitoring for the past 2 years, as well as on-site experiments investigating sponge bioremediation capacity. The Production Technology team has also initiated a collaboration with Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos and Dr. E. Sarropoulou (**MB&B**) for the genetic implication in the performance of reared fish species through two projects (PERFORMFISH and AMBERJACK)

Dr. F. Verret F (**MB&B**) provides diatom species in active cultures (*i.e. Phaeodactylum tricornutum*) to Dr. N. Papandroulakis (**AQUA**) for microalga antifouling experiments.

The Functional and Comparative Genomics team (MB&B, Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos) has continued fruitful collaborations with fellow researches from AQUA and more specifically with Drs. C.C. Mylonas and N. Papandoulakis for European sea bass, meagre, and greater amberjack genetic studies as part of national and EU-funded projects, as well as on different sparid species. Collaboration also exists with other researchers of AQUA, namely Dr. G. Rigos for parasite genomics, and Dr. I. Nengas for Genome-by-Feed selection breeding experiments.

Dr. A. Sterioti is a Permanent Researcher of IMBBC (AQUA) and at the same time she is the head Aquariologist for the Cretaquarium. As such, she has collaborations with both AQUA and MB&B.

List of articles resulting from collaborations between the Research Groups MB&B and AQUA of IMBBC for the reporting period (2018-2020):

 Anastasiou, T.I., Mandalakis, M., Krigas, N., Vézignol, T., Lazari, D., Katharios, P., Dailianis, T., Antonopoulou, E., 2019. Comparative Evaluation of Essential Oils from Medicinal-Aromatic Plants of Greece: Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Capacity and Antimicrobial Activity against Bacterial Fish Pathogens. Molecules 25, 148. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules25010148</u>



- Aslam, M.L., Carraro, R., Sonesson, A.K., Meuwissen, T., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Rigos, G., Bargelloni, L., Tzokas, K., 2020. Genetic Variation, GWAS and Accuracy of Prediction for Host Resistance to Sparicotyle chrysophrii in Farmed Gilthead Sea Bream (Sparus aurata). Frontiers in Genetics 11, 594770. https://doi.org/10.3389/fgene.2020.594770
- Katharios, P., Varvarigos, P., Keklikoglou, K., Ruetten, M., Sojan, J., Akter, M., Cascarano, M.C., Tsertou, M.I., Kokkari, C., 2020. Native parasite affecting an introduced host in aquaculture: cardiac henneguyosis in the red seabream Pagrus major Temminck & Schlegel (Perciformes: Sparidae) caused by Henneguya aegea n. sp. (Myxosporea: Myxobolidae). Parasites & Vectors 13, 27. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s13071-020-3888-7</u>
- Kokkari, C., Sarropoulou, E., Bastias, R., Mandalakis, M., Katharios, P., 2018. Isolation and characterization of a novel bacteriophage infecting Vibrio alginolyticus. Archives of Microbiology 200, 707–718. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00203-018-1480-8Koutsouveli, V., Manousaki, T., Riesgo, A., Lagnel, J., Kollias, S., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Arvanitidis, C., Dounas, C., Magoulas, A., Dailianis, T., 2020. Gearing Up for Warmer Times: Transcriptomic Response of Spongia officinalis to Elevated Temperatures Reveals Recruited Mechanisms and Potential for Resilience. Front. Mar. Sci. 6, 786. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2019.00786</u>
- Makridis, P., Kokou, F., Bournakas, C., Papandroulakis, N., Sarropoulou, E., 2021. Isolation of Phaeobacter sp. from Larvae of Atlantic Bonito (Sarda sarda) in a Mesocosmos Unit, and Its Use for the Rearing of European Seabass Larvae (Dicentrarchus labrax L.). Microorganisms 9, 128. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/microorganisms9010128</u>
- Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Martou, N., Keisaris, S., Greveniotis, V., Katharios, P., Lazari, D., Krigas, N., Antonopoulou, E., 2021. Antibacterial Effects of Essential Oils of Seven Medicinal-Aromatic Plants Against the Fish Pathogen Aeromonas veronii bv. sobria: To Blend or Not to Blend? Molecules 26, 2731. https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules26092731
- Mladineo, I., Hrabar, J., Smodlaka, H., Palmer, L., Sakamaki, K., Keklikoglou, K., Katharios, P., 2019. Functional Ultrastructure of the Excretory Gland Cell in Zoonotic Anisakids (Anisakidae, Nematoda). Cells 8, 1451. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/cells8111451</u>
- Mladineo, I., Hrabar, J., Vidjak, O., Bočina, I., Čolak, S., Katharios, P., Cascarano, M.C., Keklikoglou, K., Volpatti, D., Beraldo, P., 2020. Host-parasite interaction between parasitic cymothoid Ceratothoa oestroides and its host, farmed european sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax). Pathogens 9, 1–19. https://doi.org/10.3390/pathogens9030230
- Oikonomou, S., Tsakogiannis, A., Kriaridou, C., Danis, T., Manousaki, T., Chatziplis, D., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., Triantafyllidis, A., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. First linkage maps and a pilot QTL analysis for early growth performance in common dentex (Dentex dentex) and sharpsnout seabream (Diplodus puntazzo). Aquaculture Reports 21, 100855. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aqrep.2021.100855</u>
- Papadaki, M., Kaitetzidou, E., Mylonas, C.C., Sarropoulou, E., 2020. Non-coding RNA Expression Patterns of Two Different Teleost Gonad Maturation Stages. Mar Biotechnol 22, 683–695. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10126-020-09991-2</u>
- 11. Papadaki, M., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Pouli, M., Asderis, M., Katharios, P., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Histological evaluation of sex differentiation and early sex identification in hatchery-produced greater amberjack



(*Seriola dumerili*) reared in sea cages. Fish Physiol Biochem 47, 1777–1792. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10695-021-01007-7

- Pauletto, M., Manousaki, T., Ferraresso, S., Babbucci, M., Tsakogiannis, A., Louro, B., Vitulo, N., Quoc, V.H., Carraro, R., Bertotto, D., Franch, R., Maroso, F., Aslam, M.L., Sonesson, A.K., Simionati, B., Malacrida, G., Cestaro, A., Caberlotto, S., Sarropoulou, E., Mylonas, C.C., Power, D.M., Patarnello, T., Canario, A.V.M., Tsigenopoulos, C., Bargelloni, L., 2018. Genomic analysis of Sparus aurata reveals the evolutionary dynamics of sex-biased genes in a sequential hermaphrodite fish. Commun Biol 1, 119. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s42003-018-0122-7</u>
- Samaras, A., Dimitroglou, A., Kollias, S., Skouradakis, G., Papadakis, I.E., Pavlidis, M., 2021. Cortisol concentration in scales is a valid indicator for the assessment of chronic stress in European sea bass, Dicentrarchus labrax L. Aquaculture 545, 737257. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2021.737257</u>
- Sarropoulou, E., Kaitetzidou, E., Papandroulakis, N., Tsalafouta, A., Pavlidis, M., 2019. Inventory of European Sea Bass (Dicentrarchus labrax) sncRNAs Vital During Early Teleost Development. Front. Genet. 10, 657. https://doi.org/10.3389/fgene.2019.00657
- Santi, I., Kasapidis, P., Psarra, S., Assimakopoulou, G., Pavlidou, A., Protopapa, M., Tsiola, A., Zeri, C., Pitta, P., 2020. Composition and distribution patterns of eukaryotic microbial plankton in the ultra-oligotrophic Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Aquatic Microbial Ecology 84, 155–173. <u>https://doi.org/10.3354/ame01933</u>
- Superio, J., Fakriadis, I., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Lancerotto, S.A., Rodriguez, A.V., Vervelakis, E., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Spawning kinetics and parentage contribution of European sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax) broodstocks, and influence of GnRHainduced spawning. Aquaculture Reports 21, 100766. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aqrep.2021.100766
- Tarifa, G., Sterioti, A., Chatzifotis, S., Kentouri, M., 2020. Using Artificial Feeds for the Culture of the Sea Urchin Paracentrotus Lividus (Echinodermata, Echinoidea). Journal of Aquatic Sciences and Oceanography 1, 1–10.
- Tsakogiannis, A., Manousaki, T., Lagnel, J., Papanikolaou, N., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2018. The gene toolkit implicated in functional sex in Sparidae hermaphrodites: inferences from comparative transcriptomics. Frontiers in Genetics 9, 749.
- Tsakogiannis, A., Manousaki, T., Lagnel, J., Sterioti, A., Pavlidis, M., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C., Tsigenopoulos, C., 2018. The transcriptomic signature of different sexes in two protogynous hermaphrodites: Insights into the molecular network underlying sex phenotype in fish. Scientific reports 8, 3564.
- Tsalafouta, A., Sarropoulou, E., Papandroulakis, N., Pavlidis, M., 2018. Characterization and Expression Dynamics of Key Genes Involved in the Gilthead Sea Bream (Sparus aurata) Cortisol Stress Response during Early Ontogeny. Marine Biotechnology 20, 611–622. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10126-018-9833-5</u>



- Describe the means of promoting interdisciplinary collaborations with Groups of other Institutes of the Center or Partner organizations. Provide a list of publications resulting from such collaborations.

Beginning in 2021, an effort has been initiated to develop **Thematic Groups** between the three institutes of HCMR. The objective of these groups is to bring together and coordinate the activities of the institutes in a specific area that is of interest to the researchers, from a complementary point of view. For example, the area of Aquaculture is of interest to all three institutes from a different perspective. IMBBC is involved with the methods of producing fish in culture, the IO-HCMR is involved in studying the interactions of aquaculture and the environment, while the IMBRIW-HCMR is interested in the relations between fisheries and aquaculture, and the management of common resources. Other Thematic groups include Biodiversity and Climate Changes, which again are areas of interest to all three institutes. The Thematic Group will consist of one member (and a substitute) from each institute.

Following is a list of collaborations of IMBBC researchers with the other two institutes of HCMR or some "partner organizations". As a partner organization, we define an organization with which we maintain long term formal (*i.e.* with MOUs) or informal relations in submitting proposals together, carry out joint research projects even in the absence of direct funding, exchange techniques and share laboratories, etc. We also include the collaboration we have with the Aquariology team of the Cretaquarium (Dr. Aspasia Sterioti, who is a Permanent Researcher of IMBBC, Dr. Panos Gregoriou and Dr. Chrysa Doxa who are on contract for more than 10 years).

A collaboration has been established with the New Zealand Institute for Plant and Food Research (Nelson, NZ) in the area of fish reproduction (AQUA, Dr. C.C. Mylonas) and larval rearing ontogeny (AQUA, Dr. I. Papadakis), starting in 2019. The collaboration began with exchange visits of IMBBC researchers, and of Dr. Matthew Wiley, a joint publication of a review article, and more recently with the signing of a subcontracting agreement in the area of larval rearing and early ontogeny. This partnership has created an opportunity for IMBBC to disseminate its expertise to an important institute in NZ, and to promote its reputation around the world. Our next visit to New Zealand is scheduled for the Fall of 2022, where we will join a team of colleagues from Australia (Dr. Avigail Elizur) and Japan (Drs. Keitaro Kato and Goro Yoshizaki) for a mini symposium.

Another collaboration has also been established between IMBBC and the Institute of International Marine Centre (IMC Sardinia, Italy) developing reproductive maturation methods (AQUA, Dr. C.C. Mylonas) and larval rearing protocols (AQUA, Dr. I. Papadakis) in species with aquaculture interest. Since 2020, Dr. C.C. Mylonas is an official member of the Scientific Committee of the IMC, which plays a role in promoting the Foundation's activities in national and international scientific venues; it also has a consultancy and reference function for the Director and the Management Committee, in relation to the development of the program lines and annual activity program. So far, two researchers from IMC have spent time at HCMR and were trained in relevant methods and techniques, and the researchers from HCMR have given seminars in a special workshop organized by ICM.

The Fish Nutrition and Feeding team (AQUA, Dr. E. Fountoulaki and Dr. I. Nengas) has initiated a collaboration with the IMBRIW-HCMR, in the framework of an ESPA, EPALTH research project and with Dr. P. Karachle on the utilization of invasive species as fishmeal for aquaculture feeds.



The Nutrition and Biochemistry laboratory (AQUA) has initiated a collaboration with the Dr. A. Machias and Dr. K Tsagarakis from IMBRIW-HCMR within the frame of VIOAXIOPOIO Project, with the objective of using the fishery discards as fish meal sources for aquafeeds. Another collaboration involves the Università degli Studi di Torino, Italy, UNITO, Department of Agricultural, Forest and Food Sciences, as well of the Biological Department, Aristotelian University, Greece to investigate the use of insect meal in aquafeeds. Out of this collaboration a few scientific papers were published.

The Fish Health team (AQUA, Dr. P. Katharios) has initiated a collaboration with Dr. Paraskevi Pitta of the IO-HCMR and through the project AQUACOSM (https://www.aquacosm.eu). The collaboration is on the effect of antibiotics used in aquaculture on the microbial trophic networks in the Mediterranean Sea. The team has also a long-term collaboration with the University of Copenhagen (Prof. Mathias Middelboe) in the area of phage microbiology and phage therapy. This collaboration involves common research projects (Aquaphage-Marie Curie IRSES 2010, ProAqua-Danish National Program, etc.), but involves staff exchanges and common supervision of PhD students (Dr. Panos Kalatzis).

The Pilot net pen aquaculture facility (**AQUA** Dr. N. Papandroulakis) has initiated a collaboration with the IO-HCMR (Dr. V. Pitta) on concepts of Integrated Multitrophic Aquaculture (IMTA) providing the sea cages as testing ground.

Dr. K. Grigorakis, head of the Sensory Lab (AQUA) has initiated a collaboration with the IMBRIW-HCMR with two joint research projects (4Alien and FRESQO). The first project is in order to examine the quality of wild invasive fish species in Greek waters. The second collaboration is also joint with FORTH (Crete) and University of Patras, in order to invent and implement a rapid non-destructive seafood freshness method (FRESQO). Dr. Kriton Grigorakis has a long-term collaboration with University of West Attika, that covered two EU project periods and working together outside a research project within the frames of FTET visualization and development (see IP and Patent section).

The Bioanalysis and Biotechnology lab (MB&B, Dr M. Mandalakis) has initiated a collaboration with the IMBRIW-HCMR for the assessment of Lagocephalus sceleratus toxicity in the Greek seas and the valorization of its biomass. An informal collaboration began in 2017 and this was further consolidated in 2019 through the joint research project LIONHARE, which was funded by the Fisheries and Maritime Operational Program 2014-2020 of the Greek Ministry of Agricultural Development and Food. Another tight collaboration was initiated with the IO-HCMR to facilitate the quantitative assessment and taxonomic classification of phytoplankton in the marine environment, as well as in mesocosm experiments, through the analysis of carotenoids/chlorophylls (chemotaxonomy).

Dr. Aglaia (Cilia) Antoniou of the Genetics & Molecular Biotechnology laboratory (MB&B) has initiated a new area of research with Mr. Vasilis Valavanis, the head of GIS and Remote Sensing laboratory of the IMBRIW-HCMR, in the interdisciplinary framework of seascape genomics. They have been involved in the submission of two HFRI proposals in calls for Post-Docs (ASSET in 2020 and GRECE 2019). Furthermore, through the collaboration of Dr. A. Antoniou with the Molecular Systematics Laboratory of NHMC, UoC (Prof. Nikos Poulakakis), expertise exchange in the fields of phylogenomics, population genomics, adaptation and hybridization allowed us to address interesting evolutionary questions inspired by a wide range of natural systems and producing many publications, five of them from 2018 up to date.



Also, the Population Genetics & Phylogeography team (**MB&B**, Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos & Dr. D. Tsaparis) has initiated a collaboration with the IMBRIW-HCMR (Dr. M. Stoumboudi, Dr. Kalogianni, Dr. Barbieri) for studying plylogeography and conservation genetics of freshwater ichthyofauna of Greece. In addition, a new collaboration with Dr. G. Tserpes and Dr. N. Peristeraki was established for monitoring marine invasive species in the Greek Seas. Another collaboration regards research on mesopelagic fish (Dr. K. Tsangarakis) systematics, and one with the IO-HCMR to study invasive *Halophila* species (Dr. E. Apostolaki).

The Genetics and Molecular Biotechnology lab (MB&B, Dr. P. Kasapidis) has initiated a collaboration with the IO-HCMR in terms of the PhD Dissertation of Ioulia Santi on "Eukaryotic microbial plankton and nutrient supply in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea". The work focused on plankton biodiversity and ecology that was studied using different techniques. Another collaboration involving the two parties was within the research infrastructure project "Centre for the study and sustainable exploitation of Marine Biological Resources (CMBR)". We worked together with Dr. Paraskevi (Vivi) Pitta (IO-HCMR), Scientists to upgrade the mesocosm infrastructure of IO-HCMR and conducted a mesocosm experiment to decipher relationships among plankton groups.

Dr. E. Chatzinikolaou (**MB&B**) is currently collaborating with Mr. Manolis Ntoumas (IO-HCMR) in the implementation of the H2020 project NAUTILOS (budget IMBBC = 264.188 \in , IO = 631.688 \in) and the Interreg Greece-Cyprus project SocioCoast (budget IMBBC = 86.720 \in , IO = 50.613 \in).

A collaboration of Dr. T. Dailianis (**MB&B**) with Dr. Maria Salomidi (IO-HCMR) exists in the framework of the EU SeasERA project CIGESMED targeting the study of the endemic Mediterranean coralligenous habitats. Furthermore, Dr. Dailianis collaborates with Dr. Chris Smith (IMBRIW) in the framework of the EU H2020 project MERCES targeting marine ecosystem restoration.

The Marine Ecology & Biodiversity lab (MB&B, Dr. P. Koulouri) has initiated a collaboration with the IMBRIW-HCMR for different studies concerning environmental impact assessments and integrated coastal zone management. The lab has also collaborated with the IO and IMBRIW in the framework of the Strategic Action Programme for the conservation of Biological Diversity (SAP BIO) in the Mediterranean Region. The lab has also collaborated with the two other HCMR institutes and the Cretaquarium for Ocean Literacy research and activities (ERASMUS+ project). The lab has also initiated a collaboration with Dr. N. Lampadariou of the IO-HCMR during the MSc Thesis of K. Keklikoglou. This work was related with the testing of three different hard bottom samplers for macro- and meiobenthic assemblages. The collaboration began in 2013 and a research article was published in 2018.

Finally, the collaboration between the Marine Ecology & Biodiversity Labs (**MB&B**, Dr. V. Gerovasileiou) and the IMBRIW-HCMR in the frame of the Hellenic Network on Aquatic Invasive Species (ELNAIS), the Marine Strategy Framework Directive (MSFD) and DEEPEASTMED project gave a number of papers on non-indigenous and deep-water biodiversity in the Greek Seas.

The Environmental Microbiology Lab (**MB&B**, Dr. P. Polymenakou) has collaborated with the IO-HCMR (Dr. E. Apostolaki) in the field of ocean acidification and this produced one peer-reviewed publication in Marine Environmental Research.

The IMBBC's HPC (**MB&B**) facility supports projects of the IO-HCMR and the IMBRIW-HCMR. In order to accomplish that, a close collaboration with exists with Dr. Georgios



Petihakis, Dr. Paraskevi (Vivi) Pitta, Dr. Eugenia Apostolaki (IO-HCMR), and Dr. Marianna Giannoulaki, and Dr. Maria Stoumboudi (IMBRIW-HCMR) exists. The latter involves a broad range of topics from zooplankton automated image analysis, to ecological modeling and genomics sequence analysis. Beyond HCMR, the HPC unit has been offering support to a number of IMBBC collaborators, including -among others- Dr. Kriton Kalantidis (IMBB-FORTH, Department of Biology, UoC), Dr. Evangelos Topakas (National Technical Uni of Athens), as well as visitor-users from Oran University (Algeria), University of Padova (Italy), IRTA Sant Carles de la Ràpita (Catalynya, Spain) and University of Göteborg (Sweden).

List of articles resulting from collaborations between the institutes of HCMR or other Partner organizations for the reporting period (2018-2020):

- Alexi, N., Kogiannou, D., Oikonomopoulou, I., Kalogeropoulos, N., Byrne, D.V., Grigorakis, K., 2019. Culinary preparation effects on lipid and sensory quality of farmed gilthead seabream (Sparus aurata) and meagre (Argyrosomus regius): An inter-species comparison. Food Chemistry 301, 125263. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.foodchem.2019.125263
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Grigoriou, P., Martini, E., Sterioti, A., 2019. Impact of ocean acidification and warming on the feeding behavior of two gastropod species. Medit. Mar. Sci. 20, 669. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.19187</u>
- Doxa, C.K., Sfakianakis, D., Sterioti, A., Kentouri, M., 2021a. Effect of temperature on the development of deformities during the embryonic stages of Charonia seguenzae (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). Journal of Thermal Biology 100, 103046. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtherbio.2021.103046</u>
- Doxa, C.K., Sterioti, A., Divanach, P., Kentouri, M., 2021b. Effect of temperature on embryonic development of the marine gastropod Charonia seguenzae (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). Journal of Thermal Biology 100, 103044. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtherbio.2021.103044</u>
- Doxa, C.K., Sterioti, A., Divanach, P., Kentouri, M., 2019. Reproductive behavior of the marine gastropod Charonia seguenzae (Aradas & Benoit, 1870) in captivity. Medit. Mar. Sci. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.14917</u>
- 6. Corriero, A., Wylie, M.J., Nyuji, M., Zupa, P., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Reproduction of greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) and other members of the family Carangidae. Rev. Aquacult., 2021, 1-35.
- Christidis, G., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Tserpes, G., Peristeraki, P., Somarakis, S., 2021. Keeping Lagocephalus sceleratus off the Table: Sources of Variation in the Quantity of TTX, TTX Analogues, and Risk of Tetrodotoxication. Toxins 13, 896. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/toxins13120896</u>
- Çinar, M.E., Féral, J., Arvanitidis, C., David, R., Taşkin, E., Sini, M., Dailianis, T., Doğan, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Evcen, A., Chenuil, A., Dağli, E., Aysel, V., Issaris, Y., Bakir, K., Nalmpantı, M., Sartoretto, S., Salomidi, M., Sapouna, A., Açik, S., Dimitriadis, C., Koutsoubas, D., Katağan, T., Öztürk, B., Koçak, F., Erdogan-Dereli, D., Önen, S., Özgen, Ö., Türkçü, N., Kirkim, F., Önen, M., 2020. Coralligenous assemblages along their geographical distribution: Testing of concepts and implications for management. Aquatic Conserv: Mar Freshw Ecosyst 30, 1578–1594. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/aqc.3365</u>
- 9. Dailianis, T., Smith, C.J., Papadopoulou, N., Gerovasileiou, V., Sevastou, K., Bekkby, T., Bilan, M., Billett, D., Boström, C., Carreiro-Silva, M., Danovaro, R.,



Fraschetti, S., Gagnon, K., Gambi, C., Grehan, A., Kipson, S., Kotta, J., McOwen, C.J., Morato, T., Ojaveer, H., Pham, C.K., Scrimgeour, R., 2018. Human activities and resultant pressures on key European marine habitats: An analysis of mapped resources. Marine Policy 98, 1–10. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2018.08.038</u>

- Gerovasileiou V., Anastasopoulou K., Arvanitidis C., Assimakopoulou G., Dailianis T., Dounas C., Gerakaris V., Giannakourou A., Giannoulaki M., Karris G., Kasapidis P., Katsanevakis S., Katsiaras N., Kavadas S., Kotoulas G., Koulouri P., et al., 2021. POST-2020 SAP BIO Greek contribution on Mediterranean marine and coastal biodiversity preservation beyond 2030: Ecological status, pressures, impacts, their drivers and priority response fields. Strategic Action Program for the conservation of Biological Diversity (SAP BIO) in the Mediterranean Region. Pp. 66+x.
- Gerovasileiou, V., Koulouri, P., Koutsikopoulos, C., Dailianis, T., Dounas, C., Salomidi, M., Trygonis, V., Karris, G., Raitsos, D.E., Dimitriadis, C., Sini, M., Poursanidis, D., Sourbes, L., Koutsoubas, D., 2021. Chapter 23. Marine Biodiversity in Greek Seas, in: Marine Biology. Broken Hill Publishers Ltd.
- Gerovasileiou, V., Smith, C.J., Kiparissis, S., Stamouli, C., Dounas, C., Mytilineou, C., 2019a. Updating the distribution status of the critically endangered bamboo coral Isidella elongata (Esper, 1788) in the deep Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Regional Studies in Marine Science 28, 100610. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rsma.2019.100610</u>
- Gerovasileiou, V., Smith, C.J., Sevastou, K., Papadopoulou, N., Dailianis, T., Bekkby, T., Fiorentino, D., McOwen, C.J., Amaro, T., Bengil, E.G.T., Bilan, M., Boström, C., Carreiro-Silva, M., Cebrian, E., Cerrano, C., Danovaro, R., Fraschetti, S., Gagnon, K., Gambi, C., Grehan, A., Hereu, B., Kipson, S., Kotta, J., Linares, C., Morato, T., Ojaveer, H., Orav-Kotta, H., Sarà, A., Scrimgeour, R., 2019b. Habitat mapping in the European Seas - is it fit for purpose in the marine restoration agenda? Marine Policy 106, 103521. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2019.103521</u>
- Kalatzis, P.G., Carstens, A.B., Katharios, P., Castillo, D., Hansen, L.H., Middelboe, M., 2019. Complete Genome Sequence of Vibrio anguillarum Nontailed Bacteriophage NO16. Microbiology Resource Announcements 8, 11–12. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/mra.00020-19</u>
- Kalatzis, P.G., Castillo, D., Katharios, P., Middelboe, M., 2018. Bacteriophage interactions with marine pathogenic vibrios: Implications for phage therapy. Antibiotics 7, 1–23. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/antibiotics7010015</u>
- Tsagkatakis, G., Nikolidakis, S., Petra, E., Kapantagakis, A., Grigorakis, K., Katselis, G., Vlahos, N., Tsakalides, P., 2020. Fish Freshness Estimation though analysis of Multispectral Images with Convolutional Neural Networks. ei 2020, 171–171. <u>https://doi.org/10.2352/ISSN.2470-1173.2020.12.FAIS-171</u>
- 17. Keklikoglou, K., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Faulwetter, S., Kalogeropoulou, V., Plaiti, W., Maidanou, M., Dounas, C., Lampadariou, N., Arvanitidis, C., 2018. "Simple" can be good, too: Testing three hard bottom sampling methods on macrobenthic and meiobenthic assemblages. Journal of the Marine Biological Association of the United Kingdom. <u>https://doi.org/10.1017/S0025315418000863</u>
- Kiparissis, S., Tsaparis, D., Peristeraki, P., Giannakaki, A., Kosoglou, G., Metaxakis, M., Tserpes, G., 2020. The yellowstripe barracuda Sphyraena chrysotaenia (Kluzinger, 1884) in Crete (GSA 23, eastern Mediterranean): first genetically verified records and highlighted issues on the lessepsian barracuda nomenclature ambiguities. BIR 9, 814–826. <u>https://doi.org/10.3391/bir.2020.9.4.15</u>
- 19. Koulouri, P., Giannoulaki, M., Machias, A., Dounas, C., 2021. Measures for the Protection and Sustainable Exploitation of Marine Biological Resources in an Oligotrophic Fishing Ground (Crete Island, Greece, E. Mediterranean), in: Ksibi, M.,



Ghorbal, A., Chakraborty, S., Chaminé, H.I., Barbieri, M., Guerriero, G., Hentati, O., Negm, A., Lehmann, A., Römbke, J., Costa Duarte, A., Xoplaki, E., Khélifi, N., Colinet, G., Miguel Dias, J., Gargouri, I., Van Hullebusch, E.D., Sánchez Cabrero, B., Ferlisi, S., Tizaoui, C., Kallel, A., Rtimi, S., Panda, S., Michaud, P., Sahu, J.N., Seffen, M., Naddeo, V. (Eds.), Recent Advances in Environmental Science from the Euro-Mediterranean and Surrounding Regions (2nd Edition). Springer International Publishing, Cham, pp. 2197–2201.

- 20. Koulouri P., Podaras D., Plaiti W., Polihronaki Th., Dounas C., 2020. Contribution of marine research centres to the ocean-related knowledge and awareness of students and citizens: HCMR 8th Conference of Pan-Hellenic Educators Association for Environmental Education, online 11-13 Sept. 2020, Patras, Greece
- 21. Livanou, E., Lagaria, A., Santi, I., Mandalakis, M., Pavlidou, A., Lika, K., Psarra, S., 2019. Pigmented and heterotrophic nanoflagellates: Abundance and grazing on prokaryotic picoplankton in the ultra-oligotrophic Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Deep-Sea Research Part II: Topical Studies in Oceanography 164, 100–111. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dsr2.2019.04.007</u>
- 22. Loi, B., Papadakis, I.E., Leggieri, F., Papiol, G., Giménez, I., Vallainc, D., 2020. Ontogeny of the digestive system and eye of reared flathead grey mullet, Mugil cephalus (Linnaeus, 1758), and evaluation of lipid deposition in the liver according to the feeding protocol. Aquaculture 526, 735386. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735386
- Maidanou, M., Koulouri, P., Karachle, P.K., Arvanitidis, C., Koutsoubas, D., Dounas, C., 2021. Trophic Diversity of a Fish Community Associated with a Caulerpa prolifera (Forsskål) Meadow in a Shallow Semi-Enclosed Embayment. JMSE 9, 165. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jmse9020165</u>
- 24. Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Martou, N., Keisaris, S., Greveniotis, V., Katharios, P., Lazari, D., Krigas, N., Antonopoulou, E., 2021. Antibacterial Effects of Essential Oils of Seven Medicinal-Aromatic Plants Against the Fish Pathogen Aeromonas veronii bv. sobria: To Blend or Not to Blend? Molecules 26, 2731. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules26092731</u>
- 25. Mandalakis, M., Gavriilidou, A., Polymenakou, P.N., Christakis, C.A., Nomikou, P., Medvecký, M., Kilias, S.P., Kentouri, M., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., 2019. Microbial strains isolated from CO2-venting Kolumbo submarine volcano show enhanced co-tolerance to acidity and antibiotics. Marine Environmental Research. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marenvres.2019.01.002</u>
- 26. Mandalakis, M., Panikov, N.S., Polymenakou, P.N., Sizova, M.V., Stamatakis, A., 2018. A simple cleanup method for the removal of humic substances from soil protein extracts using aluminum coagulation. Environmental Science and Pollution Research 25, 23845–23856. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11356-018-2434-z</u>
- 27. Mastoraki, M., Mollá Ferrándiz, P., Vardali, S.C., Kontodimas, D.C., Kotzamanis, Y.P., Gasco, L., Chatzifotis, S., Antonopoulou, E., 2020a. A comparative study on the effect of fish meal substitution with three different insect meals on growth, body composition and metabolism of European sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax L.). Aquaculture 528, 735511. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735511</u>
- Mastoraki, M., Vlahos, N., Patsea, E., Chatzifotis, S., Mente, E., Antonopoulou, E., 2020b. The effect of insect meal as a feed ingredient on survival, growth, and metabolic and antioxidant response of juvenile prawn Palaemon adspersus (Rathke, 1837). Aquac Res 51, 3551–3562. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/are.14692</u>
- 29. Mladineo, I., Hrabar, J., Vidjak, O., Bočina, I., Čolak, S., Katharios, P., Cascarano, M.C., Keklikoglou, K., Volpatti, D., Beraldo, P., 2020. Host-parasite interaction



between parasitic cymothoid Ceratothoa oestroides and its host, farmed european sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax). Pathogens 9, 1–19. https://doi.org/10.3390/pathogens9030230

- Obst, M., Exter, K., Allcock, L.A., Arvanitidis, C., Axberg, A., Bustamante, M., Cancio, I., Carreira-Flores, D., Chatzinikolaou, E., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Chrismas, N., Clark, M.S., Comtet, T., Dailianis, T., Davies, N., Deneudt, K., Cerio, O.D. de, Fortič, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Hablützel, P.I., Keklikoglou, K., Kotoulas, G., Lasota, R., Leite, B.R., Loisel, S., Lévêque, L., Levy, L., Malachowicz, M., Mavrič, B., Meyer, C., Mortelmans, J., Norkko, J., Pade, N., Power, A.M., Ramšak, A., Reiss, H., Solbakken, J., Staehr, P.A., Sundberg, P., Thyrring, J., Troncoso, J.S., Viard, F., Wenne, R., Yperifanou, E.I., Zbawicka, M., Pavloudi, C., 2020. A Marine Biodiversity Observation Network for Genetic Monitoring of Hard-Bottom Communities (ARMS-MBON). Frontiers in Marine Science 7, 572680. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2020.572680</u>
- 31. Oikonomou, A., Livanou, E., Mandalakis, M., Lagaria, A., Psarra, S., 2020. Grazing effect of flagellates on bacteria in response to phosphate addition in the oligotrophic Cretan Sea, NE Mediterranean. FEMS Microbiology Ecology 96. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/femsec/fiaa086</u>
- 32. Panteli, N., Mastoraki, M., Lazarina, M., Chatzifotis, S., Mente, E., Kormas, K.Ar., Antonopoulou, E., 2021. Configuration of Gut Microbiota Structure and Potential Functionality in Two Teleosts under the Influence of Dietary Insect Meals. Microorganisms 9, 699. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/microorganisms9040699</u>
- Polymenakou, P., Mandalakis, M., Dailianis, T., Dimitriadis, C., Medvecky, M., Magoulas, A., Gerovasileiou, V., 2018. Preliminary assessment of methanogenic microbial communities in marine caves of Zakynthos Island (Ionian Sea, Greece). Medit. Mar. Sci. 284. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.14374</u>
- 34. Polymenakou, P.N., Mandalakis, M., Macheras, M., Oulas, A., Kristoffersen, J.B., Christakis, C.A., Terzoglou, V., Stavroulaki, M., 2020. High genetic diversity and variability of microbial communities in near-surface atmosphere of Crete island, Greece. Aerobiologia 36, 341–353. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10453-020-09636-w</u>
- 35. Polymenakou, P.N., Nomikou, P., Zafeiropoulos, H., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Kilias, S., Kyrpides, N.C., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., 2021. The Santorini Volcanic Complex as a Valuable Source of Enzymes for Bioenergy. Energies 14, 1414. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/en14051414</u>
- 36. Puzenat, V., Escartín, J., Martelat, J.-E., Barreyre, T., Le Moine Bauer, S., Nomikou, P., Gracias, N., Allemand, P., Antoniou, V., Coskun, O., Garcia, R., Grandjean, P., Jørgensen, S.L., Magí, L., Mandalakis, M., Orsi, W., Polymenakou, P., Schouw, A., Vallicrosa, G., Vlasopoulos, O., 2021. Shallow-water hydrothermalism at Milos (Greece): Nature, distribution, heat fluxes and impact on ecosystems. Marine Geology 438, 106521. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.margeo.2021.106521</u>
- 37. Rigos, G., Kogiannou, D., Padrós, F., Cristòfol, C., Florio, D., Fioravanti, M., Zarza, C., 2020. Best therapeutic practices for the use of antibacterial agents in finfish aquaculture: a particular view on European seabass (Dicentrarchus labrax) and gilthead seabream (Sparus aurata) in Mediterranean aquaculture. Reviews in Aquaculture raq.12523. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/raq.12523</u>
- Rizzo, A.L., Caracausi, A., Chavagnac, V., Nomikou, P., Polymenakou, P.N., Mandalakis, M., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., Castillo, A., Lampridou, D., Marusczak, N., Sonke, J.E., 2019. Geochemistry of CO2-Rich Gases Venting From Submarine Volcanism: The Case of Kolumbo (Hellenic Volcanic Arc, Greece). Front. Earth Sci. 7, 60. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/feart.2019.00060</u>



- Santi, I., Kasapidis, P., Karakassis, I., Pitta, P., 2021. A Comparison of DNA Metabarcoding and Microscopy Methodologies for the Study of Aquatic Microbial Eukaryotes. Diversity 13, 180. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/d13050180</u>
- 40. Santi, I., Kasapidis, P., Psarra, S., Assimakopoulou, G., Pavlidou, A., Protopapa, M., Tsiola, A., Zeri, C., Pitta, P., 2020. Composition and distribution patterns of eukaryotic microbial plankton in the ultra-oligotrophic Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Aquatic Microbial Ecology 84, 155–173. <u>https://doi.org/10.3354/ame01933</u>
- 41. Santi, I., Tsiola, A., Dimitriou, P.D., Fodelianakis, S., Kasapidis, P., Papageorgiou, N., Daffonchio, D., Pitta, P., Karakassis, I., 2019. Prokaryotic and eukaryotic microbial community responses to N and P nutrient addition in oligotrophic Mediterranean coastal waters: Novel insights from DNA metabarcoding and network analysis. Marine Environmental Research 150, 104752. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marenvres.2019.104752
- 42. Tsaparis, D., Konstantinidis, I., Palandacic, A., Kalogianni, E., Stoumboudi, M.Th., Barbieri, R., Vardakas, L., Koutsikos, N., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. DNA barcoding provides new insights on the distribution, systematics and conservation of the freshwater genus Pelasgus (Cypriniformes: Cyprinidae) in Greece. Hydrobiologia 848, 1163–1176. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10750-021-04526-9</u>
- 43. Vizzini, S., Apostolaki, E.T., Ricevuto, E., Polymenakou, P., Mazzola, A., 2019. Plant and sediment properties in seagrass meadows from two Mediterranean CO2 vents: Implications for carbon storage capacity of acidified oceans. Marine Environmental Research 146, 101–108. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marenvres.2019.03.001</u>
- 44. Zenetos, A., Corsini-Foka, M., Crocetta, F., Gerovasileiou, V., Karachle, P., Simboura, N., Tsiamis, K., Pancucci-Papadopoulou, M.-A., 2018. Deep cleaning of alien and cryptogenic species records in the Greek Seas (2018 update). Management of Biological Invasions 9, 209–226. <u>https://doi.org/10.3391/mbi.2018.9.3.04</u>
- 45. Zenetos, A., Karachle, P.K., Corsini-Foka, M., Gerovasileiou, V., Simboura, N., Xentidis, N.J., Tsiamis, K., 2020. Is the trend in new introductions of marine nonindigenous species a reliable criterion for assessing good environmental status? The case study of Greece. Medit. Mar. Sci. 21, 775. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.25136</u>



4 Financial Situation of the Institute Tables from the RIview platform

	2018	2019	2020	2021
Regular Budget	€ 1.484.225	€ 1.567.155	€ 1.586.026	€ 1.599.531
Matching Funds	€ 221.369	€ 222.423	€ 83.348	0
TOTAL	€ 1.705.594	€ 1.789.578	€ 1.669.374	€ 1.599.531

Table 4-1: Governmental Funds



Table 4-2: Competitive Grants

	2018	2019	2020	2021
Greek Programmes	€ 1.729.317	€ 1.345.933	€ 2.125.481	€ 2.221.349
EC Programmes	€ 605.645	€ 1.479.815	€ 1.545.314	€ 447.173
Other International	0	0	0	0
Private Funding	€ 891.041	€ 584.983	€ 547.205	€ 610.149
Other	€ 141.665	€ 19.072	€ 64.379	€ 39.900
TOTAL	€ 3.367.668	€ 3.429.803	€ 4.282.379	€ 3.318.571





	2018	2019	2020	2021
Operational costs (electricity, water etc.)	€ 88.799	€ 110.602	€ 91.893	€ 99.413
Buildings & maintenance	0	0	0	0
Instruments & maintenance	€ 2.143	€ 7.797	€ 5.251	€ 12.923
Educational (<i>e.g.</i> invited speakers, journal subscription etc.)	€ 4.377	€ 3.854	€ 1.334	€ 5.073
Travel	€ 14.531	€ 9.222	€ 987	€ 1.523
Other	€ 14.120	€ 14.678	€ 10.996	€ 27.395
TOTAL	€ 123.971	€ 146.153	€ 110.461	€ 146.327

<i>Table 4-3:</i>	Common	Expenses	(not including	Salary Costs)
14010 1 5.	common	Dapenses	(nor mernang	Sulling Costs)

The common expenses come from the **IMBBC overheads budget**, which amounts to 2% of the total funding of each project of the institute. However, if the project does not allow an overhead rate of 20%, then the amount taken as overheads is divided between the HCMR and IMBCC, at a ratio of 75:25. As one can see, very little is paid by the IMBBC overheads budget for common expenses, mainly because this account was created only in the last 5 years and it has only recently accumulated enough funds.





	2018	2019	2020	2021
Salary cost from Central Budget	€ 1.484.225	€ 1.567.155	€ 1.586.026	€ 1.599.531
Salary cost of non-permanent staff	€ 1.193.723	€ 1.360.929	€ 1.643.815	€ 1.693.490
Instruments & maintenance	€ 64.512	€ 169.650	€ 292.950	€ 407.758
Consumables	€ 361.088	€ 382.114	€ 438.530	€ 538.417
Other	€ 546.153	€ 641.026	€ 500.127	€ 740.763
TOTAL	€ 3.649.703	€ 4.120.876	€ 4.461.450	€ 4.979.961

The expenditures of IMBBC during the reporting period ranged between \notin 3,6 and \notin 4,9 million, including also the salaries of the permanent staff, showing an increasing trend over the years. It is apparent that the highest cost regards personnel, with the cost of the permanent staff being 36% of the total expenditure and the cost of the non-permanent personnel being almost equal (but for a much larger number of persons) at 34%.







5 Results & Achievements

5.1 Bibliometric Output

	2018	2019	2020	2021	Total
Journal articles	65	64	85	90	304
International Conference Proceedings	56	83	15	75	229
Other conferences	40	24	8	25	97
Book Chapters	2	3	2	5	12
Books-Monograms	0	2	1	4	7
Citations (cumulative after 2018) ¹	82	294	564	1104	
Mean Impact Factor	3.81	3.75	3.55	3.67	
² Q1 articles	42	49	55	55	201
Q2 articles	18	12	23	28	81
Q3 articles	4	1	5	3	13
Q4 articles	1	2	2	1	6

Table 5-1: Bibliometric Output

¹ The number represents the citations during the year and each prior year up to 2018, for only the articles of the specific year. We used the **Scopus** database for the citations, as it provides more conservative results.

² The number of articles published in Journals belonging to the specific Quartile.

The institute has shown a **steady increase in the production of high-quality articles**, published in the best journals of our scientific area. From a 5-year average of **50 articles per year** in the previous evaluation period (2013-2017), we have moved to an all-time high of **90 articles in 2021** with more than 67% of the articles (4-year average) being published in Q1 journals. The full citation of all journal articles, International Conference Proceedings, Other Conferences, Book Chapters and Books-Monograms are listed at the end of the self-evaluation, in **Annex I – Bibliography**.

5.2 Training and Educational Activities

Although HCMR is not an educational institution, we have chosen to actively support the provision of education to meet the needs and challenges of modern research, but also to attract collaborations and ensure the international visibility of the Institute. In addition, we contribute to the development of a critical mass of trained researchers in the country. Researchers of IMBBC supervised a total of **45 MSc theses** during the evaluation period, which corresponds to an average **of 1.76 MSc Theses per researcher**, mainly through the UoC (26), but also other Greek and European universities. In addition, there were a total of **31 PhD Dissertations per researcher**, with students being registered mainly through the UoC (15), followed by the Aristotle University of Thessaloniki (3), but also other European universities. Also, a total of **120 undergraduate and graduate internships** (2-6 months duration) have been carried out at IMBBC and supervised by its researchers, from young scientists from15 universities and organizations from Greece and 45 from Europe and the world.





a. PhD Programs

- Provide a short description of the activities and the number of students trained at the Institute and awarded a PhD degree during the period

The majority of PhD students are Greek and study at Greek universities, but we also have students that are registered at universities abroad, and come for part of their Doctoral research. Some students are paid during their presence at HCMR, through scholarships provided by the research projects in which they work, while others have funding from their university or other sources.

Year	MB&B females	MB&B males	AQUA females	AQUA males	Total
2018	2	2	1	0	5
2019	1	1	0	2	4
2020	0	0	2	0	2
2021	4	5	7	4	20
Total	7	8	10	6	31

PhD	Name of student	Title	Degree (PhD)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Alexi Niki	Quality characterization of emerging aquaculture fish products: a multisensory and instrumental approach	PhD Thesis	2018	Grigorakis K.	University of Aarhus	Denmark
	Bounas Anastasios	Promigratory ecology, phylogeography and conservation genetics of the threatened raptor <i>Falco naumanni</i> in Balkans	PhD Thesis	2018	Kotoulas G., Tsaparis D.	University of Ioannina, Department of Biological Applications and Technology	Greece
	Christakis Christos	Study of the geo-biological mechanisms that determine microbial ecosystem structure and biogeochemical metal cycling in seafloor hydrothermal vent fields of the Santorini volcanic complex	PhD Thesis	2018	Kotoulas G., Polymenakou P.	National Kapodistrian University of Athens, Department of Geology and Geoenvironment	Greece
	Kampantais Dimitris	Utilization of microalgae in the diets of farmed fish as a source of natural pigments	PhD Thesis	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece
	De Mello Henrique Paolo	Reproduction of Dusky grouper and larval rearing under different feeding regimes	PhD Candidate	2019	Mylonas, C.C.	University of Sao Paolo	Brazil
	Tarifa Georgia	The biology and the breeding of sea urchin of the species <i>Paracentrotus lividus</i> (Echinodermata, Echinoidea).	PhD candidate	2018	Sterioti A.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
PhD	Vardali Sofia	Development and validation of multi-residue methods (LC-PDA and LC- QTOF-MS) for the simultaneous determination of antimicrobial residues and some of their metabolites in edible tissue of European sea	PhD Thesis	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Department of Chemistry	Greece





Name of student	Title	Degree (PhD)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
Daniso Enrico	Graded level of <i>Hermetia illucens</i> meal in plant protein-based diet lacking fish meal for gilthead sea bream (<i>Sparus aurata</i> , L.): gastrointestinal evaluation	PhD Thesis	2019	Sarropoulou E.	University of Udine	Italy
Santi Ioulia	Eukaryotic microbial plankton and nutrient supply in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea	PhD Thesis	2019	Kasapidis P.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Stavrakidis Zachou Orestis	Investigation of the effect of high temperatures on the metabolism of cultured fish. An experimental and theoretical approach.	PhD candidate	2019	Papandroulakis N.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Kandyliari Katerina	Aquaculture fish byproduct analysis and study of their bioactivity	PhD candidate	2020	Papandroulakis N.	Agricultural University of Athens, Department of Food Science and Human Nutrition	Greece
Tsertou Maria Ioanna	Non-infectious diseases of meagre	PhD Thesis	2020	Katharios P.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
Arboleda Joey	Humane Slaughter Methods for Aquaculture Harvest	PhD candidate	2021	Papandroulakis N.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Philippines
Cascarano Maria Chiara	Epitheliocystis disease in fish, epidemiology, pathology and genomic characterization of the causative agents	PhD Thesis	2021	Katharios P.	University of Crete	Italy
Cascarano Maria Chiara	NGS library construction and genome sequencing of epitheliocystis disease in fish	PhD Thesis	2021	Kristoffersen J.	University of Crete	Italy
Dimitris Kanakis	Development of a method for the determination of hormones in biological samples (fish blood serum) by applying proteomic techniques using tandem mass spectrometry of high resolution	PhD candidate	2021	Kotzamanis Y.	University of Athens, Department of Chemistry	Greece
Fakriadis Ioannis	Reproductive biology of the greater amberjack (Seriola dumerili) in aquaculture	PhD Thesis	2021	Mylonas C.	University of Crete	Greece
Kotouzas Dimitris	Breeding of insects using organic agricultural wastes and exploitation of the produced insect meal in the feed of cultured fish	PhD candidate	2021	Kotzamanis Y.	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece
Lancerotto Stefano	Use of recombinant gonadotropin hormones for the induction of gametogenesis in the greater amberjack (<i>Seriola dumerili</i>)	PhD Thesis	2021	Mylonas C.	University of Crete	Greece
Mastoraki Maria	Insect meal in aquafeeds	PhD Thesis	2021	Chatzifotis S.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
Nousias Orestis	Development and application of genetic tools aiming at the future production improvement in two new species for the Mediterranean aquaculture, the meagre (<i>Argyrosomus regius</i>) and the greater amberjack (<i>Seriola dumerili</i>)	PhD Thesis	2021	Tsigenopoulos C.	University of Crete	Greece
Papadaki Maria	Gene regulation during gonad maturation in reared fish species	PhD candidate	2018	Sarropoulou E.	University of Crete	Greece
Papadouli Christina	Assessment of mycotoxins effects on health and welfare of intensively farmed fish	PhD Thesis	2021	Rigos G.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece
Smyrli Maria	Comparative study on <i>Aeromonas veronii</i> isolates as disease agent in farmed European seabass. Development of autogenous vaccines for the prevention of the disease	PhD Thesis	2021	Katharios P.	University of Crete	Greece
Triga Adriana	Antibiotic resistance development cost in fish pathogenic bacteria	PhD Thesis	2021	Katharios P.	University of Crete	Italy
Feborova Valeria	Faunistics and ecological aspects of the benthic polychaeta communities in the Mediterranean coast of Israel	PhD Thesis	2021	Chatzigeorgiou G.	University of Haifa, Department of Marine Biology	Israel
Varamogianni- Mamatsi Despina	Improvement of water quality and bioproduction of natural products of high added-value through integrated aquaculture of sponges in fish farms	PhD candidate	2020 ongoing	Mandalakis M., Dailianis A.	Technical University of Crete, School of Chemical and Environmental Engineering	Greece
Vasilaki Antigoni	Forage legumes in fish nutrition	PhD candidate	2020 ongoing	Nengas I.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece





PhD	Name of student	Title	Degree (PhD)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Gratsia Eirini	Ecological and molecular approaches to the study of invasive species in the Eastern Mediterranean, with an emphasis on benthic macroinvertebrates	PhD candidate	2022 ongoing	Kasapidis P.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Paragamian Savvas	Microbial community metabolism and its associations to ecosystem functioning and biogeochemical processes	PhD candidate	2022 ongoing	Pafilis E.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Zafeiropoulos Haris	Microbial communities through the lens of high throughput sequencing, data integration, metabolic networks analysis	PhD candidate	2022 ongoing	Pafilis E.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece





b. MSc Programs

- Provide a short description of the activities and the number of students trained at the Institute and awarded a master's degree during the period.

The majority of MSc students are Greek and study at Greek universities number of students, but we also have students that are registered at universities abroad, but carry their Thesis research at IMBBC, being co-supervised by our researchers. The total number of students may appear higher than the sum of student for the two Research Groups, since some students may be working in both groups.

Year	MB&B	MB&B	AQUA	AQUA	Total
	females	males	females	males	
2018	1	3	4	2	10
2019	1	0	2	4	7
2020	2	1	2	2	7
2021	11	7	2	1	21
Total	15	11	10	9	45

MSc	Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Bernadou Emmanuella	Influence of diet and management of greater amberjack (Seriola dumerili) broodstock on the quality and composition of eggs during the reproductive season	MSc Thesis	2018	Mylonas C.	University of Crete	Greece
	Kotari Ioanna	Study of the evolution and expression of paralogous genes with roles during pigmentation in early developmental stages of the three-spine stickleback (<i>Gasterosteus aculeatus</i>).	MSc Thesis	2018	Sarropoulou E.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Montero Nardim Superio Natalia Sofia	Effect of treatment with GnRHa during mid gametogenesis on the reproductive maturation of greater amberjack (<i>Seriola dumerili</i>)	MSc Thesis	2018	Mylonas C.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
1Sc	Natsidis Paschalis	A phylogenomic perspective on Sparidae (Teleostei: Spariformes) positioning within the tree of teleosts: challenges and new insights	MSc Thesis	2018	Manousaki T., Tsigenopoulos C.	University of Crete	Greece
2	Pouli Marina	Histological and molecular aspects of gender differentiation in the greater amberjack (<i>Seriola dumerili</i>).	MSc Thesis	2018	Sarropoulou E.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Roussos Efstratios	Study of the effects of partial replacement of fishmeal by a combination of vegetable proteins and food additives on the growth and health of sea bream (<i>Sparus aurata</i>)	MSc Thesis	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	University of Thessaly, Department of Icthyology	Greece
	Zafeiropoulos Charalampos (Haris)	eDNA metabarcoding for biodiversity assessment: Algorithm design and bioinformatics analysis pipeline implementation	MSc candidate	2018	Pafilis E., Pavloudi C.	University of Crete, Department of Medicine	Greece
	Zanata Eugenio	Enhancement of spermiation in meagre (<i>Argyrosomus regius</i>) by using gonadotropin releasing hormone agonist (GnRHa) implants	MSc Thesis	2018	Mylonas C.	University of Padova	Italy





MSc	Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Kyriakis Dimitrios	Linkage mapping in gilthead seabream with the use of ddRAD sequencing	MSc Thesis	2019	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Lancerotto Stefano	Comparison and evaluation of three commonly used disinfectants on meagre (<i>Argyrosomus regius</i>) eggs	MSc Thesis	2019	Mylonas C.	Universita Politechnica delle Marche, Ancona	Italy
	Natsidis Paschalis	Phylogenomic analysis of teleost genomes	MSc Thesis	2019	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Pasxali Elissavet	Effects of hydrolyzed proteins derived from alternative animal sources in the development and survival of the European sea bass	MSc Thesis	2019	Kotzamanis Y.	University of the Aegean, Department of Marine Sciences	Greece
	Pouli Marina	Histological and molecular aspects of sex differentiation in greater amberjack (Seriola dumerili)	MSc Thesis	2019	Mylonas C.	University of Crete	Greece
	Richardson Andrew	Insect meal in aquafeeds	MSc Thesis	2019	Chatzifotis S.	University of Crete	Greece
	Roussos Ioannis	Effects of organic and inorganic minerals on the immune system of European seabass	MSc Thesis	2019	Henry M.	National and Kapodistrian University of Athens	Greece
	Sarafidou Georgia	Assessment of genetic diversity of the bivalve <i>Pinna nobilis</i> in the Eastern Mediterranean and investigation of the degree of infection by the parasite <i>Haplosporidium pinnae</i>	MSc candidate	2019	Pavloudi C.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Voskakis Dimitris	Fish Size and Shape Estimation with Stereoscopic Vision	MSc candidate	2019	Papandroulakis N.	Hellenic Mediterranean University, School of Engineering	Greece
	Karli Christina	Development and optimization of environmental DNA (eDNA) methodology for the study and biomonitoring of fish fauna in the oligotrophic marine ecosystems of the Eastern Mediterranean	MSc Thesis	2020	Kasapidis P.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Misol Gerald Jr.	Biological and genomic characterization of a novel jumbo bacteriophage, vb_pir03 with broad host lytic activity against <i>Vibrio harveyi</i>	MSc candidate	2020	Katharios P.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Malaysia
	Magoulas Nikolaos	Management of human resources in research organizations with external funding through projects	MSc Thesis	2020	Manousaki T.	Swansea University, Department of Computer Science	UK
	Pananganan Bernadeth G.	Insect meal digestibility	Master Thesis	2020	Chatzifotis S.	University of Crete	Greece
	Spilani Loukia	Seascape genomics of marine invertebrates in coastal Crete	MSc Thesis	2020	Magoulas A., Sarropoulou E., Antoniou A.	University of Crete	Greece
	Superio Joshua	Parentage contribution of European sea bass (<i>Dicentrarchus labrax</i>) broodstocks, and correlation with fertilization success and larval survival	Master Thesis	2020	Mylonas C.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
	Vasilaki Antigoni	Novel aquafeed ingredients	MSc Thesis	2020	Nengas I	University of Thessaly, Department of Icthyology	Greece
	Botsidou Petroula	Temporal variation in the sex ratio of a colonial raptor: the case of Eleonora's falcon	MSc Thesis	2021	Tsaparis D., Kotoulas G.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Chakkalakkal George Joseph	Identification and Characterization of piRNAs in Teleosts	MSc Thesis	2021	Sarropoulou E.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
	Chertz-Bynichaki Melina	Analysis of benthic communities on artificial reefs	MSc Thesis	2021	Dailianis A., Chatzigeorgiou G.	University of the Aegean, Department of Marine Sciences	Greece
	Danis Thodoris	Genome analysis of Lagocephalus sceleratus	MSc Thesis	2021	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Digenis Markos	Comparative study of hard substrate benthos in marine caves of the Karpathos-Saria protected area	MSc candidate	2021	Arvanitidis C., Gerovasileiou V.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece





MSc	Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Droubogiannis Stavros	Resistance development during phage therapy	MSc Thesis	2021	Katharios P.	University of Crete	Greece
	Eleftheriadi Klara	Genome analysis of Sparus aurata	MSc Thesis	2021	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Elisavet Iliopoulou	Comparative genomic analysis of conserved non-coding sequences in teleost genomes	MSc Thesis	2021	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Grecoletto Laura	Reproductive behavior of meagre (Argyrosomus regius) in aquaculture conditions and after GnRHa induction of spawning	Master Thesis	2021	Mylonas C.	University of Padova	Italy
	Mallick Sreeradha	Effect of temperature on the immunity and microRNAs in the European seabass (Dicentrarchus labrax)	MSc Thesis	2021	Sarropoulou E.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
	Chakkalakkal George Joseph	Identification and Characterization of piRNAs in Teleosts	MSc Thesis	2021	Sarropoulou E.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
	Moutsopoulou Ioli	Study of the mass mortality event of the bivalve Pinna nobilis	MSc candidate	2021	Katharios P., Pavloudi C.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Sarropoulou Polyxeni	Genetic diversity patterns of mesopelagic fish in the Greek Seas	Master Thesis	2021	Tsigenopoulos C., Tsaparis D.	University of Crete	Greece
	Terzoglou Vassiliki	Phylogeographic study of the giant red shrimp Aristaeomorpha foliacea, in the Mediterranean Sea	Master thesis	2021	Tsigenopoulos C., Tsaparis D.	University of Crete	Greece
	Theologi Ourania	Chemical text and association rule mining to facilitate the study of metabolic processes in hyperthermophilic microorganisms	MSc Thesis	2021	Pafilis E.	National and Kapodistrian University of Athens	Greece
	Christos Kitsoulis	Genome analysis of Pterois miles	MSc Thesis	2021	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Papadopoulou Andromahi	Epigenomics analysis of gilthead seabream	MSc Thesis	2021	Manousaki T.	University of Crete, School of Medicine	Greece
	Chelmis Nikolaos	Genetic diversity and population structure of Balkan chamois in Greece	MSc Thesis	2021 ongoing	Tsaparis D., Tsigenopoulos C.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Rallis Ioannis	Comparing sampling protocols in extreme environments focused on NIS	MSc Thesis	2021 ongoing	Arvanitidis C., Chatzigeorgiou G.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Tasiouli Aikaterini	Parentage assignment evaluation in commercial meagre (Argyrosomus regius) stocks using different types of genetic markers	MSc Thesis	2021 ongoing	Tsigenopoulos C.	University of Crete	Greece





c. Undergraduate Students, Internships

- Provide a short description of the activities and the number of undergraduate theses supervised, and the internships performed in the Institute during the period.

A number of students come for the BSc Thesis research, or for practical training for 2-4 months during the last year of undergraduate school, or during their MSc studies. The majority are Greek and study at Greek universities, but we also have a great number coming from abroad.

Year	MB&B	MB&B	AQUA	AQUA	Total
	females	males	females	males	
2018	4	4	15	8	31
2019	3	5	15	5	28
2020	6	2	11	7	26
2021	6	9	8	12	35
Total	19	20	49	32	120

	Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc, BSc, internships)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Debernardis Rossella	Behavioral and Histological studies on fish and fish larvae	Practical training	2018	Papadakis I.	Polytechnic University of Marche, Department of Life and Environmental Sciences	Italy
	Delli Compagni Martina	Behavioral and Histological studies on fish and fish larvae	Practical training	2018	Papadakis I.	Polytechnic University of Marche, Department of Life and Environmental Sciences	Italy
	Digenis Markos	Effect of ocean acidification on the metatranscriptome of the gastropod <i>Hexaplex trunculus</i> - Study of benthic macrofaunal communities	Practical training BSc	2018	Chatzinikolaou E., Pavloudi C.	University of Crete, Department of Chemistry	Greece
	Dimitriadis Theodosios	The colonization of the jellyfish <i>Aurelia aurita</i> polyps on different types of substrates at Cretaquarium.	Practical training BSc	2018	Sterioti A.	Agricultural University of Athens, Department of Animal Production Science and Aquaculture	Greece
ning	Gonzalez Munoz Pablo	Effect of temperature on lipid requirements	Practical training	2018	Chatzifotis S.	University of Alicante	Spain
tical traiı	Grizi Olga	Practical learning of Marine Aquariology. Aquarium maintenance and participation in the research projects carried out in the Cretaquarium (tropical fish rearing, embryonic development of triton <i>Charonia seguenzae</i>).	Practical training BSc	2018	Sterioti A.	University of Ioannina, Department of Biological Applications and Technologies	Greece
Pract	Keroglidou Maria	DNA barcoding of freshwater ichthyofauna	Practical training BSc	2018	Tsaparis D.	University of Ioannina, Department of Biological Applications and Technology	Greece





Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc, BSc, internships)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
Laiolo Elisa	Monitoring of experimental trials, feeding, parasitic measurements	Practical training BSc	2018	Rigos G.	Università Politecnica delle Marche	Italy
Liapi Aspasia	Behavioral and Histological studies on fish and fish larvae	Practical training	2018	Papadakis I.	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece
Panourgia Dafni	Biochemical Analysis and aquafeed production	Practical training	2018	Nengas I.	University of Peloponese	Greece
Pouli Marina	Finding of orthologous and paralogous genes in fish with important functional roles during fish development	Rotation	2018	Sarropoulou E.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Roussos Efstratios	Nutritional studies of farmed fish	Practical training	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece
Ruiz Orta Diego	The behavior of clownfish <i>Amphiprion oscelaris</i> and <i>Amphiprion klarkii</i> under controlled conditions at Cretaquarium.	Practical training MSc	2018	Sterioti A.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Mexico
Sarafidou Georgia	Population genetics of Pinna nobilis from the Marine Protected Area of Karpathos	Practical training MSc	2018	Pavloudi C.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Skiani Evaggelia	Nutritional studies of farmed fish	Practical training	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Department of Biology	Greece
Tommasi Ilaria	Reproduction of sea urchins Paracentrotus lividus.	Practical training BSc	2018	Sterioti A.	Università degli Studi di Torino, Department of Veterinary Science	Italy
Tsoukala Katerina	Nutritional studies of farmed fish	Practical training	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology,	Greece
Vatougios Filippos	Nutritional studies of farmed fish	Practical training	2018	Kotzamanis Y.	University of the Aegean, Department of Marine Sciences	Greece
Zafeiriou Alexandros	CATA and RATA sensory analysis in foods	Practical Training	2018	Grigorakis K.	University of Peloponese, Department of Food Technology	Greece
Zafeiriou Alexandros	Biochemical Analysis and aquafeed production	Practical training	2018	Nengas I.	University of Peloponese	Greece
Balamvanou Annita	Training in biochemical analysis of feeds and fish	Practical taining	2019	Fountoulaki E.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece
Calloni Luca	Broodstock management	Practical training	2019	Mylonas C.	Università Politecnica delle Marche	Italy
Kalaintzakis Ioannis	Population diversity assessment of the phanerogam <i>Posidonia</i> oceanica at the marine protected area of Karpathos-Saria	Practical training BSc	2019	Pavloudi C.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Kalaintzakis Ioannis	The effect of salinity on the growth of allochthonus freshwater fish of the species <i>Gambusia affinis</i> (S.F. Baird & Girard, 1853).	Practical training BSc	2019	Sterioti A.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Kalaitzakis Ioannis	Systematic and taxonomy of polychaetes	Practical training	2019	Chatzigeorgiou G.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
Keisaris Sofoklis	Study on the synergistic antibacterial activity of essential oils against fish pathogens	Practical training BSc	2019	Mandalakis M.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
Kopper Svenja	Broodstock management	Practical training	2019	Mylonas C.	University of Bremen	Germany
Medvecký Matej	Development of a peptide selection tool for designing function-based targeted proteomic assays in complex microbial systems	Mobility &Training Erasmus+	2019	Mandalakis M.	University of Veterinary and Pharmaceutical Science Brno	Czech Reput
Mela Dorothea	Study of benthic macrofaunal communities from the marine protected area of Karpathos-Saria	Practical training BSc	2019	Pavloudi C.	University of the Aegean, Department of Marine Sciences	Greece
Orfanakis Michail	Rearing conditions of Amphiprion sp. (clownfish) at Cretaquarium.	Practical training BSc	2019	Sterioti A.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece





Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc, BSc, internships)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
Pugh Sarahjane	Marine Aquariology: maintenance and growth of the Cretaquarium fauna.	Practical training MSc	2019	Sterioti A.	ERASMUS+/ACES	UK
Rana Saverio	Broodstock management	Practical training	2019	Mylonas C.	Università Politecnica delle Marche	Italy
Rappai Raghi	Practical learning of Marine Aquariology and the various backstage Cretaquarium activities for the maintenance and growth of its fauna.	Practical training MSc	2019	Sterioti A.	ERASMUS+/ACES	India
Sarracino Roberta	Broodstock management	Practical training	2019	Mylonas C.	Università Politecnica delle Marche	Italy
Tasiouli Aikaterini	An introduction to SSR data analysis from wild and cultured populations of the species Dicentrarchus labrax	Practical training BSc	2019	Tsigenopoulos C.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
Valenzuala Diego	Phage isolation and characterization	Practical training PhD	2019	Katharios P.	University of Conception	Chile
Chakkalakkal George Joseph	In silico investigations of piwi RNAs in Teleost	Practical Training	2020	Sarropoulou E.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
Diamantopoulou Christina	Practical learning of Marine Aquariology. Cretaquarium maintenance and participation in the research projects carried out at the aquarium (rearing of tropical fish, cuttlefish, dogfish, climate change effect on marine snails, etc.).	Practical training BSc	2020	Sterioti A.	University of Ioannina, Department of Biological Applications and Technologies	Greece
Gabed Noujoud	NGS library construction and genome sequencing of diatom	Practical training	2020	Kristoffersen J.	Higher School of Biological Sciences of Oran	Algeria
Giaglara Mathildi Eirini	Fish nutrition	Practical training	2020	Chatzifotis S.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
Hobdy Anne	Rearing of clownfish Amphiprion oscellaris and Amphiprion bicinctus under controlled conditions at Cretaquarium.	Practical training MSc	2020	Sterioti A.	ERASMUS+/ACES	USA
Huguet Sánchez Rocio	Fish nutrition	Practical training	2020	Chatzifotis S.	University of Alicante	Spain
Karaiskou Victoria	Marine Aquariology: maintenance and growth of the Cretaquarium fauna.	Practical training BSc	2020	Sterioti A.	University of the Aegean, Department of Oceanography and Marine Sciences	Greece
Lokuh Santamali	Broodstock management	Practical training	2020	Mylonas C.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
Mallick Sreeradha	Effect of temperature on the immunity and miRNAs in the early life- stage development in the European seabass (Dicentrarchus labrax)	Practical Training	2020	Sarropoulou E.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
Marquez Rodriguez Izaskun	The <i>Amphiprion chrysopterus</i> reproduction and larval rearing under controlled conditions at Cretaquarium.	Practical training BSc	2020	Sterioti A.	Kardala LHII, Akuakultura eta Elikagaien Industriak, Mutriku	Spain
Nikolaidi Marieta	Behavioral and Histological studies on fish and fish larvae	Practical training	2020	Papadakis I.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece
Patsiou Vasiliki	Behavioral studies about the effects of stocking density in the growth performance of gilthead sea bream (<i>Sparus aurata</i>) and European sea bass (<i>Dicentrarchus labrax</i>) juveniles.	Practical training	2020	Papadakis I.	Queen's University of Belfast	Ireland
Procopiou Avgi	Marine benthic communities' assessment	Erasmus+ Training ship	2020	Dailianis A.	European University Cyprus	Cyprus
Sfakianaki Maria	Behavioral and Histological studies on fish and fish larvae	Practical training	2020	Papadakis I.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece
Superio Joshua	Broodstock management	Practical training	2020	Mylonas C.	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
Alexandridis Damianos	DNA barcoding of marine fishes of the Mediterranean Sea	Practical training BSc	2021	Kasapidis P.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Department of Biology	Greece
Basilakopoulos Evangelos	Biochemical Analysis and aquafeed production	Practical training	2021	Nengas I.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece Greec




	Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc, BSc, internships)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Bilbao Jone	DNA metabarcoding and bioinformatics on water samples for the assessment of phytoplankton communities	Practical training PhD	2021	Pavloudi C.	University of the Basque Country (UPV/EHU), Phytoplankton Ecology research group	Spain
	Chatzibalassis Dimitris	Antibacterial activity of insect's bioactive components against fish pathogens	Practical training BSc	2021	Henry M.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
	Ciribilli Irene	Deciphering the functional potential of a hypersaline swamp microbial mat community using a combination of culture dependent and culture independent approaches	Practical training Erasmus+	2021	Dailianis A., Pavloudi C.	Università degli Studi di Perugia, Faculty of Chemistry, Biology and Biotechnology	Italy
	Di Dato Valeria	NGS library construction and genome sequencing of diatom	Practical training	2021	Kristoffersen J.	Stazione Zoologica 'Anton Dhorn	Italy
	Gasparis Ioannis	Biochemical Analysis and aquafeed production	Practical training	2021	Nengas I.	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece
	Gatouillat Hugo	Antibacterial activity of insect's bioactive components against fish pathogens	Practical training BSc	2021	Henry M.	Agrocampus Ouest Rennes	France
	Karafios George	Nutritional studies of farmed fish	Practical training	2021	Kotzamanis Y.	University of Patras, Department of Animal Production, Fisheries and Aquaculture	Greece
	Koutroumani Stella	Biochemical Analysis and aquafeed production	Practical training	2021	Nengas I.	University of Thessaly, Department of Ichthyology	Greece
	Laoutidis Nikolaos	Insect meal in aquafeeds	Practical training	2021	Chatzifotis S.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
	Le Roy Romane	Effect of climate change and ocean acidification on the feeding and predation behavior of marine gastropods.	Practical training MSc	2021	Chatzinikolaou E.	University Agrocampus Ouest (Rennes)	France
	Liolis Alexandros	First acquaintances with molecular techniques	Practical training	2021	Sarropoulou E.	Democritus University of Thrace	Greece
	Maroulasof Leonidas	Insect meal in aquafeeds	Practical training	2021	Chatzifotis S.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
	Martinez Martinez Alejandro	Fish nutrition	Practical training	2021	Chatzifotis S.	University of Alicante	Spain
	Paias Christos	Activities of Digestive and antioxidant enzymes in fish fed on alternative diets	Practical training BSc	2021	Cotou E.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
	Tselepidaki Charoula	Comparing benthic communities at three different habitats (FutureMares)	Practical Training	2021	Chatzigeorgiou G.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Department of Biology	Greece
	Chatzivasileiou Dimitra	Holothuria's biology: Correlation of residence time in the sand of Holothuria polii with the supply of organic matter in the sediment.	BSc Thesis	2018	Sterioti A.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Kostidis Constantinos	Development of analytical method for the detection of tetrodotoxin in Lagocephalus sceleratus	BSc Thesis	2018	Mandalakis M.	University of Crete	Greece
	Oikonomopoulou ioanna	Effect of cooking in nutritional value of gilthead sea bream and meagre	BSc Thesis	2018	Grigorakis K.	Harokopeion University of Athens	Greece
	Zafeiriou Alexandros	Development of RATA methodology for sensory evaluation of mushrooms	BSc Thesis	2018	Grigorakis K.	University of Peloponese, Department of Food Technology	Greece
3Sc	Digenis Markos	Biodiversity and environmental gradients in a marine cave of Crete	BSc	2019	Arvanitidis C., Gerovasileiou V.	University of Crete, Department of Chemistry	Greece
	Sotiriadis Sotiris	phage therapy against Vibrio harveyi	BSc Thesis	2019	Katharios P.	University of Crete	Greece





	Name of student	Title	Degree (MSc, BSc, internships)	Year of graduation/presence in IMBBC	Supervisor from IMBBC	University	Country
	Voulgaridi Chara	The effect of size and presence of more than one triton <i>Charonia</i> seguenzae (Aradas & Benoit, 1872) on their hunting ability on alive Holothuria polii (Delle Chiaje, 1823).	BSc Thesis	2019	Sterioti A.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Anagnostopoulou Argiro	Studying the effect of cultivation conditions on carotenoids production by marine microalgae.	BSc Thesis	2020	Mandalakis M.	University of Crete	Greece
	Igoumenakis Michael	Larval rearing of Mediterranean species	BSc	2020	Papandroulakis N.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Kalaintzakis Ioannis	The effect of the presence of <i>Entacmaea quadricolor</i> anemone and the fish-density on territorial/spatial behavior and on the mobility of the clownfish <i>Amphiprion bicinctus</i> at Cretaquarium.	BSc Thesis	2020	Sterioti A.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Karastergiou Anna	Studying the biological and chemical response of bacteria cultivated under an increasing deficit of carbon.	BSc Thesis	2020	Mandalakis M.	University of Crete	Greece
	Lazaridou Kyriaki	Factors affecting growth hormone in farmed fish	BSc Thesis	2020	Kotzamanis Y.	University of the Aegean, Department of Marine Sciences	Greece
	Charalambous Maria	Ethologic characterisation and metabolic rate of g. amberjack	BSc	2021	Papandroulakis N.	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Gennaraki Marianna	Polychaetes communities in NMP of Karpathos - Saria	BSc Thesis	2021	Dailianis A., Chatzigeorgiou G.	Department of Biology, University of Crete	Greece
	Kouvarakis Nikos	Study on the removal of dissolved organic compounds from aquatic systems using marine sponge	BSc Thesis	2021	Mandalakis M.	University of Crete	Greece
	Lioret Arthur	Cage rearing of Mediterranean aquaculture species	BSc	2021	Papandroulakis N.	Ecole d'Ingenieurs de PURPAN	France,
	Manthos Constantinos	The rearing of <i>Salaria fluviatilis</i> (Asso, 1801) under controlled conditions at Cretaquarium.	BSc Thesis	2021	Sterioti A.	University of Ioannina, Department of Biological Applications and Technologies	Greece
	Saridaki Paraskevi	Analysis of Vibrio harveyi genomes	BSc Thesis	2021	Katharios P.	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece
	Tsotoulidis Panayiotis	Nutritional studies of farmed fish	Practical training	2021	Kotzamanis Y.	University of Thessaly, Department Ichthyology	Greece
	Alexandridis Damianos	DNA barcoding of marine fishes of the Mediterranean Sea	BSc Thesis	2022 ongoing	Kasapidis P.	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Department of Biology	Greece
COST STSM	Christou Andreas	Deciphering <i>Posidonia oceanica</i> bacterial community to advance biodiscovery in the Levantine basin	COST STSM	2021	Pavloudi C.	Cyprus University of Technology, Department of Chemical Engineering	Cyprus





d. Other Mentoring activities and actions to support career development of the trainees

- *Provide* α short description of other activities, including training courses, summer schools, etc. in the Institute during the period

Lectures and seminars

Apart from supervising the Dissertation or Thesis research of postgraduate students, several of the institute's researchers are active in giving lectures and seminars in undergraduate and graduate programs in Greece and abroad, to social events or other educational events (primary and secondary level). Specific examples follow below:

-Dr. C. Arvanitidis participates in three MSc curricula operated by (a) the Department of Biology, University of Salento, (b) the Department of Biology, UoC and (c) by the Department of Environment, Ionian University.

-Dr. S. Chatzifotis participated in seminars on fish nutrition at the UoC undergraduate and graduate courses for the years 2018-2020.

-Dr. E. Chatzinikolaou designed and implemented a series of educational activities (online, in the class and on the beach) for primary school students under the framework of the Nautilos (H2020) project Citizen Science actions focused on the plastic pollution of the oceans. More specifically Dr. E. Chatzinikolaou has established synergies with EU4Ocean, European Maritime Day - In My Country 2021, World Ocean Day 2021, European Marine Science Educators Association (EMSEA) initiatives. She also participates in the national school project CONNECT within the framework of Synergies in the H2020 project Nautilos, through the support of two thematic sections: 1) Microplastics, the invisible threat, and 2) Climate change in the oceans.

-Dr. V. Gerovasileiou has participated in "Online training course on data formatting, QC and publishing", co-organized by the Flanders Marine Institute (VLIZ), the "Istituto Nazionale di Oceanografia e di Geofisica Sperimentale" (OGS) and HCMR in the framework of "EMODnet Biology III" project, 8-19/6/2020 and to a Seminar to undergraduate students from Boston's Northeastern University at IMBBC-HCMR in Crete by Dr. V. Gerovasileiou, Dr. T. Dailianis (MB&B) and Dr. N. Papandroulakis (AQUA), 23 July 2019.

-Dr. P. Katharios has been a member of the Governing Committee of the Environmental Biology Post Graduate Course of the UoC (2019-2020), and a co-organizer of the Fish Health and Welfare module of the International postgraduate course ACES+ (2020). In addition, he has been involved in the following activities

- **2019,** Participation at the postgraduate course "Sustainable Management of Aquatic Environment" of the Agricultural School of the University of Thessaly as invited lecturer for the course "Hygiene of aquatic ecosystems".
- **2016-today**, lecturer in the Erasmus+ Joint Master Degree in Aquaculture, Environment and Society (University of Crete). Lecture and Practicals on Fish Diseases, Vaccine development and Alternative treatments.
- **2015-today**, International Course on the Care and Use of Laboratory Animals, Crete, Greece, Lecture Title: Zebrafish Diseases, Prophylaxis and Treatment.
- **2004- today**, Participation in the Post Graduate Program "Environmental Biology: Management of terrestrial and marine biological resources" of the



Department of Biology, UoC as a collaborating researcher with the lecture "Fish Diseases".

• **2010-today**, Participation in the Bachelor Course of the Department of Biology, UoC as a guest Lecturer at the course "Marine Biotechnology" with 2 lectures per year (Phage Biotechnology and Vaccine production for Aquaculture fish).

-Dr. T. Manousaki participates since 2016 actively in the MSc program of Bioinformatics of the Department of Medicine, UoC with a total of 45 hours of teaching per year.

-Mrs D. Mavraki has contributed to four workshops on FAIR data at LifeWatch & ENVRIPLUS International Summer School-Data FAIRness for Environmental & Earth Science Infrastructures (Italy, 2019), at the Assemble plus FAIR workshop (Belgium, 2019), at the online workshop Contributing datasets to EMODnet Biology (2020) and the online workshop ENVRI Community International School on Services for FAIRness (2021).

-Dr. C.C. Mylonas has conducted 14 seminars in total for the period 2018-2021. From those, six were held at the University of Crete, Department of Biology either for the Joint Master's Program in "Aquaculture, Environment and Society (ERASMUS MUNDUS, ACES)" or for the graduate seminar series of the department. In 2018, he gave lectures at the graduate seminar series of the Department of Biology, University of Cyprus, at the Scientific School Aquaculture RISE of the International Marine Center in Sardinia, Italy, at the undergraduate course "Aquaculture" of the Department of Aquaculture, University of Bologna and at the Course "Advances in Fish Reproduction and Their Application to Broodstock Management" of the Mediterranean Agronomic Institute of Zaragoza, CIHEAM, Spain. In 2020 he gave again a lecture at the graduate course "Aquaculture" of the Department of Aquaculture" of the Department of Aquaculture" of the Department of Aquaculture of the Department of Aquaculture of the Department of Aquaculture at the graduate course "Aquaculture" of the Department of Aquaculture of the Department of Aquaculture of Zaragoza, CIHEAM, Spain. In 2020 he gave again a lecture at the graduate course "Aquaculture" of the Department of Aquaculture of the University of Bologna and a webinar on the EASTalk Webinars Series of the European Aquaculture Society. Finally, in 2021 he repeated the webinar and held a lecture for the undergraduate course "Aquaculture" of the Faculty of Veterinary Medicine and Animal Science at the Swedish University of Agriculture Sciences.

-Dr. I. Papadakis was an invited speaker at the Scientific School Aquaculture RISE in Italy (2018) and in the New Zealand Institute for Plant & Food Research, New Zealand (2019).

-Dr. N. Papandroulakis hosted a group of students from NorthEastern University (in 2019) and offered lectures together with Dr. Thanos Dalianis and Dr V. Gerovassiliou.

-Dr. V. Polymenakou is a lecturer at the undergraduate classes "Geobiology" at the Department of Geology and Geoenvironment, National and Kapodistrian University of Athens since 2021 and "Marine Biotechnology", Department of Biology, UoC since 2010.

-Dr. G. Rigos has conducted lectures (8 hours in total) in the Joint Master Degree, AquaCulture, Environment and Society (ACES), CIHEAM – Mediterranean Agronomic Institute of Zaragoza, (Spain) and the MSc program "Mediterranean Aquaculture" of the Department of Ichthyology & Aquatic Environment, University of Thessaly (Greece).

Workshops

IMBBC conducted multiple Bioinformatics seminars where prestigious researchers presented to an audience from the whole country during the summer period. This activity was opened to the whole Greek community and will continue when limitations due to the pandemic will be lifted.



-Dr. A. (Cilia) Antoniou co-organizes and lectures at the EMBO Advanced Practical Course on Computational Molecular Evolution (CoME) that is hosted in IMBBC, HCMR every two years. During 2018-2020 two such courses were funded after successful applications to EMBO respective calls. However, the 2020 course was canceled due to the This hands-on computational course aims to provide early-career stage pandemics. researchers with the theoretical knowledge and practical skills to carry out molecular evolutionary analyses on sequence data. In addition, the course offers a unique opportunity for direct interaction with some of the world-leading scientists and authors of famous analysis tools in Evolutionary Bioinformatics. The demand for such training is large and growing, as are the sequence databases and researchers' awareness of the important insights that can be gained from phylogenetic and molecular evolutionary techniques. The course intensifies collaboration between early career stage biologists and bioinformaticians. The course is also suitable for established researchers and instructors who would like to refresh their memory of modern statistical methods for phylogenetic analysis of genomic sequence data and to interact with developers of such methods.

-Dr. A. Gioti has been elected (2019-2021) as member of the **Board of Directors of the Hellenic Bioinformatics (HBio) society**, whose aim is to strengthen bioinformatics training in Greece, among others. To that end, Dr. A. Gioti co-organized an online "bridge" event for the HBio society.

-Mrs N. Keklikoglou organized a micro-CT workshop on 29 October 2019 in HCMR (Heraklion, Crete) for micro-CT users during the BIOIMAGING-GR project. The invited speakers presented their work which was relevant with tomographic data providing tips and tricks to the audience about the creation of a micro-CT dataset and the post-processing steps (*e.g.* 3D analysis, segmentation).

Mentoring activities

-Dr. C.C. Mylonas, participates in the **European Aquaculture Society's "Adopt a student" program**. Under this program, accomplished researchers are matched with post-graduate students that have similar professional interests, in order to help them with decisions relevant to their education, research, interviews and career development.





The students below have not spent any time at IMBCC, but our researchers were co-supervisors or have participated in their evaluation committee as external members.

	Name of student	Title	Degree (PhD, MSc, BSc)	Year of graduation/study	Name of IMBBC Researcher/Postdoc	Role of Researcher/post doc	University	Country
	Biancarosa Irene	Insects reared on seaweed as novel feed ingredients for Atlantic salmon	PhD	2020	Henry, M.	President of Evaluation Committee	University of Bergen	Norway
	Chatziantoniou Andromachi	Investigating the feasibility of environmental monitoring of aquaculture farms using satellite data for the sustainable development of the sector	PhD cand	2020	Papandroulakis, N.	PhD Co-supervisor	Dep of Marine Science, University of Aegean	Greece
	Toomey Lola	Unlocking the wild potential: integration of geographic differentiation in domestication processes to facilitate fish aquaculture diversification	PhD	2020	Tsigenopoulos, C.	PhD external evaluator	Universite Lorraine a Nancy	France
	Dourou Marianna	Studies on the growth of marine microalgae strains cultivated on fish farm effluents and production of high added value products"	PhD (completed)	2021	Kotzamanis Y.	PhD Co-supervisor	Department of Biology University of Patras	Greece
	Oikonomou Stavroula	Uses and Applications of genetic and genomic approaches in Improvement programs of farmed fish	PhD	2021	Tsigenopoulos, C.	PhD Co-supervisor	Aristotle University of Thessaloniki	Greece
	Ramos Júdez Sandra	Control of reproduction in the flathead grey mullet <i>Mugil cephalus</i> . Broodstock management, hormonal therapies and transcriptomic signature	PhD	2021	Tsigenopoulos, C.	PhD external evaluator	Universitat Autonoma de Barcelona	Spain
Clif	Digenis Markos	Biodiversity of sea caves in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea	PhD Thesis	2021 ongoing	Dailianis, T.	PhD Co-supervisor	Ionian University, Department of Environment	Greece
	Feborova Valeria	Faunistics and ecological aspects of the benthic polychaeta communities in the Mediterranean coast of Israel	PhD Thesis	2021 ongoing	Chatzigeorgiou G.	PhD Co-supervisor	Department of Marine Biology, University of Haifa	Israel
	Tampou Anna	Organic Aquaculture	PhD	PhD candidate	Nengas, I.	PhD Co-supervisor	University of Thessaly, Dept Icthyology	Greece
	Asimaki Mado	Fish nutrition with processed animal protein originated from insects	PhD cand	PhD ongoing	Henry, M.	PhD external evaluator	Agronomic University of Volos	Greece
	Loufi Katerina	The use of copepods during greater amberjack (<i>Seriola dumerili</i>) larval rearing procedure	PhD cand	PhD ongoing	Papadakis I	PhD Co-supervisor	Department of Biology University of Patras	Greece
	Vallecillos Quijada Antonio	New challenges in genetic selection to improve the competitiveness of the aquaculture sector	PhD cand	PhD ongoing	Tsigenopoulos, C.	PhD external evaluator	Universidad Politécnica de Cartagena	Spain
	Siaperas Romanos	Discovery of biocatalysts of industrial interest in marine fungi using omic technologies	PhD cand	PhD ongoing	Gioti A.	PhD Co-supervisor (with G. Kotoulas at IMBBC)	NTUA, Chemical Engineering School	Greece
	Theodoridi Antonia	Competitive behavior, ethological patterns and the role of glucocorticosteroid receptors	PhD cand	PhD ongoing	Tsigenopoulos, C.	PhD Co-supervisor	Department of Biology University of Crete	Greece
	Goulia Andromachi	Bioenergetics in Fish Nutrition	MSc	2018	Nengas, I.	Thesis co-supervisor	University of Patra	Greece
MSc	Kakaridi Eleni	The effect of aeration on the digestive system of Gilthead sea bream (<i>Sparus aurata</i>) and sea bass (<i>Dicentrarchus labrax</i>)	MSc	2018	Papadakis, I.	Thesis co-supervisor	Department of Biology University of Patras	Greece
	Keet Thomas	The development of a larval feeding regimen for dusky Kob, <i>Argyrosomus japonicus</i> , with a specific focus on the effect of weaning period on larval development and survival	MSc	2018	Papadakis, I.	Thesis external evaluator	Rhodes university	South Africa





	Kotari Ioanna	Study of the evolution and expression of paralogous genes with roles during the pigmentation in early developmental stages of the three-spined stickleback (<i>Gasterosteus aculeatus</i>).	MSc Thesis	2018	Sarropoulou E.	Thesis supervisor	Department of Biology University of Crete	Greece
	Pouli Marina	Histological and molecular aspects of gender differentiation in the greater amberjack (<i>Seriola dumerili</i>).	MSc Thesis	2018	Sarropoulou E.	Thesis co-supervisor	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
	Badogiannis Nikos	Real-Time Embedded System for Hole Detection in Fish Cage Nets	MSc	2019	Papandroulakis, N.	Thesis co-supervisor	TUC, School of Electrical and Computer Engineering	
	Paspalakis Stavros	Real time video processing for recognition and localization of problems in aquaculture nets	MSc	2020	Papandroulakis, N.	Thesis co-supervisor	TUC, School of Electrical and Computer Engineering	
	Shina Chara	The ontogeny of Gilthead Sea bream (Sparus aurata) eye	MSc	2020	Papadakis, I.	Thesis co-supervisor	Department of Biology University of Patras	Greece
	Chakkalakkal George Joseph	Identification and Characterization of piRNAs in Teleosts	MSc Thesis	2021	Sarropoulou E.	Thesis supervisor	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
	Garpousis Konstantinos	Integrated MultiTrophic Aquaculture_Exploration of co-culture bivalves and finfish	MSc	2021	Cotou E.	Thesis co-supervisor & Committe Evaluator	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece
	Mallick Sreeradha	Effect of temperature on the immunity and microRNAs in the European seabass (<i>Dicentrarchus labrax</i>)	MSc Thesis	2021	Sarropoulou E.	Thesis supervisor	ERASMUS+/ACES	Greece
	Papachristou Elektra	Planktonic microbial community daily cycle in aquaculture	MSc Thesis	2021 ongoing	Pafilis E., Zafeiropoulos H.	Thesis co-supervision & Committe Evaluator (Pafilis E.)	University of Crete, Department of Biology	Greece
3Sc	Maravelia Aggeliki	WNT Signaling patterns in fish tissue	BSc	2019	Pavloudi, C.	Thesis supervisor	Department of Marine Sciences, University of the Aegean	Greece
-	Liapi Aspasia	Chemical composition of mussels & oysters co-cultured in finfish and shellfish parks	BSc	2021	Cotou E.	Thesis co-supervisor	Agricultural University of Athens	Greece



5.3 Innovation and Intellectual Property

Provide information about the following:

a. New IP, patents generated during the period:

Provide information including Names of Inventors, Title of IP, Date filed.

Fish Texture Evaluation Tool (FTET)

The Fish Texture Evaluation Tool (FTET, **Photo 1**) is a rapid non-destructive methodology for assessing texture of fish. Texture is evaluated by application non-destructive on fish surface / flesh. Texture is a quality attribute that can be related either to freshness or to dietary history or aquaculture management of the product and this is done by the means of stochastic modeling. An initial IP (protected by national patent since 2016, Patent nr: OBI 1009084) is owned by the two developers of the methodology (**Dr. K. Grigorakis from IMBBC** and Dr. Dimitrios Dimogianopoulos, University of West Attika). The continuation of the on-going project (bound to different research projects) has led to an industrial prototype (see **Photo** below) that has finished lab-scale testing and is being tested under an industrial environment. This prototype is also going to be IP protected by a patent that is going to be filed in the near future. The aspiration is to further exploit this technology, probably by selling the IP to a commercial partner or make a new start-up.



Photo 1. The FTET under operation during industrial trial. The laptop with the

FTET-software interface (in front) are visible during European sea bass freshness evaluation in a packaging and processing plant of a large commercial aquaculture operation.

b. Creation of new spin-off and start-up companies during the period:

Provide information including Company Name, Institute Members role, short (one paragraph) description about the scope of the Company.

Three new spin-off companies – the first ever in the HCMR- have been established during the reporting period. A brief description follows.





Spin-off 1 - Aquatic Biologicals



https://www.aquatic-biologicals.com/

Aquatic Biologicals SA is a newly founded marine biotechnology company, spin-off of the Hellenic Centre for Marine Research.

Aquaculture has become the leading export power of the Agri-Food sector in Greece. The Greek but also the whole Mediterranean industry is being expanded both in volume and in diversity as more novel fish species are currently being introduced in the production process. From the marketing and sales viewpoint this has very positive prospects, however it comes along with a significant risk, the risk of diseases. The fragmentation of the market is the biggest impediment for the Pharma industry to invest and develop new tools that will be needed to support this expansion. This is because licensing is time-consuming, and extremely costly.

This is the gap that Aquatic Biologicals aspires to fill in. For the past 15 years, **Dr. P. Katharios** and the research team of Aquaculture Microbiology lab of IMBBC, has been specializing in the management of diseases in the Mediterranean aquaculture developing innovative tools that are eco-friendly and can be used as preventive and therapeutic tools.

Aquatic Biologicals, develops autogenous vaccines which are custom-made vaccines that can be used without a license in cases where registered vaccines for the specific disease are not commercially available. The limitation is that autogenous vaccines can be prepared only using the pathogen isolated from the affected farm and can be used and sold only in that specific farm. In Greece the registered vaccines are only for 2 diseases, therefore all other diseases can be prevented only with autogenous products.

Apart from vaccines, Aquatic Biological develops phage therapy products. Bacteriophages or phages are viruses that infect and kill bacteria. They are nature's oldest and most efficient bacterial "predators". They are highly host-specific, meaning that not only they infect bacteria alone, they target specific strains and species. Phage therapy can be used prophylactically both and



therapeutically against bacterial diseases. It is a highly efficient alternative to antibiotics. The most attractive characteristic of phage therapy is that it is highly targeted. With phages you can eliminate bacterial pathogens without harming beneficial bacteria of the environment or the gut of the host.

Finally, Aquatic Biologicals provides advanced diagnostic services to the aquaculture companies. This service is complementary to the previously described activities. Novel - omics technologies are employed for identifying and study pathogens and diseases. Pathogenic strains of bacteria are being kept in biobank with cryopreservation. Aquatic Biologicals works closely with the aquaculture companies providing customized solutions for the sustainability of their businesses.





Aquatic Biologicals capitalizes on the research results obtained by the Aquaculture Microbiology lab in IMBBC-HCMR over the past 15 years but also the very strong bonds

developed with the aquaculture industry. Right after its establishment (May 2019), Aquatic Biologicals submitted a proposal in the General Secretariat of Research and Technology program (Research-Innovate-Create, Activity III, Valorization of Research Results), which after the evaluation was ranked 1st with a mark of 4.75/5.00. Through this proposal AB secured state funds of \in 835.605 which represents 45%



of the total budget needed to invest in a production plant for its products. Since both phages and vaccines are pharmaceuticals, they should be produced in a GMP (Good Manufacturing Practice) compliant facility. This requires a significant investment for facilities, equipment, personnel and quality systems. In December 2020, Aquatic Biologicals and IRIDA SA, a Greek fish feed manufacturer came into agreement and IRIDA became the main investor of the company. Aquatic Biologicals has been transformed to a Limited Liability Company and currently is in the process of building a state-of-the-art GMP-compliant facility for aquaculture vaccine production.

Spin-off 2 - Artificial Reef Innovative Applications (ARIA)



The recent degradation of many recreational diving destinations all over the world due to impacts from massive tourism necessitated the adoption of new management measures. The HCMR has developed an innovative technology for the creation of **artificial underwater ecotourism attractions (oases)** using specially constructed **artificial reefs** in an attempt to simulate the functional and morphological characteristics, and the aesthetics of the natural rocky reefs. This new technology has been tested, validated and demonstrated successfully in the **Underwater Biotechnological Park of HCMR in Crete**. Furthermore, HCMR industrial property rights have been already protected by a European patent granted centrally by EPO (designated countries Greece, Spain, France, Italy, Malta, Cyprus, Turkey and Croatia) while a patent application to USPTO is expected to be granted within 2022.

In this context, HCMR has developed and demonstrated two innovative concepts: "HCMR-Recreational Diving OasisTM" and "HCMR-Artificial Reef for Recreational DivingTM". These products are currently promoted in the market by a new spinoff private company named "<u>ARTIFICIAL</u> <u>REEF INNOVATIVE APPLICATIONS</u> (<u>ARIA</u>)". The company is co-founded by HCMR and **Dr. C. Dounas** (IMBBC



Research Director and inventor) together with a team of high level scientists and engineers in the fields of Marine Biology and Ecology, artificial habitat technology, technical project





management and scientific diving with the aim to exploit technological knowledge and further develop new products and services. Up today, the spinoff participates in six projects aiming at constructing "Recreational Diving Oases with HCMR artificial Reefs" in the Region of Crete (Apokoronas, Agios Nikolaos, Gournes, Stalida, Mononaftis and Ierapetra). It is estimated that for the period 2022-23 a network of more than ten (10) recreational Diving Parks will be constructed only within the Crete Region with a total budget of more than $\notin 2,5$ M.

ARIA is aiming at collaborating with public authorities and private firms located in other maritime Regions of Greece which are interested in applying HCMR innovative technologies. It is foreseen that in the next 5 years more than 50 Recreational Diving Parks and Open Diving Attractions will be constructed along the Greek coasts with an estimated total budget of \in 12-15 M. Furthermore, **ARIA** will exploit exclusive rights and know-how deriving from the HCMR patented invention and its up-today technical experience in Mediterranean countries and abroad having an additional target of \in 0.5 M as annual revenue. Finally, **ARIA** is expected to participate as a partner in national and EU R&D consortia for the development, testing and demonstration of novel technologies relevant with the creation, function and maintenance of recreational diving parks, special fisheries management areas, extensive aquaculture and many other blue growth-related topics.



Spin-off 3 – FresQo



FresQo is a start-up company that is under establishment at this moment, which will be based in Athens. It is owned and founded by Athena RC, HCMR, FORTH, and University of Patras. The business plan has been completed and is being edited by the partners. The aspiration is to be an active company the first half of 2022. FresQo is the outcome of a project under the same name. The development of a rapid non-destructive methodology for assessing seafood freshness has led to a functional tool that is the product to be exploited by the company. This tool uses a hyper-phasmatic camera that takes photos of a fish or other seafood and based on artificial intelligence and a real-time comparison with a database of photos (depository created by the project) can read changes in appearance related to freshness alteration and conclude on the current freshness of the seafood. At this moment



a depository for 12 different species has been created and is being continuously enlarged (see **Table 1** below). **Dr. K. Grigorakis** is the IMBBC researcher that is a member of the company, as the expert on fish and seafood freshness. The scope of the company is to provide services for key players in the seafood industry and retailers (B2B) and later on for consumers (B2C).

FRESQO				User: savva s
	Samples			
Specimens	Name (Common)	Name (Latin)	Specimens	Samples
	Γόπα	Boops boops	50	224
i i ll	Σαρδέλα	Sardina pilchardus	40	120
Statistics	Γαύρος	Engraulis encrasicolus	0	0
	Βακαλάος	Gadus morhua	24	112
	Κουτσομούρα	Mullus barbatus	50	190
Users	Κολιός	Scomber colias	9	72
	Σκουμπρί	Scomber scombrus	0	0
	Φαγγρί	Pagrus pagrus	12	42
	Λυθρίνι	Pagellus erythrinus	13	90
	Λαβράκι	Dicentrarchus labrax	14	195
	Τσιπούρα	Sparus aurata	10	141
		Total:	222	1186

Table 1. User interface of the depository as it appears in the **FresQo** database (including common and scientific names of species and numbers of samples undergone review for their freshness).

c. Participation in Greek or foreign companies

Dr. C. Arvanitidis is the Chief Executive Officer of LifeWatch ERIC, with the headquarters in Seville, Spain.

Dr. **T. Dailianis** and **Dr. P. (Yolanta) Koulouri** participate in the HCMR spin-off ARIA (Artificial Reef Innovative Applications) P.C., founded by Dr. C. Dounas. The company's main focus is the design and implementation of recreational diving parks.

Dr. **T. Dailianis** participates in the Greek company Cleopatra's Sponges P.C. The company's main focus is the sustainable exploitation of Aegean sponges and Dr. T. Dailianis serves as an expert advisor.

Dr. C. Dounas is the founder of the HCMR spin-off ARIA (Artificial Reef Innovative Applications) P.C. The company's main focus is the design and implementation of recreational diving parks.

Dr. **P. Katharios** is the founder of Aquatic Biologicals SA, spin-off company of HCMR. He is currently the CEO of the company and the Vice President of the Board of Directors.





Aquatic Biologicals develops and produces autogenous vaccines for aquaculture companies and provides health services including advanced diagnostics.

d. Income from Royalties or exploitation of IP during the period

No income from royalties was obtained during the period.

e. Description of TTO office and practices to promote generation and exploitation of new IP.

Unfortunately, the HCMR does not have a TTO office so far. The state is currently encouraging the creation of such offices in all research centers, institutes and universities in Greece, and we are in communication with the UoC in order to examine the feasibility of creating a joint office that will support not only our respective organization, but perhaps other research organizations in Crete.

Nevertheless, IMBBC has historically had very close ties with the Aquaculture industry. In the 1990s, the predecessor of IMBBC – the Institute of Marine Biology of Crete, IMBC-provided practical courses for aquaculture personnel and managers, and provided eggs and juveniles for the young, but rapidly growing industry in Greece. As a result of this close relationship, new methods, technologies and products resulting for the research activities of IMBBC find their way to the Greek aquaculture industry quite rapidly, through direct interaction with the relevant researchers. Also, for many years, IMBBC researchers provide consulting services to the major Greek aquaculture companies in aspects of Broodstock management, Fish health and vaccinations, Feed formulation and feeding, etc., and through these relations they can easily and rapidly transfer any new technologies to the industry.

f. Other commercial activities

A number of Permanent Researchers are involved in "commercial activities" relevant to their expertise, in the form of provision of biological material (eggs, juveniles, edible fish), analyses and consulting. **Money obtained from these consulting activities goes into a special account for each researcher**, after deduction of a 20-25% overhead charge by the HCMR and more recently a 2% by IMBBC. **These monies are managed by each researcher** and may cover the salaries of students and contracted personnel, purchase/service of office and laboratory equipment, maintenance of the facilities, participation and travel to conferences, purchase of consumables for preliminary studies, etc.

The <u>Broodstock management facility</u> (AQUA, Dr. C.C. Mylonas) produces eggs of a number of Mediterranean marine fishes, including gilthead seabream, European seabass, meagre and greater amberjack, which are sold to commercial hatcheries in Greece and Europe. These eggs are sold to hatcheries that either do not have broodstocks of these species in their facilities, or they need the eggs to satisfy some emergency requirements due to increases in production or problems with their production at a certain time. The eggs are produced by the various broodstocks we maintain at IMBBC, as part of research projects or as production stocks for our own hatchery needs.



Dr. S. Chatzifotis (AQUA) offers testing and evaluating feed additives for commercial companies.

Dr. T. Dailianis (MB&B) has served as expert advisor to assess the suitability and value of underwater areas in the Ionian Sea for the establishment of diving parks for the company AMBIO Consultants S.A.

Dr. E. Fountoulaki and Dr. I. Nengas (AQUA) were involved in eight individual contracts for the period 2018-2020 providing analyses of aquafeeds and feed ingredients, evaluation of nutritional products *in vivo* and *in vitro* for fish producers and nutritional solution providers, as well as aquaculture companies such as TETHIS AQUACULTURE Ltd, ALLTECH Ltd, FRAMELCO BV., La PRAIRIE Aqua Tech, PHILOSOFISH and Galaxidi Marine Farms.

Dr. **P. Katharios** (AQUA) conducts fish disease diagnostic services for the Greek Aquaculture companies.

Mrs **N. Keklikoglou** (MB&A) offers micro-CT scans and 3D analysis of a variety of samples for different companies and research centers.

Dr. I. Kotzamanis and Dr. G. Triantaffylidis (AQUA) cooperate with Private Greek and foreign commercial companies and organizations (*e.g.* the American Soybean Association-USSEC), offering service in the field of fish nutrition and aquaculture.

Dr. P. (Yolanda) Koulouri (MB&B) has provided ecosystem management services regarding monitoring studies in the marine areas of wastewater treatment plants of different cities of Crete Island (*e.g.* Heraklion, Chania, Platanias, Rethymnon) as well as measures for the conservation and management of marine biological resources of Elounda Bay (Crete).

Dr. C.C. Mylonas (AQUA) has signed various contracts for consultation to various commercial operations in Greece, Europe and the World (a total of >20 so far), in the area of Broodstock Management and Control of Reproduction in Aquaculture fish. Some of the companies include IRIDA S.A., Galaxidi Marine Farms, Argosaronikos Fishfarming, Selonda, Kefalonia Fisheries, Philosofish, (Greece); Kilic Aquaculture (Turkey); Aquabridge, Dubai, U.A.E. This consulting work has been carried out since the early 2000, and has many benefits for Dr. Mylonas and his laboratory, but also IMBBC. Due in part to this consulting activities carried out by Dr. Mylonas -but also other IMBBC researchers-IMBBC has gained a very good reputation with the Mediterranean aquaculture industry, and many companies express an interest to collaborate with us in solving production problems they may face.

Dr. I. Papadakis (AQUA) offers as service the evaluation of Snapper larval rearing protocols for the New Zealand Institute for Plant and Food Research.

Dr. Dr. N. Papandroulakis (AQUA) offers consulting on larval rearing and grow-out methodologies. In addition, the <u>Pilot scale hatchery</u> sells fish juveniles to private companies of a number of Mediterranean marine fishes, including European seabass, meagre and greater amberjack. These juveniles are sold to companies that either do not have their own hatchery, or do not have breeders of these species in their facilities. In addition, the <u>Pilot netpen aquaculture farm</u> of IMBBC sells harvest size fish for human consumption.

Dr. **G. Rigos** (AQUA) offers experimental & challenge trials to the companies Skretting AS, Nutriad International NV, BioMar Hellenic ABEEI, Allteck Ltd, Seloda SA and the university Ecole Polytechnique Fédérale de Lausanne. Further, he offers scientific reports



regarding fish antimicrobials to the company Vethellas AEBE. He also conducts toxicological reports for the companies S&B Industrial Minerals S.A, Vethellas AEBE and the Hellenic Aquaculture Producers Organization (HAPO). Finally, he offers the evaluation of quality and safety of aquatic products for the company AB Vasilopoulos SA.

Dr. **D. Tsaparis** (MB&B) offers as a service the genetic analysis of samples for the NGO "Agriogido".

Dr. C. Tsigenopoulos (MB&B) conducts annual service contracts to Universities, Research Centers and aquaculture companies of approximately 40.000€ for sequencing, microsatellite genotyping and breeding services.



5.4 Awards and Distinctions

Dr. A. (Cilia) Antoniou

- -Member of Organizing and Scientific Committee 2018: EMBO Practical Course: Computational Molecular Evolution, 6 - 17 May 2018, IMBBC, HCMR, Heraklion, Greece.
- -Member of Organizing and Scientific Committee 2019: Wellcome Trust-EMBL-EBI advanced course on Computational Molecular Evolution. 13 24 May 2019, Wellcome Trust Genome Campus, Hinxton, Cambridge, UK.

Dr. C. Arvanitidis

-2018: Awarded with the Frontiers Community Support Fund as a recognition for the work carried out as an Associate Editor for Frontiers in Marine Science, by the College of Chief Editors.

Dr. E. Chatzinikolaou

- -Scientific responsible on 1st Call for Research Projects ELIDEK (HFRI, Hellenic Foundation for Research and Innovation) for the support of Post-doctoral Researchers, 2018-2021. "Effects of climate change and ocean acidification on marine gastropods (ECCO) (project ID: 343)". Scientific research area: H. Environment and Energy Funded by: General Secretariat of Research and Technology, Budget: 140,000 €.
- -Postdoc Scholarship for the call «Support of researchers with emphasis on new researchers" $E\Delta BM34$, 2018-2019. «Estimation of volume and density of thrombotic material with the use of micro-CT in patients with ST elevation acute myocardial infarction (STEMI) following primary percutaneous coronary intervention (PCI) and thromboaspiration. Correlation with angiographic and clinical outcome" (MIS 5004707) Funded by ESPA/NSRF.

Dr. Thanos Dailianis

- -Member of the scientific and organizing committee for the international conference CMBR Web Conference - Blue Growth in the Eastern Mediterranean: challenges and opportunities. May 12-13, 2021, organized by IMBBC.
- -Associate Editor for the journal Frontiers in Marine Science (2020 IF=4.912), section Marine Biology.

Dr. V. Gerovasileiou

- -Greek National Expert on marine and coastal biodiversity, 2021. Greek Ministry of Environment and Energy & UNEP/MAP-RAC/SPA in the frame of the "Post-2020 Strategic Action Programme for the conservation of Biological Diversity in the Mediterranean Region".
- -Scientific Committee member, 2021. 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment (HydroMediT 2021), 4-6/11/2021, Mytilene, Greece.
- -Scientific Committee member, 2019. RAC-SPA/UNEP-MAP Symposia on marine key habitats and Non-Indigenous Species in the Mediterranean, 14-18/01/2019, Antalya, Turkey.
- -Scientific Committee member, 2018. 4th International Symposium on "Anchialine Ecosystems", 10/2018, Lanzarote, Spain.



-Scientific Committee member, 2018. 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, 31/05-03/06/2018, Corfu, Greece.

Dr. N. Gioti

- -Member of the Hellenic Bioinformatics (H. Bioinfo) Board of Directors (through elections), 2019-2021.
- -Scientific Committee member of the Hellenic Bioinformatics (H. Bioinfo) Conference, HBio 12, FORTH, Heraklion, 11-13 October 2019.

Dr. T. Manousaki

- -European Reference Genome Atlas (ERGA) council member, 2021. Elected by the Greek members of the ERGA initiative as a council member representing the country.
- -Organizing member of the Data Analysis Committee and Bylaws Committee of ERGA, 2021.
- -Marine Evolution conference (Strömstad, Sweden), 2018. Session "2. Evolutionary Biology of Marine Invasions" co-organizer.

Mrs D. Mavraki

-RDA Europe Expert grants, 2019. Grant winner as an expert European Researcher & Scientist working with data to attend the 14th RDA Plenary meeting, in Helsinki, Finland 23-25 October 2019, under the theme "Data Makes the Difference" <u>https://grants.rd-alliance.org/OpenCalls/call-experts-rda-14th-plenary</u>.

Dr. C.C. Mylonas

- -Organizer 12th International Symposium of Fish Reproductive Physiology, May 2023, Hersonissos, Crete.
- -President of the Scientific Committee for Agrotechnology and Nutrition, of the Greek Republic – 2020-2022. Consulting body for the National Committee for Research, Technology and Innovation, of the Republic of Greece (Ministry of Development and Investment).
- -Board of Directors of the European Aquaculture Society, member (elected for two terms, 2018- present).

Dr. C. Pavloudi

- -5th OBPS Community Workshop, 2021. Track organizer on "Enhancing the value of marine omics/eDNA practices across the ocean community".
- -5th OBPS Community Workshop, 2021. Panelist on session "Coordinating genomic sampling across a European Infrastructure".
- -JGI Annual Meeting, 2021. Poster judging team.
- -Workshop on "Biomonitoring of aquatic ecosystems using genetic methods", 2021. Lecturer, Member of the organizing committee.
- -1st DNAQUA International Conference, 2021. Member of the Scientific Committee.
- -Seminar on "HPC analyses and DNA metabarcoding", 2020. Lecturer, Member of the organizing committee.
- -Costas Drainas Scholarship for Early Researchers from the Hellenic Society Mikrobiokosmos, 2018. 1 month visit to the Microbial Ecophysiology group of the University of Bremen.
- -FEMS Meeting Grant, 2018. Participation in the 5th International Symposium on Microbial Sulfur Metabolism, Vienna (Austria).



-Murray Foundation (MF) Grant, 2018. Participation in the 8th European Coastal Lagoons Symposium (EuroLag), Athens (Greece).

Dr. G. Rigos

- -Session Chair at the European Aquaculture Society, Aquaculture Europe 2019, Our Future -GROWING from WATER, Berlin, Germany, October 07-10 2019.
- -Session Chair at the 19th International Conference on Diseases of Fish and Shellfish European Association of Fish Pathologists-EAFP 2019, Porto, September 09-12 2019.



5.5 Societal Impact

The IMBBC has a significant role in the society, through its many activities related to the most important economic resource of Greece -the marine environment, which are governed by (a) scientific excellence, (b) strategic collaborations with research, academic and industrial partners in Greece, Europe and the world, and (c) employment of modern technologies in parallel to conventional knowledge. Based on the above principles and the extensive involvement of IMBBC research staff in EU and national research projects, the activities of the institute are relevant both locally and globally, and have impacted society significantly in the areas of marine aquaculture and tourism (via the study and conservation of the coastal marine environment). Through its research, education, dissemination, outreach and business activities, IMBBC has succeeded in bringing the issues of marine biologiversity (*e.g.* sustainable exploitation of marine biological resources) and sustainable development of aquaculture at the highest priority at the regional and national level. The institute greatly supports the development and expansion of the aquaculture industry in Greece, which is the 3rd largest export industry of agricultural products.

a. Dissemination and outreach activities to the public

IMBBC has (co-)organized conferences, workshops, schools and seminars in order to disseminate and outreach scientific knowledge during the evaluation period (see section 5.2 Training & Educational activities). We participate in the networking for the Mediterranean Science Commission (CIESM) consisting of several thousand marine researchers, applying the latest scientific tools to better understand, monitor and protect a fast-changing, highly impacted Mediterranean Sea. More specifically, IMBBC represents one of the focal points of the CIESM program "watching for jellyfish blooms" and in collaboration with the Port Authorities monitors jellyfish blooms along Cretan coasts for the safety of the citizens and tourists (2014 to date).

Dr. P. (Yolanda) Koulouri is a member of the international non-profit organization European Marine Science Educators Association (EMSEA) committed to boost Ocean Literacy in Europe and worldwide. In addition, the EMSEA-Mediterranean Working Group (of which Dr. Y. Koulouri is a founding member) provides basic fundamental knowledge about the Mediterranean Sea to educators, teachers, scientists, NGOs, the blue business sector and policymakers. In this way, it helps to achieve awareness at all levels of society and, therefore, a blue and sustainable Mediterranean region. In this context, personnel of IMBBC along with other institutes of HCMR has actively participated during the evaluation period in events such as Researcher's Night, European Maritime Day, Mediterranean Coast Day, World Ocean Day in order to promote ocean/marine citizenship.

Dr. Y. Koulouri is also a member and was elected recently as the co-chair of the Ocean Literacy Working Group of the European Global Ocean Observing System (EuroGOOS) which, among other activities (*e.g.* policy documents and campaigns), has launched a long-term UN Ocean Science Decade Action Programme to bring considerable added value to empowering citizens to use their acquired knowledge of the ocean and awareness of ocean-related issues to communicate about the ocean in a meaningful way and make informed decisions for their lives that will impact on their future wellbeing. IMBBC is also a founding member of EU4Ocean Coalition, which connects diverse organizations, projects and people that contribute to ocean literacy and the sustainable management of the ocean. Supported by the European Commission, this bottom-up inclusive initiative aims at uniting the voices of Europeans to make the ocean a concern of everyone. The coalition is made up of three





components: a platform for organizations and individuals engaged in Ocean Literacy initiatives, a European Youth Forum for the Ocean and a Network of European Blue Schools.

Also, the institute participates in the activities of the Cretaquarium (which is part of HCMR), not only in the realization of its construction and operation, but also in different events organized for the local population and the visitors. The **Director of IMBBC (Dr. C.C. Mylonas) has been the Director of the Cretaquarium** between March 2021 and March 2022, and its chief aquariologist (Dr. A. Sterioti) is a researcher of IMBBC. As such, the research activities of IMBBC (and HCMR as a whole) are highly visible in the visitors of the aquarium, and have contributed greatly in strengthening the interest of the local society, but also beyond, in the area of marine life, conservation, biodiversity and aquaculture, since Crete is a popular destination for domestic and international tourism. Since 2021, we have organized a permanent exhibition at the Cretaquarium, with the purpose to disseminate and promote the key messages and objectives of the UN Decade of Ocean Science for Sustainable Development, by producing audiovisual and educational material and using modern scientific instruments and educational tools in order to improve the interaction of students and citizens with the results of current marine research.

Finally, in the last two years, a significant effort has been undertaken to bring the research done by IMBBC researchers closer to the public, and bring awareness about the importance of the marine environment and the health of our Oceans and Seas in the maintenance of the Climate, the stability of the ecosystems, the provision of healthy food, the discovery of important pharmaceuticals and industrial compounds, and wellbeing of coastal communities. A series of interviews of all of our researchers and post-docs is published in local or national newspapers every 1-2 months, while news releases are sent to all media when a new research programs starts its implementation. We believe this has increased the

awareness of the public regarding IMBBC and the HCMR, and helps in educating our fellow citizens of important environmental, biodiversity and aquaculture issues. In 2020, a total of 30 publications were produced in different media (newspapers, websites. magazines and TV programs) and in 2021 a total of 74 publications were made. including also press releases regarding new projects. In the following pages, we provide some examples of these interviews-articles that have been published so far.



Interview of Dr. E. Mandalakis,

presenting his research on using the rabbit fish to extract valuable compounds.





6 54 TO BHMA SCIENCE

ΔΙΑΤΡΟΦΗ

Η ταυτότητα του ΙΘΑΒΒΥΚ

Το Ινστιτούτο Θαλάσσιας Βιολογίας, Βιοτεχνολογίας & Υδατοκαλλιεργειών (ΙΘΑΒΒΥΚ) είναι ένα από τα τρία ινστιτούτα του Ελληνικού Κέντρου Θαλασσίων Ερευνών (ΕΛΚΕΘ Το ινοπιουτό θαλαβοσίας βιολογίας, βιότεχνολογίας & τόστοκαληειχτείων (1945b της) είναι ένα από τα τρία ινατητοίται του Ελληνικού Κέχτρου Θόλασσίανο Ερευνών (ΕΛΚΕΘ με έδρα το Ηράκλειο Κρήτης και εγκαταστάσεις σε Ανάβμοσο Αττικής και Σούδα Χανίων. Με ποροσιπικό 12ο στόμων και 27 τακτικούς ερευνητές, δραστηριοποιείται στη θαλάσσια βιοποικιλότητα, γενετική και γενωμική, και στις υδαποκαλλιέργειες. (EAKEOE)

ΚΩΝΣΤΑΝΤΙΝΟΥ ΜΥΛΩΝΑ ΚΡΙΤΩΝΟΣ ΓΡΗΓΟΡΑΚΗ

Ακούμε συχνά ότι τα άγρια ψάρια είναι καλύτερα από τα εκτρεφόμενα στις υδα-τοκαλλιέργειες και ότι οι καταμαλοτές μειαμά καταναλωτές γενικά προ τιμούν τα άγρια. Αυτό συμβαίνει γιατί μέχρι μόλις τα μέσα του 20ού αιώνα, πε μέσα του 20ού αιώνα, πε-ρισσότερο από το 95% των «χθυηρών» (ψάρια, όστρα-κα, μαλάκτα, καρκινοει-δή, φύκια, κ.τ.λ.) που κα-ταναλώναμε παγκοσμίως ήταν προϊόν ερασιτεχνικής και επαγγελματικής αλιείας. Ο καταναλωτής αλιείας. Ο κατανάλωτης δεν έχει συνηθίσει ακόμα στην ιδέα της «ιχθυοκαλ-λιέργειας». Πολύ λίγοι από εμάς έχουν δει φάρμες με ψάρια, ενώ όλοι έχουμε δει στα χωριά μας κτηνοτρόφους να μεγαλώνουν οικόσιτα ζώα. Ετσι, κανείς δεν αμφισβητεί ότι τα κο οεν αμφισβητεί ότι τα κό-τόπουλα, πρόβατα, γου-ροίνια και μοσχάρια προ-έρχονται από φάρμες, και δεν υπάρχει συζήτηση εάν τα «άγρια» είναι καλύτερα από τα εκτροφής. Αντίθε-τα, υπάρχει συζήτηση και προστίμπση να πιν πορέπροτίμηση για την προέ-λευση του ζώου (ντόπιο Αευσή του ζώου (ντοπιο κατσίκι, μοσχάρι Αργεντι-νής) ή τη ράτσα του (Angus ή Charolais μοσχάρια). Για κάποια πολύ γνωστά ήδη ψαριών, όμως, όπως ο σολομός και η πέστροφα, σχεδάι καυείς δεν αυα σχεδόν κανείς δεν ανα ρωτιέται εάν είναι άγριο ή όχι, διότι εξυπακούετα είναι προϊόντα υδατο καλλιέργειας

ωμα, γεύση, ποιότητα Είναι όμως γεγονός ότι τα ψάρια από την αλιεία υπερτερούν σε άρωμα και υπερτερούν σε αρωμά και γεύση. Οπως έχουν δείξει «τυφλά τεστ» με κατανα-λωτές, μια όντως άγρια τσιπούρα χαρακτηρίζεται από αρώματα «φρέσκων καρκινοειδών/γαρίδας» και «φρέσκων φυκιών/θά λασσας» πολύ εντονότερα λασσας» πολύ εντονότερα από αντίστοιχη εκτροφής. Αυτό είναι φυσικό! Σε όλα τα ζώα που αποτελούν τροφή του ανθρώπου, αυτά που μεγαλώνουν στη φύση έχουν καλύτε-ου νεύαπ και άσουμα λόρη γεύση και άρωμα, λόω της μεγαλύτερης ποικιλίας στην τροφή τους. Ωστόσο ο καταναλωτής Ωστοσο ο καταναλώτης ας λάβει υπόψη και άλ-λα, πιο σημαντικά κριτή-ρια επιλογής στα οποία τα εκτρεφόμενα ψάρια υπερτερούν ξεκάθαρα των αντίστοιχων αλιευμένων του ιδίου είδους:

α) Τιμή. Τα ψάρια εκτροφής έχουν τιμές που είναι φής έχουν τημές που είναι κατά πολύ χαμηλότερες από τα αντίστοιχα αλι-ευμένα. Επίσης, οι τιμές των αλιευμένων τείνουν να



ΨΑΡΙ ΠΕΛΑΓΙΣΙΟ Ή ΙΧθΥΟΚΑΛΛΙΕΡΓΕΙΑΣ;

. wńc

Το ερώτημα ΠΟυ όλοι

θέτουμε στον εαυτό μας, απαντημένο από τους ειδήμονες οι οποίοι γνωρίζουν καλά την

ποιότητα των ψαριών που παράγονται στην Ελλάδα

οι τροφές τους είναι ελεγ-μένες για τοξίνες και βα-ρέα μέταλλα. Αντίθετα, τα ρεα μέταλλα. Αντίθετα, τα άγρια ψάρια μπορούν να εκτίθενται σε διάφορες πιγές ρύπανσης και αυ-τό είναι πολύ δύσκολο να ελεγχθεί στην αγορά. γ) Σταθερότητα στην ποι-ότητα. Ανάλογα με την εποχή, μπορεί να αλλάζει

τρέφονται τα ψάρια, και

εποχη, μπορεί να αλλαζεί η διατροφική αξία των άγριων ψαριών ανάλογα με τη διαθεσιμότητα τρο-φής, αλλά και τη φάση της αναπαραγωγής τους. Στην ιχθυοκαλλιέργεια τα

έχουν σταθερά αυξητικές ψάρια τρώνε σταθερά και τάσεις, κάτι που δεν συμ καθημερινά ανάλογα με βαίνει με τα ψάρια εκτροτην όρεξή τους, έτσι η δι β) Ασφάλεια του τροφίβ) Ασφαλεία του τροφι-μου. Στην ιχθυοκαλλιέρ-γεια ελέγχουμε απόλυτα πού εκτρέφονται και με τι

την όρεξή τους, έτσι η δι-ατροφική τους αξία είναι πιο σταθερή.
δ) Ευζωία του εκτρεφόμε-νου ψαριού. Τα ψάρια της ιχθυοκαλλιέργειας θανα-τώνονται άμεσα με όσο δυ-νατάσερα ανόδιινους τρόνατότερο ανώδυνους τρό νατότερο ανωούνους τρο-πους, χωρίς να παλεύουν σε αγκίστρια και να τραυ-ματίζονται σε δίχτυα. Αυτό έχει θετικές επιπτώσεις και στην ποιότητα της σάρκας τους. ε) Φρεσκότητα. Τα εκτρε

φόμενα ψάρια αμέσως μετά την εξαλίευση διατηρούνται πάντα σε θερ-μοκρασία κάτω των 4°C μέχρι να φτάσουν στο κα-λάθι του καταναλωτή, Ετσι λάθι του κατάναλωτη. Ετοι η φρεσκάδα τους διατηρεί-ται για περισσότερο χρονι-κό διάστημα. Επίσης, εξα-



λιεύονται μόνο όσα ζητά η αγορά και δεν «μένουν στο ράφι» για μενάλο χρονικό . διάστημα

Συμπερασματικά, κάτω Συμπερασματικά, κάτω από τις σωστές προδιαγρα-φές ιχθυοκαλλιέργειας, η ποιότητα των εκτρεφόμε-νων ψαριών είναι άριστη, εξίσου ή και ανώτερη από κάποια άγρια, αλιευμένα είδη. Ετσι, πιστεύουμε ότι όσο θα ωριμάζουν οι συν θήκες, όσο ο καταναλωτής θα εξοικειώνεται με την ιδέα του εκτρεφόμενου ψαριού και θα πληροφο-ρείται σωστά, θα τείνει να το προτιμά περισσότερο.

ρίς αντιβιοτικά!

Υπάρχουν όμως και προ-καταλήψεις για τα ψά-ρια ιχθυοκαλλιέργειας που οφείλονται εν μέρει σε αρνητικά (και αναλη-θή) δημοσιεύματα. Γίνεται αυχιά σχαροά ψα χράσυχνά αναφορά για χρήση αντιβιοτικών, ενώ για το ψάρι υδατοκαλλιέργειτο ψαρι υοατοκαλλιεργει-ας υπάρχει ελάχιστη έως καθόλου χρήση αντιβιο-τικών, χωρίς κατάλοιπα στο τρόφιμο. Η ειρωνεία είναι ότι δεν υπάρχουν αντίστοιχης συχνότητας ή επιθετικότητας δημοσιεύματα για μορφές εκτρο-φής χερσαίων ζώων, όπου αντίθετα γίνεται ευρεία χρήση αντιβιοτικών

χρήση αντιβιοτικών. Για την προκατάληψη ενα-ντίον της ιχθυοκαλλιέργει-ας ευθύνονται εν μέρει και οι ιχθυέμποροι, οι οποίοι έχουν περισσότερο κέρδος από τα άγρια ψάρια και τα προωθούν περισσότετα προωθούν περισσότε po. Επίσης, τις μεγάλες τσιπούρες, λαβράκια και κρανιούς (ή μυλοκόπια) που προέρχονται από την ιχθυσκαλιέργεια (3-4 χρό-νων, περίπου 1 κιλό σε βά-μος) τα πουλάνε σαν «πε-λαγίστα» ή «αλανιάρικα» και σε πιές παρούμοες με και σε τιμές παρόμοιες με τα άγρια ψάρια, δημιουρ νώντας έτσι την εντύπω ση στον καταναλωτή ότι τα άνοια είναι νενικά ανώτε άγρια είναι γενικά ανότε-ρα από αυτά της ιχθυοκαλ-λιέργετας. Αυτά τα ψάρια όμως δεν διαφέρουν σε τί-ποτα (εκτός από την ηλι-κία και το μέγεθός τους) από τα μικρότερα ψάρια ιχθυοκαλλιέργετας, και έχουν την ίδια διατροφιεχουν την ιδια διατροφι-κή αξία αφού προέρχονται από ακριβώς τις ίδιες μο-νάδες ιχθυοκαλλιέργειας και τρέφονται ακριβώς με τις ίδιες τροφές!

Ο δρ Κωνσταντίνος Μυλωνάς είναι διευθυντής ερευνών και διευθυντής

Βιοτεχνολογίας & Υδατοκαλλιεργειών

του Ινστιτούτο Θαλάσσιας Βιολογία

(ΙΘΑΒΒΥΚ) και ο δρ Κρίτων Γρηγοράκης είναι διευθυντής ερευνών του ΙΘΑΒΒΥΚ.

EYKONA ΣΤΟ ΠΙΑΤΟ ΕΝΑ ΥΨΗΛΗΣ ΠΟΙΟΤΗΤΑΣ

TPOOIMO

Μέχοι μόλις ποιν απά

70 χρόνια, σχεδόν 100% των «Ιχθυηρών» ήταν προϊόν ερασιτεχνικής προίον εραστιεχνικής και επαγγελματικής αλιείας. Μετά από ραγδαία ανάπτυξη δεκαεττών, σήμερα το 52% των ιχθυπρών που καταναλώνονται παγκοσμίως προέρχεται από την υδατοκαλλιέργεια (Παγκόσμιος Οργανισμός Τροφίμων των Ηνωμένων Eθνών, www.fao.org)! Ευτών, www.rao.org): Αφού οι ωκεανοί, τα ποτάμια και οι λίμνες μας υπεραλιεύονται για δεκαετίες τώρα και δεν μπορούν να παραγάγου περισσότερα αλιεύματα, είναι σίγουρο ότι αυτό το ποσοστό θα αυξηθεί τοκάμα σκοτασότερο. Η ακόμα περισσότερο. Η κατανάλωση ιχθυηρών επίσης αυξάνεται επίσης αυξάνεται αυτεχικά, λόγα της άριστης διατροφικής τους αξίας και των ευεργετικών γία την υγεία μας ιδιοτήτων τους, είδικά τα θαλασαίνα ψάρια είναι πολύ σημαντικά γία την ανάπτυξη και υγεία του εγκεφάλου και του καρδιαγγειακού αυτημιστρό άλγω της και του καρδιαγγείακου αυστήματος, λόγω της περιεκτικότητάς τους σε ω-3 λιπαρά σξέα και Ιχνοστοικεία. Στην Ελλάδα, το 62% των ικθυπρών παράγονται από την υδατοκαλλιέργεια, η οποία αποτελεί τον ποίτα στελεί τον πρώτο εξανωνικό κλάδο ζωικής παραγωγής, συμβάλλοντας θετικά στο συμβάλλοντας θετικά στο εμπορικά ισαζύγιο της χώρας. Επίσης, ο τομέας εργοδοτεί περίπου 12,000 εργαζόμενους κυρίως σε απομακρυσμένες και νησιωτικές περίοχές της ελληνικής επικράτειας, γεγονός που συμβάλλει σημαντικά στην οικονομική ανάπτυξη των τοπικών κοινωνιών. Η τοπικών κοινωνιών, Η ιχθυσκαλλιέργεια έδωσε τη δυνατότητα στον καταναλωτή να βάλει στη καθημερινή του διατροφή αυτό το υψιπλής ποιότητας τρόφιμο σε πολύ ανταγωνιστική τιμή.

Interview of Drs. K. Grigorakis and C.C. Mylonas (AQUA), on the value of farmed Mediterranean fish and the Greek aquaculture industry.



S DATPIS © AEYTEPA 12 ADPIAIOY 202



Ο άνθρωπος ίσως αποδειχθεί αυτοκαταστροφικός για τον πλανήτη

The Kanopi**v**ae **bložev**á





επηρεάσουν τόσα και το ίδιο το μέλλ

ο Ο μεγάλος εχθρός Ιελικά, η άφιστα είναι ο μεφαλότε-ρος εχθρός του αεριβιάλου πικόν εφι ελαμάτου, μεφάλου ή μαρόυς «Πράγματι, η άγουα, η αδιαφορία και

«Πράγματι, η άγνοια, η αδιαφορία και τα συμφέροντα αποτελούν την αιτία των περισσότερων περιβαλλοντικών προβλη-μάτων που αντιμετωπίζει σήμερα η παγ-κόσμια κοινότητα. Στο πλαίσιο μιας διε θνούς έρευνας που βρίσκεται σε εξέλξη,

Τραγικό ρεκόρ με περισσότερες από 700 νεκρές χελώνες

<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text>

Interview of Dr. Y. Koulouri (**MB&B**), on marine ecosystems and Ocean Literacy actions.









iMBBC



2 2 TO BHMA SCIENCE

ΩΚΕΑΝΟΓΡΑΦΙΑ

ωκεανοί καλύπτουν το 71% του ι ωκεανοί καλύπουν το 71% του πλανήτη μας. Γιατί όμως είναι τό-οο σημαντικό για τον άνθρωπο το θαλάσκοι περιβάλλον; Οι ωκεανοί παρέχουν το 50% του οξιγάνου στον πλανήτη, παρέχουν τροφή εξαιρετικής ποιότητας που αντ-στουχεί στο 16% της ζωκός πρω-τείνης που καταγαλώνεται παγκοσμίως, αιλοξικατί έναι παόπται ραθικό ειδόκ.

τείνης που καταναλώνεται παγκοσμίως, φιλοξενούν ένα τεράστιο αριθμό ειδών ουμβάλλωντας στην αύξηση της βιοποικι-λότητας και επιλέον προσφέρουν πεδίο εργασίας σε πάνω από 40 εκατομμόρια ανθρόπους παγκοσμίας. Μια ακόμα συμαντική λεποιργία του θα-λάσσιου περιβάλλωντος είναι η συμβολή του στη ρύθμαση του κλίματος. Οι ωκεανό απορροφούν περάστιας και συμβάλλους.

τας από την ατμόσφαιρα και συμβάλλουλ έτσι κατά 90% στη ρύθμιση της θερμοκρα σίας του πλανήτη. Μικρές διακυμάνσεις σίας του πλανήτη. Μικρές διακυμάνους σηι θερμοκοραία έχουν παρατηρηθεί και στο παρελθόν, όμως στην παροδοα φάση η αυξητική τάση είναι υψηλότερη και τα-χύπερη. Τα τελευταία 30 χρόνια αποτέλε-σαν τη θερμότερη περίοδο των τελευταίων 1.400 χρόνων και η θερμοκρασία αυξά-νεται περίπου κατά 0.85 βαθμούς Κελαή-ου ετησίος. Η αύξηση της θερμοκρασίας στην επιφάνεια του πλανήτη περγοράσια. με τον όρο «κλιματική αλλαγή» και οφείλεται στο φαινόμενο του θερμοκηπίου. Η λεται στο φαινόμενο του θεριοκηπίου. Η αυξημένη ποσότητε ρυτογόνων αερίου που παράγονται από ανθρωπογενείς δραστη-ριότητες εγκλωβίζονται στην ατιμόσφαιρα και αποροφούν την πλακή ενέργεια που αντανακλάται από την επιφάνεια της Γης, προκαλώντας έτοι μεγαλίταρη αύξηση της θεριμοκροτίας. Ενδεικτικά αναφέρεται ότι το διοξείδο του άνθρακα στην ατιμόσφαιρα έχει αυξηθεί κατά 40% από τον 18ο αιώνα μέναι σύμεσα μέχρι σήμερα.

Μια λιγότερο γνωστή επίπτωση της κλιμα-τικής αλλαγής είναι η λεγόμενη οξίνιση των ωκεανών. Το επιπλέον διοξείδιο του άνθρακα που καταλήγει στην ατμόσφαιρα από τις ανθρωπογενείς εκπομπές απορροφάται από την επιφάνεια της θάλασσας, με αποτέλεσμα να διαταράσσεται η χημική ισορροπία των ανθρακικών ιόντων και των ιόντων υδρογόνου. Οταν τα ιόντα υδρογό

Το μέλλον μας εξαρτάται από τους ωκεανούς

Το μέλλου μίας θεφητάτια από τους κατεανούς
Οι ωκεανοί προσφέρουν πολύτι-μες υπηρεσίες, όπως η ρύθμιση του κλίματος, η απορρόφηση των στιμο-αφαιρικών ρύπων, η παροχή τροφής, δίμνόνοι και ανανειδιαμιναν πηγών ενδριγείας, καθιάς και σφέλη που αφο-ρούν την ευζιάς, τον τουρκημό, το εμπόριο και τις μετακινήσεις. Σύμφων να με την Περίλημη για τους Φορείς Χάραξης Πολιτικής που εκδόθηκε από το IPCC το 2019, οι ωκεανοί έχουν ήδη αποφροφήσει το 90% της περίσ-αιας θερμύτης του κλιματικού αυ απόματος από το 1970, ενώ ο ρύθμός αύξησης της θερμοκρασίας και η αυ-ανήδητας των κυμάτων καύσανα έχουν ήδη αποφροφήσει το 90% της περίσ-αιας θερώτητας του κλιματικού αυ ατότησης της θερμοκρασίας και η αυ-ανήδητας των κυμάτων καύσανα έχουν τον 21ου αιώνα αναφέρει περαπέρω αξήσης της θερμοκρασίας και πός σύξησης της θερμοκρασίας και πόχη τους αιεκουός καθίδα και αύξηση των αφαίτων καιρικών φανομέχων. Η πρόκληση για την ανημετίσηση των αριστηκών συνεπειδών είναι σημαντική σε παγκάρου επίπεδο. Η μοθέτηση των αριστηκών συνεπειδών είναι σημαντική σε παγκάρων επίτωδο. Τι μοθέτηση των αριστηκών συνεπελευματική το το δράρου για την αποτελεί μανότ των Κυμέρλαντη των φηντικών συνεπειών στα φυσικά οικοσυστήμο-τα και κατέ πειδιάται στον άνθρωπο με βασικό στόνο τη μείωση των εκπο-μηκόν διοξειδίου του άνθρακο.



νου αυξάνονται, τότε η θάλασσα γίνεται νου αυξάνονται, τότε η θάλασσα γίνεται περισπότερο όξινη. Ανόμα και αν αυτές οι μεταβολές μός φαίνονται αμελητέες (π.χ. τις τάξης των 0.1 μονάδον στην κλίμακα του pH), στην πραγματικότητα δεν είναι. Σύμφαινα με τη Διακυβερνητικός Ομάδα για την Κλαματκή Αλλαγή (IPCC), μέχρι το τέλος του αιώνα αναμένεται επιπλέον αύ-ξηση της σζύτητας στους εκαεανοζο κατά 0.3-0.5 μονάδες αν δεν υπάρξει καρία περ-υπά τλαγα πει ανθασιστα συτές εκαιαυτές τική τάση στις ανθρωπογενείς εκπομπές. Οι επιστήμονες έχουν διαπιστώσει πόσο Οι επιστημονές έχουν οιαπιστροτί να έχει η μι-κρή αυτή αύξηση της οξύτητας για τους Θαλάσσιους οργανισμούς και ιδιαίτερα για αυτούς που κατασκετάζουν το κέλυφος ή τον σκελετό τους από ανθρακικό ασβέστιο



Η οξίνιση των ωκεανών, αποτέλεσμα της αύξησης του διοξειδίου του άνθρακα στην ατμόσφαιρα, αλλάζει μεταξύ άλλων και τις ισορροπίες στην τροφική αλυσίδα καθιστώντας ευάλωτους τους οργανισμούς που φέρουν κέλυφος

(n.χ. θαλάσσια σαληγκάρια, δίθυρα όστρα-κα, κοράλλια). Η χαμηλή συγκέντροση ανθρακικών ιόντων έχει ως αποτέλεσμα τη μετομένη σύνθεση νέου κελύφους ή την αυξημένη διάβρωση του ωτάρχοντος. Έτσι οι ορχανισμοί αυτοί έχουν λιγότερο ανθεκτικά όστρακα με αποτέλεσμα να εί-ναι πιο επιρρεπείς στους θηρευτές και οι πληθυσμοί τους να μετώνωνται. Τό-σο ο αισκολουτικός σόλος όση σο ο οικολογικός ρόλος όσο

και η οικονομική αξία των οργανισμών αυτών είναι οργαισμών απών εικά ιδιαίτερα σημαντικά. Επηρεάζουν τη δομή και τις λειτουργίες του οικοσυστήμα-τος, αποτελούν βα-σικό κρίκο της τρο-φικής αλυσίδας και τόται σκαθρασιτέρείναι οι «καθαριστές» του θαλάσσιου περι-βάλλοντος, Πολλά είδη είναι βρώσιμα και έχουλ σημαντικό οικονομικό ενδι αφέρον καθώς αποτελούν το 75,5% της παγκόσμιος παραγωγής της θαλάσσιας υδατοκαλλιέργειας (1 εκατομμύρια τόνοι για το 2012, FAO).

ιατική απόδειξη

Τα τελευταία χρόνια στο Ιναπούτο Θαλάσ-σιας Βιολογίας, Βιοτεχνολογίας και Υδα-τοκαλιεργειών (ΙΘΑΒΒΥΚ) του Ελληνικού Κάντρου Θαλασσίων Ερευνών (ΕΛΚΕΘΕ) πραγματοποιούνται πειράματα σε ελεχχόμενες συνθήκες στο εργαστήριο. Τα πειρά-ματα αυτά έχουν σκοπό να διερευνήσουν την επίδραση της κλιματικής αλλαγής κα

ic (13.9

της οξίνισης των ωκεανών στους θαλάσ-σιους οργανισμούς και πιο συγκεκριμένα στην ανάπτυξή τους, στην αναπαραγωγι-κή τους δραστηριότητα και στη συμπερι-φορά τους κατά την εύρεση τροφής ή την αποφυγή των θηρευτών τους. Οι διεργα-δες αυτές είναι ζοπικής σημασίας για την επιβίωση των ειδών και τη διατήρηση της βιοποικιλάτητας των κοινωνιών τους. Η συγκεκριμένη έρευνα αετί του παρόντας χρηματοδοτείται από το έργο ECCO στο Ινάσιοι του ΕλάΕΚ για την ενίσχυση των της οξίνισης των ωκεανών στους θαλάσ πλαίσιο του ΕΛΙΔΕΚ για την ενίσχυση των

KYPIAKH 17 JANOYAPIOY 2021

πλαίτοι του ΕΛΙΔΕΚ για την ενίσχυση των ματοδιδακτορικών ερευνητών. Στις εγκαταστάσεις του ΙΘΑΒΕΥΚ απο Ηρά-κλειο της Κρήτης φιλοξενείται ένας αξον-κός μικροποιοριόραρος μεγάλης διακρατικής υκανότητας που μας δίνει τη δυνατάτητα να δημιουργήσουμε τριοδίδατατες εικόνες από τα κελάφη των οργανισμών και να διαπ-στάσουμε τοχών διασφοριατίσεις τους. Με τη χρήτη του εξοπλισμού αυτού μπορούμε το μελετήσκηκε την εξοποιρική να μελετήσουμε την εξωτερική μορφολογία και υφή του κελύφους, την πυκνότητά του καθώς ακόμα και τυχόν διαφοροποι

ως ακομα και τυχον διαφοροποι-ήσεις στο σχήμα του. Εχαι, για παράδειγμα, το Θαλάστιο σαλιγκάρι που φαίνεται στη δε-ξιά πλευρά της εικό-νας έχει αναπυχθεί σε συνθήκες υψη-λότερος σέτστας λότερης οξύτητας και θερμοκρασίας για ένα περιορισμέ-νο χρονικό διάστημα νο χρονικό διάστημα τριόνι μηνόν. Παρ' όδα απά, όμως, οι διαφορο-ποιήσας στο κέλυφός του είναι εμφανείς σε σχίση με τον οργανισμό του ίδιου είδους αριστερό που έχαι αναπτιχθεί σε φυ-οιαλογικές συνθήκες. Στη δεξιά εικόνα, η χοριασή του ορταγόκου έγιαι κατειτοτοιαμέ.

κορυφή του οστράκου είναι κατεστραμμέ-νη, τα χαρακτηριστικά αυλάκια στην επιφά-νετά του έχουν λειανθεί και διακρίνονται περιοχές που είναι πολύ λεπτές, σχεδόν Supervic

Η δρ Ευαγγελία Χατζηνικολάου είναι συνεργαζόμενη ερευνήτρια στο Ινστιτούτο Θαλάσσιας Βιολογίας, Βιοτεχνολογίας & Υδατοκαλλιεργειών (ΙΘΑΒΒΥΚ) του Ελληνικού Κέντρου Θαλασσίων Ερευνών (ΕΛΚΕΘΕ). Bion



Interview of Dr. E. Chatzinikolaou (MB&B), on the effects of Climate Change on marine ecosystems.



EXAMPLE 2

Ο Δρ. ΠΑΝΑΓΙΩΤΗΣ ΚΑΣΑΠΙΔΗΣ ΣΤΗΝ "Π" Πόσο δραματικές είναι οι αλλαγές στις θάλασσές μας

Συνέντευξη στην Κακορί**να Μινλων**ά

In complete which pumped we provide an exact problem alter powerford 0.4 p. throughout, for constant, reference growthink one from the the Advances Sta-legeles, State-constant, reference alter powerford and the state exact pro-togetes, and and a state of the advances of the state of the state of the power one of the advances of the state of th

Ανάλυση περιβαλλοντικών δεινμάτων σε νενετικό αναλυτή υψηλής απόδοσης στο ΕΛΚΕΘΕ

<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text>

And mm data, indexpanse data set is a set in the properties of the pro



Ο ερευνητής

ó ép. Nawayyéni Kacantén; ciwa sépi

σία, πώς θα επηρεάσει την γεωγραφική κατα-νομή των είδών και την παραγωγικότητα των οι-κοσυστημάτων, πόσο θα ανέβει η στάθμη των

κουτοτημάτων, πόσο θα αντβεί τι ατάθμη των θαλασούν. Πιθανώς μάσα στην επόμενη δεκαετία να τριν ούμα ακάμα βαρματικές αλλιγός ταις θάλοσας και τις ακτές της περιοχής μος λόγω της ελίμαστ ές αλλαγής. όλι άσι πό 2030 και μετά οι αλ-λαγές μπορεί να είναι ραγάδιες και οι υπέρους εξωραγικός του με την άνοδο της ατάθμας της εξωραγικός του με την άνοδο της ατάθμης της αλλαγουρ

οδεν υπηρανα στην περιολη μας πριν λιγα χρό-το. Επιπλόνα, το επιθμενα χρόνια, ισίως και μέσα στα επιθμενα 10 αγόλια, αναμένται το ανοπτια-θούν και να ενταθούν αικουρμικές δρασπηρίδη-τις στο διαλοίσοι πρήβλιολι και τη περιολικής ματώς τη παράπτων παι αυτρικρικής τη τη πριολικής ματώς τη παράπτων παι αυτρικρικής τη τη διαλοίσιο το-πιό. Ειδιαά οι αποθυλλασικές έδρομβαζις, και τόνς αναμέρισμαι μάτοι του ποιβμάνα, πιθραίδη να συσφέρομαι μάνου στην όλληση περιδαίου και συσφέρομαι μάνου στην διάληση της καται στορομικές συτινές διαλούς θα δουου καται στορομικές συνέπεις του του διαλόσιο το-πουμλόπτια στι ποι ποιβμάνα, πιθανώς θα δουου καται στορομικές συνέπεις του ποιδιαλού ποι στον στοριγόληση στι απορούς που είλονα μέναι στινέγη-κτις από τον άνθρωπο...

Οι αλλαγές στις θάλασσες

Ο **Ο** αλλαγάς στις θάλασσες **Μ**ιστρότις ται στο στιξιουτης: τις αλλητής του έχους συναι στο του τις αλλητής του έχους συναι στο του τις αλλητής διαμας τη αυτοματικός τη αι τις λευτικά τρούπαι διαμας τη αυτοματικός τη αι τις που τις μαγά τη αιτις τη αστιστικής τη αι τη τις τη μαρατίς αλλητής αλλητικός που τις διαματικός της δια-ανότα του τις του τις τη αυτοματικής αφήτη αλλητής αλλητικός τη αυτοματικής τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητικός τη αυτοματικής τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής του τις τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής του τις τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής τη αλλητής τη αλλητής αλλητής τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής τη αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής αλλητής τη αλλητής αλητής αλη

έστο ποιντή πλημητικά. Η σταδικοί τόδοπ της Αξιμοριαροίας έλνου μα άλλη ουλληγή που ίλδη πορατηρείται είναι που ματάξι άλλων προκλείς άλλαγςζε του τγουργα-φικί κατουρί των έδιδων, που είναι ποι εμφα-φικί κατουρί των έδιδων, που είναι ποι εμφα-φικί κατουρί των έδιδων, που είναι ποι εμφα-φικί κατουρί των έδιδωνα, αλλα άρχιζουμε και βλίπουμε και αλλαγές ατη Μεσόγκου με φυχοβ-φίλαι είδη το μεταινούται πορος τις βόρεις ακτίς της και πιθανώς να έδιφοινατούν ενώ αρ-ζούν να ευιροριαχόν ποι θέριφοιδαι είδηκ.

<text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text><text>



απς η απίστευπ γραφειοκρατία στη διαχείριση των ερευνπικών κονδυλίων, που αναγκάζει τους Σλλινας επαττύρισας να σοσο λούνται πιο πολύ με το πώς θα προμηθεσιούν υλικά για πτιν έρευναί τους πορά με πτιν δία την έρευνα, αναί οι μαροκρόνταις ελιοστικές ανέσεις εφγαίατος πολ-λών νέων εισπατρήσων. Το κειταίο σε ανδυσομό με πτι όλ-λεική αι σταθερτός χρηματοδόπισης, συχκά σόλητεί στο να αγιναζύροστε να κραπτί σουμε τολοντούχους επιστήμο-υς έχι ποι τέλικά φείνουν στο εξώτειρικό ri προς τον Ιδιατικό τομέα.



і мінроцорії ў ба риоройог на раз бйогі Ліцо нерб уні на сібн поч (очи оні; бійско-του Υργατισμού που διοτοιε μιο τηλιάτι από που αυδιέγοται και που του του του του του του βρακει του διαστο αρτοι στι του βράτου. Του Ολλά βρακει του διαστο αρτοι στι του βράτου, Του Ολλά Ολλάτι αυλλά από του πορισμού του αποβάλ Αυται αυλλά από πότι οις οργατογιατιμούς όταν πε-θαίνουνα. Έτσι, για παραδετημο, μπαρούμε αμλ τηδράνοτα, λίλα πότα οι διασικού πλαλάτι να διαστι το πράστοματι που μέτησα θιασιασιου τίχρού, για αυλιλέζουμμι περβάλλουταό DNA και νο διαστι απόποιμμε που μέτοι που πολιάτι να διαλία να ανατιλε

Τα όπλα των επιστημόνων

τράροντας λίγα λήτρα θαλαστινού νερού, ναι αυλέξουμε περιβαλοντικό DNA και να όλταπ-ατώσουμε ποτα είδη ψοριών ή άλλων οργαν-αρών ζουν στην περιβαλοντικό DNA κάτης. Φυστεά η διαδιτασία κίναι κάποις ποι ουλθετής πρότες το πολαπλασιάσουμε με τηι εξιθδού CRE τήμα ανός γουθάοι του περιβαλοντικού DNA από μια ορίδα ο οργανομμές με τηι εξιθδού CRE τήμα ανός ναθόσουμε" μαζικά αυτά το κομμό-αρίδα ο οργανομμόν που μας κολιαφήσεις, όπως τα φόρα, να "διαβάσουμε" μαζικά αυτά το κομμό-τίδας το "διαβάσουμε" μαζικά αυτά το κομμό-τιξιός το ανατομικός διαδομένων του πορισχήσει τα τημήτατο DNA με βάσεις διεδομένων το τι διάτη αναδιάσους έρχις για αυτομποιό ποι διάτη αναγράσου μαι το τα συργάλομοις από τι διάτη αναδιάσους έρχις για αυτομποιόπουρας από τη αναξικά το διαδου το αργανήσμούς από τι διάτη αναδιάσους έρχις για αυτομποιόπουρας διάσεις ζαδομένωνια, κάτη που ακόμμα δεν κεινάς, αις διάτη μεγάδους για συργάλους πληρίους το διάτη το αριδιάσους έρχις για αυτομποιόπουρας διάσεις ζαδορύμουνα, κάτη που ακόμμα δεν κεινάς, το αρμόνος Εξε μια εποιότι μεγάλους αυτολογιστικό ποριδιά-

ρίωσί τουρικών, πωρότερους αυπόθυδωνς οργανί αμούς. Σε μοι ποιοτή μεγάλων ακολογικών προκλ-αιων, είταις μάθοδο μπορούν να διουν εφορ-μεγίς στην παρακολούθηση των αλλαγών στην βιασπολίδητης, που έγκαρη ανάκτρωπη τη αναλητιβοβλοικαι αύλας το το ποιοτηρία τη καινη το τουρικάνη το τουρία το τουρία τη αναλητιβοβλοικαι αύλας το που έγκαρη ανάκτρωπη δια το τουρία το τουρία το τουρία το το νων και απελούμενων ειδών. Το ταλικατιό αφοία δουμάζουμς και αναπτώσ σουμε τέποις μιθοδους στο ΕλΚΕΘΕ για διάφο οις ειράδος αργαγουρίων. Πρόσαπο του ΕλΚΕΘΕ για διάφολογια, ή του βαιατιστικό του ΕλΚΕΘΕ για διάφολογια, το το διασμάσουμα το ΕλΚΕΘΕ για διάφολογια, το το διασμάσουμα.





αναφέρω κάτι που διάβοσα, πος οι άνθρωποι, παρότι είμαστε νοπίρονα όντα και με τα μάσα και τη γνώση που διάθείσωμε μπορ ρούμε να κάνουμε ποράδιετας έξελιξες, όπως π κλιματικά πό λαγή, εντούτας τείνουμε ως κοι-νωντές να δρούμε κονάρθαθυς καντές να δρούμε κονάρθαθυς ποιτάς καλαρούμε κανάρθαση.





Witnessing The Rise Or Fall Of A Species: Introgressive Hybridization Of Dolphins In The Greek Seas (Stenella coeruleoalba And Delphinus delphis)

Solence Contributor 23, January 2019 | Last Updated: 14, March 2020



Under some circumstances, it is possible for members of two different species to mate and produce viable offspring. This phenomenon is called hybridization and is far more common in natural populations than previously thought, as suggested by the findings of numerous scientific studies.

Hybrids can either inherit morphological characteristics from both their parents (morphological intermediates) or might more resemble one of their parents, rendering their detection by scientists challengingidaunting. This task becomes even more laborious when studying species that are difficult to observe, such as marine mammals. Buch problems are alleviated when scientists seek DNA evidence for hybrid detection and miscular biology tools come into play. At the genetic level, hybrids always carry material from both parents (in-parentally inherited markers), making their detection by stratistic means (hybrid science) and miscular biology tools come into play. At the genetic level, hybrids always carry material from both parents (in-parentally inherited markers), making their detection by stratistic means (hybrid science) and interact laboristic polying that are able to reproduce have implications on the genetic variability within individuals upon which natural selection can operate and, at a broader scale, on fundamental evolutionary processes such as speciation.

A chailenging task that follows a hybrid detection is to define the conditions under which this phenomenon is favored and decipher their evolutionary implications/advantages, considering at the same time demographic and life history traits as well as habitat disturbance as promoting factors. Studying hybridization in natural populations offers a unique opportunity for the study of incipient evolution.

Cetaceans are marine mammals (whales, dolphins, and porpoises) that occur in mixed groups, thus providing excelent opportunities for interspecific serval interaction and hybridization potential. The fact that almost 20% of cetacean species hybridize both in the wild and in captivity, as shown in a recent review by Crossman and colleagues (2016), is indicate of the incompleteness of pre- and post-mating barriers is historeding in this group. This high percentage is due to lack of incompatibilities in the number and atmagnements of chromosomes attributed to the groups' site evolutionary rate and recent evolutionary radiation. In turn, these might be indicative of cetacean's greater potential with respect to other mammals, to hybridize and generate viable and fertile progeny.

The Greek Seas hous a bage diversity of marke habitatis where 11 catacean species are present. The Gurd Control (GOC) constitutes a unique and very interesting area where three sympacific displant catalogs precises the green market market species groups, providing excellent apportunities to interspecies tesus interaction and the potential for hybridization. This because even more hierensting when, during the species tesus green market market species groups, providing excellent apportunities to interspecific sexual interaction and the potential for hybridization. This because a level more hierenstial when the strend objinin (Stenetia controllecable) and the short-beaked common dophin (Debhnu delphin). This phenomenon could either to the result of interspecific hybridization between the two adverterentificines species or might represent another incident of the high morphological variability in the signmentation pattern stread dophin.

Recently, a scientific learw, which includes researchers from Greek installations (<u>lational Hatters Vulueum of Cetek-University of Cetek-(installue of Vularies Bolooy, Biolectinology and Autoculture-HOMB, and <u>Pelapos Cetaction Research Institute</u>), attempted to shed light on whether natural hybridization is the cause and understand the evolutionary processes that were responsible for the presence of these hitemediale morphism, in order to accomplia hab, they collected shin samples from individual of the two species of disphins as well as from the intermediale morphis and conducted a DNA-based study by means of two types of genetic markers (bi-parentially inherited high resolving microsabilite DNA markers and maternally transmitted miticchondria DNA sequences) serving as two independent sources of information.</u>

By employing several distinct analysis approaches, they were not only able to genetically discriminate the two species but also to discover 15 Individuals as putative hybrids. The Intermediate morphs also carried DNA of both parental species (in respect of the genome that is inherited by both parents, i.e., they were admixed, displaying unique variation indicative of recent hybridization events between the two species. This led scientists to conclude that the two species do hybridize. Furthermore, there is evidence that there is no reproductive isolation between hybrids and their parental species since the hybrids are fetting and able to reproduce not only with other hybrids also with each of the two parental species (Lemming from the discovery of hybrids are stimuling from backnoses will each of the parental species). Another athing fact is that athough the two displin species are inoven to have different ecological and dietary needs, those distributed in the GOC do display common characteristics with 0. depits harving adapted the tribentiver, haiting terretere, and, intelly, destruct and the species attempting tom the addition between hybrids and there and and the original species and the species at the hybrid and there are no not have different ecological and dietary needs, those distributed in the GOC do display common characteristics with 0. depits harving adapted the tribentiver, haiting terretere, and, intelly, destry needs to coesist that 6. coercits that 6. coercits that 6. coercits that 6. coercits that 6.

Based on the findings of the study, It is highly probable that crosses between males of *D*, dephils with females of *S*, convecable are more common than other crosses mostly due to the low abundance of potentia conspectific mates for *D*, dephils, jeogradizing ta genetic integrity is phenomenon called Hubb's principle or 'desperation hypothesis'). This is sometring already reported for possibles. Buch a pattern could also be affected by the occurrence of organochronne pollularits and/or polychiorinated biphenyls, which is of high consensation concern. New evidence provided by the study led to an invitable rise of the accenting useful on the schedule study. The new schedule that provide the permanent of a new species and/or the permanent of

Published by Aglaia (Cilia) Antoniou

Institute of Marine Biology, Biotechnology and Aquaculture, H

These findings are described in the article entitled <u>Existence of Information between Silencella coercilication and Deckinica decidie in the Greet Reas</u>, recently published in the journal <u>Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution</u> (Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution 129 (2018) 325-337). This work was conducted by Agaia (Cilia) Antoniou from the institute of <u>Marine Biology, Biotechnology</u>, and Aguacular Fieldinic Centre for Marine Research, Alexandros Frantzis and Paraskevi Alexiadou from the <u>Pelagos Celsicean Research institute</u>, and Netell Paschou and Nikos Poulaisakis from the Natural History Museum of Crete, University of Crete,*

Rising public awareness and communicating research findings on dolphin hybrids found in the Greek Seas by Dr. Aglaia (Cilia) Antoniou (**MB&B**).

b. Services and Applications for public health

Although this is no longer one of the main objectives of the Environmental Microbiology Laboratory, we provide a service to local municipality as well as private companies, running analyses for water for human consumption, (*i.e.* packaged water, spring water or wells) or from surface waters (lakes, rivers, coastal and bathing waters) and marine waters from various depths. The laboratory also participates in the HCMR educational team activities, with various presentations given to primary, secondary and tertiary education on issues related to microbiology and infections from contaminated waters, as well as on the rules of protection and safety for humans.

c. Training and educational activities targeted for the public

We are actively involved with public training and education, through our memberships in the European Marine Science Educators Association, the Expert Working Group on Ocean Literacy of EuroGOOS and EU4Ocean Platform. These programs also benefit teachers, influence school curricula and support the Network of European Blue Schools. Several important Ocean Literacy dimensions (knowledge, attitudes, behavior of school students towards ocean sciences issues within the frameworks of Ocean Literacy and Mediterranean Sea Literacy) are already under investigation by EMSEA-Mediterranean Working Group in different Mediterranean countries such as Croatia, Italy, Greece, Malta, Turkey, Spain, Egypt, Cyprus, France. By being one of the principle investigators of an EU Horizon 2020 ERASMUS+ project, we support the development of socially-inclusive blue challenges in schools in the Mediterranean Sea basin. The project aims at developing, testing and evaluating innovative approaches to integrate marine issues in the curriculum and educational activities of schools in different Mediterranean countries. Being partners and members of the User Advisory Board of the EU funded project entitled "Inclusive open schooling through engaging and future-oriented science (CONNECT)", we scientifically support teachers and educators of elementary and secondary schools for designing and developing educational scenarios concerning marine environmental issues. IMBBC is also a partner of the EU-funded project entitled "NAUTILOS: New Approach to Underwater Technologies for Innovative, Low-cost Ocean obServation", and scientifically responsible for synergies aiming at dissemination and communication activities of the project to the public.

d. Other activities with socio-economic impact

The institute keeps increasing its visibility at the local and national levels of public administration, scientific fora and public media. In the area of policies and the formulation of research and innovation priorities, IMBBC has pursued an active presence in decision-making and policy-making bodies at the local, regional and national level. The institute maintains a close cooperation with the Region of Crete, which is the administrative body of developing policies and decision making, by participating in advisory committees on a number of economic development issues, such as primary production, environment, blue growth, alternative tourism, etc.

IMBBC co-organized with the Region of Crete (2018), a special meeting with the participation of the Regions of Europe having blue growth as priority area, inviting

successful examples of industrial applications in blue growth. The aim was to transfer good practices for innovation to the Region of Crete and support technology transfer.

During the last few years, various researchers of IMBBC have been selected by the State to participate in the Thematic Scientific Council (TES) in Agrotechnology and Nutrition. Since November 2020, the director of IMBBC (Dr. C.C. Mylonas) and Dr. E. Fountoulaki have been appointed as President and Deputy President of the current Thematic Scientific Council in Agrotechnology and Nutrition. The function of the TES is to provide advice to the National Council of Research and Innovation (E Σ ETEK) on research priorities, initiative to foster collaborations between research centers and industry, and methods to implement new technology and innovations in the area of their expertise. Through this role, IMBBC can play a significant role in influencing the State strategy in supporting research in this area, which has a very significant socio-economic impact through its role in food security, sustainable seafood production and environmental and biodiversity protection.

Drs C.C. Mylonas and G. Rigos (AQUA) have been appointed (since 2012) as members in the **Committee on Introduced and Exotic Species**, of the Department of Fisheries, Ministry of Rural Development and Food. This committee convenes to evaluate applications from aquaculture companies to import non-native species (freshwater or marine).

The Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete facilitates a multidisciplinary approach clustering a cost-effective combination of services to target users originating from the public and private sector, international research programs and networks, academia and government. Emphasis is given to the: a) demonstration of the patented innovative concept "HCMR Recreational Diving Oasis" based on the construction and deployment of special artificial reefs made of concrete that mimic the shape and function of natural rocky reef habitats for the development of recreational diving parks; b) biological designation of candidate native marine seaweeds and macrobenthic invertebrate species of biotechnological interest (e.g. sponges, bryozoans, mollusks, polychaetes) and testing of their cultivation ability and commercial usability (mass production); c) the collaboration with HCMR spin-off company for its exploitation by the local private sector. In addition, the UBPC will collaborate with the Cretaquarium (also part of the HCMR) for broadcasting in real time underwater television images presenting the infrastructure and functioning of the park to the audience of both HCMR aquaria, as well as to end users worldwide. In this context, UBPC can be used as a tool for supporting various experimental and educational activities including the implementation of a broad spectrum of Citizen Science projects.

Scientific impost

6 Additional Information – Director's CV

In this section you may provide any additional information not included in the above sections (optional completion, maximum 2 pages).

Researcher's Name: Constantinos C. Mylonas **Current Position:** Researcher A, Director of IMBBC **Research Group:** AQUA **Field of Research:** Fish reproduction

Scientific impact							
Publication record	Research Projects			Student supervision			
h-index (Scopus)	43	Coordinator (Co)		7	PhD	18	
Articles (ISI-index)	143	Principal investigator (PI)		17	MSc	27	
Citations (total)	5,540	Project member		6	BSc	54	
Citations (non-self)	4,559	Funding (Co + PI) 5,421,0		€ 000			

Personal summary: My research field may be summarized in (a) the study of fish reproductive biology and endocrinology, (b) the identification of the dysfunctions exhibited by female and male broodstocks in captive conditions, and (c) the development of pharmacological methods for the control of reproduction, induction of spawning and improvement of sperm production in fish of interest for the aquaculture industry. In this framework, I have been involved in research aiming at the optimization of broodstock management methods, focusing on marine fishes. My research gave me the opportunity to be in close contact with the aquaculture industry, and to study more than twenty different cultured fish species, including large benthic and pelagic fishes such as the wreckfish (*Polyprion americanus*), greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) and the Atlantic bluefin tuna (*Thunnus thynnus*), species which we succeeded in controlling their reproduction in captivity.

Education

- **Doctor of Philosophy** in Marine-Estuarine and Environmental Sciences (1996), Center of Marine Biotechnology, **University of Maryland**, College Station, Maryland, USA
- Master of Science in Zoology (1991), North Carolina State University, Raleigh, North Carolina, USA
- **Bachelor of Science** (1988) with Summa Cum Laude Honors in Wildlife and Fisheries Sciences, Aquaculture option, **Texas A&M University**, College Station, Texas, USA.

Notable achievements

I have coordinated 7 projects, of which 1 from the EU (FP7), and 3 national and 3 bi-national. In addition, I have participated as the Principle Investigator from HCMR in 7 EU projects (FP 5, FP7 and H2020). I have acquired a total funding of 5,42€ million, of which 3,8€ million from EU funded projects, 976,000€ from national projects, and 533,000€ from Private contracts with companies and research organizations. I have provided consulting services for companies in Greece, Europe, Asia and the Americas. I have **published** 1 edited book (in English), 6 book chapters (five in English, one in Greek) and 143 articles in ISI-Indexed Scientific Journals. I have presented 23 invited speeches in Conferences, Workshops and Meetings and 24 invited lectures in University courses for undergraduate or graduate students, and in Educational organizations for professionals. I have been the president of the Scientific Committee for Agrotechnology and Nutrition, of the Greek Republic in 2020-2021. I have been the Director of IMBBC since 2020 and the Head of the Cretaquarium in 2021-2022. I have been a member of the Scientific Programme Committee of 3 international Conferences (EUROPEAN AQUACULTURE 2011, 2017 and AQUAGAMETE 2015) and have been given the organization of one international conference in 2022 (12th International Symposium on Reproductive Physiology of Fish). I have been elected member of the Board of Directors of the European Aquaculture Society since 2018 (2 terms).

Professional activities and societies

Deputy director of Cretaquarium, Crete – 2021-2022. Responsible of all operations.

- President of the National Scientific Committee for Agrotechnology and Nutrition, of the Greek Republic 2020-2022. Consulting body for the State.
- Advisory Committee on "The Use of Exotic and non-Native Species in Aquaculture" Department of Agriculture and Agricultural Development, Republic of Greece. 2010- to date
- Expert Contributor European Food Safety Organization (EFSA). Working group on Stunning and Killing of Tuna. 2008-2009, Parma, Italy.

European Aquaculture Society, member (Board of Directors, 2018- present)

Proposal-project evaluator

- 2020, 2011, 2008, 2006. The United States Israel Binational Agriculture Research and Development Fund (BARD), Israel.
- 2014. United States of America Department of Agriculture (USDA), External reviewer of Small Business Innovation Research (SBIR) Proposals.
- 2011. European Commission, DG RESEARC). External reviewer of 7th Framework Program (KBBE), midterm and final evaluation.
- 2003. The Biotechnology and Biological Sciences Research Council (BBSRC), United Kingdom

Recent or selected funded projects

- (May 2020-2023) BESTBROOD: Identification of broodstock performance indicators to boost the aquaculture of emerging fish species. Horizon 2020 (ERA-NET BLUEBIO 2020), €1,921,854 (Total), €174,650 for HCMR (Partner Principle Investigator and WP 4 leader)
- (January 2020-2024) NEWTECHAQUA: New Technologies, Tools and Strategies for a Sustainable, Resilient and Innovative European Aquaculture, under the Call: Sustainable European aquaculture 4.0: nutrition and breeding, **Horizon 2020** (**DT-BG-04-2018-2019**), €6,999,996 (Total), €254,500 for HCMR (Partner Principle Investigator and WP 4 leader)
- (May 2017-2021) MedAID: Mediterranean Aquaculture Integrated Development, Horizon 2020 (SFS-23-2016-2), €6,999,996 (Total), €531,000 for HCMR (Principle Investigator HCMR)
- (December 2013-2018) DIVERSIFY: Enhancing the European aquaculture production by removing production bottlenecks of emerging species, producing new products and accessing new markets, EU 7th FP, European Commission (KBBE2013.1.2.09, €11,838,080 (Total), €1,758,012 for HCMR (Project Coordinator, Principle Investigator HCMR)

Recent or selected top five publications

- Corriero, A., Wylie, M.J., Nyuji, M., Zupa, P., **Mylonas, C.C.**, 2021. Reproduction of greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) and other members of the family Carangidae. **Rev. Aquacult.**, 2021, 1-35.
- Chatzifotis, S., Gutierrez, A.G., Papadaki, M., Caruso, F., Sigelaki, I., **Mylonas, C.C.**, 2021. Lack of negative effects of fasting of gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*) breeders during the spawning period on maternal and egg nutrient composition, fertilization success, and early embryo/larval development. **Fish Physiol. Biochem.** 47, 1257-1270.
- Superio, J., Fakriadis, I., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Lancerotto, S.A., Rodriguez, A.V., Vervelakis, E., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Spawning kinetics and parentage contribution of European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) broodstocks, and influence of GnRHa-induced spawning. Aquacult. Rep. 21
- Chatzifotis, S., Gutierrez, A.G., Papadaki, M., Caruso, F., Sigelaki, I., **Mylonas, C.C.**, 2021. Lack of negative effects of fasting of gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*) breeders during the spawning period on maternal and egg nutrient composition, fertilization success, and early embryo/larval development. **Fish Physiol. Biochem.** 47, 1257-1270.
- Papadaki, M., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Pouli, M., Asderis, M., Katharios, P., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Histological evaluation of sex differentiation and early sex identification in hatchery-produced greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) reared in sea cages. Fish Physiol Biochem. 47(6), 1777-1792. doi:10.1007/s10695-021-01007-7

7 Annex I – IMBBC Bibliography (MB&B and AQUA)

Journal articles

2018

- Alexi, N., Byrne, D.V., Nanou, E., Grigorakis, K., 2018a. Investigation of sensory profiles and hedonic drivers of emerging aquaculture fish species. Journal of the Science of Food and Agriculture 98, 1179–1187. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/jsfa.8571</u>
- Alexi, N., Nanou, E., Lazo, O., Guerrero, L., Grigorakis, K., Byrne, D.V., 2018b. Check-All-That-Apply (CATA) with semi-trained assessors: Sensory profiles closer to descriptive analysis or consumer elicited data? Food Quality and Preference 64, 11– 20. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.foodqual.2017.10.009</u>
- Antoniou, A., Frantzis, A., Alexiadou, P., Paschou, N., Poulakakis, N., 2018. Evidence of introgressive hybridization between *Stenella coeruleoalba* and *Delphinus delphis* in the Greek Seas. Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution 129, 325–337. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ympev.2018.09.007
- Bounas, Anastasios, Catsadorakis, G., Logotheti, A., Voslamber, B., Magoulas, A., Tsaparis, D., 2018. Conservation genetics of a resident population of Greylag Goose (*Anser anser*) at the southernmost limit of the species' distribution in Europe. Avian Res 9, 47. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s40657-018-0139-0</u>
- Bounas, A., Tsaparis, D., Efrat, R., Gradev, G., Gustin, M., Mikulic, K., Rodríguez, A., Sarà, M., Kotoulas, G., Sotiropoulos, K., 2018a. Genetic structure of a patchily distributed philopatric migrant: Implications for management and conservation. Biological Journal of the Linnean Society 124, 633–644. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/biolinnean/bly073</u>
- Bounas, A., Tsaparis, D., Gustin, M., Mikulic, K., Sarà, M., Kotoulas, G., Sotiropoulos, K., 2018b. Using genetic markers to unravel the origin of birds converging towards pre-migratory sites. Scientific Reports 8. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-018-26669-x</u>
- Bulleri, F., Eriksson, B.K., Queirós, A., Airoldi, L., Arenas, F., Arvanitidis, C., Bouma, T.J., Crowe, T.P., Davoult, D., Guizien, K., Iveša, L., Jenkins, S.R., Michalet, R., Olabarria, C., Procaccini, G., Serrão, E.A., Wahl, M., Benedetti-Cecchi, L., 2018. Harnessing positive species interactions as a tool against climate-driven loss of coastal biodiversity. PLoS Biology 16. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pbio.2006852
- Chatzifotis, S., Clavero, S., Kounna, C., Soumalevris, A., Feidantsis, K., Antonopoulou, E., 2018. Effects of long-term feed deprivation on body weight loss, muscle composition, plasma metabolites, and intermediate metabolism of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) under different water temperatures. Fish Physiology and Biochemistry 44, 527–542. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10695-017-0451-3</u>
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Mandalakis, M., Damianidis, P., Dailianis, T., Gambineri, S., Rossano, C., Scapini, F., Carucci, A., Arvanitidis, C., 2018. Spatio-temporal benthic biodiversity patterns and pollution pressure in three Mediterranean touristic ports. Science of the Total Environment 624, 648–660. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2017.12.111
- Christakis, C.A., Polymenakou, P.N., Mandalakis, M., Nomikou, P., Kristoffersen, J.B., Lampridou, D., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., 2018. Microbial community differentiation between active and inactive sulfide chimneys of the Kolumbo

submarine volcano, Hellenic Volcanic Arc. Extremophiles 22, 13–27. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00792-017-0971-x

- Dailianis, T., Smith, C.J., Papadopoulou, N., Gerovasileiou, V., Sevastou, K., Bekkby, T., Bilan, M., Billett, D., Boström, C., Carreiro-Silva, M., Danovaro, R., Fraschetti, S., Gagnon, K., Gambi, C., Grehan, A., Kipson, S., Kotta, J., McOwen, C.J., Morato, T., Ojaveer, H., Pham, C.K., Scrimgeour, R., 2018. Human activities and resultant pressures on key European marine habitats: An analysis of mapped resources. Marine Policy 98, 1–10. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2018.08.038</u>
- Dimarchopoulou, D., Gerovasileiou, V., Voultsiadou, E., 2018. Spatial variability of sessile benthos in a semi-submerged marine cave of a remote Aegean Island (eastern Mediterranean Sea). Regional Studies in Marine Science 17, 102–111. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rsma.2017.11.015</u>
- Dimitriadi, A., Beis, D., Arvanitidis, C., Adriaens, D., Koumoundouros, G., 2018. Developmental temperature has persistent, sexually dimorphic effects on zebrafish cardiac anatomy. Scientific Reports 8. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-018-25991-8</u>
- Dimitriadis, C., Sini, M., Trygonis, V., Gerovasileiou, V., Sourbès, L., Koutsoubas, D., 2018. Assessment of fish communities in a Mediterranean MPA: Can a seasonal notake zone provide effective protection? Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 207, 223–231. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecss.2018.04.012
- Duncan, N.J., Mylonas, C.C., Milton Sullon, E., Karamanlidis, D., França Nogueira, M.C., Ibarra-Zatarain, Z., Chiumento, M., Aviles Carrillo, R.O., 2018. Paired spawning with male rotation of meagre *Argyrosomus regius* using GnRHa injections, as a method for producing multiple families for breeding selection programs. Aquaculture 495, 506–512. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2018.06.017</u>
- Fjelldal, P.G., Solberg, M.F., Glover, K.A., Folkedal, O., Nilsson, J., Finn, R.N., Hansen, T.J., Tsigenopoulos, C., 2018. Documentation of multiple species of marine fish trapped in Atlantic salmon sea-cages in Norway. Aquatic Living Resources 31. <u>https://doi.org/10.1051/alr/2018020</u>
- Forner-Piquer, I., Mylonas, C.C., Calduch-Giner, J., Maradonna, F., Gioacchini, G., Allarà, M., Piscitelli, F., Di Marzo, V., Pérez-Sánchez, J., Carnevali, O., 2018. Endocrine disruptors in the diet of male *Sparus aurata*: Modulation of the endocannabinoid system at the hepatic and central level by Di-isononyl phthalate and Bisphenol A. Environment International 119, 54–65. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envint.2018.06.011</u>
- Gerovasileiou, V., Dailianis, T., Sini, M., Otero, M.D.M., Numa, C., Katsanevakis, S., Voultsiadou, E., 2018. Assessing the regional conservation status of sponges (Porifera): the case of the Aegean ecoregion. Medit. Mar. Sci. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.14461</u>
- Guy-Haim, T., Lyons, D.A., Kotta, J., Ojaveer, H., Queirós, A.M., Chatzinikolaou, E., Arvanitidis, C., Como, S., Magni, P., Blight, A.J., Orav-Kotta, H., Somerfield, P.J., Crowe, T.P., Rilov, G., 2018. Diverse effects of invasive ecosystem engineers on marine biodiversity and ecosystem functions: A global review and meta-analysis. Glob Change Biol 24, 906–924. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/gcb.14007</u>
- Henry, M.A., Gai, F., Enes, P., Peréz-Jiménez, A., Gasco, L., 2018a. Effect of partial dietary replacement of fishmeal by yellow mealworm (Tenebrio molitor) larvae meal on the innate immune response and intestinal antioxidant enzymes of rainbow trout (*Oncorhynchus mykiss*). Fish & Shellfish Immunology 83, 308–313. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.fsi.2018.09.040
- Henry, M.A., Gasco, L., Chatzifotis, S., Piccolo, G., 2018b. Does dietary insect meal affect the fish immune system? The case of mealworm, Tenebrio molitor on

European sea bass, *Dicentrarchus labrax*. Developmental and Comparative Immunology 81, 204–209. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dci.2017.12.002</u>

- Jerez, S., Fakriadis, I., Papadaki, M., Martín, M., Cejas, J., Mylonas, C.C., 2018. Spawning induction of first-generation (F1) greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* in the Canary Islands, Spain using GnRHa delivery systems. Fishes 3, 1–22. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/fishes3030035</u>
- Kalatzis, P.G., Castillo, D., Katharios, P., Middelboe, M., 2018. Bacteriophage interactions with marine pathogenic vibrios: Implications for phage therapy. Antibiotics 7, 1–23. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/antibiotics7010015</u>
- Kasapidis, P., Siokou, I., Khelifi-Touhami, M., Mazzocchi, M.G., Matthaiaki, M., Christou, E., Fernandez De Puelles, M.L., Gubanova, A., Di Capua, I., Batziakas, S., Frangoulis, C., 2018. Revising the taxonomic status and distribution of the *Paracalanus parvus* species complex (Copepoda, Calanoida) in the Mediterranean and Black Seas through an integrated analysis of morphology and molecular taxonomy. Journal of Plankton Research 40, 595–605. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/plankt/fby036</u>
- Keklikoglou, K., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Faulwetter, S., Kalogeropoulou, V., Plaiti, W., Maidanou, M., Dounas, C., Lampadariou, N., Arvanitidis, C., 2018. "Simple" can be good, too: Testing three hard bottom sampling methods on macrobenthic and meiobenthic assemblages. Journal of the Marine Biological Association of the United Kingdom. <u>https://doi.org/10.1017/S0025315418000863</u>
- Kissling, W.D., Ahumada, J.A., Bowser, A., Fernandez, M., Fernández, N., García, E.A., Guralnick, R.P., Isaac, N.J.B., Kelling, S., Los, W., McRae, L., Mihoub, J.-B., Obst, M., Santamaria, M., Skidmore, A.K., Williams, K.J., Agosti, D., Amariles, D., Arvanitidis, C., Bastin, L., De Leo, F., Egloff, W., Elith, J., Hobern, D., Martin, D., Pereira, H.M., Pesole, G., Peterseil, J., Saarenmaa, H., Schigel, D., Schmeller, D.S., Segata, N., Turak, E., Uhlir, P.F., Wee, B., Hardisty, A.R., 2018. Building essential biodiversity variables (EBVs) of species distribution and abundance at a global scale. Biological Reviews 93, 600–625. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/brv.12359</u>
- Kokkari, C., Sarropoulou, E., Bastias, R., Mandalakis, M., Katharios, P., 2018. Isolation and characterization of a novel bacteriophage infecting *Vibrio alginolyticus*. Archives of Microbiology 200, 707–718. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00203-018-1480-8
- Kokou, F., Fountoulaki, E., 2018. Aquaculture waste production associated with antinutrient presence in common fish feed plant ingredients. Aquaculture 495, 295–310. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2018.06.003</u>
- Konstantinou, D., Gerovasileiou, V., Voultsiadou, E., Gkelis, S., 2018. Spongescyanobacteria associations: Global diversity overview and new data from the Eastern Mediterranean. PLoS ONE 13, e0195001. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0195001
- Kotsakiozi, P., Jablonski, D., Ilgaz, Ç., Kumlutaş, Y., Avcı, A., Meiri, S., Itescu, Y., Kukushkin, O., Gvoždík, V., Scillitani, G., Roussos, S.A., Jandzik, D., Kasapidis, P., Lymberakis, P., Poulakakis, N., 2018. Multilocus phylogeny and coalescent species delimitation in Kotschy's gecko, *Mediodactylus kotschyi*: Hidden diversity and cryptic species. Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution 125, 177–187. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ympev.2018.03.022
- Kotzamanis, Y., Kouroupakis, E., Ilia, V., Haralabous, J., Papaioannou, N., Papanna, K., Richards, R., Gisbert, E., 2018. Effects of high-level fishmeal replacement by plant proteins supplemented with different levels of lysine on growth performance and incidence of systemic noninfectious granulomatosis in meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*). Aquaculture Nutrition 24, 1738–1751. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/anu.12814</u>

- Kriton, G., Dimitra, K., Corraze, G., Jaume, P.-S., Adorjan, A., Zsuzsanna, J.S., 2018. Impact of Diets Containing Plant Raw Materials as Fish Meal and Fish Oil Replacement on Rainbow Trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss), Gilthead Sea Bream (*Sparus aurata*), and Common Carp (*Cyprinus carpio*) Freshness. Journal of Food Quality 2018, 1–14. <u>https://doi.org/10.1155/2018/1717465</u>
- Lage, A., Araujo, H.P.M., Gerovasileiou, V., Muricy, G., 2018. A new cave-dwelling species of *Plakina* (Porifera: Homoscleromorpha) from Crete, Greece (South Aegean Sea). Zootaxa 4466, 39–48. <u>https://doi.org/10.11646/zootaxa.4466.1.5</u>
- Machado, A.M., Sarropoulou, E., Castro, L.F.C., Vasconcelos, V., Cunha, I., 2018. An important resource for understanding bio-adhesion mechanisms: Cement gland transcriptomes of two goose barnacles, *Pollicipes pollicipes* and *Lepas anatifera* (Cirripedia, Thoracica). Marine Genomics. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.margen.2018.11.001
- Mandalakis, M., Panikov, N.S., Polymenakou, P.N., Sizova, M.V., Stamatakis, A., 2018. A simple cleanup method for the removal of humic substances from soil protein extracts using aluminum coagulation. Environmental Science and Pollution Research 25, 23845–23856. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s11356-018-2434-z</u>
- Manousaki, T., Tsakogiannis, A., Lagnel, J., Kyriakis, D., Duncan, N., Estevez, A., Tsigenopoulos, C., 2018. Muscle and liver transcriptome characterization and genetic marker discovery in the farmed meagre, *Argyrosomus regius*. Marine Genomics 39, 39–44. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.margen.2018.01.002
- Myers, A., Plaiti, W., Rousou, M., 2018. A new species of *Microdeutopus*, *M. periergos* sp. nov. (Crustacea, Amphipoda, Senticaudata, Aoridae) from Cyprus (East Mediterranean Sea). Zootaxa 4378, 144. https://doi.org/10.11646/zootaxa.4378.1.11
- Papadaki, M., Mazzella, D., Santinelli, V., Fakriadis, I., Sigelaki, I., Mylonas, C.C., 2018. Hermaphroditism and reproductive function of hatchery-produced sharpsnout seabream (*Diplodus puntazzo*) under attenuated annual thermal cycles. Aquaculture 482, 231–240. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2017.09.028</u>
- Papadaki, Maria, Peleteiro, J.B., Alvarez-Blázquez, B., Villanueva, J.L.R., Linares, F., Vilar, A., Rial, E.P., Lluch, N., Fakriadis, I., Sigelaki, I., Mylonas, C.C., 2018. Description of the Annual Reproductive Cycle of Wreckfish *Polyprion americanus* in Captivity. Fishes 3, 1–20. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/fishes3040043</u>
- Papadakis, I.E., Kentouri, M., Divanach, P., Mylonas, C.C., 2018. Ontogeny of the eye of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) from hatching to juvenile and implications to commercial larval rearing. Aquaculture 484, 32–43. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2017.10.038
- Pauletto, M., Manousaki, T., Ferraresso, S., Babbucci, M., Tsakogiannis, A., Louro, B., Vitulo, N., Quoc, V.H., Carraro, R., Bertotto, D., Franch, R., Maroso, F., Aslam, M.L., Sonesson, A.K., Simionati, B., Malacrida, G., Cestaro, A., Caberlotto, S., Sarropoulou, E., Mylonas, C.C., Power, D.M., Patarnello, T., Canario, A.V.M., Tsigenopoulos, C., Bargelloni, L., 2018. Genomic analysis of Sparus aurata reveals the evolutionary dynamics of sex-biased genes in a sequential hermaphrodite fish. Commun Biol 1, 119. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s42003-018-0122-7</u>
- Peck, M.A., Arvanitidis, C., Butenschön, M., Canu, D.M., Chatzinikolaou, E., Cucco, A., Domenici, P., Fernandes, J.A., Gasche, L., Huebert, K.B., Hufnagl, M., Jones, M.C., Kempf, A., Keyl, F., Maar, M., Mahévas, S., Marchal, P., Nicolas, D., Pinnegar, J.K., Rivot, E., Rochette, S., Sell, A.F., Sinerchia, M., Solidoro, C., Somerfield, P.J., Teal, L.R., Travers-Trolet, M., van de Wolfshaar, K.E., 2018. Projecting changes in the distribution and productivity of living marine resources: A critical review of the suite of modelling approaches used in the large European project VECTORS.

Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 201, 40–55. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecss.2016.05.019

- Polymenakou, P., Mandalakis, M., Dailianis, T., Dimitriadis, C., Medvecky, M., Magoulas, A., Gerovasileiou, V., 2018. Preliminary assessment of methanogenic microbial communities in marine caves of Zakynthos Island (Ionian Sea, Greece). Medit. Mar. Sci. 284. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.14374</u>
- Pousis, C., Mylonas, C.C., De Virgilio, C., Gadaleta, G., Santamaria, N., Passantino, L., Zupa, R., Papadaki, M., Fakriadis, I., Ferreri, R., Corriero, A., 2018. The observed oogenesis impairment in greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* (Risso, 1810) reared in captivity is not related to an insufficient liver transcription or oocyte uptake of vitellogenin. Aquaculture Research 49, 243–252. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/are.13453</u>
- Psonis, N., Antoniou, A., Karameta, E., Leaché, A.D., Kotsakiozi, P., Darriba, D., Kozlov, A., Stamatakis, A., Poursanidis, D., Kukushkin, O., Jablonski, D., Crnobrnja-Isailović, J., Gherghel, I., Lymberakis, P., Poulakakis, N., 2018. Resolving complex phylogeographic patterns in the Balkan Peninsula using closely related wall-lizard species as a model system. Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution 125, 100–115. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ympev.2018.03.021</u>
- Qi, W., Cascarano, M.C., Schlapbach, R., Katharios, P., Vaughan, L., Seth-Smith, H.M.B., 2018. Ca. Endozoicomonas cretensis: A novel fish pathogen characterized by genome plasticity. Genome Biology and Evolution 10, 1363–1374. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/gbe/evy092</u>
- Rørbo, N., Rønneseth, A., Kalatzis, P., Rasmussen, B., Engell-Sørensen, K., Kleppen, H., Wergeland, H., Gram, L., Middelboe, M., 2018. Exploring the Effect of Phage Therapy in Preventing *Vibrio anguillarum* Infections in Cod and Turbot Larvae. Antibiotics 7, 42. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/antibiotics7020042</u>
- Roufidou, C., Feidantsis, K., Mente, E., Sarropoulou, E., Antonopoulou, E., 2018. Heat shock protein (HSP) expression and mitogen-activated protein kinase (MAPK) phosphorylation during early embryonic developmental stages of the Gilthead sea bream (*Sparus aurata*). Medit. Mar. Sci. 19, 240–247. https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.14088
- Samaras, A., Papandroulakis, N., Lika, K., Pavlidis, M., 2018a. Water temperature modifies the acute stress response of European sea bass, *Dicentrarchus labrax* L. (1758). Journal of Thermal Biology 78, 84–91. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtherbio.2018.09.006</u>
- Samaras, A., Santo, C.E., Papandroulakis, N., Mitrizakis, N., Pavlidis, M., Höglund, E., Pelgrim, T.N.M., Zethof, J., Spanings, F.A.T., Vindas, M.A., Ebbesson, L.O.E., Flik, G., Gorissen, M., 2018b. Allostatic load and stress physiology in European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax* L.) and gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata* L.). Frontiers in Endocrinology 9. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fendo.2018.00451</u>
- Sofoulaki, K., Kalantzi, I., Machias, A., Mastoraki, M., Chatzifotis, S., Mylona, K., Pergantis, S.A., Tsapakis, M., 2018. Metals and elements in sardine and anchovy: Species specific differences and correlations with proximate composition and size. Science of the Total Environment 645, 329–338. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2018.07.133</u>
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Papandroulakis, N., Lika, K., 2018a. A DEB model for European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*): Parameterisation and application in aquaculture. Journal of Sea Research. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.seares.2018.05.008</u>
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Papandroulakis, N., Sturm, A., Anastasiadis, P., Wätzold, F., Lika, K., 2018b. Towards a computer-based decision support system for aquaculture

stakeholders in Greece in the context of climate change. IJSAMI 4, 219. https://doi.org/10.1504/IJSAMI.2018.099235

- Tsagarakis, K., Nikolioudakis, N., Papandroulakis, N., Vassilopoulou, V., Machias, A., 2018. Preliminary assessment of discards survival in a multi-species Mediterranean bottom trawl fishery. Journal of Applied Ichthyology 34, 842–849. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jai.13691</u>
- Tsakogiannis, Alexandros, Manousaki, T., Lagnel, J., Papanikolaou, N., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2018. The gene toolkit implicated in functional sex in Sparidae hermaphrodites: inferences from comparative transcriptomics. Frontiers in Genetics 9, 749.
- Tsakogiannis, A, Manousaki, T., Lagnel, J., Sterioti, A., Pavlidis, M., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C., Tsigenopoulos, C., 2018. The transcriptomic signature of different sexes in two protogynous hermaphrodites: Insights into the molecular network underlying sex phenotype in fish. Scientific reports 8, 3564.
- Tsalafouta, A., Sarropoulou, E., Papandroulakis, N., Pavlidis, M., 2018. Characterization and Expression Dynamics of Key Genes Involved in the Gilthead Sea Bream (*Sparus aurata*) Cortisol Stress Response during Early Ontogeny. Marine Biotechnology 20, 611–622. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10126-018-9833-5</u>
- Tsertou, M.I., Smyrli, M., Kokkari, C., Antonopoulou, E., Katharios, P., 2018. The aetiology of systemic granulomatosis in meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*): The "Nocardia" hypothesis. Aquaculture Reports 12, 5–11. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aqrep.2018.08.002
- Tsiola, A., Toncelli, C., Fodelianakis, S., Michoud, G., Bucheli, T.D., Gavriilidou, A., Kagiorgi, M., Kalantzi, I., Knauer, K., Kotoulas, G., Mylona, K., Papadopoulou, E., Psarra, S., Santi, I., Tsapakis, M., Daffonchio, D., Pergantis, S.A., Pitta, P., 2018. Low-dose addition of silver nanoparticles stresses marine plankton communities. Environmental Science: Nano 5, 1965–1980. https://doi.org/10.1039/c8en00195b
- Vardali, S.C., Samanidou, V.F., Kotzamanis, Y.P., 2018a. Rapid confirmatory method for the determination of danofloxacin and N-desmethyl danofloxacin in european seabass by UPLC-PDA. Current Analytical Chemistry 14, 68–74. <u>https://doi.org/10.2174/1573411012666160614081139</u>
- Vardali, S.C., Samanidou, V.F., Kotzamanis, Y.P., 2018b. Development and validation of an ultra performance liquid chromatography-quadrupole time of flight-mass spectrometry (in MSE mode) method for the quantitative determination of 20 antimicrobial residues in edible muscle tissue of European sea bass. Journal of Chromatography A 1575, 40–48. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chroma.2018.09.017</u>
- Vasileiadou, K., Pavloudi, C., Camisa, F., Tsikopoulou, I., Fragopoulou, N., Kotoulas, G., Arvanitidis, C., 2018. Genetic diversity of *Nephtys hombergii* (Phyllodocida, Polychaeta) associated with environmental factors in a highly fluctuating ecosystem. Journal of the Marine Biological Association of the United Kingdom 98, 777–789. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0025315416001910
- Vindas, M.A., Fokos, S., Pavlidis, M., Höglund, E., Dionysopoulou, S., Ebbesson, L.O.E., Papandroulakis, N., Dermon, C.R., 2018. Early life stress induces long-term changes in limbic areas of a teleost fish: The role of catecholamine systems in stress coping. Scientific Reports 8. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-018-23950-x</u>
- Viret, A., Tsaparis, D., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Berrebi, P., Sabatini, A., Arculeo, M., Fassatoui, C., Magoulas, A., Marengo, M., Morales-Nin, B., Caill-Milly, N., Durieux, E.D.H., 2018. Absence of spatial genetic structure in common dentex (*Dentex dentex* Linnaeus, 1758) in the Mediterranean Sea as evidenced by nuclear

and mitochondrial molecular markers. PLoS ONE 13. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0203866

Zenetos, A., Corsini-Foka, M., Crocetta, F., Gerovasileiou, V., Karachle, P., Simboura, N., Tsiamis, K., Pancucci-Papadopoulou, M.-A., 2018. Deep cleaning of alien and cryptogenic species records in the Greek Seas (2018 update). Management of Biological Invasions 9, 209–226. <u>https://doi.org/10.3391/mbi.2018.9.3.04</u>

2019

- Alexi, N., Kogiannou, D., Oikonomopoulou, I., Kalogeropoulos, N., Byrne, D.V., Grigorakis, K., 2019. Culinary preparation effects on lipid and sensory quality of farmed gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*) and meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*): An inter-species comparison. Food Chemistry 301, 125263. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.foodchem.2019.125263
- Anastasiou, T.I., Mandalakis, M., Krigas, N., Vézignol, T., Lazari, D., Katharios, P., Dailianis, T., Antonopoulou, E., 2019. Comparative Evaluation of Essential Oils from Medicinal-Aromatic Plants of Greece: Chemical Composition, Antioxidant Capacity and Antimicrobial Activity against Bacterial Fish Pathogens. Molecules 25, 148. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules25010148</u>
- Antonopoulou, E., Nikouli, E., Piccolo, G., Gasco, L., Gai, F., Chatzifotis, S., Mente, E., Kormas, K.A., 2019. Reshaping gut bacterial communities after dietary *Tenebrio molitor* larvae meal supplementation in three fish species. Aquaculture 503, 628– 635. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2018.12.013</u>
- Antony Jesu Prabhu, P., Fountoulaki, E., Maas, R., Heinsbroek, L.T.N., Eding, E.H., Kaushik, S.J., Schrama, J.W., 2019. Dietary ingredient composition alters faecal characteristics and waste production in common carp reared in recirculation system. Aquaculture 512, 734357. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2019.734357</u>
- Arvanitidis, C., Gerovasileiou, V., Karachle, P.K., Zenetos, A., 2019. New horizons for the Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries. Medit. Mar. Sci. 20. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.22047</u>
- Bo, M., Al Mabruk, S., Balistreri, P., Bariche, M., Batjakas, I.E., Betti, F., Bilan, M., Canese, S., Cattaneo-Vietti, R., Corsini-Foka, M., Crocetta, F., Deidun, A., Dulčić, J., Grinyó, J., Kampouris, T., Ketsilis-Rinis, V., Kousteni, V., Koutsidi, M., Lubinevski, H., Mavruk, S., Mytilineou, C., Petani, A., Puig, P., Salomidi, M., Sbragaglia, V., Smith, C., Stern, N., Toma, M., Tsiamis, K., Zava, B., Gerovasileiou, V., 2019. New records of rare species in the Mediterranean Sea (October 2020). Medit. Mar. Sci. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.23674</u>
- Bojko, B., Onat, B., Boyaci, E., Psillakis, E., Dailianis, T., Pawliszyn, J., 2019. Application of in situ Solid-Phase Microextraction on Mediterranean Sponges for Untargeted Exometabolome Screening and Environmental Monitoring. Front. Mar. Sci. 6, 632. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2019.00632</u>
- Brambila-Souza, G., Mylonas, C.C., Mello, P.H., Kuradomi, R.Y., Batlouni, S.R., Tolussi, C.E., Moreira, R.G., 2019. Thermal manipulation and GnRHa therapy applied to the reproduction of lambari-do-rabo-amarelo, *Astyanax altiparanae* females (Characiformes: Characidae) during the non-breeding season. General and Comparative Endocrinology 279, 120–128. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ygcen.2019.02.016
- Carnevali, O., Giorgini, E., Canuti, D., Mylonas, C.C., Forner-Piquer, I., Maradonna, F., 2019a. Diets contaminated with Bisphenol A and Di-isononyl phtalate modify


skeletal muscle composition: A new target for environmental pollutant action. Sci Total Environ 658, 250–259. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2018.12.134</u>

- Carnevali, O., Santobuono, M., Forner-Piquer, I., Randazzo, B., Mylonas, C.C., Ancillai, D., Giorgini, E., Maradonna, F., 2019b. Dietary diisononylphthalate contamination induces hepatic stress: a multidisciplinary investigation in gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*) liver. Arch Toxicol 93, 2361–2373. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s00204-019-02494-7</u>
- Chasapi, A., Aivaliotis, M., Angelis, L., Chanalaris, A., Iliopoulos, I., Kappas, I., Karapiperis, C., Kyrpides, N.C., Pafilis, E., Panteris, E., Topalis, P., Tsiamis, G., Vizirianakis, I.S., Vlassi, M., Promponas, V.J., Ouzounis, C.A., 2019. Establishment of computational biology in Greece and Cyprus: Past, present, and future. PLoS Comput Biol 15, e1007532. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pcbi.1007532
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Grigoriou, P., Martini, E., Sterioti, A., 2019. Impact of ocean acidification and warming on the feeding behavior of two gastropod species. Medit. Mar. Sci. 20, 669. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.19187</u>
- Dragičević, B., Anadoli, O., Angel, D., Benabdi, M., Bitar, G., Castriota, L., Crocetta, F., Deidun, A., Dulčić, J., Edelist, D., Gerovasileiou, V., Giacobbe, S., Goruppi, A., Guy-Haim, T., Konstantinidis, E., Kuplik, Z., Langeneck, J., Macali, A., Manitaras, I., Michailidis, N., Michaloudi, E., Ovalis, P., Perdikaris, C., Pillon, R., Piraino, S., Renda, W., Rizgalla, J., Spinelli, A., Tempesti, J., Tiralongo, F., Tirelli, V., Tsiamis, K., Turan, C., Uygur, N., Zava, B., Zenetos, A., 2019. New Mediterranean Biodiversity Records 2019. Medit. Mar. Sci. 20, 645. https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.20913
- Exadactylos, A., Vafidis, D., Tsigenopoulos, C., Gkafas, G., 2019. High Connectivity of the White Seabream (*Diplodus sargus*, L. 1758) in the Aegean Sea, Eastern Mediterranean Basin. Animals 9, 979. https://doi.org/10.3390/ani9110979
- Fakriadis, I., Lisi, F., Sigelaki, I., Papadaki, M., Mylonas, C.C., 2019. Spawning kinetics and egg/larval quality of greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) in response to multiple GnRHa injections or implants. General and Comparative Endocrinology 279, 78–87. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ygcen.2018.12.007</u>
- Fanini, L., Plaiti, W., Papageorgiou, N., 2019. Environmental education: Constraints and potential as seen by sandy beach researchers. Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 218, 173–178. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecss.2018.12.014</u>
- Forner-Piquer, I., Fakriadis, I., Mylonas, C.C., Piscitelli, F., Di Marzo, V., Maradonna, F., Calduch-Giner, J., Pérez-Sánchez, J., Carnevali, O., 2019a. Effects of Dietary Bisphenol A on the Reproductive Function of Gilthead Sea Bream (*Sparus aurata*) Testes. Int J Mol Sci 20, 5003. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ijms20205003</u>
- Forner-Piquer, I., Mylonas, C.C., Fakriadis, I., Papadaki, M., Piscitelli, F., Di Marzo, V., Calduch-Giner, J., Pérez-Sánchez, J., Carnevali, O., 2019b. Effects of diisononyl phthalate (DiNP) on the endocannabinoid and reproductive systems of male gilthead sea bream (*Sparus aurata*) during the spawning season. Archives of Toxicology. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s00204-018-2378-6</u>
- Galgani, L., Tsapakis, M., Pitta, P., Tsiola, A., Tzempelikou, E., Kalantzi, I., Esposito, C., Loiselle, A., Tsotskou, A., Zivanovic, S., Dafnomili, E., Diliberto, S., Mylona, K., Magiopoulos, I., Zeri, C., Pitta, E., Loiselle, S.A., 2019. Microplastics increase the marine production of particulate forms of organic matter. Environ. Res. Lett. 14, 124085. <u>https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/ab59ca</u>
- Garrabou, J., Gómez-Gras, D., Ledoux, J.-B., Linares, C., Bensoussan, N., López-Sendino, P., Bazairi, H., Espinosa, F., Ramdani, M., Grimes, S., Benabdi, M., Souissi, J.B., Soufi, E., Khamassi, F., Ghanem, R., Ocaña, O., Ramos-Esplà, A.,



Izquierdo, A., Anton, I., Rubio-Portillo, E., Barbera, C., Cebrian, E., Marbà, N., Hendriks, I.E., Duarte, C.M., Deudero, S., Díaz, D., Vázquez-Luis, M., Alvarez, E., Hereu, B., Kersting, D.K., Gori, A., Viladrich, N., Sartoretto, S., Pairaud, I., Ruitton, S., Pergent, G., Pergent-Martini, C., Rouanet, E., Teixidó, N., Gattuso, J.-P., Fraschetti, S., Rivetti, I., Azzurro, E., Cerrano, C., Ponti, M., Turicchia, E., Bavestrello, G., Cattaneo-Vietti, R., Bo, M., Bertolino, M., Montefalcone, M., Chimienti, G., Grech, D., Rilov, G., Tuney Kizilkaya, I., Kizilkaya, Z., Eda Topçu, N., Gerovasileiou, V., Sini, M., Bakran-Petricioli, T., Kipson, S., Harmelin, J.G., 2019. Collaborative Database to Track Mass Mortality Events in the Mediterranean Sea. Front. Mar. Sci. 6, 707. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2019.00707</u>

- Gerovasileiou, V., Smith, C.J., Kiparissis, S., Stamouli, C., Dounas, C., Mytilineou, C., 2019a. Updating the distribution status of the critically endangered bamboo coral *Isidella elongata* (Esper, 1788) in the deep Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Regional Studies in Marine Science 28, 100610. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.rsma.2019.100610</u>
- Gerovasileiou, V., Smith, C.J., Sevastou, K., Papadopoulou, N., Dailianis, T., Bekkby, T., Fiorentino, D., McOwen, C.J., Amaro, T., Bengil, E.G.T., Bilan, M., Boström, C., Carreiro-Silva, M., Cebrian, E., Cerrano, C., Danovaro, R., Fraschetti, S., Gagnon, K., Gambi, C., Grehan, A., Hereu, B., Kipson, S., Kotta, J., Linares, C., Morato, T., Ojaveer, H., Orav-Kotta, H., Sarà, A., Scrimgeour, R., 2019b. Habitat mapping in the European Seas is it fit for purpose in the marine restoration agenda? Marine Policy 106, 103521. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2019.103521
- Guido, Adriano, Gerovasileiou, V., Russo, F., Rosso, A., Sanfilippo, R., Voultsiadou, E., Mastandrea, A., 2019. Dataset of biogenic crusts from submarine caves of the Aegean Sea: An example of sponges vs microbialites competition in cryptic environments. Data in Brief 27, 104745. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dib.2019.104745</u>
- Guido, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Russo, F., Rosso, A., Sanfilippo, R., Voultsiadou, E., Mastandrea, A., 2019. Composition and biostratinomy of sponge-rich biogenic crusts in submarine caves (Aegean Sea, Eastern Mediterranean). Palaeogeography, Palaeoclimatology, Palaeoecology 534, 109338. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.palaeo.2019.109338
- Kaitetzidou, E., Katsiadaki, I., Lagnel, J., Antonopoulou, E., Sarropoulou, E., 2019. Unravelling paralogous gene expression dynamics during three-spined stickleback embryogenesis. Sci Rep 9, 3752. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-019-40127-2
- Kalatzis, P.G., Carstens, A.B., Katharios, P., Castillo, D., Hansen, L.H., Middelboe, M., 2019. Complete Genome Sequence of *Vibrio anguillarum* Nontailed Bacteriophage NO16. Microbiology Resource Announcements 8, 11–12. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/mra.00020-19</u>
- Katharios, P., Kalatzis, P.G., Kokkari, C., Pavlidis, M., Wang, Q., 2019. Characterization of a highly virulent Edwardsiella anguillarum strain isolated from Greek aquaculture, and a spontaneously induced prophage therein. Frontiers in Microbiology 10, 141. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmicb.2019.00141</u>
- Katsanevakis, S., Tsirintanis, K., Tsaparis, D., Doukas, D., Sini, M., Athanassopoulou, F., Kolygas, M.N., Tontis, D., Koutsoubas, D., Bakopoulos, V., 2019. The cryptogenic parasite *Haplosporidium pinnae* invades the Aegean Sea and causes the collapse of Pinna nobilis populations. AI 14, 150–164. <u>https://doi.org/10.3391/ai.2019.14.2.01</u>
- Keklikoglou, K., Faulwetter, S., Chatzinikolaou, E., Wils, P., Brecko, J., Kvaček, J., Metscher, B., Arvanitidis, C., 2019. Micro-computed tomography for natural history specimens: a handbook of best practice protocols. EJT 0. <u>https://doi.org/10.5852/ejt.2019.522</u>



- Kokou, F., Henry, M., Nikoloudaki, C., Kounna, C., Vasilaki, A., Fountoulaki, E., 2019. Optimum protein-to-lipid ratio requirement of the juvenile shi drum (*Umbrina cirrosa*) as estimated by nutritional and histological parameters. Aquaculture Nutrition 25, 444–455. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/anu.12870</u>
- Kyriakis, D., Kanterakis, A., Manousaki, T., Tsakogiannis, A., Tsagris, M., Tsamardinos, I., Papaharisis, L., Chatziplis, D., Potamias, G., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2019. Scanning of Genetic Variants and Genetic Mapping of Phenotypic Traits in Gilthead Sea Bream Through ddRAD Sequencing. Front. Genet. 10, 675. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fgene.2019.00675</u>
- Lage, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Voultsiadou, E., Muricy, G., 2019. Taxonomy of Plakina (Porifera: Homoscleromorpha) from Aegean submarine caves, with descriptions of three new species and new characters for the genus. Mar Biodiv 49, 727–747. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s12526-018-0847-z</u>
- León, M., Kokkari, C., García, K., Castillo, D., Katharios, P., Bastías, R., 2019. Diversification of vibrio anguillarum driven by the bacteriophage CHOED. Frontiers in Microbiology 10, 1396. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmicb.2019.01396</u>
- Livanou, E., Lagaria, A., Santi, I., Mandalakis, M., Pavlidou, A., Lika, K., Psarra, S., 2019. Pigmented and heterotrophic nanoflagellates: Abundance and grazing on prokaryotic picoplankton in the ultra-oligotrophic Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Deep-Sea Research Part II: Topical Studies in Oceanography 164, 100–111. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dsr2.2019.04.007</u>
- Mandalakis, M., Gavriilidou, A., Polymenakou, P.N., Christakis, C.A., Nomikou, P., Medvecký, M., Kilias, S.P., Kentouri, M., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., 2019.
 Microbial strains isolated from CO2-venting Kolumbo submarine volcano show enhanced co-tolerance to acidity and antibiotics. Marine Environmental Research. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marenvres.2019.01.002</u>
- Manousaki, T., Koutsouveli, V., Lagnel, J., Kollias, S., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Arvanitidis, C., Magoulas, A., Dounas, C., Dailianis, T., 2019. A de novo transcriptome assembly for the bath sponge *Spongia officinalis*, adjusting for microsymbionts. BMC Res Notes 12, 813. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s13104-019-4843-6</u>
- Massi, L., Maselli, F., Rossano, C., Gambineri, S., Chatzinikolaou, E., Dailianis, T., Arvanitidis, C., Nuccio, C., Scapini, F., Lazzara, L., 2019. Reflectance spectra classification for the rapid assessment of water ecological quality in Mediterranean ports. Oceanologia 61, 445–459. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.oceano.2019.04.001</u>
- Mladineo, I., Hrabar, J., Smodlaka, H., Palmer, L., Sakamaki, K., Keklikoglou, K., Katharios, P., 2019. Functional Ultrastructure of the Excretory Gland Cell in Zoonotic Anisakids (Anisakidae, Nematoda). Cells 8, 1451. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/cells8111451</u>
- Mogias, A., Boubonari, T., Realdon, G., Previati, M., Mokos, M., Koulouri, P., Cheimonopoulou, M.Th., 2019. Evaluating Ocean Literacy of Elementary School Students: Preliminary Results of a Cross-Cultural Study in the Mediterranean Region. Frontiers in Marine Science 6, 396. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2019.00396
- Motte, C., Rios, A., Lefebvre, T., Do, H., Henry, M., Jintasataporn, O., 2019. Replacing Fish Meal with Defatted Insect Meal (Yellow Mealworm Tenebrio molitor) Improves the Growth and Immunity of Pacific White Shrimp (*Litopenaeus vannamei*). Animals 9, 258. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ani9050258</u>
- Nathanailides, C., Klaoudatos, D., Perdikaris, C., Klaoudatos, S., Kolygas, M., Athanassopoulou, F., 2019. Metabolic differentiation of diploid and triploid



European sea bass juveniles. Int Aquat Res 11, 199–206. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40071-019-0229-6

- Natsidis, P., Tsakogiannis, A., Pavlidis, P., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Manousaki, T., 2019. Phylogenomics investigation of sparids (Teleostei: Spariformes) using high-quality proteomes highlights the importance of taxon sampling. Commun Biol 2, 400. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s42003-019-0654-5</u>
- Pérez, E., Linares, F., Rodríguez Villanueva, J.L., Vilar, A., Mylonas, C.C., Fakriadis, I., Papadaki, M., Papandroulakis, N., Papadakis, I., Robles, R., Fauvel, C., Roo, J., Peleteiro, J.B., Lluch, N., Pazos, G., Méndez, B., Sigelaki, I., Gómez, C., Pérez, M., Álvarez-Blázquez, B., 2019. Wreckfish (Polyprion americanus). New Knowledge About Reproduction, Larval Husbandry, and Nutrition. Promise as a New Species for Aquaculture. Fishes 4, 14.
- Poursanidis, D., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Dimitriadis, C., Koutsoubas, D., Arvanitidis, C., 2019. Testing the robustness of a coastal biodiversity data protocol in the Mediterranean: insights from the molluskan assemblages from the sublittoral macroalgae communities. Hydrobiologia 826, 159–172. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10750-018-3725-6</u>
- Pousis, C., Rodríguez, C., De Ruvo, P., De Virgilio, C., Pérez, J.A., Mylonas, C.C., Zupa, R., Passantino, L., Santamaria, N., Valentini, L., Corriero, A., 2019. Vitellogenin receptor and fatty acid profiles of individual lipid classes of oocytes from wild and captive-reared greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) during the reproductive cycle. Theriogenology 140, 73–83. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.theriogenology.2019.08.014</u>
- Ragkousis, M., Abdelali, N., Azzurro, E., Baddredine, A., Bariche, M., Bitar, G., Crocetta, F., Denitto, F., Digenis, M., El Zrelli, R., Ergenler, A., Fortič, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Grimes, S., Katsanevakis, S., Koçak, C., Licchelli, C., Loudaros, E., Mastrototaro, F., Mavrič, B., Mavruk, S., Miliou, A., Montesanto, F., Ovalis, P., Pontes, M., Rabaoui, L., Sevingel, N., Spinelli, A., Tiralongo, F., Tsatiris, A., Turan, C., Vitale, D., Yalgin, F., Yapici, S., Zenetos, A., 2019. New Alien Mediterranean Biodiversity Records (October 2020). Medit. Mar. Sci. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.23673</u>
- Ramos-Júdez, S., González, W., Dutto, G., Mylonas, C.C., Fauvel, C., Duncan, N., 2019. Gamete quality and management for in vitro fertilisation in meagre (Argyrosomus regius). Aquaculture 509, 227–235. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2019.05.033</u>
- Rasmussen, B.B., Kalatzis, P.G., Middelboe, M., Gram, L., 2019. Combining probiotic *Phaeobacter inhibens* DSM17395 and broad-host-range vibriophage KVP40 against fish pathogenic vibrios. Aquaculture 513, 734415. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2019.734415
- Rizzo, A.L., Caracausi, A., Chavagnac, V., Nomikou, P., Polymenakou, P.N., Mandalakis, M., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., Castillo, A., Lampridou, D., Marusczak, N., Sonke, J.E., 2019. Geochemistry of CO2-Rich Gases Venting from Submarine Volcanism: The Case of Kolumbo (Hellenic Volcanic Arc, Greece). Front. Earth Sci. 7, 60. https://doi.org/10.3389/feart.2019.00060
- Rosso, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Sanfilippo, R., Guido, A., 2019. Bryozoan assemblages from two submarine caves in the Aegean Sea (Eastern Mediterranean). Mar Biodiv 49, 707–726. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s12526-018-0846-0</u>
- Sagonas, K., Runemark, A., Antoniou, A., Lymberakis, P., Pafilis, P., Valakos, E.D., Poulakakis, N., Hansson, B., 2019. Selection, drift, and introgression shape MHC polymorphism in lizards. Heredity 122, 468–484. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41437-018-0146-2</u>



- Santi, I., Tsiola, A., Dimitriou, P.D., Fodelianakis, S., Kasapidis, P., Papageorgiou, N., Daffonchio, D., Pitta, P., Karakassis, I., 2019. Prokaryotic and eukaryotic microbial community responses to N and P nutrient addition in oligotrophic Mediterranean coastal waters: Novel insights from DNA metabarcoding and network analysis. Marine Environmental Research 150, 104752. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marenvres.2019.104752
- Sarropoulou, E., Kaitetzidou, E., Papandroulakis, N., Tsalafouta, A., Pavlidis, M., 2019. Inventory of European Sea Bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) sncRNAs Vital During Early Teleost Development. Front. Genet. 10, 657. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fgene.2019.00657</u>
- Sedano, F., Florido, M., Rallis, I., Espinosa, F., Gerovasileiou, V., 2019. Comparing sessile benthos on shallow artificial versus natural hard substrates in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Medit. Mar. Sci. 20, 688. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.17897</u>
- Sempere-Valverde, J., Lorenzo, Á.S., Espinosa, F., Gerovasileiou, V., Sánchez-Tocino, L., Navarro-Barranco, C., 2019. Taxonomic and morphological descriptors reveal high benthic temporal variability in a Mediterranean marine submerged cave over a decade. Hydrobiologia 839, 177–194. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10750-019-04005-2</u>
- Smyrli, M., Triga, A., Dourala, N., Varvarigos, P., Pavlidis, M., Quoc, V.H., Katharios, P., 2019. Comparative study on a novel pathogen of European seabass. Diversity of Aeromonas veronii in the aegean sea. Microorganisms 7. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/microorganisms7110504</u>
- Spilani, L., Bougiouri, K., Antoniou, A., Psonis, N., Poursanidis, D., Lymberakis, P., Poulakakis, N., 2019. Multigene phylogeny, phylogeography and population structure of *Podarcis cretensis* species group in south Balkans. Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution 138, 193–204. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ympev.2019.05.026</u>
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Ernst, A., Steinbach, C., Wagner, K., Waller, U., 2019. Development of denitrification in semi-automated moving bed biofilm reactors operated in a marine recirculating aquaculture system. Aquacult Int 27, 1485–1501. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10499-019-00402-5</u>
- Tsaparis, D., Sotiropoulos, K., Legakis, A., Kotoulas, G., Kasapidis, P., 2019. New phylogeographic insights support the distinctiveness and conservation value of the little-known Greek roe deer populations. Mammalian Biology 96, 23–27. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mambio.2019.03.010
- Ulman, A., Ferrario, J., Forcada, A., Arvanitidis, C., Occhipinti-Ambrogi, A., Marchini, A., 2019a. A Hitchhiker's guide to Mediterranean marina travel for alien species. Journal of Environmental Management 241, 328–339. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jenvman.2019.04.011</u>
- Ulman, A., Ferrario, J., Forcada, A., Seebens, H., Arvanitidis, C., Occhipinti-Ambrogi, A., Marchini, A., 2019b. Alien species spreading via biofouling on recreational vessels in the Mediterranean Sea. J Appl Ecol 56, 2620–2629. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/1365-2664.13502</u>
- Valdor, P.F., Gómez, A.G., Juanes, J.A., Kerléguer, C., Steinberg, P., Tanner, E., MacLeod, C., Knights, A.M., Seitz, R.D., Airoldi, L., Firth, L.B., Crowe, T., Chatzinikolaou, E., Smith, A., Arvanitidis, C., Burt, J.A., Brooks, P.R., Ponti, M., Soares-Gomes, A., Ovejero, A., Méndez, G., 2019. A global atlas of the environmental risk of marinas on water quality. Marine Pollution Bulletin 149, 110661. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2019.110661</u>
- Vitali, F., Mandalakis, M., Chatzinikolaou, E., Dailianis, T., Senatore, G., Casalone, E., Mastromei, G., Sergi, S., Lussu, R., Arvanitidis, C., Tamburini, E., 2019. Benthic



Prokaryotic Community Response to Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbon Chronic Exposure: Importance of Emission Sources in Mediterranean Ports. Front. Mar. Sci. 6, 590. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2019.00590</u>

 Vizzini, S., Apostolaki, E.T., Ricevuto, E., Polymenakou, P., Mazzola, A., 2019. Plant and sediment properties in seagrass meadows from two Mediterranean CO2 vents: Implications for carbon storage capacity of acidified oceans. Marine Environmental Research 146, 101–108. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marenvres.2019.03.001</u>

- Alexi, N., Luca, A., Nanou, E., Byrne, D.V., Grigorakis, K., 2020. Investigation of the proximate composition, lipid quality, volatile and sensory profiles of wild vs. reared Greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*, Risso). Aquac Res 51, 2443–2455. https://doi.org/10.1111/are.14588
- Androulakis, D.N., Banks, A.C., Dounas, C., Margaris, D.P., 2020a. An Evaluation of Autonomous in Situ Temperature Loggers in a Coastal Region of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea for Use in the Validation of Near-Shore Satellite Sea Surface Temperature Measurements. Remote Sensing 12, 1140. https://doi.org/10.3390/rs12071140
- Androulakis, D.N., Dounas, C.G., Banks, A.C., Magoulas, A.N., Margaris, D.P., 2020b. An Assessment of Computational Fluid Dynamics as a Tool to Aid the Design of the HCMR-Artificial-ReefsTM Diving Oasis in the Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete. Sustainability 12. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/su12124847</u>
- Angelakis, A.N., Koulouri, P., Dounas, C., Tchobanoglous, G., 2020. Evolution of urban waste- and storm-water management in the region of Crete, Greece: A preliminary assessment. Water Science and Technology wst2020305. <u>https://doi.org/10.2166/wst.2020.305</u>
- Antonopoulou, E., Chatzigiannidou, I., Feidantsis, K., Kounna, C., Chatzifotis, S., 2020. Effect of water temperature on cellular stress responses in meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*). Fish Physiol Biochem 46, 1075–1091. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10695-020-00773-0</u>
- Aslam, M.L., Carraro, R., Sonesson, A.K., Meuwissen, T., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Rigos, G., Bargelloni, L., Tzokas, K., 2020. Genetic Variation, GWAS and Accuracy of Prediction for Host Resistance to *Sparicotyle chrysophrii* in Farmed Gilthead Sea Bream (Sparus aurata). Frontiers in Genetics 11, 594770. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fgene.2020.594770</u>
- Bariche, M., Al-Mabruk, S.A.A., Ateş, M.A., Büyük, A., Crocetta, F., Dritsas, M., Edde, D., Fortič, A., Gavriil, E., Gerovasileiou, V., Gökoğlu, M., Huseyinoglu, F.M., Karachle, P.K., Kleitou, P., Terbiyik Kurt, T., Langeneck, J., Lardicci, C., Lipej, L., Pavloudi, C., Pinna, M., Rizgalla, J., Rüştü Özen, M., Sedano, F., Taşkin, E., Yildiz, G., Zangaro, F., 2020. New Alien Mediterranean Biodiversity Records 2020. Mediterranean Marine Science 21, 129. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.21987</u>
- Bevilacqua, S., Katsanevakis, S., Micheli, F., Sala, E., Rilov, G., Sarà, G., Malak, D.A., Abdulla, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Gissi, E., Mazaris, A.D., Pipitone, C., Sini, M., Stelzenmüller, V., Terlizzi, A., Todorova, V., Fraschetti, S., 2020. The Status of Coastal Benthic Ecosystems in the Mediterranean Sea: Evidence from Ecological Indicators. Frontiers in Marine Science 7, 475. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2020.00475



- Blakeslee, A.M.H., Manousaki, T., Vasileiadou, K., Tepolt, C.K., 2020. An evolutionary perspective on marine invasions. Evolutionary Applications 13, 479–485. https://doi.org/10.1111/eva.12906
- Bolgan, M., Crucianelli, A., Mylonas, C.C., Henry, S., Falguière, J.C., Parmentier, E., 2020. Calling activity and calls' temporal features inform about fish reproductive condition and spawning in three cultured Sciaenidae species. Aquaculture 524. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735243</u>
- Bolgan, Marta, Pereira, B.P., Crucianelli, A., Mylonas, C.C., Pousão-Ferreira, P., Parmentier, E., Fonseca, P.J., Amorim, M.C.P., 2020. Vocal repertoire and consistency of call features in the meagre *Argyrosomous regius* (Asso, 1801). PLoS ONE 15, e0241792. <u>https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0241792</u>
- Borja, A., Andersen, J.H., Arvanitidis, C.D., Basset, A., Buhl-Mortensen, L., Carvalho, S., Dafforn, K.A., Devlin, M.J., Escobar-Briones, E.G., Grenz, C., Harder, T., Katsanevakis, S., Liu, D., Metaxas, A., Morán, X.A.G., Newton, A., Piroddi, C., Pochon, X., Queirós, A.M., Snelgrove, P.V.R., Solidoro, C., St. John, M.A., Teixeira, H., 2020. Past and Future Grand Challenges in Marine Ecosystem Ecology. Front. Mar. Sci. 7, 362. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2020.00362</u>
- Bounas, A., Keroglidou, M., Toli, E., Chousidis, I., Tsaparis, D., Leonardos, I., Sotiropoulos, K., 2020. Constrained by aliens, shifting landscape, or poor water quality? Factors affecting the persistence of amphibians in an urban pond network. Aquatic Conserv: Mar Freshw Ecosyst 30, 1037–1049. https://doi.org/10.1002/aqc.3309
- Chatziplis, D., Oikonomou, S., Loukovitis, D., Tsiokos, D., Samaras, A., Dimitroglou, A., Kottaras, L., Papanna, K., Papaharisis, L., Tsigenopoulos, C., Pavlidis, M., 2020.
 QTL for Stress and Disease Resistance in European Sea Bass, *Dicentrarhus labrax* L. Animals 10, 1668. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ani10091668</u>
- Çinar, M.E., Féral, J., Arvanitidis, C., David, R., Taşkin, E., Sini, M., Dailianis, T., Doğan, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Evcen, A., Chenuil, A., Dağli, E., Aysel, V., Issaris, Y., Bakir, K., Nalmpantı, M., Sartoretto, S., Salomidi, M., Sapouna, A., Açik, S., Dimitriadis, C., Koutsoubas, D., Katağan, T., Öztürk, B., Koçak, F., Erdogan-Dereli, D., Önen, S., Özgen, Ö., Türkçü, N., Kirkim, F., Önen, M., 2020. Coralligenous assemblages along their geographical distribution: Testing of concepts and implications for management. Aquatic Conserv: Mar Freshw Ecosyst 30, 1578– 1594. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/aqc.3365</u>
- Correia, M., Paulo, D., Samara, E., Koulouri, P., Mentogiannis, V., Dounas, C., 2020. Field studies of seahorse population density, structure and habitat use in a semiclosed north-eastern Mediterranean marine area (Stratoni, North Aegean Sea). J Fish Biol 97, 314–317. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jfb.14371</u>
- Costa, L.L., Zalmon, I.R., Fanini, L., Defeo, O., 2020. Macroinvertebrates as indicators of human disturbances on sandy beaches: A global review. Ecological Indicators 118, 106764. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecolind.2020.106764</u>
- Digenis, M., Gerovasileiou, V., 2020. First Record of *Leucothea multicornis* (Quoy & Gaimard, 1824) (Ctenophora: Leucotheidae) in Greek Waters. Acta Zool. Bulg. 72, 499–500.
- Dimitriou, P.D., Chatzinikolaou, E., Arvanitidis, C., 2020. Ecological status assessment based on benthic macrofauna of three Mediterranean ports: Comparisons across seasons, activities and regions. Marine Pollution Bulletin 153, 110997. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2020.110997</u>



- Dimogianopoulos, D., Grigorakis, K., 2020. Effective algorithmic operational framework for fish texture evaluation in industry: Achieving maturity. Aquaculture and Fisheries S2468550X20301386. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aaf.2020.10.001</u>
- Emmanouilidis, A., Unkel, I., Seguin, J., Keklikoglou, K., Gianni, E., Avramidis, P., 2020. Application of Non-Destructive Techniques on a Varve Sediment Record from Vouliagmeni Coastal Lake, Eastern Gulf of Corinth, Greece. Applied Sciences 10, 8273. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/app10228273</u>
- Fakriadis, I., Miccoli, A., Karapanagiotis, S., Tsele, N., Mylonas, C.C., 2020a. Optimization of a GnRHa treatment for spawning commercially reared greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili*: Dose response and extent of the reproductive season. Aquaculture 521. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735011</u>
- Fakriadis, I., Sigelaki, I., Papadaki, M., Papandroulakis, N., Raftopoulos, A., Tsakoniti, K., Mylonas, C.C., 2020b. Control of reproduction of greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* reared in aquaculture facilities. Aquaculture 519. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2019.734880</u>
- Fakriadis, I., Zanatta, E.M., Fleck, R.P.D.S., Sena Mateo, D.L., Papadaki, M., Mylonas, C.C., 2020c. Endocrine regulation of long-term enhancement of spermiation in meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) with GnRHa controlled-delivery systems. General and Comparative Endocrinology 297, 113549. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ygcen.2020.113549</u>
- Fanini, L., Defeo, O., Elliott, M., 2020. Advances in sandy beach research Local and global perspectives. Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 234, 106646. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecss.2020.106646</u>
- Fourt, M., Faget, D., Dailianis, T., Koutsoubas, D., Pérez, T., 2020. Past and present of a Mediterranean small-scale fishery: the Greek sponge fishery—its resilience and sustainability. Reg Environ Change 20, 1. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10113-020-01581-1</u>
- Gastineau, R., Lemieux, C., Turmel, M., Grypioti, E., Verret, F., Makris, A., Argiriou, A., Kafetzopoulos, D., Stratidaki, I., Carrier, G., Jacquette, B., Mouget, J.-L., 2020. Two new bacilladnaviruses associated with the diatom *Haslea ostrearia*. European Journal of Phycology 1–10. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/09670262.2020.1748723</u>
- Gerovasileiou, V., Akyol, O., Al-Hosne, Z., Rasheed, R.A., Ataç, E., Bello, G., Ćetković, I., Corsini-Foka, M., Crocetta, F., Denitto, F., Guidetti, P., Gül, B., Insacco, G., Jimenez, C., Licchelli, C., Lipej, L., Lombardo, A., Mancini, E., Marletta, G., Michailidis, N., Pešić, A., Poursanidis, D., Refes, W., Sahraoui, H., Thasitis, I., Tiralongo, F., Tosunoğlu, Z., Trkov, D., Vazzana, A., Zava, B., 2020. New records of rare species in the Mediterranean Sea (May 2020). Mediterranean Marine Science 21, 340–359. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.22148</u>
- Giangrande, A., Gambino, I., Tundo, M., del Pasqua, M., Licciano, M., Fanini, L., Pinna, M., 2020. Reproductive biology of *Ophelia barquii* (Annelida, Opheliidae) along the Salento Peninsula (Mediterranean Sea, South Italy). Mar. Biodivers. 50, 3. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s12526-019-01028-9</u>
- Gioti, A., Siaperas, R., Nikolaivits, E., Le Goff, G., Ouazzani, J., Kotoulas, G., Topakas, E., 2020. Draft Genome Sequence of a Cladosporium Species Isolated from the Mesophotic Ascidian Didemnum maculosum. Microbiology Resource Announcements 9. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/MRA.00311-20</u>
- Golomazou, E., Athanassopoulou, F., Vagianou, S., Sabatakou, O., Tsantilas, H., Rigos, G., Kokkokiris, L., 2020. Diseases of white sea bream (*Diplodus sargus* L.) reared in experimental and commercial conditions in Greece. Turkish Journal of Veterinary and Animal Sciences 30, 389–396.



- Henry, M.A., Fountoulaki, E., Vasilaki, A., Rigos, G., Kokou, F., Karalazos, V., 2020a. Dietary micronutrient supplementation in low fishmeal-based diets for optimum growth and immune status of European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) juveniles. Aquaculture 528, 735479. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735479</u>
- Henry, M.A., Kokou, F., Palenzuela, O., Pyrenis, G., Rigos, G., 2020b. Experimental infection model with the bivalvulid *Enteromyxum leei* (Myxidiidae) in the sharpsnout seabream, *Diplodus puntazzo* (Sparidae), and evaluation of the antiparasitic efficacy of a functional diet. FOLIA PARASIT 67. https://doi.org/10.14411/fp.2020.024
- Hopwood, M.J., Sanchez, N., Polyviou, D., Leiknes, Ø., Gallego-Urrea, J.A., Achterberg, E.P., Ardelan, M.V., Aristegui, J., Bach, L., Besiktepe, S., Heriot, Y., Kalantzi, I., Kurt, T.T., Santi, I., Tsagaraki, T.M., Turner, D., 2020. Experiment design and bacterial abundance control extracellular H2O2 concentrations during four series of mesocosm experiments. Biogeosciences 17, 1309–1326. <u>https://doi.org/10.5194/bg-17-1309-2020</u>
- Kandyliari, A., Mallouchos, A., Papandroulakis, N., Golla, J.P., Lam, T.T., Sakellari, A., Karavoltsos, S., Vasiliou, V., Kapsokefalou, M., 2020. Nutrient Composition and Fatty Acid and Protein Profiles of Selected Fish By-Products. Foods 9, 190. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/foods9020190</u>
- Karagiannidis, Efstratios, Konstantinidis, N.V., Sofidis, G., Chatzinikolaou, E., Sianos, G., 2020. Rationale and design of a prospective, observational study for the QUantitative EStimation of Thrombus burden in patients with ST-Elevation Myocardial Infarction using micro-computed tomography: the QUEST-STEMI trial. BMC Cardiovasc Disord 20, 125. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s12872-020-01393-5</u>
- Karagiannidis, E, Konstantinidis, N.V., Sofidis, G., Chatzinikolaou, E., Sianos, G., 2020. Imaging and quantitative estimation of thrombus burden in patients with ST elevation acute myocardial infarction (STEMI) with the use of micro-computed tomography-A methodological approach. European Heart Journal - Cardiovascular Imaging 21, jez319.298. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/ehjci/jez319.298</u>
- Katharios, P., Varvarigos, P., Keklikoglou, K., Ruetten, M., Sojan, J., Akter, M., Cascarano, M.C., Tsertou, M.I., Kokkari, C., 2020. Native parasite affecting an introduced host in aquaculture: cardiac henneguyosis in the red seabream *Pagrus major* Temminck & Schlegel (Perciformes: Sparidae) caused by *Henneguya aegea* n. sp. (Myxosporea: Myxobolidae). Parasites & Vectors 13, 27. https://doi.org/10.1186/s13071-020-3888-7
- Katsanevakis, S., Poursanidis, D., Hoffman, R., Rizgalla, J., Rothman, S.B.-S., Levitt-Barmats, Y., Hadjioannou, L., Trkov, D., Garmendia, J.M., Rizzo, M., Bartolo, A.G., Bariche, M., Tomas, F., Kleitou, P., Schembri, P.J., Kletou, D., Tiralongo, F., Pergent, C., Pergent, G., Azzurro, E., Bilecenoglu, M., Lodola, A., Ballesteros, E., Gerovasileiou, V., Verlaque, M., Occhipinti-Ambrogi, A., Kytinou, E., Dailianis, T., Ferrario, J., Crocetta, F., Jimenez, C., Evans, J., Ragkousis, M., Lipej, L., Borg, J.A., Dimitriadis, C., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Albano, P.G., Kalogirou, S., Bazairi, H., Espinosa, F., Ben Souissi, J., Tsiamis, K., Badalamenti, F., Langeneck, J., Noel, P., Deidun, A., Marchini, A., Skouradakis, G., Royo, L., Sini, M., Bianchi, C.N., Sghaier, Y.-R., Ghanem, R., Doumpas, N., Zaouali, J., Tsirintanis, K., Papadakis, O., Morri, C., Çinar, M.E., Terrados, J., Insacco, G., Zava, B., Soufi-Kechaou, E., Piazzi, L., Ben Amor, K.O., Andriotis, E., Gambi, M.C., Ben Amor, M.M., Garrabou, J., Linares, C., Fortič, A., Digenis, M., Cebrian, E., Fourt, M., Zotou, M., Castriota, L., Di Martino, V., Rosso, A., Pipitone, C., Falautano, M., García, M., Zakhama-Sraieb, R., Khamassi, F., Mannino, A.M., Ktari, M.H., Kosma, I., Rifi, M.,



Karachle, P.K., Yapıcı, S., Bos, A.R., Balistreri, P., Ramos-Esplá, A.A., Tempesti, J., Inglese, O., Giovos, I., Damalas, D., Benhissoune, S., Huseyinoglu, M.F., Rjiba-Bahri, W., Santamaría, J., Orlando-Bonaca, M., Izquierdo Muñoz, A., Stamouli, C., Montefalcone, M., Cerim, H., Golo, R., Tsioli, S., Orfanidis, S., Michailidis, N., Gaglioti, M., Taşkın, E., Mancuso, E., Žunec, A., Cvitković, I., Filiz, H., Sanfilippo, R., Siapatis, A., Mavrič, B., Karaa, S., Türker, A., Monniot, F., Verdura, J., El Ouamari, N., Selfati, M., Zenetos, A., 2020a. Unpublished Mediterranean records of marine alien and cryptogenic species. BioInvasions Records 9, 165–182. https://doi.org/10.3391/bir.2020.9.2.01

- Katsanevakis, S., Tsirintanis, K., Sini, M., Gerovasileiou, V., Koukourouvli, N., 2020b. Aliens in the Aegean – a sea under siege (ALAS). RIO 6, e53057. https://doi.org/10.3897/rio.6.e53057
- Kiparissis, S., Tsaparis, D., Peristeraki, P., Giannakaki, A., Kosoglou, G., Metaxakis, M., Tserpes, G., 2020. The yellowstripe barracuda Sphyraena chrysotaenia (Kluzinger, 1884) in Crete (GSA 23, eastern Mediterranean): first genetically verified records and highlighted issues on the lessepsian barracuda nomenclature ambiguities. BIR 9, 814–826. https://doi.org/10.3391/bir.2020.9.4.15
- Kogiannou, D., Rigos, G., 2020a. Praziquantel depletion from muscle plus skin tissue of gilthead sea bream (Sparus aurata). Medit. Mar. Sci. 22, 121–124. https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.25126
- Kogiannou, D., Rigos, G., 2020b. Depletion of praziquantel from gilthead sea bream (*Sparus aurata*) muscle plus skin. Mediterranean Marine Science. https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.25126
- Kokou, F., Bastias, R., Kokkari, K., Katharios, P., Cotou, E., Seimenis, N., Vasilakis, M., Papandroulakis, N., Henry, M., Rigos, G., 2020. Surplus of dietary micronutrients promotes antioxidant defense and improves fin erosions in European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) fry. Aquaculture 523, 735224. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735224
- Kotzamanis, Y., Kumar, V., Tsironi, T., Grigorakis, K., Ilia, V., Vatsos, I., Brezas, A., Eys, J. [van, Gisbert, E., 2020a. Taurine supplementation in high-soy diets affects fillet quality of European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). Aquaculture 520, 734655. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2019.734655</u>
- Kotzamanis, Y., Tsironi, T., Brezas, A., Grigorakis, K., Ilia, V., Vatsos, I., Romano, N., van Eys, J., Kumar, V., 2020b. High taurine supplementation in plant protein-based diets improves growth and organoleptic characteristics of European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). Sci Rep 10, 12294. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-69014-x</u>
- Koukounari, I., Paraskevopoulou, V., Karditsa, A., Koulouri, P., Poulos, S., Dounas, C., Dassenakis, M., 2020. Trace metal concentrations in the offshore surficial sediment of the HERAKLION Gulf (Crete Island, East Mediterranean Sea). Mediterranean Marine Science 21, 84–104. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.20396</u>
- Koulouri, P., Gerovasileiou, V., Bailly, N., Dounas, C., 2020a. Tanaidacea of Greece: a preliminary checklist. Biodiversity Data Journal 8, e47184. https://doi.org/10.3897/BDJ.8.e47184
- Koulouri, P., Gerovasileiou, V., Bailly, N., Dounas, C., 2020b. Stomatopoda of Greece: an annotated checklist. Biodiversity Data Journal 8, e47183. https://doi.org/10.3897/BDJ.8.e47183
- Koutsouveli, V., Manousaki, T., Riesgo, A., Lagnel, J., Kollias, S., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Arvanitidis, C., Dounas, C., Magoulas, A., Dailianis, T., 2020. Gearing Up for Warmer Times: Transcriptomic Response of *Spongia officinalis* to Elevated



Temperatures Reveals Recruited Mechanisms and Potential for Resilience. Front. Mar. Sci. 6, 786. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2019.00786</u>

- Loi, B., Papadakis, I.E., Leggieri, F., Papiol, G. [Giménez, Vallainc, D., 2020. Ontogeny of the digestive system and eye of reared flathead grey mullet, *Mugil cephalus* (Linnaeus, 1758), and evaluation of lipid deposition in the liver according to the feeding protocol. Aquaculture 526, 735386. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735386</u>
- Mastoraki, M., Mollá Ferrándiz, P., Vardali, S.C., Kontodimas, D.C., Kotzamanis, Y.P., Gasco, L., Chatzifotis, S., Antonopoulou, E., 2020a. A comparative study on the effect of fish meal substitution with three different insect meals on growth, body composition and metabolism of European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax* L.). Aquaculture 528, 735511. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735511</u>
- Mastoraki, M., Vlahos, N., Patsea, E., Chatzifotis, S., Mente, E., Antonopoulou, E., 2020b. The effect of insect meal as a feed ingredient on survival, growth, and metabolic and antioxidant response of juvenile prawn *Palaemon adspersus* (Rathke, 1837). Aquac Res 51, 3551–3562. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/are.14692</u>
- Misol, G.N., Kokkari, C., Katharios, P., 2020a. Complete Genome Sequence of a Jumbo Bacteriophage, vB_pir03, against *Vibrio harveyi*. Microbiol Resour Announc 9, e00910-20, /mra/9/44/MRA.00910-20.atom. https://doi.org/10.1128/MRA.00910-20
- Misol, G.N., Kokkari, C., Katharios, P., 2020b. Biological and Genomic Characterization of a Novel Jumbo Bacteriophage, vB_VhaM_pir03 with Broad Host Lytic Activity against Vibrio harveyi. Pathogens 9, 1051. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/pathogens9121051</u>
- Mladineo, I., Hrabar, J., Vidjak, O., Bočina, I., Čolak, S., Katharios, P., Cascarano, M.C., Keklikoglou, K., Volpatti, D., Beraldo, P., 2020. Host-parasite interaction between parasitic cy-mothoid ceratothoa oestroides and its host, farmed european sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). Pathogens 9, 1–19. https://doi.org/10.3390/pathogens9030230
- Mokos, M., Cheimonopoulou, M.Th., Koulouri, P., Previati, M., Realdon, G., Santoro, F., Mogias, A., Boubonari, T., Gazo, M., Satta, A., Ioakeimidis, C., Tojeiro, A., Chicote, C.A., Papathanassiou, M., Kevrekidis, T., 2020. Mediterranean Sea Literacy: When Ocean Literacy becomes region- specific. Medit. Mar. Sci. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.23400</u>
- Nousias, O., Tsakogiannis, A., Duncan, N., Villa, J., Tzokas, K., Estevez, A., Chatziplis, D., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2020. Parentage assignment, estimates of heritability and genetic correlation for growth-related traits in meagre *Argyrosomus regius*. Aquaculture 518, 734663. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2019.734663</u>
- Obst, M., Exter, K., Allcock, L.A., Arvanitidis, C., Axberg, A., Bustamante, M., Cancio, I., Carreira-Flores, D., Chatzinikolaou, E., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Chrismas, N., Clark, M.S., Comtet, T., Dailianis, T., Davies, N., Deneudt, K., Cerio, O.D. de, Fortič, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Hablützel, P.I., Keklikoglou, K., Kotoulas, G., Lasota, R., Leite, B.R., Loisel, S., Lévêque, L., Levy, L., Malachowicz, M., Mavrič, B., Meyer, C., Mortelmans, J., Norkko, J., Pade, N., Power, A.M., Ramšak, A., Reiss, H., Solbakken, J., Staehr, P.A., Sundberg, P., Thyrring, J., Troncoso, J.S., Viard, F., Wenne, R., Yperifanou, E.I., Zbawicka, M., Pavloudi, C., 2020. A Marine Biodiversity Observation Network for Genetic Monitoring of Hard-Bottom Communities (ARMS-MBON). Frontiers in Marine Science 7, 572680. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2020.572680
- Oikonomou, A., Livanou, E., Mandalakis, M., Lagaria, A., Psarra, S., 2020. Grazing effect of flagellates on bacteria in response to phosphate addition in the oligotrophic



Cretan Sea, NE Mediterranean. FEMS Microbiology Ecology 96. https://doi.org/10.1093/femsec/fiaa086

- Panettieri, V., Chatzifotis, S., Messina, C.M., Olivotto, I., Manuguerra, S., Randazzo, B., Ariano, A., Bovera, F., Santulli, A., Severino, L., Piccolo, G., 2020. Honey Bee Pollen in Meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) Juvenile Diets: Effects on Growth, Diet Digestibility, Intestinal Traits, and Biochemical Markers Related to Health and Stress. Animals 10, 231. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ani10020231</u>
- Papadaki, M., Kaitetzidou, E., Mylonas, C.C., Sarropoulou, E., 2020. Non-coding RNA Expression Patterns of Two Different Teleost Gonad Maturation Stages. Mar Biotechnol 22, 683–695. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10126-020-09991-2</u>
- Paspalakis, S., Moirogiorgou, K., Papandroulakis, N., Giakos, G., Zervakis, M., 2020. Automated fish cage net inspection using image processing techniques. IET Image Processing 14, 2028–2034. <u>https://doi.org/10.1049/iet-ipr.2019.1667</u>
- Passantino, L., Zupa, R., Pousis, C., Mylonas, C.C., Hala, E., Jirillo, E., Corriero, A., 2020. Increased melanomacrophage centres in the liver of reproductively dysfunctional female greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* (Risso, 1810). Journal of Fish Diseases 43, 503–514. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jfd.13149</u>
- Pérez, J.A., Papadakis, I.E., Papandroulakis, N., Cruces, L., Cotou, E., Gisbert, E., Lorenzo, A., Mylonas, C.C., Rodríguez, C., 2020. The ontogeny of greater amberjack digestive and antioxidant defence systems under different rearing conditions: A histological and enzymatic approach. Aquacult Nutr anu.13128. https://doi.org/10.1111/anu.13128
- Polovina, E.-S., Kourkouni, E., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Sanchez-Jerez, P., Ladoukakis, E.D., 2020. Genetic structuring in farmed and wild Gilthead seabream and European seabass in the Mediterranean Sea: implementations for detection of escapees. Aquat. Living Resour. 33, 7. <u>https://doi.org/10.1051/alr/2020007</u>
- Polymenakou, P.N., Mandalakis, M., Macheras, M., Oulas, A., Kristoffersen, J.B., Christakis, C.A., Terzoglou, V., Stavroulaki, M., 2020. High genetic diversity and variability of microbial communities in near-surface atmosphere of Crete island, Greece. Aerobiologia 36, 341–353. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10453-020-09636-w</u>
- Priede, I.G., Burgass, R.W., Mandalakis, M., Spyros, A., Gikas, P., Burns, F., Drewery, J., 2020. Near-equal compressibility of liver oil and seawater minimises buoyancy changes in deep-sea sharks and chimaeras. Journal of Experimental Biology 223. <u>https://doi.org/10.1242/jeb.222943</u>
- Rigos, G., Katharios, P., Kogiannou, D., Cascarano, C.M., 2020a. Infectious diseases and treatment solutions of farmed greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* with particular emphasis in Mediterranean region. Rev Aquacult raq.12476. https://doi.org/10.1111/raq.12476
- Rigos, G., Kogiannou, D., Padrós, F., Cristòfol, C., Florio, D., Fioravanti, M., Zarza, C., 2020b. Best therapeutic practices for the use of antibacterial agents in finfish aquaculture: a particular view on European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) and gilthead seabream (Sparus aurata) in Mediterranean aquaculture. Reviews in Aquaculture raq.12523. https://doi.org/10.1111/raq.12523
- Rosso, Antonietta, Gerovasileiou, V., Di Martino, E., 2020. Really Onychocellids? Revisions and New Findings Increase the Astonishing Bryozoan Diversity of the Mediterranean Sea. JMSE 8, 904. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jmse8110904</u>
- Rosso, A., Martino, E.D., Gerovasileiou, V., 2020. Revision of the genus *Setosella* (Bryozoa: Cheilostomata) with description of new species from deep-waters and submarine caves of the Mediterranean Sea. Zootaxa 4728, 401–442. https://doi.org/10.11646/zootaxa.4728.4.1



- Rotter, A., Bacu, A., Barbier, M., Bertoni, F., Bones, A.M., Cancela, M.L., Carlsson, J., Carvalho, M.F., Cegłowska, M., Dalay, M.C., Dailianis, T., Deniz, I., Drakulovic, D., Dubnika, A., Einarsson, H., Erdoğan, A., Eroldoğan, O.T., Ezra, D., Fazi, S., FitzGerald, R.J., Gargan, L.M., Gaudêncio, S.P., Ivošević DeNardis, N., Joksimovic, D., Kataržytė, M., Kotta, J., Mandalakis, M., Matijošytė, I., Mazur-Marzec, H., Massa-Gallucci, A., Mehiri, M., Nielsen, S.L., Novoveská, L., Overlingė, D., Portman, M.E., Pyrc, K., Rebours, C., Reinsch, T., Reyes, F., Rinkevich, B., Robbens, J., Rudovica, V., Sabotič, J., Safarik, I., Talve, S., Tasdemir, D., Schneider, X.T., Thomas, O.P., Toruńska-Sitarz, A., Varese, G.C., Vasquez, M.I., 2020. A New Network for the Advancement of Marine Biotechnology in Europe and Beyond. Frontiers in Marine Science 7, 278. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2020.00278
- Rousou, M., Plaiti, W., Lowry, J., Charalambous, S., Chintiroglou, C.C., 2020. Amphipoda species (Suborders: Amphilochidea and Senticaudata) from Vasiliko Bay, Cyprus: New records, information on their biogeography and an annotated checklist from the coasts of Cyprus. Zootaxa 4896, 373–408. <u>https://doi.org/10.11646/zootaxa.4896.3.3</u>
- Santi, I., Kasapidis, P., Psarra, S., Assimakopoulou, G., Pavlidou, A., Protopapa, M., Tsiola, A., Zeri, C., Pitta, P., 2020. Composition and distribution patterns of eukaryotic microbial plankton in the ultra-oligotrophic Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Aquatic Microbial Ecology 84, 155–173. <u>https://doi.org/10.3354/ame01933</u>
- Theodoridis, K., Aggelidou, E., Manthou, M.-E., Keklikoglou, K., Tsimponis, A., Demiri, E., Bakopoulou, A., Mihailidis, A., Kritis, A., 2020. An effective device and method for enhanced cell growth in 3D scaffolds: Investigation of cell seeding and proliferation under static and dynamic conditions. ter Sci Eng C Mater Biol Appl 114, 111060. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.msec.2020.111060</u>
- Trichas, A., Smirli, M., Papadopoulou, A., Anastasiou, I., Keskin, B., Poulakakis, N., 2020. Dispersal versus vicariance in the Aegean: combining molecular and morphological phylogenies of eastern Mediterranean Dendarus (Coleoptera: Tenebrionidae) sheds new light on the phylogeography of the Aegean area. Zoological Journal of the Linnean Society zlaa022. https://doi.org/10.1093/zoolinnean/zlaa022
- Tsakogiannis, A., Manousaki, T., Anagnostopoulou, V., Stavroulaki, M., Apostolaki, E.T., 2020. The Importance of Genomics for Deciphering the Invasion Success of the Seagrass *Halophila stipulacea* in the Changing Mediterranean Sea. Diversity 12. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/d12070263</u>
- Tsertou, M.I., Chatzifotis, S., Fontanillas, R., Cotou, E., Fountoulaki, E., Antonopoulou, E., Katharios, P., 2020. The effect of dietary vitamin D3, minerals (Ca, P) and plantprotein sources in the development of systemic granulomatosis in meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*, Asso, 1801). Aquaculture 521, 735052. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2020.735052</u>
- Tsikopoulou, I., Santi, I., Dimitriou, P.D., Papageorgiou, N., Pitta, P., Karakassis, I., 2020. Response of Microphytobenthos and Benthic Bacteria Viability to Eutrophication in a Benthic–Pelagic Coupling Mesocosm Experiment. Frontiers in Marine Science 7, 270. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2020.00270</u>
- Tsiola, A., Michoud, G., Fodelianakis, S., Karakassis, I., Kotoulas, G., Pavlidou, A., Pavloudi, C., Pitta, P., Simboura, N., Daffonchio, D., Tsapakis, M., 2020. Viral Metagenomic Content Reflects Seawater Ecological Quality in the Coastal Zone. Viruses 12, 806. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/v12080806</u>



- Valdor, P.F., Gómez, A.G., Steinberg, P., Tanner, E., Knights, A.M., Seitz, R.D., Airoldi, L., Firth, L.B., Arvanitidis, C., Ponti, M., Chatzinikolaou, E., Brooks, P.R., Crowe, T.P., Smith, A., Méndez, G., Ovejero, A., Soares-Gomes, A., Burt, J.A., MacLeod, C., Juanes, J.A., 2020. A global approach to mapping the environmental risk of harbours on aquatic systems. Marine Policy 119, 104051. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpol.2020.104051
- Wylensek, D., Hitch, T.C.A., Riedel, T., Afrizal, A., Kumar, N., Wortmann, E., Liu, T., Devendran, S., Lesker, T.R., Hernández, S.B., Heine, V., Buhl, E.M., D'Agostino, P.M., Cumbo, F., Fischöder, T., Wyschkon, M., Looft, T., Parreira, V.R., Abt, B., Doden, H.L., Ly, L., Alves, J.M.P., Reichlin, M., Flisikowski, K., Suarez, L.N., Neumann, A.P., Suen, G., Wouters, T. de, Rohn, S., Lagkouvardos, I., Allen-Vercoe, E., Spröer, C., Bunk, B., Taverne-Thiele, A.J., Giesbers, M., Wells, J.M., Neuhaus, K., Schnieke, A., Cava, F., Segata, N., Elling, L., Strowig, T., Ridlon, J.M., Gulder, T.A.M., Overmann, J., Clavel, T., 2020. A collection of bacterial isolates from the pig intestine reveals functional and taxonomic diversity. Nature Communications 11, 6389. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41467-020-19929-w
- Zafeiropoulos, H., Viet, H.Q., Vasileiadou, K., Potirakis, A., Arvanitidis, C., Topalis, P., Pavloudi, C., Pafilis, E., 2020. PEMA: a flexible Pipeline for Environmental DNA Metabarcoding Analysis of the 16S/18S ribosomal RNA, ITS, and COI marker genes. GigaScience 9. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/gigascience/giaa022</u>
- Zenetos, A., Karachle, P.K., Corsini-Foka, M., Gerovasileiou, V., Simboura, N., Xentidis, N.J., Tsiamis, K., 2020. Is the trend in new introductions of marine non-indigenous species a reliable criterion for assessing good environmental status? The case study of Greece. Medit. Mar. Sci. 21, 775. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.25136</u>
- Zotou, M., Gkrantounis, P., Karadimou, E., Tsirintanis, K., Sini, M., Poursanidis, D.,
 Azzolin, M., Dailianis, T., Kytinou, E., Issaris, Y., Gerakaris, V., Salomidi, M.,
 Lardi, P., Ramfos, A., Akrivos, V., Spinos, E., Dimitriadis, C., Papageorgiou, D.,
 Lattos, A., Giantsis, I.A., Michaelidis, B., Vassilopoulou, V., Miliou, A.,
 Katsanevakis, S., 2020. Pinna nobilis in the Greek seas (NE Mediterranean): on the
 brink of extinction? Medit. Mar. Sci. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.23777</u>

- Amar, Y., Lagkouvardos, I., Silva, R.L., Ishola, O.A., Foesel, B.U., Kublik, S., Schöler, A., Niedermeier, S., Bleuel, R., Zink, A., Neuhaus, K., Schloter, M., Biedermann, T., Köberle, M., 2021. Pre-digest of unprotected DNA by Benzonase improves the representation of living skin bacteria and efficiently depletes host DNA. Microbiome 9, 123. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s40168-021-01067-0</u>
- Baltoumas, F.A., Zafeiropoulou, S., Karatzas, E., Paragkamian, S., Thanati, F., Iliopoulos, I., Eliopoulos, A.G., Schneider, R., Jensen, L.J., Pafilis, E., Pavlopoulos, G.A., 2021. OnTheFly2.0: a text-mining web application for automated biomedical entity recognition, document annotation, network and functional enrichment analysis. NAR Genomics and Bioinformatics 3, lqab090. https://doi.org/10.1093/nargab/lqab090
- Bitner, M.A., Gerovasileiou, V., 2021. Taxonomic composition and assemblage structure of brachiopods from two submarine caves in the Aegean Sea, Eastern Mediterranean. The European Zoological Journal 88, 316–327. <u>https://doi.org/10.1080/24750263.2021.1887947</u>
- Bompoti, A., Papazoglou, A.S., Moysidis, D.V., Otountzidis, N., Karagiannidis, E., Stalikas, N., Panteris, E., Ganesh, V., Sanctuary, T., Arvanitidis, C., Sianos, G.,



Michaelson, J.S., Herrmann, M.D., 2021. Volumetric Imaging of Lung Tissue at Micrometer Resolution: Clinical Applications of Micro-CT for the Diagnosis of Pulmonary Diseases. Diagnostics 11, 2075.

https://doi.org/10.3390/diagnostics11112075

- Brambila-Souza, G., Mylonas, C.C., de Mello, P.H., Kuradomi, R.Y., Batlouni, S.R., Tolussi, C.E., Moreira, R.G., 2021. GnRHa implants and temperature modulate Lambari-do-rabo-amarelo, *Astyanax altiparanae* (Characiformes: Characidae) induced reproduction out of the reproductive season. Aquaculture Research 52, 5595–5605. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/are.15435</u>
- Bravakos, P., Mandalakis, M., Nomikou, P., Anastasiou, T.I., Kristoffersen, J.B., Stavroulaki, M., Kilias, S., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., Polymenakou, P.N., 2021. Genomic adaptation of Pseudomonas strains to acidity and antibiotics in hydrothermal vents at Kolumbo submarine volcano, Greece. Sci Rep 11, 1336. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-79359-y</u>
- Cascarano, M.C., Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Mladineo, I., Thompson, K.D., Papandroulakis, N., Katharios, P., 2021. Mediterranean Aquaculture in a Changing Climate: Temperature Effects on Pathogens and Diseases of Three Farmed Fish Species. Pathogens 10, 1205. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/pathogens10091205</u>
- Charalampous, G., Fragkou, E., Kormas, K.A., Menezes, A.B.D., Polymenakou, P.N., Pasadakis, N., Kalogerakis, N., Antoniou, E., Gontikaki, E., 2021. Comparison of Hydrocarbon-Degrading Consortia from Surface and Deep Waters of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea: Characterization and Degradation Potential. Energies 14, 2246. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/en14082246</u>
- Chatziantoniou, A., Karagaitanakis, A., Bakopoulos, V., Papandroulakis, N., Topouzelis, K., 2021. Detection of Biogenic Oil Films near Aquaculture Sites Using Sentinel-1 and Sentinel-2 Satellite Images. Remote Sensing 13, 1737. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/rs13091737</u>
- Chatzifotis, S., Gutiérrez, A.G., Papadaki, M., Caruso, F., Sigelaki, I., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Lack of negative effects of fasting of gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*) breeders during the spawning period on maternal and egg nutrient composition, fertilization success, and early embryo/larval development. Fish Physiol Biochem 47, 1257–1270. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10695-021-00979-w</u>
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Damianidis, P., Pavloudi, C., Vasileiadou, A., Faulwetter, S., Keklikoglou, K., Plaitis, W., Mavraki, D., Nikolopoulou, S., Arvanitidis, C., 2021a. Benthic communities in three Mediterranean touristic ports: MAPMED project. BDJ 9, e66420. <u>https://doi.org/10.3897/BDJ.9.e66420</u>
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Keklikoglou, K., 2021. Micro-CT protocols for scanning and 3D analysis of Hexaplex trunculus during its different life stages. BDJ 9, e71542. https://doi.org/10.3897/BDJ.9.e71542
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Keklikoglou, K., Grigoriou, P., 2021b. Morphological Properties of Gastropod Shells in a Warmer and More Acidic Future Ocean Using 3D Micro-Computed Tomography. Front. Mar. Sci. 8, 645660. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2021.645660
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Keklikoglou, K., Grigoriou, P., Arvanitidis, C., 2021c. Micro-CT image gallery visually presenting the effects of ocean warming and acidification on marine gastropod shells. BDJ 9, e75358. <u>https://doi.org/10.3897/BDJ.9.e75358</u>
- Christidis, G., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Tserpes, G., Peristeraki, P., Somarakis, S., 2021. Keeping *Lagocephalus sceleratus* off the Table: Sources of Variation in the Quantity of TTX, TTX Analogues, and Risk of Tetrodotoxication. Toxins 13, 896. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/toxins13120896</u>



- Corriero, A., Wylie, M.J., Nyuji, M., Zupa, R., Mylonas, C.C., 2021a. Reproduction of greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) and other members of the family Carangidae. Rev Aquacult 13, 1781–1815. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/raq.12544</u>
- Corriero, A., Zupa, R., Mylonas, C.C., Passantino, L., 2021b. Atresia of ovarian follicles in fishes, and implications and uses in aquaculture and fisheries. J Fish Dis 44, 1271–1291. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jfd.13469</u>
- De Mello, P.H., Lancerotto, S., Fakriadis, I., Tsoukali, P., Papadaki, M., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. The importance of thermoperiod for proper gametogenesis and successful egg and sperm production in meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) breeders in aquaculture. Medit. Mar. Sci. 22, 218. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.25806</u>
- Digenis, M., Ragkousis, M., Vasileiadou, K., Gerovasileiou, V., Katsanevakis, S., 2021. New records of the Indo-Pacific shrimp *Urocaridella pulchella* Yokeş & Galil, 2006 from the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. BIR 10, 295–303. https://doi.org/10.3391/bir.2021.10.2.07
- Doxa, C.K., Sfakianakis, D., Sterioti, A., Kentouri, M., 2021a. Effect of temperature on the development of deformities during the embryonic stages of *Charonia seguenzae* (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). Journal of Thermal Biology 100, 103046. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtherbio.2021.103046</u>
- Doxa, C.K., Sterioti, A., Divanach, P., Kentouri, M., 2021b. Effect of temperature on embryonic development of the marine gastropod *Charonia seguenzae* (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). Journal of Thermal Biology 100, 103044. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtherbio.2021.103044</u>
- Dzyuba, V., Cosson, J., Papadaki, M., Mylonas, C.C., Steinbach, C., Rodina, M., Tučkova, V., Linhart, O., Shelton, W.L., Gela, D., Boryshpolets, S., Dzyuba, B., 2021a. Influence of Environmental Temperature and Hormonal Stimulation on the In Vitro Sperm Maturation in Sterlet *Acipenser ruthenus* in Advance of the Spawning Season. Animals 11, 1417. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ani11051417</u>
- Fakriadis, I., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Sperm quality of greater amberjack Seriola dumerili throughout the reproductive season and in response to GnRHa treatment with controlled release implants. Fish Physiol Biochem 47, 281–292. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10695-020-00910-9</u>
- Fanini, L., Costa, L.L., Zalmon, I.R., Riechers, M., 2021a. Social and Ecological Elements for a Perspective Approach to Citizen Science on the Beach. Front. Ecol. Evol. 9, 694487. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fevo.2021.694487</u>
- Fanini, L., Defeo, O., Elliott, M., Paragkamian, S., Pinna, M., Salvo, V.-S., 2021b. Coupling beach ecology and macroplastics litter studies: Current trends and the way ahead. Marine Pollution Bulletin 173, 112951. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2021.112951
- Fanini, L., Guittard, A., 2021. On single use plastic straws: Pre-ban findings on touristic beaches in Crete. Marine Pollution Bulletin 171, 112790. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2021.112790</u>
- Fanini, L., Marchetti, G.M., Serafeimidou, I., Papadopoulou, O., 2021c. The potential contribution of bloggers to change lifestyle and reduce plastic use and pollution: A small data approach. Marine Pollution Bulletin 169, 112525. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2021.112525</u>
- Fanini, L., Piscart, C., Pranzini, E., Kerbiriou, C., Le Viol, I., Pétillon, J., 2021d. The extended concept of littoral active zone considering soft sediment shores as socialecological systems, and an application to Brittany (North-Western France). Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science 250, 107148. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecss.2020.107148</u>



- Fioravanti, M.L., Gustinelli, A., Rigos, G., Buchmann, K., Caffara, M., Pascual, S., Pardo, M.Á., 2021. Negligible risk of zoonotic anisakid nematodes in farmed fish from European mariculture, 2016 to 2018. Eurosurveillance 26. https://doi.org/10.2807/1560-7917.ES.2021.26.2.1900717
- Fraschetti, S., McOwen, C., Papa, L., Papadopoulou, N., Bilan, M., Boström, C., Capdevila, P., Carreiro-Silva, M., Carugati, L., Cebrian, E., Coll, M., Dailianis, T., Danovaro, R., De Leo, F., Fiorentino, D., Gagnon, K., Gambi, C., Garrabou, J., Gerovasileiou, V., Hereu, B., Kipson, S., Kotta, J., Ledoux, J.-B., Linares, C., Martin, J., Medrano, A., Montero-Serra, I., Morato, T., Pusceddu, A., Sevastou, K., Smith, C.J., Verdura, J., Guarnieri, G., 2021. Where Is More Important Than How in Coastal and Marine Ecosystems Restoration. Front. Mar. Sci. 8, 626843. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2021.626843</u>
- Gasco, L., Józefiak, A., Henry, M., 2021. Beyond the protein concept: health aspects of using edible insects on animals. Journal of Insects as Food and Feed 7, 715–741. https://doi.org/10.3920/JIFF2020.0077
- Hermi, F., Gómez-Abellán, V., Pérez-Oliva, A.B., García-Moreno, D., López-Muñoz, A., Sarropoulou, E., Arizcun, M., Ridha, O., Mulero, V., Sepulcre, M.P., 2021. The molecular, functional and phylogenetic characterization of PGE2 receptors reveals their different roles in the immune response of the teleost fish gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata* L.). Developmental & Comparative Immunology 114, 103803. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dci.2020.103803</u>
- Hitch, T.C.A., Afrizal, A., Riedel, T., Kioukis, A., Haller, D., Lagkouvardos, I., Overmann, J., Clavel, T., 2021. Recent advances in culture-based gut microbiome research. International Journal of Medical Microbiology 311, 151485. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijmm.2021.151485</u>
- Karagiannidis, E., Papazoglou, A.S., Stalikas, N., Deda, O., Panteris, E., Begou, O., Sofidis, G., Moysidis, D.V., Kartas, A., Chatzinikolaou, E., Keklikoglou, K., Bompoti, A., Gika, H., Theodoridis, G., Sianos, G., 2021. Serum Ceramides as Prognostic Biomarkers of Large Thrombus Burden in Patients with STEMI: A Micro-Computed Tomography Study. JPM 11, 89. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jpm11020089</u>
- Karamanlidis, A.A., Skrbinšek, T., Amato, G., Dendrinos, P., Gaughran, S., Kasapidis, P., Kopatz, A., Stronen, A.V., 2021. Genetic and demographic history define a conservation strategy for earth's most endangered pinniped, the Mediterranean monk seal *Monachus monachus*. Sci Rep 11, 373. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-020-79712-1</u>
- Katsika, L., Huesca Flores, M., Kotzamanis, Y., Estevez, A., Chatzifotis, S., 2021a.
 Understanding the Interaction Effects between Dietary Lipid Content and Rearing Temperature on Growth Performance, Feed Utilization, and Fat Deposition of Sea Bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). Animals 11, 392. https://doi.org/10.3390/ani11020392
- Katsika, L., Tasbozan, O., Mastoraki, M., Karapanagiotis, S., Zalamitsou, C., Feidantsis, K., Antonopoulou, E., Chatzifotis, S., 2021b. Effects of fish oil substitution by hazelnut oil on growth performance, whole-body fatty acid composition and enzymes of intermediary metabolism of juvenile meagre (*Argyrosomus regius* Asso, 1801). Aquaculture Research 52, 5760–5776. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/are.15452</u>
- Keklikoglou, K., Arvanitidis, C., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Chatzinikolaou, E., Karagiannidis, E., Koletsa, T., Magoulas, A., Makris, K., Mavrothalassitis, G., Papanagnou, E.-D., Papazoglou, A.S., Pavloudi, C., Trougakos, I.P., Vasileiadou, K., Vogiatzi, A., 2021. Micro-CT for Biological and Biomedical Studies: A Comparison of Imaging Techniques. J. Imaging 7, 172. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jimaging7090172</u>



- Kogiannou, D., Nikoloudaki, C., Katharios, P., Triga, A., Rigos, G., 2021a. Evaluation of absorption and depletion of florfenicol in European seabass *Dicentrarchus labrax*. Vet Med Sci 7, 987–997. <u>https://doi.org/10.1002/vms3.415</u>
- Kogiannou, D., Nikoloudaki, C., Rigos, G., 2021b. Absorption and depletion of dietary administered praziquantel in greater amberjack, *Seriola dumerili*. Aquaculture 535, 736354. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2021.736354</u>
- Kotzamanis, Y., Fawole, F.J., Brezas, A., Kumar, V., Fontanillas, R., Antonopoulou, E., Kouroupakis, E., Ilia, V., 2021. Dietary lysine requirement of greater amberjack juvenile (*Seriola dumerili*, Risso, 1810). Aquacult Nutr 27, 2107–2118. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/anu.13344</u>
- Kounna, C., Fountoulaki, E., Miliou, H., Chatzifotis, S., 2021. Water temperature effects on growth performance, proximate body and tissue composition, morphometric characteristics and gastrointestinal evacuation processes of juvenile meagre, *Argyrosomus regius* (Asso 1801). Aquaculture 540, 736683. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2021.736683</u>
- Kourkouta, C., Printzi, A., Geladakis, G., Mitrizakis, N., Papandroulakis, N., Koumoundouros, G., 2021. Long lasting effects of early temperature exposure on the swimming performance and skeleton development of metamorphosing Gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata* L.) larvae. Sci Rep 11, 8787. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-021-88306-4</u>
- Kousteni, V., Mazzoleni, S., Vasileiadou, K., Rovatsos, M., 2021. Complete Mitochondrial DNA Genome of Nine Species of Sharks and Rays and Their Phylogenetic Placement among Modern Elasmobranchs. Genes 12, 324. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/genes12030324</u>
- Krick, M.V., Desmarais, E., Samaras, A., Guéret, E., Dimitroglou, A., Pavlidis, M., Tsigenopoulos, C., Guinand, B., 2021. Family-effects in the epigenomic response of red blood cells to a challenge test in the European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*, L.). BMC Genomics 22, 111. <u>https://doi.org/10.1186/s12864-021-07420-9</u>
- Kumar, N., Hitch, T.C.A., Haller, D., Lagkouvardos, I., Clavel, T., 2021. MiMiC: a bioinformatic approach for generation of synthetic communities from metagenomes. Microb. Biotechnol. 14, 1757–1770. https://doi.org/10.1111/1751-7915.13845
- Maidanou, M., Koulouri, P., Karachle, P.K., Arvanitidis, C., Koutsoubas, D., Dounas, C., 2021. Trophic Diversity of a Fish Community Associated with a *Caulerpa prolifera* (Forsskål) Meadow in a Shallow Semi-Enclosed Embayment. JMSE 9, 165. https://doi.org/10.3390/jmse9020165
- Makridis, P., Kokou, F., Bournakas, C., Papandroulakis, N., Sarropoulou, E., 2021. Isolation of Phaeobacter sp. from Larvae of Atlantic Bonito (Sarda sarda) in a Mesocosmos Unit, and Its Use for the Rearing of European Seabass Larvae (*Dicentrarchus labrax* L.). Microorganisms 9, 128. https://doi.org/10.3390/microorganisms9010128
- Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Martou, N., Keisaris, S., Greveniotis, V., Katharios, P., Lazari, D., Krigas, N., Antonopoulou, E., 2021. Antibacterial Effects of Essential Oils of Seven Medicinal-Aromatic Plants Against the Fish Pathogen Aeromonas veronii bv. sobria: To Blend or Not to Blend? Molecules 26, 2731. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/molecules26092731</u>
- Medvecky, M., Mandalakis, M., 2021. PepMANDIS: A Peptide Selection Tool for Designing Function-Based Targeted Proteomic Assays in Complex Microbial Systems. Front. Chem. 9, 722087. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fchem.2021.722087</u>



- Mente, E., Carter, C.G., Barnes, R.S. (Katersky), Vlahos, N., Nengas, I., 2021. Post-Prandial Amino Acid Changes in Gilthead Sea Bream. Animals 11, 1889. https://doi.org/10.3390/ani11071889
- Mladineo, I., Hrabar, J., Trumbić, Ž., Manousaki, T., Tsakogiannis, A., Taggart, J.B., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. Community Parameters and Genome-Wide RAD-Seq Loci of Ceratothoa oestroides Imply Its Transfer between Farmed European Sea Bass and Wild Farm-Aggregating Fish. Pathogens 10, 100. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/pathogens10020100</u>
- Nikolaivits, E., Siaperas, R., Agrafiotis, A., Ouazzani, J., Magoulas, A., Gioti, A., Topakas, E., 2021. Functional and transcriptomic investigation of laccase activity in the presence of PCB29 identifies two novel enzymes and the multicopper oxidase repertoire of a marine-derived fungus. Science of The Total Environment 775, 145818. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.scitotenv.2021.145818</u>
- Nikolopoulou, S., Berov, D., Klayn, S., Dimitrov, L., Velkovsky, K., Chatzinikolaou, E., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Karamfilov, V., Pavloudi, C., 2021. Benthic habitat mapping of Plazh Gradina – Zlatna ribka (Black Sea) and Karpathos and Saria Islands (Mediterranean Sea) 9, e71972. <u>https://doi.org/10.3897/BDJ.9.e71972</u>
- Nousias, O., Montesanto, F., 2021. Metagenomic profiling of host-associated bacteria from 8 datasets of the red alga *Porphyra purpurea* with MetaPhlAn3. Marine Genomics 59, 100866. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.margen.2021.100866</u>
- Nousias, O., Tzokas, K., Papaharisis, L., Ekonomaki, K., Chatziplis, D., Batargias, C., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. Genetic Variability, Population Structure, and Relatedness Analysis of Meagre Stocks as an Informative Basis for New Breeding Schemes. Fishes 6, 78. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/fishes6040078</u>
- Oikonomou, S., Tsakogiannis, A., Kriaridou, C., Danis, T., Manousaki, T., Chatziplis, D., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., Triantafyllidis, A., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. First linkage maps and a pilot QTL analysis for early growth performance in common dentex (*Dentex dentex*) and sharpsnout seabream (*Diplodus puntazzo*). Aquaculture Reports 21, 100855. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aqrep.2021.100855</u>
- Panteli, N., Mastoraki, M., Lazarina, M., Chatzifotis, S., Mente, E., Kormas, K.Ar., Antonopoulou, E., 2021. Configuration of Gut Microbiota Structure and Potential Functionality in Two Teleosts under the Influence of Dietary Insect Meals. Microorganisms 9, 699. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/microorganisms9040699</u>
- Papadaki, M., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Pouli, M., Asderis, M., Katharios, P., Papandroulakis, N., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Histological evaluation of sex differentiation and early sex identification in hatchery-produced greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) reared in sea cages. Fish Physiol Biochem 47, 1777–1792. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10695-021-01007-7</u>
- Papapetrou, M., Kazlari, Z., Papanna, K., Papaharisis, L., Oikonomou, S., Manousaki, T., Loukovitis, D., Kottaras, L., Dimitroglou, A., Gourzioti, E., Pagonis, C., Kostandis, A., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Chatziplis, D., 2021. On the trail of detecting genetic (co)variation between resistance to parasite infections (*Diplectanum aequans* and *Lernanthropus kroyeri*) and growth in European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). Aquaculture Reports 20, 100767. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aqrep.2021.100767</u>
- Papazoglou, A.S., Karagiannidis, E., Moysidis, D.V., Sofidis, G., Bompoti, A., Stalikas, N., Panteris, E., Arvanitidis, C., Herrmann, M.D., Michaelson, J.S., Sianos, G., 2021. Current clinical applications and potential perspective of micro-computed tomography in cardiovascular imaging: A systematic scoping review. Hellenic Journal of Cardiology 62, 399–407. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.hjc.2021.04.006</u>



- Peñaloza, C., Manousaki, T., Franch, R., Tsakogiannis, A., Sonesson, A.K., Aslam, M.L., Allal, F., Bargelloni, L., Houston, R.D., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. Development and testing of a combined species SNP array for the European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) and gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*). Genomics 113, 2096–2107. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ygeno.2021.04.038</u>
- Pham, T.T.T., Friðriksdóttir, R., Weber, C.T., Viðarsson, J.R., Papandroulakis, N., Baudron, A.R., Olsen, P., Hansen, J.A., Laksá, U., Fernandes, P.G., Bahri, T., Ragnarsson, S.Ö., Aschan, M., 2021. Guidelines for co-creating climate adaptation plans for fisheries and aquaculture. Climatic Change 164, 62. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10584-021-03041-z</u>
- Pisera, A., Gerovasileiou, V., 2021. Lithistid Demosponges of Deep-Water Origin in Marine Caves of the North-Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Front. Mar. Sci. 8, 630900. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2021.630900</u>
- Pitacco, V., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Mikac, B., Lipej, L., 2021. Ecological patterns of polychaete assemblages associated with the Mediterranean stony coral *Cladocora caespitosa* (Linnaeus, 1767): a comparison of sites in two biogeographic zones (Adriatic and Aegean Sea). Medit. Mar. Sci. 22, 532. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.26136</u>
- Polymenakou, P.N., Nomikou, P., Zafeiropoulos, H., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Kilias, S., Kyrpides, N.C., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., 2021. The Santorini Volcanic Complex as a Valuable Source of Enzymes for Bioenergy. Energies 14, 1414. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/en14051414</u>
- Printzi, A., Fragkoulis, S., Dimitriadi, A., Keklikoglou, K., Arvanitidis, C., Witten, P.E., Koumoundouros, G., 2021. Exercise-induced lordosis in zebrafish *Danio rerio* (Hamilton, 1822). J Fish Biol 98, 987–994. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/jfb.14240</u>
- Psonis, N., Antoniou, A., Karameta, E., Darriba, D., Stamatakis, A., Lymberakis, P., Poulakakis, N., 2021. The wall lizards of the Balkan peninsula: Tackling questions at the interface of phylogenomics and population genomics. Molecular Phylogenetics and Evolution 159, 107121. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ympev.2021.107121
- Ragaza, J.A., Hossain, Md.S., Koshio, S., Ishikawa, M., Yokoyama, S., Kotzamanis, Y., Brezas, A., Kumar, V., 2021. Brown seaweed (Sargassum fulvellum) inclusion in diets with fishmeal partially replaced with soy protein concentrate for Japanese flounder (*Paralichthys olivaceus*) juveniles. Aquacult Nutr 27, 1052–1064. <u>https://doi.org/10.1111/anu.13246</u>
- Ragkousis, M., Digenis, M., Kovačić, M., Katsanevakis, S., Gerovasileiou, V., 2021. Rarely Reported Cryptobenthic Fish in Marine Caves of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. JMSE 9, 557. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/jmse9060557</u>
- Reitmeier, S., Hitch, T.C.A., Treichel, N., Fikas, N., Hausmann, B., Ramer-Tait, A.E., Neuhaus, K., Berry, D., Haller, D., Lagkouvardos, I., Clavel, T., 2021. Handling of spurious sequences affects the outcome of high-throughput 16S rRNA gene amplicon profiling. ISME COMMUN. 1, 31. <u>https://doi.org/10.1038/s43705-021-00033-z</u>
- Riechers, M., Fanini, L., Apicella, A., Galván, C.B., Blondel, E., Espiña, B., Kefer, S., Keroullé, T., Klun, K., Pereira, T.R., Ronchi, F., Rodríguez, P.R., Sardon, H., Silva, A.V., Stulgis, M., Ibarra-González, N., 2021. Plastics in our ocean as transdisciplinary challenge. Marine Pollution Bulletin 164, 112051. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.marpolbul.2021.112051</u>



- Rigos, G., Kogiannou, D., Vasilaki, A., Kotsiri, M., 2021. Evaluation of Praziquantel Efficacy against Zeuxapta seriolae Infections in Greater Amberjack, *Seriola dumerili*. Applied Sciences 11, 4656. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/app11104656</u>
- Rosso, A., Sanfilippo, R., Guido, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Taddei Ruggiero, E., Belmonte, G., 2021. Colonisers of the dark: biostalactite-associated metazoans from "lu Lampiùne" submarine cave (Apulia, Mediterranean Sea). Mar Ecol 42. https://doi.org/10.1111/maec.12634
- Rotter, A., Barbier, M., Bertoni, F., Bones, A.M., Cancela, L.M., Carlsson, J., Carvalho, M.F., Cegłowska, M., Chirivella-Martorell, J., Conk Dalay, M., Cueto, M., Dailianis, T., Deniz, I., Díaz-Marrero, A.R., Drakulovic, D., Dubnika, A., Edwards, C., Einarsson, H., Erdoğan, A., Eroldoğan, O.T., Ezra, D., Fazi, S., FitzGerald, R.J., Gargan, L.M., Gaudêncio, S.P., Gligora Udovič, M., Ivošević DeNardis, N., Jónsdóttir, R., Kataržytė, M., Klun, K., Kotta, J., Ktari, L., Ljubešić, Z., Lukić Bilela, L., Mandalakis, M., Massa-Gallucci, A., Matijošytė, I., Mazur-Marzec, H., Mehiri, M., Nielsen, S.L., Novoveská, L., Overlingė, D., Perale, G., Ramasamy, P., Rebours, C., Reinsch, T., Reyes, F., Rinkevich, B., Robbens, J., Röttinger, E., Rudovica, V., Sabotič, J., Safarik, I., Talve, S., Tasdemir, D., Theodotou Schneider, X., Thomas, O.P., Toruńska-Sitarz, A., Varese, G.C., Vasquez, M.I., 2021. The Essentials of Marine Biotechnology. Front. Mar. Sci. 8, 629629. https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2021.629629
- Samaras, A., Dimitroglou, A., Kollias, S., Skouradakis, G., Papadakis, I.E., Pavlidis, M., 2021. Cortisol concentration in scales is a valid indicator for the assessment of chronic stress in European sea bass, *Dicentrarchus labrax* L. Aquaculture 545, 737257. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aquaculture.2021.737257</u>
- Samuel, R.M., Meyer, R., Buttigieg, P.L., Davies, N., Jeffery, N.W., Meyer, C., Pavloudi, C., Pitz, K.J., Sweetlove, M., Theroux, S., van de Kamp, J., Watts, A., 2021. Toward a Global Public Repository of Community Protocols to Encourage Best Practices in Biomolecular Ocean Observing and Research. Front. Mar. Sci. 8, 758694. <u>https://doi.org/10.3389/fmars.2021.758694</u>
- Santi, I., Kasapidis, P., Karakassis, I., Pitta, P., 2021. A Comparison of DNA Metabarcoding and Microscopy Methodologies for the Study of Aquatic Microbial Eukaryotes. Diversity 13, 180. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/d13050180</u>
- Skliros, D., Kalatzis, P.G., Kalloniati, C., Komaitis, F., Papathanasiou, S., Kouri, E.D., Udvardi, M.K., Kokkari, C., Katharios, P., Flemetakis, E., 2021. The Development of Bacteriophage Resistance in Vibrio alginolyticus Depends on a Complex Metabolic Adaptation Strategy. Viruses 13, 656. https://doi.org/10.3390/v13040656
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Lika, K., Anastasiadis, P., Papandroulakis, N., 2021a. Projecting climate change impacts on Mediterranean finfish production: a case study in Greece. Climatic Change 165, 67. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/s10584-021-03096-y</u>
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Lika, K., Michail, P., Tsalafouta, A., Mohamed, A.H., Nikos, P., 2021b. Thermal tolerance, metabolic scope and performance of meagre, *Argyrosomus regius*, reared under high water temperatures. Journal of Thermal Biology 100, 103063. <u>https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jtherbio.2021.103063</u>
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., Sturm, A., Lika, K., Wätzold, F., Papandroulakis, N., 2021c. ClimeGreAq: A software-based DSS for the climate change adaptation of Greek aquaculture. Environmental Modelling & Software 143, 105121. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envsoft.2021.105121
- Superio, J., Fakriadis, I., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Lancerotto, S.A., Rodriguez, A.V., Vervelakis, E., Mylonas, C.C., 2021. Spawning kinetics and parentage contribution of European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) broodstocks, and influence of GnRHa-





induced spawning. Aquaculture Reports 21, 100766. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.aqrep.2021.100766

- Tsagarakis, K., Darmanin, S.A., Al Mabruk, S.A.A., Auriemma, R., Azzurro, E., Badouvas, N., Bakiu, R., Bariche, M., Battaglia, P., Betti, F., Borme, D., Cacciamani, R., Cali, F., Corsini-Foka, M., Crocetta, F., Dalyan, C., Deidun, A., Digenis, M., Domenichetti, F., Dragičević, B., Dulčić, J., Durucan, F., Guy-Haim, T., Kesici, N.B., Lardi, P., Manitaras, Y., Michailidis, N., Piraino, S., Rizgalla, J., Siapatis, A., Soldo, A., Stipa, M.G., Terbiyik Kurt, T., Tiralongo, F., Tsiamis, K., Vella, A., Vella, N., Zava, B., Gerovasileiou, V., 2021. New records of rare species in the Mediterranean Sea (October 2021). Medit. Mar. Sci. 22, 627. <u>https://doi.org/10.12681/mms.26669</u>
- Tsaparis, D., Konstantinidis, I., Palandacic, A., Kalogianni, E., Stoumboudi, M.Th., Barbieri, R., Vardakas, L., Koutsikos, N., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., 2021. DNA barcoding provides new insights on the distribution, systematics and conservation of the freshwater genus Pelasgus (Cypriniformes: Cyprinidae) in Greece. Hydrobiologia 848, 1163–1176. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10750-021-04526-9
- Vangay, P., Burgin, J., Johnston, A., Beck, K.L., Berrios, D.C., Blumberg, K., Canon, S., Chain, P., Chandonia, J.-M., Christianson, D., Costes, S.V., Damerow, J., Duncan, W.D., Dundore-Arias, J.P., Fagnan, K., Galazka, J.M., Gibbons, S.M., Hays, D., Hervey, J., Hu, B., Hurwitz, B.L., Jaiswal, P., Joachimiak, M.P., Kinkel, L., Ladau, J., Martin, S.L., McCue, L.A., Miller, K., Mouncey, N., Mungall, C., Pafilis, E., Reddy, T.B.K., Richardson, L., Roux, S., Schriml, L.M., Shaffer, J.P., Sundaramurthi, J.C., Thompson, L.R., Timme, R.E., Zheng, J., Wood-Charlson, E.M., Eloe-Fadrosh, E.A., 2021. Microbiome Metadata Standards: Report of the National Microbiome Data Collaborative's Workshop and Follow-On Activities. mSystems 6, e01194-20. <u>https://doi.org/10.1128/mSystems.01194-20</u>
- Wenderlein, J., Böswald, L.F., Ulrich, S., Kienzle, E., Neuhaus, K., Lagkouvardos, I., Zenner, C., Straubinger, R.K., 2021. Processing Matters in Nutrient-Matched Laboratory Diets for Mice—Microbiome. Animals 11, 862. <u>https://doi.org/10.3390/ani11030862</u>
- Zafeiropoulos, H., Gargan, L., Hintikka, S., Pavloudi, C., Carlsson, J., 2021a. The Dark mAtteR iNvestigator (DARN) tool: getting to know the known unknowns in COI amplicon data. MBMG 5, e69657. <u>https://doi.org/10.3897/mbmg.5.69657</u>
- Zafeiropoulos, H., Gioti, A., Ninidakis, S., Potirakis, A., Paragkamian, S., Angelova, N., Antoniou, A., Danis, T., Kaitetzidou, E., Kasapidis, P., Kristoffersen, J.B., Papadogiannis, V., Pavloudi, C., Ha, Q.V., Lagnel, J., Pattakos, N., Perantinos, G., Sidirokastritis, D., Vavilis, P., Kotoulas, G., Manousaki, T., Sarropoulou, E., Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Arvanitidis, C., Magoulas, A., Pafilis, E., 2021b. 0s and 1s in marine molecular research: a regional HPC perspective. GigaScience 10, giab053. <u>https://doi.org/10.1093/gigascience/giab053</u>





Book Chapters

2018

- Edrada-Ebel, R., Ævarsson, A., Polymenakou, P., Hentschel, U., Carettoni, D., Day, J., Green, D., Hreggviðsson, G.Ó., Harvey, L., McNeil, B., 2018. SeaBioTech: From Seabed to Test-Bed: Harvesting the Potential of Marine Biodiversity for Industrial Biotechnology, in: Rampelotto, P.H., Trincone, A. (Eds.), Grand Challenges in Marine Biotechnology. Springer International Publishing, Cham, pp. 451–504.
- Piña, M., Colas, P., Cancio, I., Audic, A., Bosser, L., Canario, A., Gribbon, P., Johnston, I.A., Kervella, A.E., Kooistra, W.H.C.F., Merciecca, M., Magoulas, A., Nardello, I., Smith, D., Pade, N., Robinson, D., Schoen, A., Schultz, F., Kloareg, B., 2018. The European Marine Biological Research Infrastructure Cluster: An Alliance of European Research Infrastructures to Promote the Blue Bioeconomy, in: Rampelotto, P.H., Trincone, A. (Eds.), Grand Challenges in Marine Biotechnology. Springer International Publishing, Cham, pp. 405–421.

2019

- Estévez, A., Papandroulakis, N., Wille, M., Sorgeloos, P., 2019. Early Life Stages and Weaning, in: Lembo, G., Mente, E. (Eds.), Organic Aquaculture. Springer International Publishing, Cham, pp. 79–102. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-05603-2_5</u>
- Jimenez, C., Achilleos, K., Petrou, A., Hadjioannou, L., Guido, A., Rosso, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Albano, P.G., Franco, D.D., Andreou, V., Alhaija, R.A., 2019. A dream within a dream: Kakoskali Cave, a unique marine ecosystem in Cyprus (Levantine Sea), in: Öztürk, B. (Ed.), Marine Caves of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Biodiversity, Threats and Conservation. Turkish Marine Research Foundation (TUDAV), Istanbul, pp. 91–110.
- Ouerghi, A., Gerovasileiou, V., Bianchi, C.N., 2019. Mediterranean marine caves: a synthesis of current knowledge and the Mediterranean Action Plan for the conservation of "dark habitats," in: Öztürk, B. (Ed.), Marine Caves of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Biodiversity, Threats and Conservation. Turkish Marine Research Foundation (TUDAV), Istanbul, pp. 1–13.

- Gerovasileiou V, Iliffe TM, Gonzalez B, Brankovits D, Martínez A, Keith DA 2020).SM1.3 Sea caves. p. 93. In: Keith DA, Ferrer-Paris JR, Nicholson E, Kingsford RT (Eds) The IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: Descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland. ISBN: 978-2-8317-2077-7.
- Iliffe TM, Brankovits D, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez B, Martínez A, Keith DA 2020. SM1.1 Anchialine caves. p. 91. In: Keith DA, Ferrer-Paris JR, Nicholson E, Kingsford RT (Eds) The IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: Descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland. ISBN: 978-2-8317-2077-7.



- Keith DA, Iliffe TM, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez B, Brankovits D, Martínez A 2020. S1.2 Endolithic systems. p. 81. In: Keith DA, Ferrer-Paris JR, Nicholson E, Kingsford RT (Eds) The IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: Descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland. ISBN: 978-2-8317-2077-7.
- Keith DA, Iliffe TM, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez B, Brankovits D, Martínez A 2020. S2.1 Anthropogenic subterranean voids. p. 83. In: Keith DA, Ferrer-Paris JR, Nicholson E, Kingsford RT (Eds) The IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: Descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland. ISBN: 978-2-8317-2077-7.
- Keith DA, Iliffe TM, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez B, Brankovits D, Martínez A 2020.
 SF2.1 Water pipes and subterranean canals. p. 88. In: Keith DA, Ferrer-Paris JR, Nicholson E, Kingsford RT (Eds) The IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: Descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland. ISBN: 978-2-8317-2077-7.
- Keith DA, Iliffe TM, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez B, Brankovits D, Martínez A, Hose GC 2020. SF1.2 Groundwater ecosystems. p. 86. In: Keith DA, Ferrer-Paris JR, Nicholson E, Kingsford RT (Eds) The IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: Descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, Gland, Switzerland. ISBN: 978-2-8317-2077-7.
- Polymenakou, P.N., Nomikou, P., Mandalakis, M., Kilias, S., Kotoulas, G., Kyrpides, N.C., Magoulas, A., 2020. Microbial Benthic Communities in the Aegean Sea, in: The Handbook of Environmental Chemistry. Springer Berlin Heidelberg, Berlin, Heidelberg. <u>https://doi.org/10.1007/698_2020_685</u>
- Smyrli, M., Katharios, P., 2020. Aeromonas spp., in: Zrnčić, S. (Ed.), Diagnostic Manual for the Main Pathogens in European Seabass and Gilthead Seabream Aquaculture, Options Méditerranéennes, Series B: Studies and Research. CIHEAM, Zaragoza, pp. 107–116.

- Gerovasileiou, V., Bianchi, C.N., 2021. Mediterranean Marine Caves: A Synthesis of Current Knowledge, in: Oceanography and Marine Biology. CRC Press, Boca Raton, pp. 1–87.
- Gerovasileiou, V., Koulouri, P., Koutsikopoulos, C., Dailianis, T., Dounas, C., Salomidi, M., Trygonis, V., Karris, G., Raitsos, D.E., Dimitriadis, C., Sini, M., Poursanidis, D., Sourbes, L., Koutsoubas, D., 2021. Chapter 23. Marine Biodiversity in Greek Seas, in: Marine Biology. Broken Hill Publishers Ltd.
- Kanellidou, M., Zacharias, S., Pennos, C., Paragkamian, K., Gerovasileiou, V., 2021.
 Greece, in: Didonna, F., Maurano, F. (Eds.), SPELEOMEDIT Mediterranean
 Speleology Panoramic View of Caves and Karst of Mediterranean Countries.
 Società Speleologica Italiana, Bologna, Italia, pp. 107–115.
- Koulouri, P., Giannoulaki, M., Machias, A., Dounas, C., 2021. Measures for the Protection and Sustainable Exploitation of Marine Biological Resources in an Oligotrophic Fishing Ground (Crete Island, Greece, E. Mediterranean), in: Ksibi, M., Ghorbal, A., Chakraborty, S., Chaminé, H.I., Barbieri, M., Guerriero, G., Hentati, O., Negm, A., Lehmann, A., Römbke, J., Costa Duarte, A., Xoplaki, E., Khélifi, N., Colinet, G., Miguel Dias, J., Gargouri, I., Van Hullebusch, E.D., Sánchez Cabrero, B., Ferlisi, S., Tizaoui, C., Kallel, A., Rtimi, S., Panda, S., Michaud, P., Sahu, J.N., Seffen, M., Naddeo, V. (Eds.), Recent Advances in





Environmental Science from the Euro-Mediterranean and Surrounding Regions (2nd Edition). Springer International Publishing, Cham, pp. 2197–2201.

- Mokos, M., Cheimonopoulou, M., Koulouri, P., Previati, M., Realdon, G., Santoro, F., Mogias, A., Boubonari, T., Satta, A., Ioakeimidis, C., 2021. The Importance of Ocean Literacy in the Mediterranean Region - Steps Towards Blue Sustainability, in: Ocean Literacy: 21st Century Challenges, European Association of Geographers, Key Challenges in Geography. Springer.
- Rigos G and Kogiannou D. 2021. Veterinary drug residues in aquaculture: Use and abuse (Chapter 11). Changes in the Chemical Composition of Food through the Various Stages of the Food Chain: Fishing and Aquaculture. Present Knowledge in Food Safety A Risk-Based Approach Through the Food Chain. International Life Sciences Institute (ILSI), Elsevier (In press).





Books - Monograms

2019

- Katharios, P 2019. Disease prevention in farmed fish. New developments and research needs. Standing Committee on Agricultural Research, 48pp. Commissioned report for CASA, SCARfish, EU.
- Otero Maria del Mar, Serena Fabrizio, Gerovasileiou Vasilis, Barone Monica, Bo Marzia, Arcos José Manuel, Vulcano Antonio, Xavier Joana, 2019. Identification guide of vulnerable species incidentally caught in Mediterranean fisheries. IUCN Center for Mediterranean Cooperation, Malaga.

2020

Keith, D.A., Ferrer-Paris, J.R., Nicholson, E., Kingsford, R.T. (Eds.), 2020. IUCN Global Ecosystem Typology 2.0: descriptive profiles for biomes and ecosystem functional groups. IUCN, International Union for Conservation of Nature.

- Eparkhina, D., Pomaro, A., Koulouri, P., Banchi, E., Canu, D., Uyarra, M., Burke, N., 2021. Ocean Literacy in European Oceanographic Agencies: EuroGOOS recommendations for the UN Decade of Ocean Science for Sustainable Development 2021-2030, EuroGOOS Policy Brief. Brussels, Belgium.
- Gerovasileiou V., Anastasopoulou K., Arvanitidis C., Assimakopoulou G., Dailianis T., Dounas C., Gerakaris V., Giannakourou A., Giannoulaki M., Karris G., Kasapidis P., Katsanevakis S., Katsiaras N., Kavadas S., Kotoulas G., Koulouri P., et al., 2021. POST-2020 SAP BIO Greek contribution on Mediterranean marine and coastal biodiversity preservation beyond 2030: Ecological status, pressures, impacts, their drivers and priority response fields. Strategic Action Program for the conservation of Biological Diversity (SAP BIO) in the Mediterranean Region. Pp. 66+x.
- Santi I., Casotti R., Comtet T., Cunliffe M., Koulouri P., Macheriotou L., Not F., Obst M., Pavloudi C., Romac S., Thiebaut E., Vanaverbeke J., Pade N., 2021. European Marine Omics Biodiversity Observation Network (EMO BON)–Handbook. Version 1.0.
- UNEP/MAP-SPA/RAC 2021. Post-2020 SAP BIO Greek national contribution document on Mediterranean marine and coastal biodiversity preservation beyond 2030: ecological status, pressures, impacts, their drivers and priority response fields. By Gerovasileiou V. and contributors, SPA/RAC, Tunis, in press.





International Conference Proceedings

- Arvanitidis C, Warwick R M, Somerfield P J, Pavloudi C, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos T, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Michalakis N, Filiopoulou I, Panteri E, Gougousis A. 2018. Research Infrastructures and their collaborative potential to address scientific questions at global scale. 53rd European Marine Biology Symposium, Ostend, Belgium. 17-21 September 2018 (presentation).
- Arvanitidis C, Warwick R M, Somerfield P J, Pavloudi C, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos T, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Michalakis N, Filiopoulou I, Panteri E, Gougousis A. 2018. Research Infrastructures and their collaborative potential to address scientific questions at global scale. 53rd European Marine Biology Symposium, Ostend, Belgium. 17-21 September, 2018, Oral presentation.
- Arvanitidis C, Warwick RM, Somerfield P, Pavloudi C, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos T, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W and 300 Editors of WoRMS 2018 Research Infrastructures offer capacity to address scientific questions never attempted before: Are all taxa equal? PeerJ Preprints, 6: e26819v1.
- Arvanitidis C, Warwick RM, Somerfield PJ, Pavloudi Ch, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos Th, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Michalakis N, Filiopoulou I, Panteri E, Gougousis A, Bravakos P, Christakis Ch, Kassapidis P, Kotoulas G, Magoulas A 2018 Research Infrastructures and their collaborative potential in addressing challenging scientific questions at global scale. Book of Abstracts of the International Conference "Marine Biology, Geology, Oceanology: Interdisciplinary Research at Marine Research Stations", p. 6-7.
- Aslam, M. L., R. Carraro, A. Sonesson, K. Tzokas, C. Tsigenopoulos, G. Rigos, L. Bargelloni, and T. Meuwissen. 2018. Genetic basis of host resistance to S. chrysophrii in farmed gilthead sea bream (Sparus aurata) population. Page 39, Proceedings of the World Congress on Genetics Applied to Livestock Production, 7-16 Φεβρουαρίου 2018, Auckland, New Zealand.
- Bailly N, Mavraki D, Nikolopoulou M, Arvanitidis C 2018. Data archaelogy and rescue: filling spatial and temporal gaps in species occurrence data at European Seas. 12th panhellenic symposium of oceanography & fisheries, Corfu, 30 May-3 June
- Bravakos P, Christakis C, Keklikoglou K, Arvanitidis C, Hatzigeorgiou A, Klappa M, Pafilis E, Kotoulas G 2018. The Elixir-Greece Marine Biology joint research activity and the LifeWatch Greece microCT vLab. 17th European Conference on Computational Biology, Athens, Greece. 8-12 September, 2018, Poster
- Chatzinikolaou, E., Grigoriou, P., Martini, E., Sterioti, A. 2018. Impact of ocean acidification and warming on the feeding behavior of Hexaplex trunculus. 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries, 30 May-3 June, Corfu, Greece.



- Christakis, C., Polymenakou, P., Kilias, S., Kristoffersen, J.B. 2018. What do I do with my metagenomes? A comparison of three online metagenomic analysis platforms. Hellenic Bioinformatics 11, Thessaloniki, Greece November, 15-18, 2018.
- Christina Pavloudi, Saar Y Sztejrenszus, Jon B Kristoffersen, Niko Lahajnar, Marleen De Troch, Christos Arvanitidis, Michael W Friedrich 2018. Identification of sulfatereducers from the Benguela coastal upwelling system by RNA stable isotope probing and 16S rRNA sequencing. 5th International Symposium on Microbial Sulfur Metabolism, 16-18 April 2018, Vienna (Austria).
- Cotou E., Fountoulaki E., Avgeri F., Kotsiri M, Alexandratos A., Henry M., Kogiannou D., Rigos G., Androni A., Konstadinopoulou A., Assimakopoulou G., 2018.
 Availability and environmental effects of commercial feeds (fish meal vs plant meal based) & fish feed waste in an IMTA system of fish, filter- & deposit- feeders: A Multi-Indicator Assessment Approach. WAS/EAS 2018, August 25-29, Montpellier, France.
- Daskalaki E, Pachiadaki M, Gerovasileiou V, Voultsiadou E, Gkelis S 2018. Microbial mat profiling in a shallow marine cave of the Aegean Sea (Eastern Mediterranean).
 Book of Abstracts of the IV International Symposium for Anchialine Ecosystems, p. 22.
- Doxa, C.K, Orfanakis, M., Doulamis, T., Kentouri, M., Sterioti, A. 2018. The effect of the anemone presence on growth performance of Amphiprion ocellaris. 33th E.U.A.C. meeting, THE DEEP, 15 18 October, Hull, UK.
- Doxa, C.K, Sterioti, A., Divanach, P., Kentouri, M. 2018. Effect of maternal size on egg capsule production in the marine gastropod Charonia seguenzae (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries, 30 May-3 June, Corfu, Greece.
- Faulwetter S, Papageorgiou N, Koulouri P, Fanini L, Chatzinikolaou E, Markantonatou V, Pavloudi C, Chatzigeorgiou G, Keklikoglou K, Vasileiadou K, Basset A, Pinna M, Rosati I, Reizopoulou S, Nikolaidou A, Arvanitidis C. 2018. Response of community and trait patterns to simulate species loss in coastal lagoons. 8th European Coastal Lagoons Symposium. Athens, Greece. 20-23 March 2018 (presentation).
- Faulwetter S, Papageorgiou N, Koulouri Y, Fanini L, Chatzinikolaou E, Markantonatou V, Pavloudi C, Chatzigeorgiou G, Keklikoglou K, Vasileiadou A, Basset A, Pinna M, Rosati I, Reizopoulou S, Nicolaidou A, Arvanitidis C 2018. Response of community and trait patterns to simulated species in coastal lagoons. 8th European Coastal Lagoons Symposium, Athens, Greece. 20-23 March, 2018, Oral Presentation
- Fountoulaki E., Cotou E., Henry M., Grigorakis K., Kogiannou D., Kotsiri M., Vassilaki A., Nikoloudaki Ch., Pyrenis, G., Sweetman J., Nengas I., 2018. Benefits of organic vs inorganic minerals on growth, health and product quality of the European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). 18th International Symposium on Fish Nutrition and Feeding (ISFNF), June 3rd-7th. Las Palmas de Gran Canaria, Spain.
- Fountoulaki E., Vasilaki A., Nikoloudaki, C., Pyrenis, G., Oikonomou D., Megalofonou P. Evaluation of varying levels of Arachidonic acid in commercial diet of great amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) juveniles. 12th Symposium on Oceanography & Fisheries, Corfu, 30/5-3/6/2018 Corfu Island, Greece.
- Fountoulaki, E., Cotou, E., Henry, M., Grigorakis, K., Kogiannou, D., Kotsiri, M., Vassilaki, A., Nikoloudaki, Ch., Pyrenis, G., Sweetman, J. and I. Nengas. 2018.
 Benefits of organic minerals vs inorganic on growth, health and product quality of the european sea bass Dicentrarchus labrax (Linnaeus, 1758). 12th Panhellenic



Symposium on Oceanography & Fisheries Blue Growth for the Adriatic- Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean. 30 May- 3 June, Corfu Island, Greece.

- Fraschetti S, Guarnieri G, Papa L, C. McOwen, Papadopoulou N, Bilan M, Boström C, Capdevila P, Carugati L, Cebrian E, Dailianis T, De Leo F., Fiorentino D, Gagnon K, Gambi C, Garrabou J, Gerovasileiou V, Hereu B, Kipson S, Kotta J, Ledoux J, Linares C, Martin J, Medrano A, Montero-Serra I, Morato T, Pusceddu A, Sevastou K, Smith C, Verdura J, Danovaro R, 2018. Restoration actions in marine ecosystems: a global analysis. 4th World Conference on Marine Biodiversity (WCMB 2018), Montreal, Canada, May 13 to 16, 2018. PeerJ Preprints 6:e26799v1
- Galani A, Dailianis T, Sini M, Katsanevakis S, Gerovasileiou V, 2018. Rapid assessment of sessile benthos in marine caves of the island-dominated Aegean Sea (Eastern Mediterranean Sea). IV International Symposium for Anchialine Ecosystems, October 1-7, 2018. Lanzarote, Canary Islands, Spain.
- Gasco L., Schiavone A., Serra G., Anedda R., Trocino A., Caimi M., Gariglio M., Malfatto V., Dabbou S., Devic E., Chatzifotis S., Meneguz M., Gai F., 2018.
 Apparent digestibility of insect protein meals for rainbow trout: preliminary results. The 2nd International conference insects to feed the world. Chinese Society for Mircobiology-The entomological Society of China- Huazhong Agricultural University. May 15-18, Wuhan, China.
- Gerovasileiou V, Martínez A, Álvarez F, Boxshall G, Humphreys WF, Jaume D, Becking LE, Muricy G, van Hengstum PJ, Yamasaki H, Dekeyzer S, Decock W, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Bailly N, Iliffe TM 2018. Three years with the World Register of marine Cave Species (WoRCS) initiative: current status and future perspectives. Book of Abstracts of the IV International Symposium for Anchialine Ecosystems, p. 29.
- Kaitetzidou, E., Katsiadaki, I., Lagnel, J., Antonopoulou, E. and Sarropoulou, E. 2018, Hellenic Bioinformatics "Challenges of miRNA expression studies during early development of a non-model and a model teleost species", November 2018, Thessaloniki, Greece. (poster)
- Katharios P., Kokkari C., Pavlidis M., Ha V. Q. Edwardsiella anguillarum Infecting Farmed Sharpsnout Seabream (Diplodus puntazzo) in Greece; Genomic Characterization and Virulence. International Symposium of Aquatic Animal Health 2018, Prince Edward Island, Canada 2-6 September
- Katharios P., Triga A., Smyrli M., Ha V. Q. Pavlidis M., Aeromonas veronii bv sobria: An Emerging Threat for European Seabass Aquaculture. International Symposium of Aquatic Animal Health 2018, Prince Edward Island, Canada 2-6 September
- Kogiannou D, 2018 Alexi N, Oikonomopoulou I, Kalogeropoulos N, Grigorakis K. "Effects of cooking in the nutritional values of gilthead sea bream (Sparus aurata) and meagre (Argyrosomus regius)".3rd International Congress on Applied Ichthyology & Aquatic Environment 8-11 November 2018 Volos, Greece
- Kriaridou C., A. Tsakogiannis, T. Manousaki, S. Oikonomou, N. Papandroulakis, C. C. Mylonas, D. Chatziplis, C. S. Tsigenopoulos QTL mapping for body weight in early growth stages of common dentex Dentex dentex (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2018, August 25-29 2018, Montpellier, France
- Kube, N., Montoto-Gasser, P., de Boer, M., Sterioti, A. 2018. Update from the Sea turtle Working Group. 33th E.U.A.C. meeting, THE DEEP, 15 18 October, Hull, UK.
- Manousaki 2018 Hellenic Bioinformatics 11, A phylogenomic quest to find the closest sequenced relative of sparids: challenges and new insights. 15-18 November 2018, Thessalonica, Greece. (Manousaki has entered this)



- Manousaki T., C. S. Tsigenopoulos, P. Kasapidis, A. Cariani, R. Cannas, M. Coll and the SPELMED consortium Assessing sardine and anchovie population structure with ddRAD Sequencing (poster), 7. iMarCo - 3rd International Marine Connectivity Conference, October 8-9 2018, Heraklion, Greece
- Martínez A, Anicic N, Calvaruso S, Sánchez N, Puppieni L, Sforzi T, Zaupa S, Álvarez F, Bránkovits D, Gąsiorowski L, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez BC, Humphreys WH, Iliffe, TM, Worsaae K, Bailly N, Fontaneto D 2018. A new insight into the Stygofauna Mundi: assembling a global dataset for aquatic fauna in subterranean environments. Article collection "Subterranean Biology in the Anthropocene" of the 24th International Conference on Subterranean Biology, ARPHA Conference Abstracts, 1: e29514.
- Martínez A, Anicic N, Calvaruso S, Sánchez N, Puppieni L, Sforzi T, Zaupa S, Setubal R, Calderón F, Álvarez F, Bránkovits D, Gąsiorowski L, Gerovasileiou V, Gonzalez BC, Humphreys WH, Petrunina A, Majdi N, Iliffe, TM, Worsaae K, Bailly N, Fontaneto D 2018. A new look to Stygofauna Mundi: dataset for aquatic fauna in subterranean environments useful to understand diversity in anchialine ecosystems. Book of Abstracts of the IV International Symposium for Anchialine Ecosystems, p. 45.
- Mastoraki M. Gasco L., Kotzamanis Y. Kontodimas D., Antonopoulou E. Chatzifotis S. 2018. Nutrient and energy digestibility in European sea bass Dicentrarchus labrax fed diets containing five different insect meals. European Aquaculture Society, Montpellier, France 25-29 August 2018.
- Mastoraki M., Chatzifotis S., Mente E and Antonopoulou E., 2018. Towards a circular economy in aquaculture: Substitution of fish meals with insect protein for aquafeed. Fifth international symposium on green chemistry, sustainable development and circular economy. Skiathos, Greece, September 30 - October 03.
- Mastoraki M., Vlahos N., Zotou P., Chatzifotis S., Antonopoulou E., Mente E., 2018 The effect of insect meal as a feed ingredient on survival, growth and feeding behavior of juvenile prawn Palaemon adspersus (RATHKE, 1837). Hydromedit, 8-11 November Volos Greece.
- Nousias O., A. Tsakogiannis, K. Tzokas, J. Villa, A. Estevez, N. Duncan, C. S. Tsigenopoulos Parentage assignment using microsatellite loci in a project for aquaculture of meagre *Argyrosomus regius* (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2018, August 25-29 2018, Montpellier, France
- Pafilis, E. et al., Text-mining-based interpretation of microbiome data, 2018, European Conference in Computational Biology, Athens, Greece
- Panteli N., Mastoraki M., Nikouli E., Chatzifotis S., Mente E., Kormas K.Ar., Antonopoulou E., 2018. Modulation of gut microbial communities in european seabass fed with different insect meal-based diets. Hydromedit, 8-11 November Volos Greece.
- Papadopoulou N, Morato T, Smith CJ, Bilan M, Carreiro-Silva M, Gambi C, Carrugati L, Danovaro R, Gori A, Linares C, Jones D, Colaço A, Sarrazin J, Matabos M, Ramirez-Llodra E, Amaro T, Billett D, Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, Grehan A, Martins I, Sevastou K, Van Dover C, Aronson J, Sweetman A, 2018. Key concepts for ecological restoration in the deep-sea testing the SER Ecological Standards in the deep-sea. SER 2018 Europe Restoration in the Era of Climate Change. 9-13 September Reykjavik, Iceland: P-52
- Pavloudi C, Sarafidou G, Apostolaki E, Chatzigeorgiou G, Chatzinikolaou E, Keklikoglou K, Arvanitidis C. 2018. Population connectivity of key-species in the Marine



Protected Area (MPA) of Karpathos (Greece). Fourth International Marine Connectivity (iMarCo) Conference, Heraklion, Crete, Greece. 8-9 October 2018.

- Pavloudi C, Vasileiadou K, Gonzalez Wanguemert M, Arvanitidis C, Chatzinikolaou E. 2018. Comparison of sediment microbial communities between western (Ria Formosa, Portugal) and eastern European lagoons (Amvrakikos Gulf, Greece). 8th European Coastal Lagoons Symposium. Athens, Greece. 20-23 March 2018 (presentation).
- Pisera A, Gerovasileiou V 2018. Lithistid demosponges from submarine caves of Crete Island (Eastern Mediterranean Sea): is their occurrence controlled by water silicate content? Book of Abstracts of the IV International Symposium for Anchialine Ecosystems, p. 52.
- Rosso A, Di Martino E, Gerovasileiou V 2018. The still unknown bryodiversity of the Mediterranean: a new Setosella species from Lesvos submarine caves (Aegean Sea). 15th Larwood Symposium.
- Sarropoulou E, Sundaram A.Y.M., Kaitetzidou E, Kotoulas, G., Gilfillan G.D., Papandroulakis N, Mylonas C.C., Magoulas A. 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries. "Genome and transcriptome survey in the greater amberjack Seriola dumerili", June 2018, Kerkyra, Greece. (talk)
- Sterioti, A., Zaimaki, M., Theodoroy, J. 2018. Feeding behavior and pseudofaeces production of Mediterranean mussel Mytilus galloprovincialis (Lamark 1819) at indoor conditions. AQUACULTURE EUROPE, AQUA 2018, 26-29 August, Montpellier, France.
- Tarifa, G., Sterioti, A., Kentouri, M. 2018. Using artificial feeds for the culture of the sea urchin *Paracentrotus lividus* (Echinodermata, Echinoidea), (Lamarck, 1816). 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries, 30 May-3 June, Corfu, Greece.
- Tsakogiannis, T. Manousaki, J. Lagnel, N. Papandroulakis, C. C. Mylonas, C. S. Tsigenopoulos Comparative transcriptomics using RNA sequencing to identify gene expression sex-bias patterns in five sparids (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2018, August 25-29 2018, Montpellier, France
- Tsigenopoulos CS 2018 Use of genetic methods and tools to assess marine connectivity patterns (invited talk), International Sandy Beaches Symposium (ISBS), 25-29 May 2018, Heraklion, Greece
- Tsigenopoulos CS New candidate species for future breeding programs in European aquaculture (invited talk), Advances in Industrial Aquaculture Genetics, North meets South, WP8 Workshop, May 3–4 2018, Bergen, Norway2018
- Tsigenopoulos CS, Chatziplis D, Pavlidis M, Guinand B, Desmarais E, Rye M, Thorland I, Vela-Avitua S, Moghadam H, Manousaki T, Papaharisis L. ROBUSTBASS:
 Advanced selective breeding for robustness, disease and stress resistance in European sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax) through the use of Next Generation Sequencing techniques for genetic improvement oxi revised (poster), 12th Panhellenic Symposium on Oceanography & Fisheries, 30 May 3 June 2018, "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion, and the Eastern Mediterranean", Corfu, Greece
- Vasilaki A., Fountoulaki E., Nathanailides C., Choremi C., Vidalis K., Grigorakis K. Comparison of proximate and fatty acid composition of wild and reared gilthead sea bream (*Sparus aurata*) of small sub- commercial sizes. Hydromedit 2018, Volos,
- Vasileiadou K., 2018 Manousaki T., Tsakogiannis A., Tsigenopoulos C., Arvanitidis C. Genetic diversity patterns of macrobenthic communities in transitional water



ecosystems (oral), 8th European Coastal Lagoons Symposium, March 20 - 23 2018, Athens, Greece

- Zafeiropoulos Haris, Katerina Vasileiadou, Ha Quoc Viet, Christos Arvanitidis, Pantelis Topalis, Christina Pavloudi, Evangelos Pafilis 2018. P.E.M.A.: a Pipeline for Environmental DNA Metabarcoding Analysis. 17th European Conference on Computational Biology (ECCB), Athens (Greece)
- Zafeiropoulos Haris, Katerina Vasileiadou, Ha Quoc Viet, Christos Arvanitidis, Pantelis Topalis, Christina Pavloudi, Evangelos Pafilis 2018 P.E.M.A.: a Pipeline for Environmental DNA Metabarcoding Analysis. Hellenic Bioinformatics Conference (HBio), Thesssaloniki (Greece) (*poster award)
- Zafeiropoulos, H. et al., P.E.M.A.: a Pipeline for Environmental DNA Metabarcoding Analysis, 2018, Hellenic Bioinformatics International Conference, Thessaloniki, Greece, (last author, Top poster award)

- Alexi N., Byrne D.A., Grigorakis K. Exploration of the quality of reared vs. wild gilthead sea bream: profiling the sensory differences. EAS 2019 Berlin 7-10 Oct 2019, Book of Abstracts p511-512
- Arvanitidis C, Hollingsworth P, Mergen P, Semal P, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Addnik W, Smith V, Koureas D. 2019. Combined High-Throughput Imaging and Sequencing: Addressing the collections on demand requirement in SYNTHESYS+ project. Biodiversity Information Science and Standards 3: e37290. Conference paper presented in Biodiversity_Next 2019. 22 – 25 October 2019. Leiden – The Netherlands. https://biss.pensoft.net/article/37290/
- Arvanitidis C, Warwick R, Somerfield PJ, Pavloudi C, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos T, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Michalakis N, Filiopoulou I, Panteri E, Gougousis A, Bravakos P, Christakis C, Kassapidis P, Kotoulas G, Magoulas A. 2019. The Collaborative Potential of Research Infrastructures in Addressing Global Scientific Questions. Biodiversity Information Science and Standards 3: e37289. Conference paper presented in Biodiversity_Next 2019. 22 25 October 2019. Leiden The Netherlands. https://biss.pensoft.net/article/37289/
- Bolgan M, Di Iorio L, Dailianis T, Catalan I, Lejeune P, Parmentier E, 2019. An acoustic Odyssey: Characterisation of the vocal fish community inhabiting Neptune seagrass meadows across the Mediterranean Sea. XXVII International Bioacoustics Congress, 31 August to 5 September 2019, University of Sussex, Brighton, England.
- Cascarano, M. C., Kristoffersen, J. B., Tsertou, M. I., Papandroulakis, N., Katharios, P. Epizootiology and genomic characterisation of a novel epitheliocystis agent in greater amberjack in Greece, EAFP 2019, Porto, Portugal, 9-12 September
- Christakis, C.A, Polymenakou P.N., Kilias, S.P., Nomikou, P., Nielsen, T., Kyrpides, N.C., Kristoffersen, J.B., Kotoulas, G. and A. Magoulas. 2019. Metagenomic evidence for microbial Fe (II) oxidation in iron mats at the Kallisti Limnes CO2 -rich seafloor hydrothermal pools, Santorini. GOLDSCHMIDT 2019, Barcelona Spain, 18-23 August (accepted as oral presentation).
- Dailianis T, 2019 Manousaki T, Koutsouveli V2, Lagnel J, Kollias S, Tsigenopoulos C, Arvanitidis C, Magoulas A, Dounas C. Development of a bioinformatic approach to discern between high-throughput genetic data of metazoan and prokaryotic origin for complex holobionts (poster), 8th Congress of the Scientific Society MikroBioKosmos, April 18-20 2019, Patras, Greece.



- Dailianis T, Dounas C, Androulakis D, Gerovasileiou V, Glampedakis I, Skouradakis G, Chatzigeorgiou, G, Koulouri P, Magoulas A, 2019. The Underwater
 Biotechnological Park of Crete, a multi-use experimental platform in the Eastern Mediterranean. Proceedings of the 5th European Conference on Scientific Diving, 24-27 April 2019, Institute of Oceanology, Polish Academy of Sciences, Sopot, Poland. p. 19.
- Dailianis T, Mandalakis M, 2019. Enhancing the environmental and economical sustainability of aquaculture through integration of sponges – an assessment of current knowledge. 54th European Marine Biology Symposium – EMBS. 25-29 August, Dublin, Ireland.
- Daskalaki E, Gerovasileiou V, Voultsiadou E, Martínez A, Muricy G and the WoRCS Editorial Team 2019. Cataloguing sponge diversity from Atlantic marine caves and comparison with relevant data from the Mediterranean Sea. Book of Abstracts of the 14th International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions, p. 37.
- de Mello, P., Fakriadis, I. Lanceroto, S., Tsoukali, P., Calloni, L., Kopper, S., Sarracino, R., and Mylonas, C.C. 2019, Influence of thermal manipulations during gametogenesis on reproductive maturation of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*), spawning success, gamete and egg quality. 17th Panhellenic Conference of Ichthyologists, 31/10 3/11, 2019, Heraklion, Crete. pp 297-300.
- Digenis M, Gerovasileiou V, Chatzigeorgiou G, Dailianis T, Arvanitidis A, 2019.
 Biodiversity assessment in a unique marine cave of Crete (Eastern Mediterranean): sessile macrobenthos. Proceedings of the 5th European Conference on Scientific Diving, 24-27 April 2019, Institute of Oceanology, Polish Academy of Sciences, Sopot, Poland, p. 28.
- Digenis M, Gerovasileiou V, Chatzigeorgiou G, Dailianis T, Arvanitidis C, 2019. Spatial variability of benthic diversity and physicochemical characteristics in a marine cave of Crete (Eastern Mediterranean). 14th International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions (ICZEGAR), 27-30 June, Thessaloniki, Greece.
- Doxa, C.K, Sterioti, A., Kentouri, M. 2019. Feeding requirements of the tritons *Charonia* seguenzae (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). AQUACULTURE EUROPE, EAS 2019. 7 10 October, Berlin, Germany.
- Fabris Andrea, Rigos George, 2019. Towards sustainable and efficient therapeutic strategies in Mediterranean marine aquaculture. European Aquaculture Society, Berlin, Germany, Our Future Growing from Water, Oct 7-10 2019.
- Fakriadis, I., Karapanagiotis, S., Tsele, N and C.C. Mylonas 2019, Timing of GnRHa treatment application in greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili*, 17th Panhellenic Conference of Icthyologists, 31/10-3/11, 2019, Herakleion, Crete, pp 277-280
- Fakriadis, I., Zanatta, E.M. and C.C. Mylonas 2019, Enhancement of spermiation in meagre Argyrosomus regius using GnRHa implants and evaluation of sperm quality using Computer Assisted Sperm Analysis (CASA), 17th Panhellenic Conference of Icthyologists, 31/10-3/11, 2019, Herakleion, Crete, pp 281-284.
- Figueiredo-Silva, C. Boggino, M. Sun, Maria Mastoraki, I. Papadakis, A. Theodoridou, M. Pavlidis, S. Chatzifotis. Effects of complexed trace minerals at different inclusion rates in commercial sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax) diets. AQUACULTURE EUROPE 2019 conference in Berlin (Germany).7-10 October 2019.
- Fountoulaki 2019 E, I Roussos, A Vasilaki, G Pyrenis, D Kogiannou, M Henry, I Nengas. "Organic vs inorganic minerals premix inclusion in plant meal-based diets for juveniles sea bass, Dicentrarchus labrax; effects on growth performance indicators



and immunological response". Aquaculture Europe Society, 7-10 October 2019, Berlin, Germany

- Fountoulaki E., Vasilaki A., Nikoloudaki Ch., Pyrenis G., Henry M. and Nengas. I. 2019.
 Effects of processing and exogenous dietary enzyme inclusion in plant meal-based diets; preliminary results on growth performance, feed utilization, and nutrient digestibility in seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). European Aquaculture Society 2019, Our Future-Growing from Water. Feed and nutrition in organic aquaculture. 2019, Berlin, Germany.
- Frachetti S, Mcowen C, Papa L, Papadopoulou N, Bilan M, Boström C, Capdevila P, Carreiro-Silva M, Carugati L, Cebrian E, Dailianis T, Danovaro R, De Leo F, Fiorentino D, Gagnon K, Gambi C, Garrabou J, Gerovasileiou V, Hereu B, Kipson S, Kotta J, Ledoux JB, Linares C, Martin J, Medrano A, Montero-Serra I, Morato T, Pusceddu A, Sevastou K, Smith C, Verdura J, Guarnieri G 2019. Success stories in restoration actions across coastal-marine ecosystems: The potential for synergies. Book of Abstracts of the 8th World Conference on Ecological Restoration, p. 50-51.
- Galani A, Dailianis T, Sini M, Katsanevakis S, Gerovasileiou V, 2019. Characterization of benthic communities in marine caves of the island-dominated Aegean ecoregion (Eastern Mediterranean Sea). In: Langar, H., Ouerghi, A. (Eds.), Proceedings of the 2nd Mediterranean Symposium on the conservation of Dark Habitats (Antalya, Turkey, 17 January 2019). SPA/RAC Publ., Tunis, pp. 67-68.
- Georgia Sarafidou, Georgios Chatzigeorgiou, Eva Chatzinikolaou, Kleoniki Keklikoglou, Christos Arvanitidis, Charikleia Kargiolaki, Georgia Piligotsi, Dinos Protopapas, Dimitris Tsaparis, Yiannis Issaris, Christina Pavloudi 2019. Genetic variability and population connectivity of Pinna nobilis in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. 8th International Barcode of Life Conference (iBOL), Trondheim (Norway)
- Gerovasileiou V 2019. A decade of marine biological research in marine caves of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Book of Abstracts of the 5th European Conference on Scientific Diving, p. 50.
- Gerovasileiou V, Smith CJ, Drakopoulou P, Mytilineou C, Otero M 2019. Shedding light on the unknown vulnerable benthic communities of the deep Eastern Mediterranean Sea. Book of Abstracts of the 14th International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions, p. 57.
- Grypioti E 2019 Characterization of RNA silencing pathways and physiological roles in the model diatom Phaeodactylum tricornutum, Grypioti E, Falciatore A, Kalantidis K. and Verret F. The Molecular Life of Diatoms, EMBO Workshop, 14-18 JULY 2019, Norwich, United-Kingdom.
- Grypioti E 2019 Characterization of RNA silencing pathways and physiological roles in the model diatom Phaeodactylum tricornutum, Grypioti E., Kalantidis K., Verret F., 8th Conference of the Hellenic Scientific Society of Mikrobiokosmos, Microbial Communities as growth engines for Greece, 18-20 April 2019, Patras, Greece.
- Guarnieri, G., McOwen, C.J., Papa, L., Papadopoulou, N., Bilan, M., Boström, C., Capdevila, P., Carugati, L., Cebrian, E., Dailianis, T., Danovaro, R., De Leo, F., Fiorentino, D., Gagnon, K., Gambi, M.C., Garrabou, J., Gerovasileiou, V., Hereu, B., Kipson, S., Kotta, J., Ledoux, J.-B., Linares, C., Martin, J., Medrano, A., Montero-Serra, I., Morato, T., Pusceddu, A., Sevastou, K., Smith, C.J., Verdura, J., Fraschetti, S., 2019. Active Restoration Across Marine Coastal Habitats: A Focus on The Mediterranean Sea, In: Langar, H., Ouerghi, A. (Eds.), Proceedings of the 3rd Mediterranean Symposium on the conservation of Coralligenous & other Calcareous Bio-Concretions (Antalya, Turkey, 15-16 January 2019)., SPA/RAC Publ., Tunis, pp. 57–62.



- Guido A, Gerovasileiou V, Russo F, Rosso A, Sanfilippo R, Voultsiadou E, Mastandrea A 2019. Sponges vs microbialites: an example from the cryptic biogenic crusts of Aegean submarine caves (Eastern Mediterranean). Book of Abstracts of the 13th International Symposium on Fossil Cnidaria and Porifera 2019, p. 22.
- Guido A, Mastandrea A, Russo F, Rosso A, Sanfilippo R, Voultsiadou E, Gerovasileiou V 2019. Microfacies of the biotic crusts from two Aegean submarine caves (Eastern Mediterranean). Proceedings of the 2nd Mediterranean Symposium on the Conservation of Dark Habitats, p. 69-70.
- Guido A, Russo F, Gerovasileiou V, Rosso A, Sanfilippo R, Voultsiadou E, Mastandrea A 2019. Cryptic biogenic crusts from Lesvos submarine caves (Aegean Sea, Eastern Mediterranean). Book of Abstracts of Paleodays 2019 XIX Edizione delle Giornate di Paleontologia, p. 19.
- Guido A, Russo F, Gerovasileiou V, Rosso A, Sanfilippo R, Voultsiadou E, Mastandrea A 2019. Microbialite vs sponges in cryptic bioconstructions from submarine caves of the Aegean Sea (Eastern Mediterranean). Book of Abstracts of the 34th IAS International Meeting of Sedimentology, Session 7.A - 1732.
- Karagiannidis E., Konstantinidis, N., Sofidis, G., Chatzinikolaou E., Sianos, G. 2019. Imaging and quantitative estimation of thrombus burden in patients with ST elevation acute myocardial infarction (STEMI) with the use of micro-computed tomography - A methodological approach. EuroEcho Imaging 2019 - European Society of Cardiology, Vienna, Austria. 3-7 December 2019.
- Karli, C.E., Polymenakou, P., Sterioti, A., Kotoulas, G., Magoulas, A., Kasapidis, P. 2019. Standardization of eDNA metabarcoding approaches for assessing and monitoring changes of the icthyofaunal diversity in the oligotrophic ecosystems of the eastern Mediterranean Sea. AQUACULTURE EUROPE, EAS 2019. 7 – 10 October, Berlin, Germany.
- Katharios P, Keklikoglou K, Cascarano MC, Panteri E, Filiopoulou I, Magoulas A, Arvanitidis C 2019. AQUAPATHLab: a web-based virtual pathology lab for diseases of aquatic animals. 19th International Conference on Diseases of Fish and Shellfish, Porto, Portugal. 9-12 September, 2019, Oral presentation
- Katharios, P., Keklikoglou, K., Cascarano, M. C., Panteri, E., Filiopoulou, I., Magoulas, A., Arvanitidis, C. AQUAPATHLab: a web-based virtual pathology lab for diseases of aquatic animals, EAFP 2019, Porto, Portugal, 9-12 September
- Katharios, P., Kokkari, C., Cascarano, M. C., Triga, A., Sotiriadis, S. The use of phages as a "smart disinfectant" for aquaculture live feeds, EAFP 2019, Porto, Portugal, 9-12 September
- Katsika L., Van Schoonhoven M.J., Peignon J., Vernadou E., Antonopoulou E., H. Boon, Chatzifotis S. 2019. Effect of digestion enhancer on diets with partial fishmeal substitution by plant proteins in growth parameters, body composition and digestibility in european seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). European Aquaculture Society, Berlin 7-10 October – 7-10
- Kogiannou Dimitra, ChrysanthiNikoloudaki, AntigoniVasilaki, GiorgosPyrenis, IoannisNengas, George Rigos 2019. pharmacokinetic comparison of different dosing strategies of in-feed administered praziquantel in greater amberjack Seriola dumerili. European Aquaculture Society, Berlin, Germany, Our Future Growing from Water, Oct 7-10 2019.
- Kogiannou Dimitra, Nikoloudaki Chrysanthi, Vasilaki Antigoni, Pyrenis Girogios, Rigos George 2019 Pharmacokinetic study of in-feed administered Praziquantel in greater amberjack. 19th International Conference on Diseases Of Fish And Shellfish, Porto, Portugal. 9-12th September 2019.



- Kotoulas G, Polymenakou PN, Stavroulaki M, Pafilis E, Mavraki D, Bravakos P, Dailianis T, Mandalakis M, Gerovasileiou V, Pavloudi C, Arvanitidis C, Magoulas A, Pade N and ASSEMBLE Plus GOs partners, 2019. Marine Genomics Observatories and the Triple Helix; EMBRC ERIC & ASSEMBLE+ contribution. 2019 IMEKO TC-19 International Workshop on Metrology for the Sea, October 3-5 Genova, Italy
- Kotsiri, M., Cotou, E., Fountoulaki, E. and K. Charalabus. 2019. Effects of heat-treated soy & sunflower flours for fish meal substitution on energy reserves, antioxidant & digestive enzymes in the gilthead sea bream (*Sparus aurata*). Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10, Berlin, Germany.
- Kounna C., Fountoulaki E., Miliou H., Chatzifotis S., 2019. Gastric evacuation, stomach moisture and carcass proximate composition of meagre, argyrosomus regius, fed diets with different dietary lipid level. 2019. European Aquaculture Society, Berlin 7-10 October – 7-10
- Kyriakis D., A. Kanterakis, T. Manousaki, A. Tsakogiannis, M. Tsagris, I. Tsamardinos,
 L. Papaharisis, D. Chatziplis, G. Potamias, C. S. Tsigenopoulos Scanning of genetic variants and genetic mapping of phenotypic traits in gilthead seabream (poster),
 Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10 2019, Berlin, Germany
- Manousaki has sent it 2019 Hellenic Bioinformatics 12, Development of a combined species SNP array for seabass and seabream. 11-13 October 2019, Heraklion, Greece.
- Michailidis K, Gerovasileiou V, Smith CJ, Mytilineou C 2019. Deep-sea biodiversity in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea: preliminary results from Kasos Strait and off South Crete. Book of Abstracts of the 14th International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions, p. 115.
- Miguel Angel Pardo, Andrea Gustinelli, Monica Caffara, Maria Letizia Fioravanti, Kurt Buchmann, Santiago Pascual, George Rigos, Csaba Székely, Diana Sandor, Gabor Cech, 2019. A European Survey on Zoonotic Helminths Reveals A Negligible Risk Of Infection From Farmed Fish To Humans. European Aquaculture Society, Berlin, Germany, Our Future Growing from Water, Oct 7-10 2019.
- Mladineo I., 2019 Trumbić Ž., Tsakogiannis A., T. Manousaki, A. Vrbatović, J. B. Taggart, G. Rigos, A. Sitjàa-Bobadilla, P. Beraldo, C. S. Tsigenopoulos
 Mediterranean-wide SNPs of two aquaculture-important ectoparasites, Sparicotyle chrysophrii and Ceratothoa oestroides, developed by ddRAD sequencing (poster), Molecular Helminthology: An Integrated Approach, April 7-10 2019, San Antonio, Texas, USA
- Morato T, Smith C, Bilan M, Carreiro-Silva M, Papadopoulou N, Sweetman A, Jones D, Matabos M, Gambi C, Colaço A, Gori A, Linares C, Sarrazin J, Billett D, Ramirez-Llodra E, Cuvelier D, Sevastou K, Grehan A, Martins I, Carugati L, Montseny M, Amaro T, Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, Danovaro R 2019. Principles and key concepts for ecological restoration in the deep-sea. Book of Abstracts of the 8th World Conference on Ecological Restoration, p. 140-141.
- Mylonas, C.C., Papandroulakis, N., Katharios, P., Tsigenopoulos, C., Grigorakis, K., Chatzifotis, S. and I. Papadakis The DIVERSIFY project-Assessing the biological and socioeconomic potential of new/emerging fishes for the expansion of the EU aquaculture (oral), 170 Panhellenic congress of Ichthyologists, 31 october – 3 November 2019, Heraklion, Greece
- Mytilineou C, Anastasopoulou A, Damalas D, Drakopoulou V, Farroug M, Gerovasileiou V, Gücü AC, Jimenez C, Iona S, Kapiris K, Kavadas S, Kiparissis S, Kontoyiannis H, Lambadariou N, Lefkaditou E, Myriam L, Ali M, Papadopoulou N, Peristeraki P, Rousakis G, Sakellariou D, Salomidi M, Sarif J, Sevastou K, Smith CJ, Stamouli C,


Souvermezoglou E, Thasitis I, Otero M 2019. DEEPEASTMED: state of the knowledge on deep-water vulnerable species and habitats in the Eastern Mediterranean. Book of Abstracts of the ICES Annual Science Conference 2019, ICES CM 2019/O:441.

- O. Stavrakidis Zachou, K. Lika, N. Papandroulakis, 2019. Forecasting climate change impacts on Greek aquaculture production: A CLIMEFISH case study EAS 2019 Pp 1448-1449
- O. Stavrakidis-Zachou, K. Lika, Jorge Alarcon, Abdulaziz M. Al-Suwailem and N. Papandroulakis, 2019. Biological performance of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) under high temperature. EAS 2019 Pp 1450-1451
- Panettieri V., Piccolo G., Addeo N.F., Chatzifotis S., 2019. Honey bee pollen inclusion in diets for meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) juveniles: effects on growth performance and body indexes. ASPA.
- Panteli N., Mastoraki M., Nikouli E., Chatzifotis S., Mente E., Kormas K., Antonopoulou E., 2019. Individual variability affects the sea bream and seabass gut microbiota composition after fishmeal replacement. 2nd fish gut microbiome symposium Oregon USA 2019.
- Panteli N., Mastoraki M., Nikouli E., Chatzifotis S., Mente E., Kormas K.Ar., Antonopoulou E. 2019. Gut microbiota composition of farmed sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) and the significance of individual variability. Mikrobiokosmos 19-20 April Patra, Greece.
- Pauletto M., Ferraresso S., Manousaki T., Kristoffersen J.B., Tsakogiannis A., Babbucci M., C. Tsigenopoulos, L. Bargelloni Improving the Gilthead seabream and European seabass genomes using Oxford Nanopore technology (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10 2019, Berlin, Germany
- Pavloudi C, Chrismas N, Troncoso J, Norkko J, Viard F, Mortelmans J, Mavrič B, Gerovasileiou V, Arvanitidis C, Kotoulas G, Obst M 2019. Artificial Reef Monitoring Structures (ARMS) providing insights on the marine biodiversity and community structure. Scientific abstracts from the 8th International Barcode of Life Conference, p. 417.
- Pavloudi Christina, Nathan Chrismas, Jesus Troncoso, Joanna Norkko, Frédérique Viard, Jonas Mortelmans, Borut Mavrič, Vasilis Gerovasileiou, Christos Arvanitidis, Georgios Kotoulas, Matthias Obst 2019. Artificial Reef Monitoring Structures (ARMS) providing insights on the marine biodiversity and community structure. 8th International Barcode of Life Conference (iBOL), Trondheim (Norway)
- Penaloza C., T. Manousaki, R. Franch, A. Tsakogiannis, A. Sonesson, L. Bargelloni, R. D. Houston, C. Tsigenopoulos Development of a combined-species SNP array for sea bass and sea bream (oral), Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10 2019, Berlin, Germany
- Potirakis, A., et al., ZORBAS: the HPC cluster for biological analysis in IMBBC, HCMR, 2019, Hellenic Bioinformatics International Conference, Heraklion, Crete, Greece
- Rigos G., M. Henry, C. Nikoloudaki, G. Pyrenis, D. Kogiannou, O. Palenzuela. 2019 Enteromyxum leei treatment trial in sharpsnout sea bream *Diplodus puntazzo* using phytobiotics. European Aquaculture Society, 7-10 October 2019, Berlin, Germany
- Rigos Geroge, Morgane Henry, ChrysaNikoloudaki, GiorgosPyrenis, Dimitra Kogiannou, Oswaldo Palenzuela 2019 *Enteromyxum leei* treatment trial in sharp snout sea bream *Diplodus puntazzo* using phytobiotics. European Aquaculture Society, Berlin, Germany, Our Future Growing from Water, Oct 7-10 2019.



- Rosso A, Gerovasileiou V, Sanfilippo R, Guido A 2019. Undisclosed bryodiversity of shallow-water submarine caves of the Aegean Sea. Proceedings of the 2nd Mediterranean Symposium on the Conservation of Dark Habitats, 47-52.
- Salomidi M, Gerovasileiou V, Mytilineou C, Jimenez C, Smith CJ, Papadopoulou KN, Drakopoulou P, Otero M 2019. Deep-sea vulnerable sessile benthos in the Eastern Mediterranean: identifying current knowledge and gaps. Book of Abstracts of the 14th International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions, p. 133.
- Samaras Q., Dimitroglou A., Papaharisis L., Tsigenopoulos C., D. Chatziplis, Pavlidis M. Επαναληπτικότητα και ατομικές διαφορές στην απόκριση κορτιζόλης στο λαβράκι, Dicentrarchus labrax (oral), 170 Panhellenic congress of Ichthyologists, 31 october – 3 November 2019, Heraklion, Greece
- Samaras, A. Dimitroglou, L. Papaharisis, C. Tsigenopoulos, D. Chatziplis and M. Pavlidis Divergent cortisol responsiveness in european sea bass, Dicentrarchus labrax: integration of results and future perspectives (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10 2019, Berlin, Germany
- Sarafidou, G., Chatzigeorgiou, G., Chatzinikolaou, E., Keklikoglou, K., Arvanitidis, C., Kargiolaki, C., Piligotsi, G., Protopapas, D., Tsaparis, D., Issaris, Y., and C. Pavloudi, 2019. Genetic variability and population connectivity of Pinna nobilis in the Mediterranean Sea. 8th International Barcode of Life Conference, Trondheim, Norway, 17-20 June.
- Sempere-Valverde J, Sabino Lorenzo Á, Espinosa F, Gerovasileiou V, Sánchez-Tocino L, Navarro-Barranco C 2019. Long-term spatio-temporal dynamics of sessile benthos in a shallow marine submerged cave of western Mediterranean Sea. Proceedings of the 2nd Mediterranean Symposium on the Conservation of Dark Habitats, p. 53-58.
- Smith C, Papadopoulou N, Bakran-Petricioli T, Bekkby T, Bilan M, Boström C, Carriero-Silva M, Carugati L, Cebrian E, Cerrano C, Danovaro R, Fraschetti S, Eronat E, Gagnon K, Gambi C, Gerovasileiou V, Kipson S, Kizilkaya I, Kotta J, Linares C, Milanese M, Morato T, Rinde E, Sarà A, Sevastou K 2019. Marine restoration and MERCES Key Habitats/Species: Approaches, timescales, bottlenecks, and upscaling. Book of Abstracts of the 8th World Conference on Ecological Restoration, p. 198.
- Smith CJ, Gerovasileiou V, Mytilineou C, Drakopoulou P, Otero M 2019. Identifying potential VMEs in Greek Waters through analysis of archive video: successes and difficulties. Book of Abstracts of the ICES Annual Science Conference 2019, ICES CM 2019/O:218.
- Stamouli C, Gerovasileiou V, Voultsiadou E 2019. Sponge diversity and distribution in mesophotic and deep-sea grounds trawled in the Aegean and Ionian Seas: preliminary results. Book of Abstracts of the 14th International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions, p. 146.
- T. Manousaki and the PerformFISH consortium Development of a combined species SNP array for the European sea bass and the gilthead sea bream (oral), Hellenic Bioinformatics 2019, 10-13 Οκτωβρίου 2019, Ηράκλειο, Ελλάς
- Triga, A., Smyrli, M., Katharios, P. Comparative genomic analysis of Aeromonas veronii by sobria isolated from European seabass. Virulence, antibiotic resistance and antigenic proteins, EAFP 2019, Porto, Portugal, 9-12 September
- Tsakogiannis A., Manousaki T., Vrbatovic A., Trumbic Z., Hrabar J., Buselic Garber I., Taggart J., Beraldo P., Rigos G., Sitja-Bobadilla A., Tsigenopoulos C.S. and Mladineo I. Studying genetic diversity in parasites with high impact on the mediterranean aquaculture industry using modern genomic approaches: the case of



Ceratothoa oestroides and Sparicotyle chrysophrii. (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10 2019, Berlin, Germany

- Tsigenopoulos C.S. & L. Papaharisis Increasing disease resistance of fish for parasites through breeding: the case of the European sea bass against the monogenean Diplectanum aequans and the copepod *Lernanthropus kroyeri* (oral), Industry Forum, Aquaculture Europe 2019, October 7-10 2019, Berlin, Germany
- Tsigenopoulos, Costas S. Alexandros Tsakogiannis, Tereza Manousaki, AnamarijaVrbatovic, ZeljkaTrumbic, JerkoHrabar, Ivana Buselic-Garber, John Taggart, Paola Beraldo, Georgios Rigos, AriadnaSitja-Bobadilla, IvonaMladineo 2019 Studying genetic diversity in parasites with high impact on the Mediterranean aquaculture industry using modern genomic approaches: the case of Ceratotho aoestroides and Sparicoty lechrysophrii. European Aquaculture Society, Berlin, Germany, Our Future Growing from Water, Oct 7-10 2019.
- Tsirintanis, K., Sini, M., Katsanevakis, S., and D. Tsaparis, 2019. Pinna nobilis in the Aegean Sea Population collapse of an endangered species. 42nd CIESM Congress, Cascais, Portugal, 7-11 October.
- V. Chalkiadakis, G. Livanos, M. Zervakis, K. Moirogiorgou, N. Papandroulakis, 2019. An autonomous underwater vehicle for automated inspection of aquaculture net pen cages EAS 2019 Pp 263-264
- Vasilaki, A., K. Kousoulaki, T.A. Samuelsen, G. Pyrenis, D. Kogiannou, K. Grigorakis, E. Fountoulaki, E. Mente and I. Nengas. 2019. Effects of novel ingredients on growth performance in European sea bass, *Dicentrarchus labrax*. European Aquaculture Society 2019, Our Future-Growing from Water. Feed and nutrition in organic aquaculture. 2019, Berlin, Germany.
- Zafeiropoulos, H. et al., P.E.M.A.: a Pipeline for Environmental DNA Metabarcoding Analysis, 2019, 8th International Barcode of Life Conference, Trondheim, Norway
- Zegkinoglou, N., Kilias, S.P., Keith, M., Smith, D.J., Nomikou, P. and P.N. Polymenakou. 2019. Decoupled geochemical behavior of Tl, Au, As in sea-floor massive sulphides, Kolumbo arc-volcano: evidence from LA-ICP-MS elemental mapping of arsenian pyrite. 15th International Congress of the Geological Society of Greece, Harokopio University of Athens, Athens Greece, 22-24 May.
- Zegkinoglou, N., Kilias, S.P., Keith, M., Smith, D.J., Nomikou, P. and P.N. Polymenakou. 2019. LA--ICP--MS evidence for decoupled geochemical behavior of Tl, As and Au in modern SMS, Kolumbo arc--volcano (Santorini), Greece. GOLDSCHMIDT 2019, Barcelona Spain, 18-23 August (accepted as poster presentation).

- Asimaki A., Psofakis P., Ekonomou G., Mente E., Rumbos C.I., Athanassiou C.G., Fountoulaki E., Henry M., Karapanagiotidis I.T., 2020. Evaluation of Zophobas morio larvae meal as fishmeal replacer for gilthead seabream diet. IFW 2020 Insects to Feed the World conference 23rd -26th of November 2020, Quebec, Canada. Journal of Insects as Food and Feed 6 Suppl. 1, p. S24.
- Asimaki A., Psofakis P., Neofytou M.C., Mente E., Rumbos C.I., Athanassiou C.G., Fountoulaki E., Henry M., Karapanagiotidis I.T., 2020. Effects of fishmeal replacement by defatted Zophobas morio larvae meal on growth and feed efficiency of gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*). Proceedings of the EAS2020 online, April 12-15th 2020, online, pp38-39.
- Bauer Le Moine, S., Goulaouic, S., Møller, T.E., Barreyre, T., Escartín, J., Puzenat, V., Martelat, J.-E., Grandjean, P., G., Allemand, P., Schouw, A., Vlasopoulos, O.,



Nomikou, P., Polymenakou, P., Antoniou, V., Mandalakis, M., Coskun, Ö., Orsi, W., Vallicrosa, G., Garcia, R., Magí, L., Gracias, N. and S.L. Steffen Leth Jørgensen. 2020. Physics, chemistry, and microbiology of a seafloor geometrical hydrothermal pattern off Milos (Greece). Marine Microbes GRC, 28-29 May.

Beja J, Vandepitte L, Gerovasileiou V, Herman P, Lear D, Vanhoorne B 2020. How can EMODnet Biology be used for marine biodiversity studies. Book of Abstracts of the First Italian Conference on Marine Evolution (EVOLMAR 2020), p. 20.

Christina Pavloudi, Haris Zafeiropoulos 2020. Deciphering the functional potential of a hypersaline swamp microbial mat community. ISME #UnityInDiversity Virtual Microbial Ecology Summit

- Exter K, Decruw C, Portier M, Gerovasileiou V, Pavloudi C, Obst M 2020. Genomics Observatory Use-Case: The challenge to standardise image and sequence data to Darwin Core format. Biodiversity Information Science and Standards, 4: e58938.
- Georgia Sarafidou, Georgios Chatzigeorgiou, Eva Chatzinikolaou, Christina Pavloudi 2020. Population genetics of Pinna nobilis using eDNA (non-invasive sampling technique). 5th World Conference on Marine Biodiversity (WCMB)
- Katerina Vasileiadou, Dimitrios Loukovitis, Victoria Litsi Mizan, Eugenia Apostolaki, Dinos Protopapas, Christina Pavloudi 2020. Population structuring of Posidonia oceanica from Eastern Mediterranean. 5th World Conference on Marine Biodiversity (WCMB)
- Krick, M., Desmarais, E., Samaras, A., Gueter, E., Dimitroglou, A., Pavlidis, M., Tsigenopoulos, C., Guinand, B. 2020. Epigenomics of the stress response in sea bass. Epigenetics in Marine Biology Congress (1st EPIMAR).
- Mandalakis M, Dailianis T, 2020. Integrating marine sponges in fish aquaculture systems for better seawater quality and marine products of high added-value: The SPINAQUA project. 1st Ocean4Biotech Conference, 5-6 February 2020, Piran, Slovenia.
- Puzenat, V., Escartín, J., Martelat, J.-E., Barreyre, T., Bauer Le Moine, S., Gracias, N., Nomikou, P., Grandjean, P., Schouw, A., Polymenakou, P., and P. Allemand. 2020. Shallow water hydrothermal systems: Constraints on distribution, nature, and heat fluxes from Milos (Greece). AGU Fall Meeting, online everywhere, 1-17 December.
- Puzenat, V., Martelat, J.-E., Escartín, J., Barreyre, T., Gracias, N., Vallicrosa, G., Garcia, R., Magí, L., Nomikou, P., Grandjean, P., Allemand, P., Schouw, A., Bauer Le Moine, S., Steffen Leth Jørgensen, S.L., Antoniou, V., Vlasopoulos, O., Polymenakou, P., Mandalakis, M., Coskun, Ö. and W. Orsi. 2020. Integrated regional scale view of Milos submarine hydrothermalism. EGU General Assembly, 4-8 May, online.

- Asimaki, A., Dellopoulos, A., Fillippakis, N., Karaiskou, M., Ntalakas, I., Psofakis, P., Rumbos, C.I., Athanassiou, C.G., Fountoulaki, E., Henry, M., Karapanagiotidis, I.T., 2021. The effect of fishmeal replacement by Zophobas morio larvae meal on proximate composition of Gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*). HydroMedit 2021, Proceedings of the 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment, 4-6 November, Virtual.
- Asimaki, A., Katouni, A., Psofakis, P., Mente, E., Berillis, P., Rumbos, C.I., Athanassiou, C.G., Henry, M., Fountoulaki, E., Karapanagiotidis, I.T., 2021. The effect of fishmeal replacement by Zophobas morio larvae meal on liver and intestinal histology of Gilthead seabream (*Sparus aurata*). HydroMedit 2021, Proceedings of



the 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment, 4-6 November, Virtual.

- Aslam M. L., S. Vela-Avitùa, V. Bakopoulos, K. Papanna, L. Kottaras, A. Dimitroglou, L. Papaharisis, C. Tsigenopoulos, I. Thorland Marker assisted selection for resistance against viral nervous necrosis in european seabass *Dicentrarchus labrax* (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2021, October 4-7, Madeira, Portugal
- Bakran-Petricioli T, Petricioli D, Gerovasileiou V, Dailianis T, Zurub D, Dragičević B, Dulčić J, 2021. Will the lionfish (Pterois miles) conquer the Adriatic Sea? 4th Croatian Symposium on Invasive Species, November 29-30, Zagreb, Croatia.
- Beja J, Vandepitte L, Gerovasileiou V, Lear D, Herman P, Vanhoorne B, Webb T 2021. A decade of EMODnet Biology- what the future entails. Book of Abstracts of the EMODnet Open Conference 2021. p. 2.
- Beja J, Vandepitte L, Perez Perez R, Poffyn G, Lear D, Gerovasileiou V, Herman P, Vanhoorne B, Tyberghein L 2021. 10 years of EMODnet Biology: past, present & future. Book of Abstracts of the Conference on Marine Data and Information Systems 2021, p. 89-90.
- Cai LL, Savva I, Kleitou P, Alexandrou S, Koutsoubas D, Sini M, Trygonis V, Gerovasileiou V, Ioannou Y, Nicolaou H, Markou M, Kletou D 2021. First inventory of sea caves around Cyprus. Proceedings of the 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment.
- Chatzinikolaou E, Grigoriou P, Keklikoglou K, Sterioti A, Arvanitidis 2021. Impact of ocean acidification on different life traits of the gastropod *Hexaplex trunculus*.
 ECSA 58 EMECS 13 Estuaries and coastal seas in the Anthropocene Structure, functions, services and management. Virtual. 6-9 September 2021. Oral Presentation.
- Chatzivasileiou, D., Sterioti, A., Kentouri, M., 2021. Preliminary results of the feeding behavior of the Holothuria polii: remaining time in the sandy substrate and availability of the organic matter. (E-Poster presentation). 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology (HydromediT 2021), 4–6 November, Virtual.
- Christina Pavloudi, Eleni Ioanna Yperifanou, Jon Bent Kristoffersen, Thanos Dailianis, Vasilis Gerovasileiou 2021. Artificial Reef Monitoring Structures (ARMS) providing insights on hard substrate biodiversity and community structure of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. 1st DNAQUA International Conference, doi: 10.3897/aca.4.e64760
- Cotou, E., Halabalaki, M., Henry, M., Vasilaki, A., Politakis, N., Kotsiri, M., Fountoulaki, E. and I. Nengas 2021. Heat-treated soybean meal: effects on dietary isoflavone genistein content and *Sparus aurata* juvenile growth indexes, immune, antioxidant, lipogenic & digestive systems. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Funchal, Madeira.
- D Kogiannou, M. Kotsiri, K. Grigorakis. A method to assess gaping in sparidae species fillets. European Aquaculture Society, 4-7 October 2021 Funchal, Madeira
- D. G. Georgopoulou, O. Stavrakidis-Zachou, N. Mitrizakis, N. Papandroulakis, 2021. How does tag implantation affect the behavior of European seabass Dicentrarchus labrax? EAS 2021 Pp 487-488
- D. G. Georgopoulou, O. Stavrakidis-Zachou, N. Mitrizakis, V. Chalkiadakis, N. Papandroulakis, 2021 tracking and analysis of the movement behavior of European seabass in recirculating aquaculture systems (RAS). EAS 2020 Pp 242-243
- D. Voskakis, A. Makris, N. Papandroulakis, 2021. Deep learning-based fish length estimation. An application for the Mediterranean aquaculture. IEEE Oceanic Engineering Society, San Diego Sept 20-21, 2021



- Dailianis T, 2021. The Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete, a multi-use experimental platform in the Eastern Mediterranean. CMBR Web Conference - Blue Growth in the Eastern Mediterranean: challenges and opportunities. May 12-13, 2021, Heraklion Crete, Greece (virtual conference).
- Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, Chatzigeorgiou G, Chertz-Bynichaki M, Procopiou A, Vernadou E, Sedano F, Plaitis W, Dounas C, 2021. Comparison of benthic assemblages colonizing artificial reefs over a 4-year time span. 6th European Conference on Scientific Diving, 21-22 April 2021, Bergakademie Freiberg, Germany.
- Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, Chatzigeorgiou G, Vernadou E, Glampedakis I, Arvanitidis C, Protopappas K, Piligotsi G, Kargiolaki H, 2021. An extended baseline survey of cave habitats within a marine protected area in the Aegean Sea. 6th European Conference on Scientific Diving, 21-22 April 2021, Bergakademie Freiberg, Germany.
- Digenis M, Gerovasileiou V, Dailianis T, Arvanitidis C, 2021. Baseline biodiversity survey in marine caves of a Protected Area in the South-Eastern Aegean Sea. 6th European Conference on Scientific Diving, 21-22 April 2021, Bergakademie Freiberg, Germany.
- Digenis M, Ragkousis M, Katsanevakis S, Gerovasileiou V 2021. Alien and rarely reported mobile species in marine caves of the Aegean Sea, Greece. Proceedings of the 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment.
- Digenis M, Ragkousis M, Katsanevakis S, Gerovasileiou V 2021. Alien fish in marine caves of the Aegean Sea, Greece. 6th European Conference on Scientific Diving.
- Doxa, C.K., Sfakianakis, D.G., Sterioti, A., Kentouri, M., 2021. Effect of temperature on the development of deformities at the embryonic stages of the protected marine gastropod *Charonia seguenzae* (Aradas & Benoit, 1870). (E-Poster presentation). Aquaculture Europe 20 (AE 2020). 12-15 April, Virtual.
- Exter, K.; Decruw, C.; Kotoulas, G.; Mavraki, D.; Obst, M.; Pavloudi, C.; Portier, M.; Tyberghein, L. 2021. FAIR data management for Genomics Observatories, in: Fichaut, M. et al. IMDIS 2021 International Conference on Marine Data and Information Systems 12-14 April, 2021 Online: Book of Abstracts. Bollettino di Geofisica Teorica ed Applicata: An International Journal of Earth Sciences, 62(Suppl. 1): pp. 269-270
- Figueiredo-Silva A.C. Chatzifotis S. 2021. Metal-amino acid complexes are a costeffective strategy to help reducing fish meal in European seabass diets. Aquaculture Europe, poster presentation
- G. Rigos, D. Kogiannou, C. Nikoloudaki, P. Katharios, A. Triga and G. Pyrenis Pharmacokinetics and in vitro efficacy of florfenicol in European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). European Aquaculture Society, 4-7 October 2021 Funchal, Madeira
- Gasco L., Lock E.-J., Chatzifotis S., Jansman A., Schiavone A. and Veldkamp T. 2021.
 Insects in animal feed': structure, aims and preliminary results of digestibility trials.
 72ND ANNUAL MEETING OF THE EUROPEAN FEDERATION OF ANIMAL
 SCIENCE, EAAP 30 August-3 September. Davos, Switzerland
- Gerovasileiou, V.; Nikolopoulou, S.; Mavraki, D.; Arvanitidis, C.; Vandepitte, L.; Poffyn, G.; Beja, J.; Perez Perez, R.; Boicenco, L.; Lipizer, M.; Eliezer, M. 2021. Mobilizing historical marine data within EMODnet Biology, in: Fichaut, M. et al. IMDIS 2021 International Conference on Marine Data and Information Systems 12-14 April,



2021 Online: Book of Abstracts. Bollettino di Geofisica Teorica ed Applicata: an International Journal of Earth Sciences, 62(Suppl. 1): pp. 74-75.

- Kaitetzidou, E., Katsiadaki, I., Lagnel, J., Antonopoulou, E. and Sarropoulou, E. 2021. Exploring early development of a model and an economically important species through miRNA's expression. Virtual International Symposium on Genomics in Aquaculture (GIA) 2020/1, 5-7 May.
- Karapanagiotidis. 2021. Dietary full fat and defatted zophobas morio larvae meal modulates both haematological and immunological status of gilthead seabream Sparus aurata. Aquaculture Europe 2021
- Kogiannou D., Kotsiri M., Grigorakis K., 2021 A method to assess gaping in sparidae species fillets. EAS 2021, Madeira, P, 3-7 Oct 2021, Book of Abstracts 643-644.
- Kotsiri M. Kogiannou D., Gogou E., Grigorakis K. Various modified atmosphere packaging (map) conditions effects on chemical shelf-life of european sea bass. European Aquaculture Society, 4-7 October 2021 Funchal, Madeira
- Kotsiri, M., Pliameri, I., Georgiadou, M., Dedos, S., Grigorakis, K. and T. Tsironi. 2021. Edible silk for packaging of high added-value seafood products. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Funchal, Madeira.
- Koulouri P., Giannoulaki M., Machias A., Dounas C., 2021. Measures for the protection and sustainable exploitation of marine biological resources in an oligotrophic fishing ground of the eastern Mediterranean Sea (Crete Island). In: Recent Advances in Environmental Science from the Euro-Mediterranean and Surrounding Regions (2nd Edition), Ksibi M., Ghorbal A., Chakraborty S., Chaminé H.I., Barbieri M., Guerriero G., Hentati O., Negm A., Lehmann A., Römbke J., Duarte A., Xoplaki E., Khélifi N., Colinet G., Miguel Dias J., Gargouri I., Van Hullebusch E.D., Sánchez Cabrero B., Ferlisi S., Tizaoui C., Kallel A., Rtimi S., Panda S., Michaud P., Sahu J.N., Seffen M., Naddeo V. (Eds), Proceedings of 2nd Euro-Mediterranean Conference for Environmental Integration (EMCEI-2), 10-13 October 2019, Sousse, Tunisia, Springer.
- Lydia Katsika, Ioannis Papadakis, Panagiota Tsoukali, Stavros Chatzifotis. Effect of different dissolved oxygen concentrations on digestibility and gastric evacuation rates of European Sea Bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) and gilthead Seabream (Sparus aurata). AQUACULTURE EUROPE 2021 conference in Madeira (Portugal). 4-7 October 2021.
- Magneville C, Leréec Le Bricquir ML, Dailianis T, Skouradakis G, Villéger S, 2021. Tropical exotic fish are key herbivores in the Mediterranean Sea. ICRS 2021 - 14th International Coral Reef Symposium, 19-23 July 2021, Bremen, Germany.
- Makridis, P., A. Grimpampi, E. Kakaridi, I.E. Papadakis, and A. Bergheim. Oxygenation of sea cages and monitoring of oxygen fluctuations in two fish farms in Greece. AQUACULTURE EUROPE 2021 conference in Madeira (Portugal). 4-7 October 2021.
- Maria Papadaki, Elisavet Kaitetzdiou, Ioannis Papadakis, Dimitris Sfakianakis, Constantinos C. Mylonas, Elena Sarropoulou. Insights from high throughput noncoding RNA sequencing during European sea bass development reared at different temperatures. AQUACULTURE EUROPE 2021 conference in Madeira (Portugal). 4-7 October 2021.
- Mastoraki M., Chatzifotis S., Antonopoulou E. 2021. Can dietary insect meal affect fish colour and body shape? HydroMediT 4-6 November; Virtual.
- Morgane Henry A. Asimaki, P. Psofakis, E. Golomazou, E. Fountoulaki, E. Mente, I.T. International Conference & Exposition October 4 7, 2021 Funchal, Madeira.



- Oikonomou S., A. Samaras, M. Tekeoglou, D. Loukovitis, A. Dimitroglou, L. Kottaras, K. Papanna, L. Papaharisis, C. S. Tsigenopoulos, M. Pavlidis, D. Chatziplis Genomic selection for stress response and body weigth in European seabass (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2021, October 4-7, Madeira, Portugal
- Oikonomou S., M. Papapetrou, Z. Kazlari, K. Papanna, L. Papaharisis, T. Manousaki, D. Loukovitis, L. Kottaras, A. Dimitroglou, E. Gourzioti, C. Pagonis, A. Kostandis, C. S. Tsigenopoulos, D. Chatziplis A genome wide association (GWAS) analysis for parasite resistance in european sea bass *Dicentrarhus labrax*, Aquaculture Europe 2021, October 4-7, Madeira, Portugal
- Pafilis, E. et al., PREGO (Process, Environment, Organism), Mining Literature and -omics (Meta)data to Associate Microorganisms, Biological Processes, and Environment Types, 2021, World Microbe Forum
- Panteli N., Mastoraki M., Chatzifotis S., Antonopoulou E. 2021. Insect meal diets modulate hsp expression and mapk activation of european sea bass (Dicentrarchus labrax) and gilthead sea bream (*Sparus aurata*). HydroMediT 4-6 November; Virtual.
- Papadakis, I., Lydia Katsika, Panagiota Tsoukali, Athanasios Samaras, Stavros Chatzifotis. Effect of different dissolved oxygen levels on growth performance for European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*). AQUACULTURE EUROPE 2021 conference in Madeira (Portugal). 4-7 October 2021.
- Papadakis, I., Maria Papadaki, Eirini Sigelaki, Chiara Vecchiatini, Nikolaos Mitrizakis, Constantinos C. Mylonas. The development of the eye in sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) reared at three different temperatures. AQUACULTURE EUROPE 2021 conference in Madeira (Portugal). 4-7 October 2021.
- Pappou, S., Metai, S., Papadaki, S., Mandalakis, E., Vassilatou, V., Krokida M., 2021. Bioactive compounds derived from marine alien species in the Mediterranean for cosmeceutical applications. 26th IFSCC Conference (International Federation of Societies of Cosmetic Chemists), 25-27 October, Cancun, Mexico.
- Paragkamian S, Sarafidou G, Mavraki D, Beja J, Arvanitidis C, Pafilis E, Gerovasileiou V 2021. DECO - bioDivErsity data Curation wOrkflow. Book of Abstracts of the EMODnet Open Conference 2021. p. 15.
- Pavloudi C, Yperifanou EI, Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, 2021. Artificial Reef Monitoring Structures (ARMS) providing insights on hard substrate biodiversity and community structure of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. DNAqua Conference
- Pavloudi C, Yperifanou EI, Kristoffersen JB, Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V 2021. Artificial Reef Monitoring Structures (ARMS) providing insights on hard substrate biodiversity and community structure of the Eastern Mediterranean Sea. ARPHA Conference Abstracts 4: e64760.
- Pieri G, Ntoumas M, Martinelli M, Chatzinikolaou E, Martins F, Novellino A, Dimitrova N, Keller K, King A, Smerdon A, Mazza M, Malardé D, Cocco M, Torres A, Triantafyllou G, Sá S, João Bebianno M, Sparnocchia S, Kristiansen T, Lusher A. 2021. "New technology improves our understanding of changes in the marine environment Nautilos project". EMODnet Open Conference. Virtual. 14-16 June 2021. Poster presentation.
- Pieri G, Ntoumas M, Martinelli M, Chatzinikolaou E, Martins F, Novellino A, Dimitrova N, Keller K, King A, Smerdon A, Mazza M, Malardé D, Cocco M, Torres A, Triantafyllou G, Sá S, João Bebianno M, Sparnocchia S, Kristiansen T, Lusher A. 2021. "New technology improves our understanding of changes in the marine environment Nautilos project". 9th EuroGOOS Conference. Virtual. 3-5 May 2021. Oral Presentation.



- Polymenakou P.N. 2021. Too wild for the lab: the use of metagenomics to uncover the secrets of Santorini Volcano Complex. Invited Talk, 9th International Conference of Mikrobiokomos, December 16/18, 2021, Athens, Greece
- Ramos-Júdez S., T. Manousaki, T. Danis, N. Angelova, A. Tsakogiannis, I. Giménez, N. J. Duncan, C. Tsigenopoulos Transcriptome analysis of *Mugil cephalus* ovarian development induced by recombinant gonadotropins (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2021, October 4-7, Madeira, Portugal
- Rigos, G., D. Kogiannou, C. Nikoloudaki, P. Katharios, A. Triga and G. Pyrenis 2021. Pharmacokinetics and in vitro efficacy of florfenicol in European seabass (Dicentrarchus labrax). European Aquaculture Society, Funchal, Madeira, Oceans of Opportunity, Oct 4-7 2021.
- Sarafidou G, Chatzigeorgiou G, Chatzinikolaou E, Pavloudi C. 2021. Population genetics of Pinna nobilis using eDNA (non-invasive sampling technique). 5th World Conference Marine Biodiversity. Auckland (virtual). 13-16 December 2021.
- Sarropoulou E., Lessons learnt from high-throughput small RNASeq of Teleost development and Reproduction. Invited talk, University Barcelona, 2021
- Sarropoulou X., Tsaparis D., Tsagarakis K., Badouvas N., Tsigenopoulos C. S. Comparative phylogeographic analysis of four mesopelagic fishes reveals different patterns of connectivity between the Greek Seas (poster), The 6th International Marine Connectivity Conference (iMarCo), December 6-8 2021, Paris, France
- Sarropoulou X., Tsaparis D., Tsagarakis K., Badouvas N., Tsigenopoulos C. S. Genetic diversity patterns of mesopelagic fish in the Greek seas (poster), 4th International Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment (HydroMediT 2021 Virtual), November 4-6 2021, Greece
- Saura M., A. Fernández, J. Fernández, R. Peiro-Pastor, C. Peñaloza, L. Bargelloni, C. S Tsigenopoulos, B. Villanueva Population structure and genetic variability based on genomic information in gilthead seabream and European seabass populations, Aquaculture Europe 2021, October 4-7, Madeira, Portugal
- Saura M., A. Fernández, J. Fernández, R. Peiro-Pastor, C. Peñaloza2 L. Bargelloni, T. Manousaki, CS Tsigenopoulos and B. Villanueva An application of the MedFish SNP array: Determining population structure and genetic variability of gilthead seabream (Sparus aurata) and European seabass (Dicentrarchus labrax) (oral), 38th International Society for Animal Genetics Virtual Conference 2021., July 26-30 2021
- Siaperas R, Topakas E, Kotoulas G, Gioti A. 2021. Genomic features of a marine-derived fungus. Hellenic Bioinformatic HBio Bridge Event, June 2-5, 2021. (selected for oral talk by R. Siaperas)
- Smith C, Morato T, Bilan M, Carreiro-Silva M, Papadopoulou N, Sweetman A, Jones D, Matabos M, Gambi C, Colaço A, Gori A, Linares C, Sarrazin J, Billett D, Ramirez-Llodra E, Cuvelier D, Sevastou K, Grehan A, Martins I, Carugati L, Montseny M, Amaro T, Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, Danovaro R 2021. Principles and key concepts for ecological restoration in the deep-sea. Book of Abstracts of the 16th Deep Sea Biology Symposium, p. 11.
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., K. Lika, M. Pavlidis, M. H. Assad and N. Papandroulakis, 2021. Thermal tolerance and biological performance of European seabass *Dicentrarchus labrax* reared under high temperatures EAS 2020 Pp 551-552
- Stavrakidis-Zachou, O., N. Papandroulakis, M. Pavlidis, K. Lika, 2021. Preliminary Dynamic Energy Budget models for studying the thermal tolerance of E. seabass and meagre. EAS 2021 Pp 1244-1245



- Superio J., I. Fakriadis, C. S. Tsigenopoulos, S. A. Lancerotto, A. Villena Rodriguez, E. Vervelakis, C. C. Mylonas 2021 Spawning kinetics and parentage contribution of European sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) broodstocks and influence of GnRHa-induced spawning. (poster), Aquaculture Europe 2020, April 12-15 2021 (Virtual) Session Chair
- Tampou, A., S. Andreopoulou, I., Nengas, A. Vasilaki, I.T. Karapanagiotidis, E. Mente, 2021.GROWTH Performance of gilthead seabream (sparus aurata) fed low fishmeal organic diets. Aquaculture Europe 2021, European Aquaculture Society. Madeira, Portugal, October 4-8, 2021.
- Theologi, O. et al., A chemical Named Entity Recognition and Association Rule Mining approach to facilitate the study of metabolic processes in hyperthermophilic microorganisms. 2021, Mikrobiokosmos2021
- Tsigenopoulos C., R. Cannas, L. Zane, I. Marino, A. Cariani, F. Maroso, T. Manousaki, D. Tsaparis, R. Franch, S. Iori, L. Bargelloni, R. Melis, L. Carugati, R. Corti, A. Ferrari, F. Piattoni, E. Piazza, F. Tinti, V. Terzoglou, K. Ekonomaki, A. Tsakogiannis, & M. T. Spedicato Population Genetics and Phylogeographic Studies for the Identification of Biological Units for two fish and four crustacean species in the Mediterranean Sea: the MED_UNITs project (oral), The 6th International Marine Connectivity Conference (iMarCo), December 6-8 2021, Paris, France
- Tsigenopoulos C., V. Papadogiannis, T. Manousaki, J. Kristoffersen, A. Tsakogiannis, O. Nousias, C. C. Mylonas, D. Chatziplis, C. Batargias. The first complete genome assembly for the meagre Argyrosomus regius, Aquaculture Europe 2021, October 4-7, Madeira, Portugal
- Tsopanakis, V., Oikonomou, M.V., Polymenakou, P., Magoulas, A. and I.V. Pavlidis. 2021. Identification of novel polysaccharide-degrading enzymes from metagenomic libraries of extreme environments. BioTrans, Graz, Austria Online, 19-22 July.
- Vasilaki, A., G. Rigos, C. Nikoloudaki, G. Pyrenis, S. Adamidou, I. Nengas. 2021. EVALUATION OF SEMI-Moist feed in growth performance and feed utilization of juvenile greater amberjack, Seriola dumerilli (Risso,1810). Validation in large scale experiment. Aquaculture Europe 2021, European Aquaculture Society. Madeira, Portugal, October 4-8, 2021.
- Vasilaki, A., G. Rigos, C. Nikoloudaki, G. Pyrenis, D. Kogiannou, S. Adamidou, I. Nengas 2021. Evaluation of semi-moist feed in growth performance and feed utilization of juvenile greater amberjack, Seriola dumerili (Risso,1810). validation in large scale experiment European Aquaculture Society, 4-7 October 2021 Funchal, Madeira
- Vasileiadou K., Loukovitis D., Litsi Mizan V., Apostolaki E., Protopapas D., Pavloudi C. Population structuring of Posidonia oceanica from Eastern Mediterranean, (WCMB2020), December 2020, Auckland, New Zealand, Poster
- Vernadou E, Gerovasileiou V, Glampedakis I, Mandalakis E, Voultsiadou E, Dailianis T, 2021. Contrasting sponge assemblages between distinct coastal locations in Crete Island, Aegean Sea. 6th European Conference on Scientific Diving, 21-22 April 2021, Bergakademie Freiberg, Germany.
- Zacheilas T., N. Papandroulakis, K. Moirogiorgou, M. Zervakis, E. Sotiriades, A. Dollas, 2021. An FPGA-Based System for Video Processing to Detect Holes in Aquaculture Nets, BIBE 2021: 1-6
- Zafeiropoulos, H. et al., Mining literature and -omics (meta)data to associate microorganisms, biological processes, and environment types, 2020, FEMS Online Conference on Microbiology





Zafeiropoulos, H. et al., Bacteria are everywhere, even in your COI marker gene data! 2021, First DNAQUA International Conference

Zafeiropoulos, H. et al., PEMA v2: addressing metabarcoding bioinformatics analysis challenges, 2021, First DNAQUA International Conference





Other Conferences

- Arvanitidis A, Bourtzis T, Chatzigianni E, Boyes SJ, Elliott M, Chatzinikolaou E 2018. The European and Greek existing framework for marine environmental protection and the challenges in its application. NATURA 2000 areas: Protection and sustainable development. Chania, Greece. 10-12 May 2018.
- Arvanitidis C, Chatzinikolaou E, Gerovasileiou V, Panteri E, Bailly N, Minadakis N, Hardisty A, Los W, Aravanopoulos F, Antaloudaki E, Avramidou E, Bekiari C, Bourtzis T, Damianidis P, Dimitrakopoulos P, Dimitriou P, Doerr M, Evangelopoulos T, Fanini L, Faulwetter S, Filiopoulou I, Galanidis A, Georgiadis C, Giannoulis T, Gougousis A, Karakassis I, Keklikoglou K, Kevrekidis T, Kotoulas G, Koutsoubas D, Lagnel J, Legaki A, Legakis A, Lyberakis P, Lykidis D, Magoulas A, Mamouris Z, Mavraki D, Michalakis N, Mylona Z, Nikolaidou A, Nikolopoulou M, Oulas A, Ouzounis C, Pafilis E, Papastefanou G, Paranou-Lioliou G, Patkos T, Pattakos N, Pavloudi C, Perantinos G, Potiris M, Reizopoulou S, Skouras Z, Stoumpoudi M, Tsaltas G, Tsiamis G, Tsikopoulou E, Tsompanou M, Valavanis V, Varsos C, Vasileiadou K 2018 LIFEWATCHGREECE Research Infrastructure. Key note Speech in the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries.
- Arvanitidis C, Warwick R M, Somerfield P J, Pavloudi C, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos T, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Michalakis N, Filiopoulou I, Panteri E, Gougousis A. 2018. Research Infrastructures and their collaborative potential to address scientific questions at global scale. 9th Panhellenic Ecology Conference (HELECOS-9), Heraklion, Crete, Greece. 4-7 October 2018 (presentation).
- Arvanitidis C, Warwick RM, Somerfield P, Pavloudi C, Pafilis E, Oulas A, Chatzigeorgiou G, Gerovasileiou V, Patkos T, Bailly N, Hernandez F, Vanhoorne B, Vandepitte L, Appeltans W, Keklikoglou K, Chatzinikolaou E, Michalakis N, Filiopoulou I, Panteri E, Gougousis A, Bravakos P, Christakis C, Kasapidis P, Kotoulas G, Magoulas A 2018 Research Infrastructures and their collaborative potential in addressing challenging scientific questions at global scale. Book of Abstracts of the Hellenic Bioinformatics Conference 2018 "H. Bioinfo 11", p. 62.
- Chatzinikolaou E, Damianidis P, Dailianis T, Gambineri S, Rossano C, Scapini F, Carucci A, Arvanitidis C, 2018. Benthic biodiversity in Mediterranean touristic ports.
 Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean", 31 May to 3 June 2018, Corfu, Greece: 51.
- Chatzinikolaou E, Grigoriou P, Martini E, Sterioti A. 2018. Impact of ocean acidification and warming on the feeding behavior of Hexaplex trunculus. 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, Corfu, Greece. 30 May - 3 June 2018 (poster).
- Chatzinikolaou E. 2018. Climathon Heraklion is facing the challenges of climate change. Invited speaker as expert-mentor. Heraklion, Crete. 26th October 2018.
- Chatzinikolaou E. 2018. WP4: Enriching management toolbox with ecosystem connectivity-based instruments. 1st Interim Meeting RECONNECT Project, Larnaca Cyprus. 12-14 June 2018 (presentation).



- Christina Pavloudi, Georgia Sarafidou, Eugenia T Apostolaki, Georgios Chatzigeorgiou, Evangelia Chatzinikolaou, Kleoniki Keklikoglou, Christos Arvanitidis 2018 Population connectivity of key-species in the Marine Protected Area (MPA) of Karpathos (Greece). 4th International Marine Connectivity (iMarCo) Conference, Heraklion (Greece)
- Christina Pavloudi, Katerina Vasileiadou, Mercedes González-Wangüemert, Christos Arvanitidis, Evangelia Chatzinikolaou 2018 Comparison of sediment microbial communities between Western (Ria Formosa, Portugal) and Eastern European lagoons (Amvrakikos Gulf, Greece). 8th European Coastal Lagoons (EuroLag) Symposium, Athens (Greece)
- Dimitriou P, Chatzinikolaou E, Polimerakis D, Damianidis P, Arvanitidis C. 2018. The ecological status of the Mediterranean Ports: Are they as impacted as expected? 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, Corfu, Greece. 30 May - 3 June 2018 (presentation).
- Fanini L., Tsouchnika A., Taiti S., Chatzaki M., Mazza G., Koulouri P., Lowry J., 2018. Substrate-related communities: a study on discriminating scale and traits of resident fauna. International Sandy Beaches Symposium, 25-29 May 2018, Crete, Greece.
- Faulwetter S., Papageorgiou N., Koulouri P., Fanini L., Chatzinikolaou E., Markantonatou V., Pavloudi C., Chatzigeorgiou G., Keklikoglou K., Vasileiadou K., Basset A., Pinna M., Rosati I., Reizopoulou S., Nicolaidou A., Arvanitidis C., 2018. Response of community and trait patterns to simulated species loss in coastal lagoons. 8th European Coastal Lagoons Symposium, 20-23 Mar. 2018, Athens, Greece.
- Florido M, Świacka K, Sedano F, Rallis I, Plaitis W, Dailianis T, Dounas C, Gerovasileiou V, Chatzigeorgiou G, 2018. Macrofaunal assemblages on artificial reefs deployed in the Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete: preliminary results. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean", 31 May to 3 June 2018, Corfu, Greece: 170.
- Fountoulaki E, Cotou E, Henry M, Grigorakis K, Kogiannou D, Kotsiri M, Vassilaki A, Nikoloudaki Ch, Pyrenis G, Sweetman J, Nengas I. 2018. Benefits of organic minerals vs inorganic on growth, health and product quality of the European sea bass Dicentrarchus labrax (Linnaeus, 1758). 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, Ionian University, Corfu, May 30- June 3, 2018 «Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean».
- Gerovasileiou V, Stamouli C, Kiparissis S, Jimenez C, Mytilineou Ch, Lefkaditou E, Thasitis I, Kavadas S, Smith CJ, M Otero 2018 Vulnerable deep-sea megabenthos in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea: benefits of photographic documentation in experimental fishing surveys. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, p. 47.
- Giulia Realdon G., Cheimonopoulou M., Koulouri P., Mokos M., Mogias A., Boubonari T., Kevrekidis T., Previati M., Santoro F., Gazo M., 2018. EMSEA Med: birth and development of an initiative aimed at fostering Mediterranean Sea Literacy. European Geosciences Union General Assembly 2018, 8-13 April 2018, Vienna, Austria.
- Kakakiou RV, Konstantinou D, Gerovasileiou V, Voultsiadou E, Gkelis S 2018
 Polyphasic characterization of eukaryotic microalgae isolated from marine sponges.
 Book of Abstracts of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, p. 169.
- Karakasi D., Antoniou A., Psonis N., Giokas S., Vardinoyannis K., Mylonas M., Poulakakis N. Phylogenetic relationships of the pulmonate snail Albinaria. 9th



Panhellenic Conference on Ecology HELECOS-9, UoC 4-7 October 2018, Herakleion, Crete, Greece (p.47)

- Katharios P. 2018. Invited speaker at the COLUMBUS PROJECT (EU-Horizon 2020) Industry training Event Organized by Aquark and the Federation of Greek Mariculture. Presentation title: Phage applications is seabass and seabream nurseries. Crowne Plaza Hotel, Athens
- Katharios P. 2018. Invited speaker in Europe-MENA USSEC Conference "Updates on Nutritional Value, Quality Control and Application of Second Generation High-Protein and High-Energy Spy Ingredients. EU Demand Poultry & Livestock -Promoting U.S. SBM, Advantages to Feed Mills. Activity:3: Feed Ingredients Seminar Fermented Soy, USSEC. January 24-25th, 2018, Athens, Greece.
- Katharios P. 2018. Invited speaker at the meeting for Piscirickettssia salmonis organized by the Programa Para La Gestion Sanitaria en La Acuicultura, Sernapesca. Presentation title: Phage therapy in Aquaculture. Prospects and drawbacks, Puerto Montt, Chile
- Kogiannou D, Nikoloudaki Ch, Pyrenis G, Rigos G. "An HPLC-UV method for florfenicol bioavailability assessment after oral administration in european sea bass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*)". 12th Panhellenic Symposium on Oceanography & Fisheries Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean" Corfu, Corfu Island, Greece, 30 May - 3 June 2018 Ionian University, Corfu
- Konstantinou D, Gerovasileiou V, Voultsiadou E, Gkelis S 2018 Diversity of spongescyanobacteria associations: Global overview and new data from the Eastern Mediterranean. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, p. 52.
- Koulouri P, Chatzinikolaou E, Maidanou M, Kober N, Giannoulaki M, Machias A, Dounas C. 2018. Feeding habits of the red mullet in an oligotrophic fishing ground impacted by an invasive seaweed in the Eastern Mediterranean Sea (Crete, S. Aegean Sea). 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, Corfu, Greece. 30 May - 3 June 2018 (poster).
- Kristoffersen JB, Viet QH, Lagnel J, Borutta F, Bridges C, Sarropoulou E 2018. Atlantic Bluefin tuna de novo genome assembly with Illumina and Nanopore sequences.
 Advances in Industrial Aquaculture Genetics, North meets South. EMBRIC WORK PACKAGE 8 Workshop 3rd 4th May 2018 Bergen, Norway.
- Melanthia Stavroulaki. EUROMARINE "APPRISE" Workshop: Anticipating Potential Pathways and Routes for Innovation towards desirable Socio-Economic impacts (focus on macro algae) - "How do we build a competitive, sustainable and responsible European macro algae industry", Station Biologique Roscoff, Brittany, France, 6–7/09/ 2018
- Mylonas, C.C., Fakriadis, I., Papandroulakis, N., Papadaki, M. and I. Sigelaki. 2018. Broodstock management and spawning induction of greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* reared in sea cages in Greece. 11th International Symposium on Reproductive Physiology of Fish, 3-8 June, Manaus, Brazil.
- Panagiotou K, Konstantinou D, Galani A, Gerovasileiou V, Voultsiadou E, Gkelis S 2018 Sponge-associated cyanobacteria in the North Aegean Sea: specialist and generalist communities. Book of Abstracts of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, p. 171.
- Panagiotou K, Koutsouveli V, Galani A, Oikonomaki K, Terzoglou V, Voultsiadou E, Gerovasileiou V, Dailianis T, 2018. Molecular taxonomy of sponges from marine caves of Greece. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography



and Fisheries – "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean", 31 May to 3 June 2018, Corfu, Greece: 178.

- Pavloudi C, Apostolaki E, Argyrou M, Beqiraj S, Berov D, Chatzigeorgiou G, Chatzinikolaou E, Christodoulaki S, Daskalov G, Diplaros P, Filiopoulou I et al. 2018 Balkan-Med Project: Regional Cooperation for the Transnational Ecosystem Sustainable development (RECONNECT). 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, Corfu, Greece. 30 May - 3 June 2018 (presentation).
- Previati M., Cheimonopoulou M., Koulouri P., Realdon G., Mokos M., Mogias A., Boubonari T., Kevrekidis T., 2018. EMSEA Med: a vibrant network for the diffusion of Ocean Literacy in the Mediterranean region. 6th European Marine Science Educators Association Conference 2018, 2-5 Oct. 2018, Newcastle, UK.
- Rallis I, Sedano F, Florido M, Chatzigeorgiou G, Dailianis T, Tsiamis K, Dounas C, Gkelis S, Gerovasileiou V. 2018. Baseline survey of sessile benthos on artificial reefs deployed in the Underwater Biotechnological Park of Crete: preliminary results. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries – "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean", 31 May to 3 June 2018, Corfu, Greece: 168.
- Ramos, S., Gonzalez, W., Karamanlidis, D., França Nogueira, M.C., Milton, E., Mylonas, C.C. and N. Duncan. 2018. Reproductive control of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*) to obtain families for genetic breeding programs. 11th International Symposium on Reproductive Physiology of Fish, 3-8 June, Manaus, Brazil.
- Realdon G., Fabris S., Candussio G., Rossi M.M.P., Cheimonopoulou M., Koulouri P., Previati M., 2018. Ocean Literacy and Blue Growth: an innovative project linking science education and marine economy. 6th European Marine Science Educators Association Conference 2018, 2-5 Oct. 2018, Newcastle, UK.
- Sedano F, Florido M, Rallis I, Espinosa F, Gerovasileiou V 2018 Comparing sessile benthos on shallow artificial versus natural hard substrates in Crete Island, Greece (Eastern Mediterranean Sea). Book of Abstracts of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, p. 167.
- Sevastou K, Papadopoulou N, Smith CJ, Fraschetti S, Guarnieri G, Gerovasileiou V, Dailianis T, 2018. A literature review on the economic cost and benefits of marine restoration. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries – "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean", 31 May to 3 June 2018, Corfu, Greece: 144.
- Smith CJ, Papadopoulou K-N, Dailianis T, Gerovasileiou V, Sevastou K, and the MERCES Consortium, 2018. H2020 Project MERCES: Marine Ecosystem Restoration in Changing European Seas. Proceedings of the 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography and Fisheries – "Blue Growth for the Adriatic-Ionian Macroregion and the Eastern Mediterranean", 31 May to 3 June 2018, Corfu, Greece: 120.
- Sofoulaki K., Kalantzi I., Machias A., Zeri C., Mastoraki M., Chatzifotis S., Mylona K., Pergantis S.A., Tsapakis M. 2018. Marine metal pollution monitoring using anchovy and sardine: bioindicators, health risks and benefits, proximate composition. 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries. Ionian University, Corfu, 30 May – 3 June 2018.
- Vasilaki, A., Rigos, G., Nikoloudaki, C., and I. Nengas. 2018. Benefits of organic minerals vs inorganic on growth, health and product quality of the European sea bass Dicentrarchus labrax (Linnaeus, 1758). 12th Panhellenic Symposium of Oceanography & Fisheries, Ionian University, Corfu, May 30- June 3, 2018.





- Katharios P. 2019. Invited speaker at the Conference of the Hellenic Society for Biological Sciences, Katerini, Greece. Presentation title: Biotechnological application in the prevention and diagnosis of diseases in aquaculture.
- Katharios P. 2019. Invited speaker in "Advances in Value Added Soy Protein Ingredients and Feed Extrusion Technology for Sustainable and Profitable Aqua and Animal Production", USSEC' Technical Conference, September 24 and 25 2019, Intercontinental Hotel, Athens, Greece.
- Bolgan, M., Pereira, B., Crucianelli, A., Vieira, M., Pousão-Ferreira, P., Mylonas, C.C., Parmentier, E., Fonseca, P.J. and Amorim, M.C.P. 2019. Soud variability in a fish species of high commercial value: geographical variation of calls in a passive acoustic monitoring perspective. XI Congress of the Portuguese Ethological Society, 9-10 October, Vairão, Portugal.
- Cheimonopoulou M., Mogias A., Realdon G., Mokos M., Koulouri P., Previati M., Boubonari T., 2019. Mediterranean middle school students' knowledge, attitudes, and behaviors towards ocean-related topics: An EMSEA-Med pilot study. 7th European Marine Science Educators Association Conference 2019, 16-20 Sept. 2019, São Miguel, Azores.
- Cheimonopoulou M., Realdon G., Mogias A., Koulouri P., Mokos M., Previati M., Boubonari T., 2019. Ocean literacy intervention activities: case study from a European Maritime Day (EMD) event in mainland Greece. 7th European Marine Science Educators Association Conference 2019, 16-20 Sept. 2019, São Miguel, Azores.
- Christina Pavloudi, Saar Y Sztejrenszus, Jon B Kristoffersen, Niko Lahajnar, Marleen De Troch, Christos Arvanitidis, Michael W Friedrich 2019 Identification of microbial communities by RNA stable isotope probing and 16S rRNA sequencing from the Benguela coastal upwelling system. 8th Conference of the Hellenic Scientific Society of Mikrobiokosmos, Patras (Greece)
- Christos Arvanitidis, Richard Warwick, Paul J Somerfield, Christina Pavloudi et al 2019 The Collaborative Potential of Research Infrastructures in Addressing Global Scientific Questions. Biodiversity Information Science and Standards (TDWG), doi: 10.3897/biss.3.37289
- de Mello, P., Fakriadis, I. Lanceroto, S., Tsoukali, P., Calloni, L., Kopper, S., Sarracino, R., and Mylonas, C.C. 2019. Influence of thermal manipulations during gametogenesis on reproductive maturation of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*), spawning success, gamete and egg quality. 17th Panhellenic Conference of Ichthyologists, 31/10 3/11, 2019, Heraklion, Crete. pp 297-300.
- de Mello, Paulo H., Fakriadis, I., Tsoukali, P., Lancerotto, S., Calloni, L., Köpper S., Sarracino, R. and Mylonas, C.C. 2019. Influence of thermal manipulations during gametogenesis on reproductive maturation of meagre (*Argyrosomus regius*), spawning success, and gamete and egg quality. 7th International Workshop on the Biology of Fish Gametes, 2-6 September 2019, Rennes, France.
- Fakriadis, I., Karapanagiotis, S., Tsele, N and C.C. Mylonas .2019. Timing of GnRHa treatment application in greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili*, 17th Panhellenic Conference of Icthyologists, 31/10-3/11, 2019, Herakleion, Crete, pp 277-280
- Fakriadis, I., Zanatta, E.M. and C.C. Mylonas. 2019. Enhancement of spermiation in meagre Argyrosomus regius using GnRHa implants and evaluation of sperm quality using Computer Assisted Sperm Analysis (CASA), 17th Panhellenic Conference of Icthyologists, 31/10-3/11, 2019, Herakleion, Crete, pp 281-284.



- Gioti A, Pafilis E, Christakis C, Bravakos P, Keklikoglou K, Polymenakou P, Arvanitidis C, Kotoulas G 2019 The Elixir-GR Marine -omics pilot action and the LifeWatch-GR microCT vLab. Hellenic Bioinformatics 12, Heraklion, Greece. 11-13 October, 2019, Poster.
- K. Lika, O. Stavrakidis-Zachou, N. Papandroulakis, 2019. Impacts of climate-related drivers on finfish aquaculture. Sixth International Symposium on Dynamic Energy Budget theory for metabolic organization, Brest, Pp 105-105
- Karagannidis E, Konstantinidis N, Sofidis G, Chatzinikolaou E, Daskalaki P, Meletidou M, Sianos G. 2019. Quantitative estimation of volume and density of thrombotic material with the use of micro-computed tomography in patients with acute myocardial infarction (STEMI) with ST segment elevation who are subjected to primary percutaneous coronary intervention (PCI) and thromboaspiration. 18th Panhellenic Congress of Cardiology Northern Greece Society of Cardiology, Thessaloniki, Greece. 16-18 May 2019. Awarded with the 2nd prize for best presentation.
- Karagiannidis E., Konstantinidis, N., Sofidis, G., Chatzinikolaou E., Sianos, G. 2019. Analysis of thrombotic material with the use of micro-CT: an innovative method for the quantitative and qualitative evaluation of aspirated intracoronary thrombus. 40th Panhellenic Congress of Cardiology - Hellenic Society of Cardiology, Ioannina, Greece. 17-19 October 2019.
- Keklikoglou K, Faulwetter S, Chatzinikolaou E, Panteri E, Filiopoulou I, & Arvanitidis C 2019 Micro-CT at HCMR: applications and examples. BIOIMAGING-GR workshop, Heraklion, Greece, 29 October 2019, Oral Presentation
- Melanthia Stavroulaki 2019. European Commission Workshop: "Marine genetic resources in areas beyond national jurisdiction: bridging policy, law, science and research and development", Martin's Hotel, Brussels, Belgium, 21-22/05/2019
- Mylonas, C.C., Conidis, A., Sarropoulou, E., Papadaki, M., Papadakis, I., Kotzamanis, I., Chatzifotis, S. and A. Krystallis. 2019. MedAID: Integrated Aquaculture Development (Horizon 2020). 17th Panhellenic Conference of Ichthyologists, 31/10 – 3/11, 2019, Heraklion, Crete.
- Mylonas, C.C., Papandroulakis, N., Katharios, P., Tsigenopoulos, C., Grigorakis, K., Chatzifotis, S. and I. Papadakis 2019. The DIVERSIFY project-Assessing the biological and socioeconomic potential of new/emerging fishes for the expansion of the EU aquaculture. 17th Panhellenic Conference of Ichthyologists, 31/10 – 3/11, 2019, Heraklion, Crete.
- Skarvelis, K., Tsaparis, D., and P. Peristeraki, 2019. First record of the lessepsian fish Parupeneus forsskali (Fourmanoir & Guézé,1976) in the seas around Crete. 17th Panhellenic Congress of Ichthyologists, Heraklion, Greece, 31 October-3 November.
- Spilani L., 2019 Antoniou A., Donihue C., Foufopoulos J., Pafilis P., Herrel A., Poulakakis N. Assessment of the genetic profile of a small introduced population of Erhard's Wall Lizard (Podarcis erhardii) in the islet of Kambana, Paros. 14th ICZEGAR: International Congress on the Zoogeography and Ecology of Greece and Adjacent Regions, 27-30 June, 2019, Thessaloniki, Greece (p.145)
- Vasilaki, A., Rigos, G., Nikoloudaki, C., and I. Nengas. 2019. Comparative study of the effect of different moisture level in feeds on, Seriola dumerilli (Risso,1810). 17th PanHellenic symposium of Ichthiologists. Crete 31st October 3rd November 2019.
- Διγενής Μ, Γεροβασιλείου Β, Χατζηγεωργιου Γ, Νταϊλιάνης Θ, Κανακιδου Μ, Αρβανιτίδης Χ, 2019. Διαβάθμιση βιοποικιλότητας και περιβαλλοντικών παραμέτρων στο Σπήλαιο των Ελεφάντων Κρήτης. Συνέδριο Μεταπτυχιακών φοιτητών Χημείας του Τμήματος Χημείας Π.Κ., 15-17 Μαΐου 2019, Ηράκλειο.



Διγενής Μ, Γεροβασιλείου Β, Χατζηγεωργιου Γ, Νταϊλιάνης Θ, Κανακιδου Μ, Αρβανιτίδης Χ, 2019. Πρότυπα βιοποικιλότητας και οικολογικής διαβάθμισης στο υποθαλάσσια Σπήλαιο των Ελεφάντων Κρήτης. 17ο Πανελλήνιο Συνέδριο Ιχθυολόγων, 31 Οκτωβρίου έως 3 Νοεμβρίου 2019, Ηράκλειο.

2020

- Cheimonopoulou M., Koulouri P., Mogias A., Boubonari T., Kevrekidis T., Dounas C., 2020. Ocean Literacy and Environmental Education. The case of the Mediterranean Sea. 8th Conference of Pan-Hellenic Educators Association for Environmental Education, online 11-13 Sept 2020, Patras, Greece.
- Iordanis Magiopoulos, Christos Chantzaras, Katerina Symiakaki, Eleftheria Antoniou, Christina Pavloudi, Filomena Romano, Giorgos Piperakis, Giulio Zanaroli, Nikolaos Kalogerakis, Paraskevi Pitta 2020 To burn or not to burn? Impact of in-situ oil burning by-products on marine plankton: A mesocosm experimental approach. (European Geosciences Union) EGU2020: Sharing Geoscience Online (#shareEGU20)
- Katharios P. 2020 Invited speaker at the Webinar Series of the European Aquaculture Society. Presentation title: Phage therapy as an alternative treatment in aquaculture. Applications in fish hatcheries
- Katrina Exter, Cedric Decruw, Marc Portier, Vasilis Gerovasileiou, Christina Pavloudi, Matthias Obst 2020 Genomics Observatory Use-Case: The challenge to standardise image and sequence data to Darwin Core format. Biodiversity Information Science and Standards (TDWG), doi: 10.3897/biss.4.58938
- Keklikoglou K, Faulwetter S, Chatzinikolaou E, Panteri E, Filiopoulou I, Michalakis N, Magoulas A & Arvanitidis C 2020 Micro-CT at HCMR and BIOIMAGING virtual lab. BIOIMAGING-GR meeting, Athens, Greece, 10 February 2020, Oral Presentation
- Koulouri P., Podaras D., Plaiti W., Polihronaki Th., Dounas C., 2020. Contribution of marine research centres to the ocean-related knowledge and awareness of students and citizens: HCMR 8th Conference of Pan-Hellenic Educators Association for Environmental Education, online 11-13 Sept. 2020, Patras, Greece.
- Mogias A., Boubonari T., Koulouri P., Cheimonopoulou M., 2020. Evaluating Ocean Literacy of Elementary School Students: A pilot study. 8th Conference of Pan-Hellenic Educators Association for Environmental Education, online 11-13 Sept. 2020, Patras, Greece.
- Γρηγοράκης Κ., Διατροφική Αξία Αλιευμάτων Μεσογείου, 13ο Μακεδονικό Συνέδριο Διατροφής και Διαιτολογίας. Διαδικτυακά., Σεπτ. 2020

- Antoniou A., Stratakis M., Lymberakis P., Poulakakis N. 2021. Taxonomic identity and genetic composition of the Cretan wild goat (Capra aegagrus cretica, Schinz, 1838). HELECOS 10: Ecology and Conservation of Nature: Advance and retreats in an age of crisis, 14-17/10/2021, Online Conference, 10th Hellenic Conference of Ecology, Hellenic Conference of Hellenic Zoological Society, 17th Hellenic Scientific Conference of Hellenic Botanical Society (p.40)
- Corriero, A., Pousis, C., Zupa, R., De Virgilio, C., and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. Oogenesis in wild and reared greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* (Risso, 1810). Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.



- Fakriadis, I., Papadaki, M., and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. Spermiation enhancement of greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* in response to GnRHa implants or hCG. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Haris Zafeiropoulos, Christina Pavloudi, Evangelos Pafilis 2021 PEMA v2: addressing metabarcoding bioinformatics analysis challenges. 1st DNAQUA International Conference, doi: 10.3897/aca.4.e64902
- Haris Zafeiropoulos, Laura Gargan, Christina Pavloudi, Evangelos Pafilis, Jens Carlsson 2021 Bacteria are everywhere, even in your COI data: The art of getting to know the unknown unknowns and shine light on the dark matter! 1st DNAQUA International Conference, doi: 10.3897/aca.4.e64966
- Ioulia Santi, Tron Frede Thingstad, Tatiana Margo Tsagaraki, Shunyan Cheung, Antonia Giannakourou, Panagiotis Kasapidis, Iordanis Magiopoulos, Mr Eftihis Nikiforakis, Andreas Oikonomou, Nafsika Papageorgiou, Christina Pavloudi, Stella Psarra, Katerina Symiakaki, Xiaodong Zhang, Paraskevi Pitta 2021 Competition and coexistance patterns in the microbial plankton of an oligotrophic sea. 2nd International Aquatic Mesocosm Research Symposium – from local processes to cross-domain interactions
- Keklikoglou K., Michalakis N., Chatzinikolaou E., Panteri E., Filiopoulou I., Mavraki D., Vasileiadou K., Pavloudi C., Magoulas A., Arvanitidis C. 2021. Bioimaging virtual lab for biological and biomedical materials. BioImaging Workshop. Virtual. 21 October 2021.
- Koulouri P., Cheimonopoulou M., Realdon G., Previati M., Mokos M., Mogias A., 2021. Bringing the Ocean to the classrooms of the Mediterranean Sea region: Mediterranean Sea Literacy. Making the school an agent of change to deliver a resilient Blue Mediterranean Sea. A virtual workshop of the EU4Ocean coalition event Let's Make the Mediterranean Blue organised by/with contributions from (in alphabetical order): ACTeon, Cienca Viva, European Commission/DG MARE & DG EAC, EMSEA, Foundation for Environmental Education, IOC-UNESCO, JRC, European SchoolNet, UNESCO.
- Koulouri P., Cheimonopoulou M., Realdon G., Previati M., Mokos M., Mogias A., 2021. Localizing Ocean Literacy: The case of the Mediterranean Sea. Ocean Decade Lab/Satellite Activity, United Nations Decade of Ocean Science for Sustainable Development, online 8 July 2021.
- Koulouri P., Mogias A., Cheimonopoulou M., Realdon G., Mokos M., Previati M., 2021. Design, development and implementation of an educational tool for evaluating Mediterranean Sea Literacy (MSL) of high school students. 8th European Marine Science Educators Association Conference 2021, online 7-8 Oct. 2021.
- Koulouri P., Mogias A., Koutsoubas D., Dounas K., Cheimonopoulou M., 2021. Can marine sciences students support the Ocean Literacy framework? A pilot study from Greece. HydroMediT 2021, 4th Int. Congress on Applied Ichthyology, Oceanography & Aquatic Environment, online, 4-6 Nov. 2021.
- Koulouri P., Mogias A., Realdon G., Cheimonopoulou M., Mokos M., Boubonari T., Previati M., 2021. How ocean literate are students attending schools of Arts? A case study from a Greek middle school. 9th EuroGOOS Conference, online 3-5 May 2021.
- Lancerotto, S., Fakriadis, I., Sigelaki, I. and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. Spontaneous spawning of captive greater amberjack (*Seriola dumerili*) reared in sea cages and transferred to large tanks during the spawning season. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.



- Mogias A., Koulouri P., Cheimonopoulou M., 2021. Ocean Literacy: Investigating knowledge, attitudes and behavior of junior high school students concerning ocean issues. 12th Conference of the Association fro the Education of Natural Sciences & Technology, 19-21 November 2021, Athens, Greece.
- Mylonas, C.C. 2021. MedAID special session. The temperature effects on growth, sex ratio, deformities. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Panselinas G., Sfounis A., Eleftheriou M., Daskalaki K., Korakaki E., Apostolakakis A., Toumpaniaris P., Bakou A., Zervaki G.E., FoundoulakisA., Karaiskou A., Nikas D.S., Katsidis C.C., Stathi I., Koulouri P., Chalkiadakis K., 2021. Science teachers and researchers as a community for adapting, designing and implementing open schooling for sustainable development: SWOT analysis of the RDE team collaboration for the Horizon2020 CONNECT project. 8th London School of Management education (LSME) International Research Conference on 'Sustainable Development and Education', online 26-27 August 2021.
- Papadaki, M., Mandalakis, M., Anastasiou, T.I., Pouli, M., Asderis, M., Katharios, P., Papandroulakis, N., and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. Sex differentiation and early sex identification of greater amberjack Seriola dumerili reared in sea cages. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Papadakis, I., Papadaki, M., Sigelaki, E., Vecchiatini, C., Mitrizakis, N., and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. The development of the eye in the European seabass (*Dicentrarchus labrax*) reared at three different temperatures. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Roque, A., Castanheira, M.F., Toffan, A., Arechavala-López, P., Brun, E., Vilarroel, M., Gisbert, E., Mylonas, C.C., Muniesa, A., Estevez, A., Dalmau, A., and Basurco, B. 2021. Proposal for a gilthead seabream certification scheme. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Sarropoulou, E., Papadaki, M., Kaitetzidou, E., Papadakis, I., Sfakianakis, D., and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. Insights from high troughput non-coding RNA sequencing during European sea bass development reared at different temperatures. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Spilani Loukia, Elena Sarropoulou, Aglaia Antoniou 2021. Comparative seascape genomics at the local scale: marine mollusks of the Cretan coasts. 6th International Marine Connectivity Conference, iMarCo GDR and COST Action SEA-UNICORN, 6-8 December, 2021, Jardin des Plantes of the Museum National d'Histoire Naturelle, Paris, France (pp. 42-43).
- Tsigenopoulos, C.S., Papadogiannis, V., Manousaki, T., Kristoffersen, J., Tsakogiannis, A., Nousias, O., Mylonas, C.C., Chatziplis, D., Batargias, C. 2021. The first complete genome assembly for the meagre *Argyrosomus regius*. Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.
- Zupa, R., Corriero, A., Pousis, C., Fakriadis, I., Papadaki, M., Passantino, L., and Mylonas, C.C. 2021. Spermatogenesis in wild and captive-reared greater amberjack *Seriola dumerili* (Risso, 1810). Aquaculture Europe 2021, 4-7 October, Madeira, Portugal.





